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Director
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Director
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Director
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एस गोपकुमार
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�नदेशक & महा �ब�क
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Chairman-cum-Managing Director

Girish Radhakrishnan (from 29.10.2018)

M N Sarma (upto 31.5.2018)

Directors

Madnesh Kumar Mishra

R A Sankara Narayanan

Sindhu Pillai

Parijat Dutta

S Gopakumar (from 3.8.2018 to 31.5.2019)

K B Vijay Srinivas (from 2.7.2018 to 31.10.2018)

P Hemamalini (upto 30.6.2018)

K Govindarajan (upto 30.6.2018)

General Managers

S Gopakumar (from 3.8.2018 to 31.05.2019)

Susmita Mukherjee (from 24.9.2018)

Bharat Bhushan Dash

D T V Sastri

S Shankar (from 30.7.2018 to 31.5.2019)

B Rajaram (from 9.7.2018)

M Shahul Hameed (from 9.7.2018)

K B Vijay Srinivas (from 2.7.2018 to 31.10.2018)

P Hemamalini (upto 30.6.2018)

K Govindarajan (upto 30.6.2018)

C R Vijayan (upto 31.5.2018)

J S Dahiya (upto 31.7.2018)

D Nagalakshmi (from 20.5.2019)

Y K Shimray (from 20.5.2019)

Gauri Venkatesan (from 20.5.2019)

Chief Financial Officer

S Gopakumar (from 10.8.2018)

D T V Sastri (from 2.4.2018 to 9.8.2018)

Chief Vigilance Officer

V Sundaresan

Actuary

Palreddy Vishnuvardhan

Deputy General Managers

R Hariharan

G Yesudasu

Petla Siva Prasad

V Raghunathan

K Nandakumar

Anita Rajaram

T K Haridasan

R Balaji

Sukeshini Ramaswamy

G Sundararaman

Debashis Purkait

R C Agarwal

S V Venkatesh Murthy

D P Buwa

N Mohan Sankar

Jose George

Sailaja Srinivasan G

Angrup Sonam

G Ravindranath

N K Sidhu

Usha Girish

C S Radhika

R S Meena

Rajesh Khanna

Jaideep Sinha

S C Giri

R Shanthi

S Sathyavathy

Kalaiveni Subbiah

K V R Krishna

N C Mondal

Company Secretary

Anagha Shantanu Deshpande (from 1.6.2018)

S Venkataraman (upto 31.5.2018)

Auditors

M/s.A V Deven & Co.

M/s.P B Vijayaraghavan & Co.

M/s.A John Moris & Co.

 
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
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Chief Grievance Officer

R C Agarwal, Deputy General Manager

Principal Compliance Officer

(Anti-Money Laundering)

Bharat Bhushan Dash, General Manager

Chief Compliance Officer

Gauri Venkatesan, Deputy General Manager (Upto 19-05-2019)

Chief Underwriter

D Nagalakshmi, Deputy General Manager (Upto 19-05-2019)

Chief Risk Officer

K Nandakumar, Deputy General Manager

Compliance Officer – Corporate Governance Guidelines

Anagha Shantanu Deshpande, Company Secretary

Chief Public Information Officer

R Meena, Chief Manager

Debenture Trustee

AXIS Trustee Services Limited

Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound

Pandurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai - 400025

Registrar and Transfer Agents

Karvy Fintech Pvt Ltd

(Formerly - Karvy Computershare Pvt Ltd)

Karvy Selenium Tower B,

Plot No. 31-32, Gachibowli,

Financial District, Nanakramguda,

Hyderabad - 500032.
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the EIGHTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of United India Insurance 

Company Limited  will be held on Friday the 30th August 2019 at the Head Office of the Company at 19, 4th lane, 

Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai 600 034 at 01:00 p.m. to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report, Audited Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2019 and Auditors’ 

 Report thereon.

 To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary  

 Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT the Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31.3.2019 and the Report of 

 the Directors be and is hereby approved and adopted.”

2. To authorise the Board of Directors to fix the remuneration of Auditors, to be appointed by the C&AG, for the year 

 2019-20.

 To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary  

 Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to determine the total  

 remuneration i.e. Audit fees  including Tax Audit Fees, GST Audit Fees and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses to 

 various DO/HUB/RO/LCB/HO Auditors to be appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the year 

 2019-20."

Special Business

3.  To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary  

 Resolution:

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable  

 provisions, if any,  the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors  to contribute, 

 donate, subscribe or otherwise provide assistance from time to time to any charitable, public, social, cultural,  

 benevolent or general fund, society, association, institution, trust, organisation, not directly relating to the business 

 of the Company or the welfare of its employees, etc up to an amount not exceeding  ̀  2,00,00,000 (Rupees Two Crores 

 only),  during  the Financial   Year 2019-20, notwithstanding that such contribution/donation exceeds 5% of average 

 net profits for the immediately preceding three financial years.

4. To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution, as a Special  

 Resolution :

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 94 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and 

 other applicable provisions, if any, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for changing the place of   

 keeping the Register and Index of members of the Company, other statutory registers, along with share transfer books 

 and copies of all the annual returns prepared by the Company together with the copies of all certificates and documents 

 required to be annexed or attached thereto , from the Registered Office located at 24, Whites Road, Chennai 600 014 to 

 its temporary Head Office - (Company owned) premises located at 19, 4th Lane, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai 

 600 034, till the completion of construction of the new office premises.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company Secretary and/or the Directors be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, 

deeds and things as may be required to implement this resolution.

            (By order of the Board)

          For United India Insurance Company Limited

          (ANAGHA SHANTANU DESHPANDE)

            COMPANY SECRETARY
CHENNAI
20.08.2019

Encl.:

1.  Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the  Special Business to be                      

transacted at the 81st Annual General Meeting of the Company under Item nos. 3 & 4.

2.   Proxy Form

3.   Route Map

NOTES:  1.  ANY MEMBER,  ENTITLED  TO  ATTEND  AND   VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND      

VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. 

  2. THE PROXY FORM DULY STAMPED AND EXECUTED, SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE       

OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE      

COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

6913
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3

Section 181 of the Companies Act, 2013 enables the Company to make contributions to bona fide charitable and other 

funds, subject to the approval of the members in general meeting in case such contribution exceeds 5 per cent of the 

Company’s average net profits for 3 immediately preceding financial years. Consequently, the Board of Directors of the 

Company proposes the above resolution as an Ordinary Resolution for approval of the members for making contribution 

exceeding the limits as set out in section 181 on account of loss or inadequate profit in the years 2016-17, 2017-18 and 

2018-19 up to an amount not exceeding ̀ 2,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two Crores only) during the Financial Year 2019-20. 

The Board recommends the Resolution as set out at Item no.3 of the Notice as an Ordinary Resolution, for approval of the 

Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in anyway concerned or interested in the above 

resolution.

Item No. 4

In accordance with the  provisions contained in Section 94 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time the 

Statutory Registers including copies of the Annual Return are required to be kept at the Registered Office of the Company 

unless a Special Resolution is passed in a general meeting authorizing keeping of the registers at any other place within the 

city, town or village in which the Registered Office is situated. The approval of shareholders by a Special Resolution is 

sought to the above arrangement under Section 94 of the Act. 

The Company has a total number of 11 members which includes Government of India and other 10 Nominee Shareholders 

(members) – comprising of General Managers/Deputy General Managers, who are residing in Chennai, thus complying 

with the stipulated requirement.

Presently, the Registered and Head Office is situated at 24 Whites Road, Chennai 600 014. 

The construction of new building for Head Office is in progress at 24, Whites Road, Chennai 600 014, which requires the 

demolition of the existing Head Office building to enable movement of cranes and materials for completion of the project.  

Hence it is proposed that most of the departments and personnel presently housed in the Head Office building would be 

relocated at  the temporary Head Office (Company owned) premises located at : 19, 4th Lane, Nungambakkam High Road, 

Chennai 600 034, till the completion of construction of the new office premises.   

The Registered Office of the Company presently at 24, Whites Road, Chennai 600 014 would continue to function from the 

current address.

In view of operational and administrative convenience, it is considered desirable that all the statutory registers of the 

Company including copies of the Annual Return and the Minutes Books of the Board and Committee meetings, as per 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, be maintained at the temporary Head Office (Company owned) premises located at: 

19, 4th Lane, Nungambakkam High Road, Chennai 600 034, till the completion of construction of the new office premises.   

The Board recommends the Resolution as set out at Item no.4 of the Notice as a Special Resolution, for approval of the 

Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in anyway concerned or interested in the above 

resolution.
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एस गोपकुमार
�नदेशक & महा �ब�क
S. GOPAKUMAR

Director & General Manager

भारत भषूण दाश
महा �ब�क

B. B. DASH
General Manager

सु��ता मखुज�
महा �ब�क

SUSMITA MUKHERJEE
General Manager

डी टी वी शा�ी
महा �ब�क

D. T. V. SASTRI
General Manager

बी राजाराम
महा �ब�क

B RAJARAM
General Manager

वी.सु�रेशन
मु� सतक� ता अ�धकारी
V. SUNDARESAN

Chief Vigilance Officer

एम शा�ल हमीद
महा �ब�क

M SHAHUL HAMEED

एस शंकर
महा �ब�क

S. SHANKAR
General Manager

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
(AS AT 31-03-2019)

अनघा शातंन ुदेशपाडें
कंपनी स�चव

ANAGHA SHANTANU DESHPANDE

Company Secretary

पालरे�ी �व�वुध�न
बीमाकंक 

PALREDDY VISHNUVARDHAN

Appointed Actuary

General Manager

 

GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN 
Chairman-cum-Managing Director

अ��-सह-�बंध �नदेशक
�गरीश राधाकृ�न 

�नगमीय �बंधन
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S.V. VENKATESH MURTHY 

Dy. General Manager

R. BALAJI 
Dy. General Manager

 
GAURI VENKATESAN

Dy. General Manager

SUKHESHINI RAMASWAMY

Dy. General Manager

�शव �साद पेटला, उप महा �बंधक 
SIVA PRASAD PETLA
Dy. General Manager

के नंदकुमार, उप महा �बंधक
K. NANDAKUMAR

Dy. General Manager

डी नागल�ी, उप महा �बंधक
D. NAGALAKSHMI

Dy. General Manager

जी रवी�ंनाथ, उप महा �बंधक 

G. RAVINDRANATH

Dy. General Manager

शैलजा �ी�नवासन, उप महा �बंधक 

SAILAJA SRINIVASAN

Dy. General Manager

 
R. HARIHARAN

Dy. General Manager

उप महा �बंधक आर ह�रहरन ,

 
ANITA RAJARAM

Dy. General Manager

उप महा �बंधक अनीता राजाराम,  आर बालाजी,उप महा �बंधक गौरी व�कटेशन, उप महा �बंधक उप महा �बंधक सुके�शनी राम�ामी, 

एस वी व�कटेश म�ूत , उप महा �बंधक 

R.C. AGARWAL

Dy. General Manager

आर सी अ�वाल, उप महा �बंधक 

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
(AS AT 31-03-2019)

�नगमीय �बंधन
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Northern Zone

DEBASHIS PURKAIT, DGM
Kolkata RO

SANJEEV KUMAR, CRM
Patna RO

Dr. HIMANISH DEB, CRM 

Guwahati RO 

Eastern Zone

L JYOTHI PRASAD, CRM
Bhubaneswar RO

KALAIVENI SUBBIAH, CRM
New Delhi RO-2

 
SANTOSH KUMAR SINGH, CRM

Ludhiana RO

N.K. SIDHU, CRM
Jodhpur RO

RAJEEV SAXENA, CRM
Jaipur RO

REGIONAL INCHARGES

(AS AT 31-03-2019)

ANGRUP SONAM, CRM
New Delhi RO-1

अगं�प सोनम, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक, 

नई िद�ी 1 ��ेीय कायाल� य
RAMESH AIYAR, CRM

Lucknow RO

रमेश अ�र, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक,  

लखनऊ ��ेीय कायाल� य
एन.के. �स� मु� ��ेीय �बंधक,  ू

जोधपुर  ��ेीय कायाल� य
राजीव स�ेना, मु� ��े ीय �बंधक,  

जयपुर ��ेीय कायाल� य

ंसंतोष कुमार �सह, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक,  

लु�धयाना ��ेीय कायाल� य
कलैवेणी सु�ैया, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक, 

नई िद�ी 2 ��ेीय कायाल� य

पूव� �े�

देबाशीष पुरिकत, उप महा �बंधक, 

कोलकाता ��ेीय कायाल� य
डा.ँिहमा�नष देब, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक 

गुवाहाटी ��ेीय कायाल� य
संजीव कुमार, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक, 

पटना ��ेीय कायाल� य
एल �ो�त �साद, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक 

भुवने�र ��ेीय कायाल� य

उ�री �े�

�े�ीय �भारी 
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G. YESUDASU, DGM
Hyderabad RO

G SUNDARARAMAN , DGM
Bangalore RO

V. RAGHUNATHAN, DGM
Chennai RO

T.K. HARIDASAN, DGM
Kochi RO

K.V.R KRISHNA, CRM
Vizag RO

JOSE GEORGE, DGM
Coimbatore RO

SHAILENDRA  K. CHOUDHURY, CRM 
Hubli RO

PRANAY KUMAR, CRM
Puducherry RO

Southern Zone

Y K SHIMRAY, DGM
Pune RO

USHA GIRISH, DGM
Mumbai RO-1

N. MOHAN SANKAR, DGM
Mumbai RO-2

R.P. MITTAL, DGM
Ahmedabad RO

RAGHUNATH SINGH MEENA, CRM
Nagpur RO

S K DAS, CRM
Vadodara RO

USHA JAIN, CRM
Raipur RO

SANJAY KUMAR KHARE, CRM
Bhopal RO

REGIONAL INCHARGES

(AS AT 31-03-2019)

�े�ीय �भारी 

उषा �गरीश, उप महा �बंधक, 

मंुबई 1 ��ेीय कायाल� य
एन मोहनशंकर, उप महा �बंधक, 

मंुबई 2 ��ेीय कायाल� य
आर पी �म�ल, उप महा �बंधक 

अहमदाबाद ��ेीय कायाल� य
वाई के �श�े, उप महा �बंधक 

पुण े ��ेीय कायाल� य

एस के दास, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक
 वडोदरा ��ेीय कायाल� य

संजय कुमार खरे, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक, 

भोपाल ��ेीय कायाल� य
आर.एस. मीणा, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक 

नागपुर ��ेीय कायाल� य

उषा जैन, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक, 

रायपुर ��ेीय कायाल� य

द��णी �े�

वी.रघुनाथन, उप महा �बंधक 

चे�ई ��ेीय कायाल� य
जी येसुदास,ु उप महा �बंधक 

हदै राबाद ��ेीय कायाल� य
जी सुंदररामन, उप महा �बंधक 

बग� लु�  ��ेीय कायाल� य

टी के ह�रदासन, उप महा �बंधक 

को�� ��ेीय कायाल� य

के वी आर कृ�ा उप महा �बंधक 
�वसगाप��नम ��ेीय कायाल� य

जोस जॉज�, उप महा �बंधक 

कोयंबटूर ��ेीय कायाल� य
एस के चौधरी, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक 

�बली ��ेीय कायाल� य
�णय कुमार, मु� ��ेीय �बंधक

 पुडुचेरी ��ेीय कायाल� य

/ Western Zoneपि�चमी �े�
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JAIDEEP SINHA
LCB Mumbai

B MOHAN KUMAR
 LCB Bangalore

सीमा गौर
 एलसीबी-हैदराबाद
SEEMA GAUR

LCB Hyderabad

आर बी जोशी
 एलसीबी-पुणे
R B JOSHI
LCB Pune

PUSHPALATHA NATARAJAN
LCB Chennai

SUJATA GANGULY
LCB Delhi

ASHIM KUMAR MUKHERJEE
LCB Kolkata

LARGE CORPORATE & BROKERS CELL INCHARGES
(AS AT 31-03-2019)

बड़े कॉप�रेट और �ोकर सेल �भारी

जयदीप �स�ा
एलसीबी-मंुबई

पु�लता नटराजन
 एलसीबी-चे�ई

सुजाता गागुंली
एलसीबी-नई िद�ी

बी मोहन कुमार 
एलसीबी-बग� लु�

 आ�शम मखु ज� 
एलसीबी-कोलकाता



अ�� का संदेश

�गरीश राधाकृ�न
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CHAIRMAN’s MESSAGE

GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN

The year 2018-19 had been a year of challenges for the Company which Team United India sought to overcome with hard 

work, grit and determination.

This difficult exercise involved tightening underwriting prudence by various means including repricing in certain lines of 

business (LOBs) based on claims experience and shedding of several accounts with unattractive profiles that had led to 

the strain on the bottom line of the Company.  The Company continued its primary focus on “customer” at the core of its 

operations.  To this end, reforms were brought in on claims processing to make it quicker and smoother and designing of 

new products to cater to the evolving customer needs was also taken up.

The strengthening of the Company’s financials was undertaken in the form of building adequate claims reserves to meet 

future business liabilities.  This in turn was achieved by continuous and in depth review and management of claims.

The Company issued 17.5 million policies and settled nearly 6 million claims in 2018-19.  We were able to successfully 

settle over 19000 claims arising out of an eventful year of natural disasters in the form of floods in Kerala, Karnataka, 

Odisha and Tamil Nadu.  

We are confident of bettering our performance in the coming year by taking advantage of our inherent strengths in the ever 

changing industry scenario.  

I wish to express my sincere thanks to the Company’s Board of Directors, other stakeholders and partners and our 

Regulators for their continued support and valuable guidance. I also wish to place on record my gratitude to the 

Company’s valued customers, business intermediaries and vendors for their patronage and faith reposed in the Company.  
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लु�धयाना
च�ीगढ़

 देहरादनू

�द�ी �े. का. -1�द�ी �े. का. -1�द�ी �े. का. -1

जयपुर
लखनऊ

पटना
गुवाहाटीगुवाहाटीगुवाहाटी

कोलकाताकोलकाताकोलकाता
भोपाल

नागपुर रायपुर

वडोदरावडोदरावडोदरा

मंबुई �े. का.-I
मंबुई �े. का.-II

पुणे

चे�ई

पुदचेरीु

�बली

 बग� लु�

कोयंबटूर

मदरै ु
को��

अहमदाबादअहमदाबादअहमदाबाद

�द�ी �े. का. -2�द�ी �े. का. -2�द�ी �े. का. -2

भवुने�रभवुने�रभवुने�र

�वशाखाप�नमहैदराबाद

जोधपुर



Ludhiana

Chandigarh

Dehradun

New Delhi RO-INew Delhi RO-INew Delhi RO-I
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�व�श� �न�ादन  2018-19

सकल ��� �ी�मयम 

`16,420.47 
करोड़

शु� अ�जत �ी�मयम 

`13104.51 
करोड़

शु� म�ू 

`2899.13 
करोड़

कर से पूव� 
लाभ

`-1877.91
करोड़

कर के प�ात 

लाभ 

`-1877.91

करोड़

शोध �मता क� 
सीमा
1.52



Performance Highlights for 2018-19

GROSS DIRECT 
PREMIUM
`16420.47 
CRORES

NET EARNED 
PREMIUM 
`13104.51
CRORES

SOLVENCY 
MARGIN 

1.52

NET 
WORTH

`2899.13
CRORES

PAT
`-1877.91
CRORES

PBT
`-1877.91
CRORES
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Eighty First Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited 

Statement of Accounts and Balance Sheet for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

We are also pleased to report on business performance and operating results of the Company:

 (` in crores)

                      Particulars    2018-19 2017-18

 Gross Premium Income 16420.47 17429.95

 Net Premium 13792.46 12390.47

 Net Earned Premium 13104.51 12860.98

 Claims Incurred 14336.09 12137.81

 Commission 732.70 667.59

 Operating Expenses 3059.41 2597.80

 Other Income/(Expenses) -172.72 -54.14

 Investment Income (Gross) 3318.50 3824.32

 Profit Before Tax -1877.91 1227.96

 Provision for Taxation 0 225.30

 Profit After Tax -1877.91 1002.66

1.  REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TO THE MEMBERS 
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Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital of the Company is  200 crores.  `
The Paid Up Capital of the Company is  150 crores as on `
31st March, 2019.

Reserves

The loss of  1900.41 Crores (Net Loss  1877.91 Crores ` `
+ Debenture Redemption Reserve 22.50 Crores) was ` 
transferred to General Reserve, thereby showing a 
reduction in the balance of General Reserve to  2731.24 `
Crores from  4631.65 Crore in the previous year. `

Reserves & Surplus (` in Crores)

  2018-19 2017-18

 Paid Up Capital 150.00 150.00

 Reserves & Surplus (including 

 45 crores kept as Debenture  `

 Redemption Reserve)  2794.13 4669.84

  

Dividend

In view of the IRDAI direction vide letter no. IRDA/FNA/ 

GOG/LR/001/2017-18/66 dated 25.07.2017 and letter no. 

IRDA/FNA/GUI/LR/002/2017-18/67 dated 27.07.2017 

stipulating that the company shall not declare any 

dividend to its shareholders till such time the solvency of 

insurer is restored to the control level and under 

provisioning is fully provided for, the directors 

recommended no dividend for the year ended 31st March 

2019.

Solvency Margin 

i. Required Solvency Margin under 

IRDAI Regulations   4532.64 crores`

ii. Available Solvency Margin   6870.69 crores`

The Solvency Ratio was 1.52 as on 31.03.2019 ( after 

considering balance of  3454.19 crores in  Fair value `

Change account as per forbearance granted by IRDAI ) as 

against 1.54 as on 31.03.2018

Compliance with Section 40 (C).

The Company is within the permitted level of expenses as 

allowed under IRDAI (Expenses of Management of 

Insurers transacting General or Health Insurance 

business) Regulations,2016.
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Changes in the Nature of Business, if any

There was no change in the nature of business carried on 

by the Company during the year under review. 

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the 

financial position of the Company which have occurred 

between the end of the financial year of the Company to 

which the Financial Statements relate and the date of the 

Report.

No changes as aforesaid have taken place.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS

The Performance of the various Business Verticals during 

the year are detailed below:

UMEX – AGENCY VERTICAL

The UMEX Agency force has been catering to retail 

segments of the market. With its strength of 74596 agents 

it completed a gross premium of  8150 crores and `

incurred claims ratio of 69.5%. This year 6531 new agents 

were recruited. With 27544 agents using the Portal facility 

63.50 lakh policies were issued from Agents’ Portal 

bringing in Premium of  2209 crores with the support of `

IT enablement of payment gateway.

MOTOR INSURANCE SERVICE PROVIDERS 

Since the issuance of guidelines by IRDAI on MISP this 

channel is working in coordination with various OEMs & 

Motor Dealers for maximizing Motor Insurance business. 

Our major OEM tie up partners are Maruti, Volkswagen, 

Toyota & Yamaha. We are also planning to operationalize 

the tie up with Tata Motors shortly. A total premium of 

` 401.65 crores was procured this year.

LCB

The 7 Large Corporate and Brokers’ Offices completed a 

premium of 1847.26 crores as against  1767.80 crores ` `

in the previous year by retaining all our major renewals 

while consciously shedding loss making accounts.

BANCASSURANCE

Bancassurance channel has underwritten a premium of 

` 593 crores in 2018-19. Our existing partnership is with 

47 Banks and 22 Non-Banking Corporate Agents. Besides 

this, we have also entered into Corporate Agency 

agreement with 9 new entities in the year 2018-19. We 

have 80 dedicated Channel Managers and approximately 

1500 Agents to serve our Corporate Agents. 

PERFORMANCE OF MICRO OFFICES 

Micro Office or one-man office continues to be a 

successful and low cost business model of our Company. 

Our micro offices completed a premium of  1385 crores `

in 2018-19 as  against  1365 crores in the previous year `

even though we have closed 60 micro offices while 

upgrading  7 micro offices as branch offices. Now there 

are  951 micro offices spread across the country, out of 

which 36 micro offices have completed premium more 

than  5 crores each in 2018-19.  Average premium per `

micro office is   1.46 crores. All micro offices put `

together generated an operating surplus of  264.64 `

crores.

Since most of the micro offices are located in Tier 3 & Tier 

4 towns, they have helped considerably in catering to the 

insurance requirements of the rural populace, thereby 

increasing insurance penetration.

  2018-19 2017-18

 Expenses prescribed under the Regulations (allowable expenses) - A 4901.80 5226.61

 Actual Expenditure incurred -  

 Management Expenses  3059.41 2597.80

 Expenses including Commission – B 3958.26 3650.56

 Difference  (B-A) -943.54 -1576.05

 Percentage of expenses including commission to the prescribed limit (% of B over A) 80.75% 69.85%

(` in Crores)
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ACTIVITIES  OF  ACTUARIAL  DEPARTMENT 

This department functions under the supervision of a 

full time Appointed Actuary. Its key functions include 

estimation of IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) claims 

reserves, Preparation of Financial Condition Report 

[FCR], Calculation of Economic Capital of the Company, 

Performance of the products and Asset Liability 

Management.  

The department is also involved in providing support in 

areas of pricing, product design and solvency 

assessment.  The other activities of the department 

include co-ordination and submission of specific 

reports to IRDAI, GI Council, GIPSA and Ministry.  

Analysis reports on business performance, claim 

settlement and incurred losses are provided to technical 

departments from time to time.

CUSTOMER  CARE  SERVICES

Customer Care Department plays a very crucial role in 

reinforcing the positive image of the Company and 

promoting goodwill. The Department not only takes 

care of the customer grievances but also ensures that 

the clients are being retained through speedy 

resolution of their grievances. Besides this the 

department is also generating reports called Root 

Cause Analysis of the grievances registered in UGMS 

portal on quarterly basis.  This helps to identify the 

predominant causes which give rise to repetitive 

complaints.  HO Departments & Regional Offices are 

suitably advised to initiate remedial measures so as to 

avoid recurrence of complaints from  the same cause. 
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Data on Customer Grievances – 2018-19

  Opening Balance  Received + Reopened  Disposed  Pending  Disposal Ratio

       313   8908  8835  386  95.80%

During 2018-19, 95.80% of the complaints were 

resolved, highlighting the Company’s concern over the 

grievances registered and the need to have them 

speedily and effectively addressed.

The Department also conducts weekly review of 

minimum of 20 grievances under “Pragati-Proactive 

Governance” and the report of such reviews is sent to 

IRDAI.

Service  to  Senior  Citizens /  Women

Provision of comfortable seating space and amenities 

for senior citizens and women have been ensured in the 

operating offices.

Complaints  referred  to  Insurance  Ombudsman

The Company appointed Nodal Officers in each 

Regional Office, who are responsible for monitoring 

disputes referred to the Insurance Ombudsman, and to 

handle the cases effectively  before  the  Hon’ble  

Ombudsman.

Presently, Customer Care Department at Head office is 

monitoring Ombudsman cases regularly through the 

online portal of GIBC - “Complaints Management 

System” (CMS).

RIGHT  TO  INFORMATION

The CPIOs of all ROs are advised to maintain proper 

TAT for disposal of RTI applications/appeals and are in 

continuous co-ordination with Head Office. In order to 

sensitize the Regional CPIOs about RTI matters, our 

HO RTI team is conducting meetings for providing 

guidance for timely disposal of applications/appeals.  

The Department has released a RTI hand book during 

the RTI Meet at Bengaluru which aims at creating 

awareness among employees on RTI matters and also 

for providing updates on the latest trends and 

developments in RTI/CIC decisions. Details of 

applications and appeals disposed, (Company as a 

whole and HO alone) in the financial years 2017-18 & 

2018-19 are given below.
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OFFICIAL LANGUAGE IMPLEMENTATION

It has been the Company’s continuous endeavor to 

encourage the use of Hindi in day-to-day official work in 

accordance with the official language policy of the 

Government of India. In the field of original 

correspondence in Hindi and compliance of Section 

3(3) of the Official Language Act of Government of 

India, we have made notable progress during the year. 

We are fully committed to meet the insurance 

requirements of all our corporate, rural sectors and 

individual clients through their own language. We have 

translated the prospectus, proposal forms, policies, 

endorsements, claim forms of major policies and 

uploaded in our company’s website. 

We have organized Hindi Workshops to train our 

employees to carryout the official day to day work in 

Hindi. We have been nominating personnel to learn 

Hindi under the Hindi Teaching Scheme. We are also 

releasing an in-house magazine from Head Office and 

various Regional Offices.

On 14 September, 2018 “Hindi Diwas” and during 14-

21 September, 2018 “Hindi Saptah” was organized at 

all the offices of the Company. Officials of 

HO/RO/DO/MO participated and won prizes in various 

H i n d i  C o m p e t i t i o n s o r g a n i z e d d u r i n g t h e  

Diwas/Saptah. 

TOLIC Activities 

Our Company sponsored Hindi Drama Competition at 

our Corporate Learning Centre, Nungambakkam, 

Chennai, under the leadership of Town Official Language 

Implementation Committee (PSU), Chennai.  Out of 

Seven PSUs which participated in the competition our 

Company was awarded the Third Prize. TOLIC (PSU), 

Chennai also organized Third Meeting at Chennai. We 

were awarded Shield(Third Prize) under Big Category by 

the TOLIC (PSU) for the outstanding contribution made 

in Hindi implementation.

We have been awarded a Special Prize by TOLIC for our 

Hindi House Magazine “PRAGATI”, issued by Head 

Office. Our Regional Offices viz. Dehradun, Lucknow, 

Chandigarh, Nagpur, New Delhi I & II have been awarded 

prizes and shields by the respective TOLIC for effective 

Hindi implementation in their respective area of 

operations. 

Inspection

During the year 2018-19, the Third Sub-committee of 

Committee of Parliament on Official Language, 

inspected  Alappuzha DO1@ Kumarakom,  Indore DO1, 

Surat DO1, Tuticorin DO and Goa Divisional Offices. 

JD(OL), DFS inspected and reviewed the performance of 

Official Language Implementation in our Offices at 

Gorakhpur, Lucknow, Hyderabad, Nagpur, Delhi 

Regional Offices 1 & 2 and Head Office.

Applications/Appeals 2017-18 & 2018-19 ( For Company as a whole )

  APPLICATIONS  APPLICATIONS APPEALS  APPEALS  

   2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19

 Opening balance 44 74 21 9

 Number received 2294 2227 286 352

 Number disposed 2264 2233 277 349

 Number pending 74 68 9 12

 Disposal rate 96.83% 97.04% 90.23% 96.67%
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  APPLICATIONS  APPLICATIONS APPEALS  APPEALS  

  2017-18 2018-19 2017-18 2018-19

Opening balance 5 10 4 1

Number received 639 536 81 81

Number disposed 634 530 84 78

Number pending 10 16 1 4

Disposal rate 98.45% 97.07% 98.82% 95.12%

Applications/ Appeals 2017-18 & 2018-19(Received at Head Office alone) 

6941



6942

2018 - 2019



CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

Publicity Activities for the year 2018-19  

Publicity activities for the year were planned in tune with 
the Company’s objectives of reinforcing the brand image, 
creating awareness about the products and educating 
customers regarding insurance benefits using a good mix 
of various media, at national level as well as at local level.

Although Outdoor media (Out of Home- OOH advertising) 
continued to be the major format, other media such as 
Hoardings, Neon signs, Translites, Bus shelters, Full Bus-
body wrapping, Rail coach wrapping, hoardings at railway 
stations, trolleys at Airports  were also used.

Public awareness campaigns to educate the insureds on 
claim procedures arising out of losses from Kerala and 
Kodagu Floods were carried out in local newspapers and 
FM Channels.  A Press release was issued on behalf of all 
the PSGICs regarding the Kerala Flood claims settlement. 

A first of its kind two day training programme for Publicity 
Nodal Officers from all Regional Offices was organized at 
National Insurance Academy, Pune to create awareness 
about carrying out publicity related activities in a prudent 
and efficient manner.

An All India In-house Talent hunt competition was held for 
employees of all cadres.  The entries received under 
various categories were judged by an external jury from 
the field of media and advertising. The winners were 
felicitated at a function held at Learning Centre. The prize 
winning creative audio jingles and videos are being 
extensively used on various publicity platforms.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

The Information Technology Department undertook major 
performance improvements by way of software upgrades 
and hardware refresh during 2018-19 in addition to a host 
of IT initiatives to support business operations. As part of 
the Performance Improvement Project - the database 
version got upgraded, Reporting database shifted to new 
Exadata system, Oracle Golden Gate was installed for 
getting near real-time reports and a database architectural 
review was done towards achieving performance tuning. 

On the hardware front, new Desktop Computers, Laser 
printers, Video Conferencing Equipment, Switches and 
Routers were purchased to replace old / obsolete systems. 
Also, Secondary MPLS link at operating offices was 
established. 

Performance of Portals was improved by upgrading the 
platform version, installing a hardware load balancer and 
enabling a secondary link from a different ISP for Portals. 
The Corporate website platform also underwent an 

upgradation in order to provide users with a hassle-free 
navigation experience.

Web Ser v ices  in tegra t ion  wi th  Bus iness  
Intermediaries, Claims Intermediaries and External 
Databases

Web services integration with TPAs was launched for a 
seamless health claim intimation and claim settlement 
data exchange. 

United India achieved successful web services 
integration with 11 InsurTech entities for issuance of 
Motor and Health policies and aims to expand the tie ups 
to many more InsurTech companies in the next financial 
year.  

Automated data uploads through web services to ETASS 
Portal was streamlined, conveying coinsurance 
information in all lines of business. 

For real-time verification of No Claim Bonus in case of 
Motor insurance renewals coming from other Insurers, 
web services integration was successfully done with the 
industry wide motor database of Insurance Information 
Bureau. Simultaneously, triggering of an e-mail to the 
previous insurer for NCB confirmation, was also built into 
the software. 

Testing was completed on the web services integration 
with Vahan database of MoRTH(Ministry of Road 
Transport and Highways) for real-time validation of 
Vehicle Registration number, Engine number and 
Chassis number and full deployment is planned in the 
first quarter of FY 2019-20. 

Facilitation for large volume Government schemes 

Offline excel upload facility was deployed for handling 
claims under Pradhan Mantri Fasal Bima Yojana and for 
various State Government Health Insurance Schemes, 
which enabled claim processing and accounting  in the 
Core Insurance software. Member data records of more 
than a crore were successfully uploaded under Tamil 
Nadu Chief Minister’s Comprehensive Health Insurance 
Scheme and under Pradhan Mantri Suraksha Bima 
Yojana. 

Reports 

Oracle Business Intelligence Reports were customised to 
provide operating offices with daily updates on business 
and operational aspects. The reports have been enabled 
in Intranet -My Page and are interactive, with drill down 
and consolidation features. These reports are in addition 
to existing dashboard reports, Power BI reports and GC 
CORE Eclipse BI reports. R
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Information and Cyber Security 

The Information Security Committee headed by the Chief 
Information Security Officer reviewed the Information 
Security policy and procedures in order to migrate to the 
latest ISO 27001:2013 standards.

Document Management System (DMS)

In addition to the existing usage of DMS modules for 
scanning and upload of claim documents at Hubs and 
KYC documents, DMS Omnidocs was successfully 
configured in agents’ portal enabling agents to upload 
photos and vehicle inspection reports in case of break in 
insurance. 

New additional storage was acquired for indexing and 
archival of proposals, policy, claims and KYC records.

Other Initiatives

Online claim intimation provision was incorporated in the 
Company’s website whereby policyholders can directly 
intimate a motor claim through a link. 

The Department took up for incorporating IT features 
required for the Surveyor Management Policy to be 
implemented from 1st April 2019. The features include 
SMS alerts and e-mails to customers, surveyors, and 
Garages/ workshops, reminder alerts for survey report 
submission, dashboard reports to the claim servicing 
office and provision for online customer feedback on 
surveyor performance.   

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT AND PERSONNEL 

Organisational Network

As on 31.03.2019 the Company has 2086 Offices.

 Head Office 1

 Regional Offices 29

 LCBs 7

 Divisional Offices 432

 Branch Offices 666

 Micro Offices 951

 TOTAL 2086

Break up of Number of Employees

The Company has 15039 employees with the following 
class-wise break up:-

Category of Posts Total No. of
   Employees

 A or Class-I 7103

 B or Class-II (Marketing + Administration) 581

 C or Class-III 6021

 D or Class-IV 730

 Safai Karamcharis 

 Full Time Sweepers (FTS) 603

 Part Time Sweepers (PTS)  01  604       

 TOTAL 15039

WELFARE OF SC/ST/OBC/PWD/EX-SERVICEMEN

The Company complies with the guidelines of 
Government on extending reservation of posts, relaxation 
of age in recruitment and reservation of posts in 
promotion for SC/ST.  The Company also adheres to the 
guidelines issued by the Government on reservation for 
OBC categories in recruitment as well as those governing 
PwD and Ex-Servicemen.

Study Visit of the Department Related Parliamentary 
Standing Committee on Personnel, Public Grievances, 
Law and Justice was held at Chennai on 27th August, 
2018 to review the effectiveness of Vigilance 
Administration in our company. 

Study visit of the Standing Committee on Labour, 
Regulatory Framework of the EPFO on the Excluded 
Category, implementation of various PF Acts and also on 
functioning, coverage of Establishments, Recovery of 
Arrears including Administration of Provident Fund 
Act,1925 and all other PF Related Acts  in Southern 
Region (EPFO) was held at Chennai on 18/01/2019, 
wherein administration  of Provident Fund of our 
company in consonance with the Regulatory Framework 
was reviewed. 

Incentives and financial support are being extended from 
Dr. Ambedkar Welfare Trust to the SC/ST and OBC 
employees. We have extended benefits  under Dr. B R 
Ambedkar Trust  towards reimbursement of school fees, 
books, notebooks and school uniforms (maximum 2 
children) for children of Part/Full Time Sweepers 
belonging to SC/ST/OBC employees, reimbursement of 
expenses on cost of books, fees incurred for MBBS, MBA, 
Engineering, L.L.B for the children of SC/ST/OBC 
employees from Recognized Universities by UGC after 
completion of Degree course and cash awards for 
SC/ST/OBC employees passing insurance examinations.
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Out of 787 officers trained at NIA, Pune, the number of 

officers participated in various training programmes in 

SC, ST & OBC category were 137, 42 and 132 

respectively. Similarly  out of 2189 officers who were 

trained at Learning Centre, Chennai  and 7946 

employees who were trained in our Regional Training 

Centres, adequate SC/ST participation was  ensured in 

all the training programmes.

During the 2018-2019 promotion exercise, all eligible 

SC, ST, OBC employees  were  given pre-promotional 

training at our various Regional Training Centres.

Adequate representation is  given in the allotment of 

Staff Quarters as per reservation guidelines.

Reservation Rosters are maintained as per the DOPT 

guidelines which is reviewed by the Ministry every year.  

The reviewed Rosters are published on our Intranet 

site.The Academy also offers research facilities on 

insurance related subjects.

Training

Training and Employee Development are vital facets of 

our functioning.  Training is critically important for 

updating knowledge and skills of employees, 

developing their innate potential and for bringing 

them abreast of the latest Industry trends.  Training to 

employees is imparted at our Corporate Training 

Centre, “Nalanda” and at Regional Training Centres. 

National Insurance Academy at Pune, co-sponsored 

by the Company imparts insurance training on 

specialized topics to our officers.

Details of Training Programmes attended by our employees during the year:

 Name of Training Centre  No. of Programmes Participants

 Corporate Learning Centre, HO 57 2189

 Regional Training Centres 628 7946

 National Insurance Academy 115 787

 Other External Institutes 15 49

 Total 815 10971

Human Capital Management

An integrated platform SAP-HCM (System Application 

and Products – Human Capital Management) is being 

used by the Company for 

Personnel Administration: Complete service tenure of 

the employee is updated.

Organizational Management: Organizational Tree which 

maps each employee to his position

Online Property Returns: For Class I and II employees

APAR: Annual Performance Appraisal Report for all 

Class I, Class III/ IV employees

SAP Payroll: Central Processing of Salary of all 

employees.

Pension Module : Onl ine pension appl icat ion,  

Commutation, pension calculation & life certificates is 

enabled in this module.

Gratuity Module: Gratuity amount due to the retirees is 

processed and released through SAP system.

PF Module: Used for terminal PF settlement to all 

retirees, 90% withdrawal of PF, Annual PF statement 

and preparation of Control Sheets.

Check Off Exercise/Election Module: Election to the PF 

Trust, Check-Off Exercise for Unions/Associations 

Employee Self Service: All employees of the Company 

are given access to ESS portal which is being used by 

them for viewing their profile, view/download Payslip, 

submit Property Returns, completing the Annual 

Performance Appraisal Process, online submission of 

Pension Application, etc.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (PMS)

Performance Management System (PMS) has been 

successfully followed for the tenth consecutive year in 

the Company and the structure is by now well 

established. Targets drawn up on the basis of Key 

Result Areas were finalized for functional groups as 

wel l as indiv idual execut ives. The extent of 

achievement of KRA targets by heads of the Operating 

Offices formed part of their performance evaluation 

during the Annual Performance Appraisal process.

KRA based targets and productivity linked incentive 

scheme create healthy competition amongst offices, 

improve productivity and contribute to achievement 

of the Company’s goals.
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MEASURES TAKEN TO ENHANCE CREDIBILITY OF 

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

Internal Audit

In the changing market scenario, the internal audit 

department has also directed its approach towards the 

system & procedural audits rather than transactional 

audits. Emphasis is laid on monitoring the activities of 

more sensitive areas which by nature need more 

supervision. The focus of the department is to be an 

effective tool to management to achieve corporate 

goals along with strict adherence to laid down rules & 

procedures.

With a team of around 75 auditors, the department 

successfully completed the audit of 1922 offices 

including Regional Offices, LCBs, Hubs, Divisional 

Offices, Branch Offices & Micro Offices. Almost all the 

departments of Head Office were audited during the 

year. The department also conducted surprise 

inspection of 120 offices. 3 special audits were 

conducted as per the requirements. 

New areas have been included in our new software 

which was developed a year ago, to monitor the 

significant areas which need immediate attention of the 

top management.  The software has been developed in 

such a way to help the Compliance Department monitor 

the queries. The major significant observations and 

improvements in system related areas were apprised to 

management well in time to take immediate remedial 

action.  

Audit Compliance

The Audit Compliance Department ensures timely 

compliance of queries raised by CAG Auditors and 

Internal Auditors of the Company. Regional Compliance 

Officers identified in each of the ROs coordinate 

effectively with the Internal Audit Cells to make sure that 

the Audit Reports are responded to on time by the 

Operating Offices thereby ensuring faster disposal of 

Audit queries. 

Reg iona l  Aud i t  Comp l i ance Commi t t ees a re 

empowered to review and settle all Internal Audit 

queries up to the level of Operating Offices below them.  

This year, we were able to achieve a disposal ratio of 

75% of the pending personal recoveries.

With regular interactions with Regional Heads & 

Regional Audit Compliance Officers, HO Audit 

Compliance department could furnish 100% replies to 

CAG queries. Through various sittings with CAG team, 

HO Audit Compliance department could get 133 

queries dropped during 2018-19.Department also 

co-ordinates in replying for the vetting remarks raised 

by the Ministry. This year we were able to submit 

100% replies to the Action Taken Notes & vetting 

remarks. Based on the replies furnished, 3 printed 

paragraphs were dropped.

We have also created a digital repository for the CAG 

queries with specific access to Regional Heads & 

Regional Compliance Officers.

VIGILANCE ADMINISTRATION

The Company has a dedicated Vigilance Department 

headed by Chief Vigilance Officer, who reports directly 

to the Central Vigilance Commission, New Delhi.  The 

department is staffed with Desk Officers who deal with 

matters relating to various Regional Offices.  Each 

Regional Office has a Vigilance Officer who directly 

reports to Head Office, Vigilance department.

The broad functioning of the department is divided 

into:

 (i)  Preventive Vigilance and

 (ii)  Punitive Vigilance

With increased emphasis given to preventive 

vigilance, the department conducts inspection of 

various offices on a surprise basis, i.e. where the 

concerned office is not given advance information of 

the proposed visit of the Vigilance Officer.  Based on 

the reports of such surprise inspection, salient points 

are pointed out to the Region-in-charge.  Any 

observation that leads to vigilance investigation is 

taken up accordingly.

During the year 2018-19, surprise inspection was 

conducted at 493 offices, comprising of Divisional 

Offices -  103, Branch Offices - 137, Micro Offices – 

246 and RO/TP/OD HUB – 7.
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 – 2018-19�नपटा�नत

जीसी �शकायत �                    56                                30

जी-47 �शकायत �                163                               99

पंजीकृत �शकायतो ं
क� सं�ा - 2018-19 
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Vigilance Awareness Week

The Company takes an active and enthusiastic part in 

observing the Vigilance Awareness Week which 

coincides with the birth anniversary of Sardar 

Vallabhbhai Patel.  This year also, across all Regions, 

the Week was observed with active participation. The 

Company conducted walkathons in different places and 

conducted quiz/essay competitions both among the 

employees and in schools and colleges.

Training

Officers of the department were given training both at 

Corporate Learning Centre and at National Insurance 

Academy, Pune in order to enhance their skills.  Further 

an exclusive training for Inquiry Officers and Presenting 

Officers was organized to Officers working in Regional/ 

Divisional Offices.  This will enable them to act as 

Inquiry and Presenting Officers as and when required.

FRAUD RISK MANAGEMENT

A Fraud Risk Management policy was drawn up which 

received the approval of the Board.  The Fraud Risk 

Management pol icy has been uploaded in the 

Company’s websi te for the informat ion of a l l 

stakeholders. A Nodal Officer has been nominated who 

receives information relating to frauds and places it 

before the Fraud Risk Management Committee for 

suitable action. The minutes of the Fraud Risk 

Management Committee are placed before Risk 

Management Committee. Details of the fraud cases 

have been shared with GI Council’s Fraud Mitigation 

Portal to alert other insurers.

SFIO Investigation 

1)  During the period 2014-15, fraud was detected by the 

Divisional Manager at DO Latur involving irregularities 

like mis-utilisation of scroll and the same is under 

Investigation by CBI. The employees involved in the 

fraud have also been charge sheeted. The employee 

mainly responsible for the fraud has been removed 

from services. The matter is under investigation by 

Serious Fraud Investigation Office (SFIO). The case is 

also under detailed investigation by an Independent 

Firm of Chartered  Accountants appointed by the 

Company.

2)  During the financial year 2017-18, Internal Audit 

and Inspection Department has brought out several 

instances of financial irregularities in DO1 Surat in the 

a p p o i n t m e n t  o f  a d v o c a t e s ,  s u r v e y o r s  a n d 

investigators and also in payments under several 

heads of expenditure.  The case is under investigation 

by SFIO. The employees involved in the financial 

irregularities have been charge sheeted.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

Our Company’s Whistle Blower Policy provides an 

opportunity for every employee or Director of the 

company or any other person to raise any issue 

relating to financial irregularities or breaches of 

control. The policy gives guidelines for placing the 

reports before the Fraud Risk Management Committee 

for suitable action. The policy also provides for 

adequate safeguards against victimization of persons 

who use such mechanism. The Whistle Blower Policy 

has been uploaded in the Company’s website 

www.uiic.co.in.

ANTI MONEY LAUNDERING

IRDAI has issued guidel ines to insurers for 

implementation of Anti-Money Laundering/Counter-

Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT). The Company has 

been complying with the Prevention of Money-

Laundering Act (PMLA), 2002 as applicable to 

Insurance Companies.  The  various amendments 

issued by IRDAI from time to time  are circulated to 

Regional Offices for strict compliance.

The Compliance of AML guidelines is monitored by the 

Principal Compliance Officer at Corporate Office, and 

an Officer nominated as Nodal Officer at each Regional 

Office, who ensure that the Board approved AML 

Programme is being implemented effect ively 

including monitoring compliance by the Company’s 

agents of their obligations under the programme.

No. of Complaints 
  Registered 
– 2018-19  

Disposed

– 2018-19

GC 
complaints                  56                                30

G-47 
complaints                 163                               99
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A session of AML/CFT Guidelines is included in all 

programmes conducted at Nalanda, the Corporate 

Training Centre at Chennai and Regional Training Centres 

at various Regional Offices to create awareness among 

employees, agents, etc about the programme.   

ENVIRONMENT RELIEF FUND 

The Company has been appointed as the Fund Manager 

under Clause 4 of Environment Relief Fund Scheme 2008 

as per Notification of Ministry of Environment and Forests 

GSR 768(E) dated 04th November, 2008, constituted 

under Section 7 A of the Public Liability Insurance Act, 

1991 and vide latest notification no. G.S.R 606 (E) dated 

16th June 2016, the Company’s position as Fund Manager 

was extended upto 31st March 2019.The Company as 

Fund Manager has been authorized to receive contribution 

from all General Insurance Companies and keep the same 

invested in Fixed Deposits as prescribed in the Scheme in 

separate bank accounts in the name of the fund. During the 

year 2018-19, an amount of  9.56 crores was received `

towards contribution from General Insurers and as 

compensation for environment damages caused under 

sub-section(1) of Section 22 of the National Environment 

Tribunal Act, 1995 and the same has been credited to the 

Fund. The total amount lying in Fixed Deposits of the ERF 

as on 31.03.2019 is  810.32 crores.`

NEW PRODUCTS

In order to keep pace with a growing and fast changing 

industry, it is essential for the Company to come out with 

new and revised products from time to time according to 

the needs and requirements of the customers. 

The Product Development Department is involved in 

developing New Products and in revision of Existing 

Products (wordings, pricing, endorsements etc) 

including Add On covers. This activity is undertaken in 

close co-ordination with the respective technical, 

marketing and actuarial departments and after due 

approval of the PMC. This ensures that the organisation 

is geared towards providing what its customers need in 

the most efficient, effective and economical way, while at 

the same time ensuring compliance of the regulatory 

requirements of “File & Use” or “Use & File” guidelines. 

The department got approval for the following products 

during 2018-19:

S.No  Name of the Product

   Motor Department :

1   Standard Add On – Engine & Gear Box Protection Cover

    Two Wheeler

    Private Car

   Commercial Vehicle not exceeding 18 passengers

2   Platinum Add On- Engine & Gear Box Protection Cover

    Two Wheeler

    Private Car

   Commercial Vehicle not exceeding 18 passengers

3   Liability Policy- Two Wheeler                                 5 years

4   Liability Policy- Private Car                                    3 years

5   Long Term Package Policy-  Two Wheeler              5 years

6   Long Term Package Policy-  Private Car                 3 years

7   Two wheeler – One year OD bundled with 5 year liability cover

8   Private Car – One year OD bundled with 3 year liability cover

9   Standalone Compulsory Personal Accident (Owner Driver) Policy

   Health Insurance:

10   Tamil Nadu Chief Minister’s Comprehensive Health Insurance Scheme (Group)

11   Tamil Nadu Chief Minister’s Comprehensive Health Insurance Scheme integration with 
   Ayushman Bharat (Group)

12   Individual Health Insurance Policy – Platinum/Gold/Senior Citizens
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CLAIMS MANAGEMENT

The claim settlement ratio for suit and non-suit claims 

for the year 2018-19 stands at 28.05% and 84.36% 

respectively.  The Company’s initiative by introduction 

of OD Service Hubs and TP Hubs contributed to focused 

and quick claim settlements.  The goal has been to 

improve customer serv ice in the compet i t ive 

environment in which we operate today.

Motor Third Party

For effective and extensive review of TP claims, ROs 

were instructed to form task forces which were assigned 

the job of reviewing cases with special emphasis on 

cases pending for more than five years, duplicate 

entries, reconciliation of outstanding claims with 

physical files, identification and closure of claims based 

on the outcome of review exercise and court search 

operations.  The importance of prompt registration of 

Motor TP claims by the claims handling offices was 

emphasized during the task force exercise.

1. TP Claims Hubs – During the FY 2018-19, approval for 

opening of new TP Hubs at Thrissur, Kozhikode, 

Thiruvananthapuram, Siliguri & Tiruvallur was given. 

The TP Hubs settled 23644 claims and achieved a claim 

settlement ratio of 30%.  Of these, 5872 claims were 

settled through conciliatory process.

2. Lok Adalats – Legal Services Authority of India 

organized National Mega Lok Adalat in the months of 

April 2018, July 2018, Sept 2018, Dec 2018 & March 

2019.  Our Company actively participated in these Mega 

Lok Adalats and settled 16360 cases amounting to  450 `

crores comprising of 3437 cases relating to death, 

12752 cases relating to injuries and 171 cases relating 

to Third Party Property  Damage. 

Service Hubs

The service delivery of Motor OD claims are 

monitored through OD Claims Hub. 29 OD claim 

service hubs settled 112271 claims, achieved a TAT of 

28 days (from intimation to settlement) and a disposal 

rate of 90.62%.

HEALTH

The Department continued with exercising strict 

discipline in pricing of Group Health Policies all 

through the year keeping in view the sustainability of 

portfolio.  All our major renewals were retained.  

Some accounts were shed on viability issues.  On the 

other hand, claims monitoring was toned up to 

prevent f raud and leakages combined wi th 

identification of hospitals engaged in abuse and their 

subsequent pruning from the network.

The above measures alongwith adequate pricing has 

resulted in substantial decrease in ICR on Gross 

Earned Basis from 120.9% (previous year) to 98.7% 

in the current year.  The turnaround was reflected in 

the underwriting surplus on gross earned premium of 

` ` 71.27 crores as against (-)1133.9 crores  in the 

previous year.

In retail health, recognizing the need for upgradation 

and innovation of our products, revised Individual 

Health Policy was launched on 25th March, 2019.  We 

have filed revision for Individual Mediclaim Policy 

(covering Senior Citizens insured with UIIC prior to 

9th July, 2017) on 16th April, 2019.  The work on 

revision of other health products is also being done.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS 

Underwriting operations at Hong Kong ceased with 

effect from 01.04.2002 and New India Assurance 

Company Limited, Hong Kong looks after the run-off 

portfolio since then. As on 31.03.2019, 3 claims were 

still outstanding.

 

 Details  Current Year  Previous Year

 Net Premium 0  0

 Incurred Claims  0.2358  -0.0149

 Expenses of Management 0.2815  0.2681

 Other Income & Outgo 0.0000  0.0000

 Underwriting Profit/Loss 0.5173  -0.2532

 Investment Income 0.5102  0.2732

 Net Profit /Loss -0.0071  0.0200

(` In Crores)
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

In accordance with the  Corporate Governance 

Regulations issued by IRDAI, a Risk Management 

Committee was constituted reporting to the Board. The 

functions of the Risk Management Committee (RMC)  

include review of  Risk Management practices prevailing 

in the Company. 

A senior officer has been nominated by the company as 

Chief Risk Officer and a Management Committee on 

Enterprise Risk Management was constituted to carry 

forward the ERM initiatives. The Board approved 

Enterprise Risk Management Policy of the Company 

covers areas such as identification of risks, their  

measurement and effective management.

Risk Registers for all key functions of the Company were 

compiled and critical risks were identified on the basis of 

severity, frequency and control mechanisms. The 

Company has identified top risks and addressed these 

with suitable mitigation plans.

ERM department inculcated Risk Aware Culture among 

employees through E-Mailers, ERM Wallpapers in 

desktop systems and Training sessions on ERM concepts 

and risks faced by the Company. The Company is 

committed to expand ERM program beyond compliance 

and create value for the stakeholders.

Top Risks and Mitigation plans 

The Top Risks that matter to UIIC and the mitigation steps 

thereof are detailed below:

1. Underwriting Risk

Pricing and terms that bring in premium income that is 

insufficient on average to offset claims and other outgo.

2. Reserving Risk

Insufficient reserves may have been set aside to make 

future payments for claims and expenses.  

3. Investment Risk

a. Market Risk

(` In Crores)

 Foreign Exchange earnings   54.80

 Foreign Exchange outgo   249.08

Details of Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo for the year ended 31.03.2019

Losses arising from decreased asset values, caused by 

fluctuations in interest rates, currency exchange rates or 

equity prices.

b. Liquidity Risk

Risk of being unable to fund present & future financial 

obligations or for losses to arise, due to assets not being 

sufficiently liquid to meet liabilities when due.

c. Credit Risk

Losses arising from failure by the debtor/ reinsurer to 

fulfill the obligation.

4. Cyber & IT Risk

Unintentional losses that are caused by breakdown in 

technology and other systems.

5. People Risk

Risks relating to lack of proper staffing, recruiting, 

training & development, succession planning, incentive 

plans, specialized skills inventory, etc.

Mitigation Plans

The Company has put in place Underwriting Policies & 

Guidelines and prescribed acceptance limits which serve 

as control parameters for uniform and proper 

underwriting practices to be followed by the operating 

offices. Adequate reinsurance arrangements are in place 

to take care of risks accepted which are beyond the 

retention level of the Company. 

Periodical review of claims and updation of  claims 

manuals  and issue of circulars on Standard guidelines 

for claims provisioning methodology, help to mitigate the 

reserving risk. Quality Assurance Teams formed at 

operating office level conduct reviews of claim provisions 

to ensure accuracy of reserves.

The Company has in place Investment Policy & 

Guidelines in line with the Investment Regulations issued 

by IRDAI. Investment results are monitored on day to day 

basis to ensure accumulation control and also for proper 

cash flow management. 
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Economic Conditions, Insurance Market vis-a-vis 

Company’s Performance 

The year 2018-19 was full of challenges for General 

Insurance Industry with path breaking changes taking 

place in Motor Segment and natural disasters affecting 

life and property and consequently insured losses viz. 

Floods in Kerala and Gaja Cyclone in Tamil Nadu and Titli 

Cyclone in Odisha. The competition in the insurance 

market place continued to escalate with 25 General 

Insurance, 7 Stand Alone Health and 2 Specialized 

Players in the market. 

During 2018-19 the GDPI of General Insurance Industry 

in India grew @14% to reach  1.70 Lakh crores  as `

against 17% in the previous year. Motor Segment was the 

most affected due to changes brought about by Court 

Judgments with regards to PUC, Long Term Policies and 

High Value Personal Accident Insurance Cover. As a 

result in Motor OD Segment the GDPI growth came down 

from around 11% in earlier years to mere 0.50%. The TP 

segment which was growing at a very healthy pace of 

18% to 24% year on year came down to mere 9%. 

The other growth drivers of the Industry were Health 

which continued to grow @20% and Crop with growth 

@12%.

During 2018-19 our Company completed a premium of

` 16420 crores at a growth rate of   (-)5.79%. The key 

growth drivers for our company continued to be Motor 

followed by Health and Property. The burden of 

unamortized IBNR continued to put strain on our 

solvency throughout 2018-19, with the result that we 

have ended the year with solvency of 1.52. 

ACCOLADES

During the year, ASSOCHAM honored the Company with 

the title “Most Valued B2B Brand of the year 2018” for 

excellence in Business to Business partnership, usage of 

smart technology for client service.

Our Company was also awarded with the SKOCH Award 

2018 for having the “Best in Class Crop Insurance 

Program” .

Our Company had issued a Group Personal Accident 

Policy which included cover for CRPF personnel.  Post 

the Pulwama attacks in February 2019,  death claims of 

the CRPF jawans were settled by our Mumbai team within 

hours of receiving the details of the deceased and the next 

of kin.  The outstanding claims service and courteous 

behavior of our claims team won high appreciation from 

senior Army officials.

  2.MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company undertakes continuous upgradation of IT 

equipment, Network & Telephony and Interfaces. It has in 

place effective data and system backup plans. As per 

IRDAI Guidelines, Information and Cyber Security Policy 

for the Company has been put in place and Chief 

Information Security Officer (CISO) has been nominated.

The HR Department of the Company has Training & 

Development programmes, talent pool management and 

Conduct and Discipline Rules to ensure good working 

environment. The HR strategy also takes into account 

succession planning to effectively fill in the gaps due to 

transfers and retirements.

OUTSOURCING DEPARTMENT

Our Company has a Board approved Outsourcing policy 

which came into effect from 01.12.2017 in accordance 

with the IRDAI Regulations.This policy is applicable to all 

outsourcing arrangements entered into by the Company 

with an outsourcing service provider located in India or 

outside India.

Our Board has constituted the KMP Committee in 

accordance with the Regulations to approve and review 

all outsourcing arrangements relating to specific 

activities entered into by our Company. During the year, 

the Committee has identified 11 types of activities which 

come under the ambit of outsourcing. 

This has been notified in Intranet vide circular dated 

17.05.2018 & 01.06.2018. These activities can be 

undertaken by the HO Depts/ROs/LCBs/LC following the 

guidelines/procedures issued by the Department as per 

the financial limits applicable.   

As the department activity is mandated by the IRDAI 

Regulations, strict compliance is ensured. All proposals 

have been fully documented and returns submitted on 

time.
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Digital Marketing

Technology is pervading all sectors of economy with its 

positive disruption in shaping the growth and delivery of 

service. General Insurance sector is no exception to this. 

Digital Marketing will be the prime engine in the next few 

years. It is also in accordance with our Company’s vision 

to be the best in  class customer service provider, 

leveraging technology and multiple channels. 

Our Company signed MOU with 11 Web Aggregators and 

7 Brokers for online sale of insurance policies. We have 

issued more than 2.57 lakh policies from these online 

platforms.

Some initiatives were taken to enhance customer service 

by leveraging technology. Our Company has approved 

usage of Self-Video App for break-in inspection as well as 

Motor OD claims processing upto  50,000/- for the `

policies issued through Policy Bazaar. We have 

implemented online motor claim intimation facility on our 

website, reminders for renewal of policies are also sent 

through SMS and e-mail.

CLASS-WISE PERFORMANCE SUMMARY

( in crores)` 

    Year Fire  Marine  Misc. Total

Gross Direct Premium in India In India 2018-19 1172.91 324.52 14923.04 16420.47

Percentage Growth     -8.26% -9.40% -5.51% -5.79%

    2017-18 1278.57 358.19 15793.19 17429.95

      -6.31% -9.96% 10.44% 8.51%

   Outside India 2018-19 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

    2017-18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

      0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

  Total 2018-19 1172.91 324.52 14923.04 16420.47

      -8.26% -9.40% -5.51% -5.79%

     2017-18 1278.57 358.19 15793.19 17429.95

   -6.31% -9.96% 10.44% 8.51%

 Reinsurance Premium Accepted In India 2018-19 101.45 10.09  28.17 139.71

    2017-18 128.44 3.55 90.10 222.09
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    ( in crores)` 

    Year Fire  Marine  Misc. Total

   2018-19 13.34 0.47 12.71 26.52

    2017-18 23.45 2.18 18.79 44.42

   Total 2018-19 114.79 10.56 40.88 166.23

    2017-18 151.90 5.73 108.89 266.51

 Reinsurance Premium Ceded  In India 2018-19 364.75 -2.12 1660.03 2022.66

    2017-18 362.28 17.17 2690.16 3069.61

   Outside India 2018-19 201.99 132.10 437.49 771.58

    2017-18 257.23 111.98 1867.18 2236.39

   Total 2018-19 566.74 129.98 2097.52 2794.24

    2017-18 619.51 129.14 4557.34 5306.00

Net  Premium  In India 2018-19 909.61 336.73 13291.19 14537.53

Percentage Increase over previous year     -12.93% -2.27% 0.74% -0.31%

Percentage to Gross Premium     77.55% 103.77% 89.06% 88.53%

Net Premium   2017-18 1044.74 344.57 13193.13 14582.44

Percentage increase over previous year     -11.88% -6.54% -0.22% -1.31%

Percentage to Gross Premium     81.71% 96.20% 83.54% 83.66%

Net Premium Outside India 2018-19 -188.65 -131.64 -424.78 -745.07

Percentage Increase over previous year     -19.30% 19.89% -77.02% -66.01%

Percentage to Gross Premium    0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

 Net Premium   2017-18 -233.78 -109.80 -1848.39 -2191.97

Percentage Increase over previous year      -20.02% -14.57% 83.22% 53.32%

Percentage to Gross Premium   0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Net  Premium  Total 2018-19 720.96 205.09 12866.41 13792.46
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    ( in crores)` 

    Year Fire  Marine  Misc. Total

Percentage Increase over previous year     -11.10% -12.64% 13.41% 11.32%

Percentage to Gross Premium     61.47% 63.20% 86.22% 84.00%

Net Premium Total   2017-18 810.96 234.77 11344.74 12390.47

Percentage increase over Previous Year     -9.21% -2.24% -7.11% -7.16%

Percentage to Gross Premium     63.43% 65.54% 71.83% 71.09%

Increase in Unexpired Risk Reserves   2018-19 -47.24 -17.42 752.62 687.95

Percentage to Net Premium     -6.55% -8.49% 5.85% 4.99%

    2017-18 -45.92 2.04 -426.64 -470.52

      -5.66% 0.87% -3.76% -3.80%

Net Premium Earned   2018-19 768.20 222.51 12113.79 13104.51

    2017-18 856.88 232.73 11771.37 12860.98

Net Incurred Claims   2018-19 687.41 218.39 13430.29 14336.09

Percentage to Net Premium     95.35% 106.48% 104.38% 103.94%

    2017-18 845.48 176.50 11115.84 12137.81

      104.26% 75.18% 97.98% 97.96%

Net Commission   2018-19 90.45 26.89 615.36 732.70

Percentage to Net Premium     12.55% 13.11% 4.78% 5.31%

    2017-18 90.29 23.45 553.85 667.59

      11.13% 9.99% 4.88% 5.39%

Operating Expenses Related to 

Insurance business including Foreign 

Taxes & Exchange Gain / Loss   2018-19 233.14 46.59 2779.68 3059.41

Percentage to Net Premium     33.38% 23.36% 20.57% 21.28%

    2017-18 209.49 41.24 2347.07 2597.80

      25.83% 17.57% 20.69% 20.97%

Underwriting Results   2018-19 -242.80 -69.36 -4711.53 -5023.69

Percentage to Net Premium     -33.68% -33.82% -36.62% -36.42%

    2017-18 -288.38 -8.45 -2245.39 -2542.22

      -35.56% -3.60% -19.79% -20.52%
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Details     2018-19 2017-18

Operating Results in Policy Holders’ Account    -2137.38 542.55

Investment Income Apportioned, including Profit on realisation of Investments (Net of 
Provision for Non-Performing Assets) – Shareholders’ Account   326.04 668.85

Other Income & Outgo     -66.57 16.56

Profit Before Tax     -1877.91 1227.96

Provision for Tax     0.00 225.30

Add: Tax Adjustments     0.00 0.00

Net Profit after Tax     -1877.91 1002.66

Less: Amount Transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve    22.50 22.50

Less: Amount Transferred to Contingency Reserve    0.00 0.00

Less: Amount transferred to/from General Reserve    -1900.41 980.16

Balance proposed for Dividend     0.00 0.00

Corporate Dividend Tax     0.00 0.00

R
EP

O
R

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
S

    ( in crores)` 

Investment Income Apportioned, 

including Profit on realisation of 

Investments (Net of Provision for Non

Performing Assets)   2018-19 265.24 61.60 2584.41 2911.25

Percentage to Net Premium     36.79% 30.03% 20.09% 21.11%

    2017-18 342.67 81.64 2658.29 3082.60

      42.25% 34.77% 23.43% 24.88%

Other Income / Outgo   2018-19 -2.08 -0.57 -22.30 -24.94

Percentage to Net Premium     -0.29% -0.28% -0.17% -0.18%

    2017-18 0.27 0.01 1.89 2.17

      0.03% 0.00% 0.02% 0.02%

Operating Results in 

Policy Holders' Account    2018-19 20.36 -8.34 -2149.42 -2137.38

Percentage to Net Premium     2.82% -4.06% -16.71% -15.50%

    2017-18 54.55 73.20 414.80 542.55

      6.73% 31.18% 3.66% 4.38%

    ( in crores)` 

    Year Fire  Marine  Misc. Total

Premium Analysis (Global) - ` in crores 

9326
10692

12250

 

13346 13792

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

10715

16063

12390

17430
16420

2018-19

Gross Direct Premium in India - ` in crores 

FIRE MARINE MISC

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

1251 527

8914

1311
438

10501

1365
398

14300

1279
358

15793

1173
324

14923

 NET NETGROSS
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Details     As on As on

      31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Paid-up Capital     150.00 150.00

Capital Reserve     1.36 1.36

General Reserve     2731.24 4631.65

Contingency Reserve     0.00 0.00

Investment Reserve     0.86 0.86

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve     15.67 13.47

Debenture Redemption Reserve     45.00 22.50

Total     2944.13 4819.84

Capital & Funds

Profit Analysis - ` in crores 

Profit Before Tax Profit After Tax

Interest, Dividend and Rent - ` in crores  

Capital & Funds and Total Assets - ` in crores  

1566

 

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

1623 1609

1794 1897

2018-19 

 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

5589

28727 28008

3817 2944

5731

33818

4820

36180
37705

2018-19

 Capital & Funds  Assets
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    ( in crores)` 

319 256

2014-15 2015-16 2017-18

2018-19
301 221

-1913 -1913
-1878 -1878

2016-17

1228

1003

6969





       2018-19 2017-18

Gross Direct Premium     16420.47 17429.95

Percentage change over previous year      -5.79% 8.51%

Net premium     13792.46 12390.47

Percentage change over previous year     11.32% -7.16%

Retention ratio       83.15% 70.02%

Change in Unexpired Risk Reserve     687.95 -470.52

Percentage to Net premium         4.99% -3.80%

Incurred claims Net     14336.09 12137.81

Percentage to Net premium     103.94% 97.96%

Commission(Net)     732.70 667.59

Percentage to Net premium     5.31% 5.39%

Operating Expenses relating to Insurance business    3059.41 2597.80

(Including Exchange Loss/Gain)     

Percentage to Net premium     22.18% 20.97%

Investment Income (Net of Provisions)     3240.34 3751.38

Other Income     -94.56 18.80

Total Income     3145.78 3770.18

Apportioned to Policy Holders      2886.31 3084.77

Apportioned to Shareholders     259.47 685.41

Performance Review

   2018 – 19 2017 – 18

Total Assets  37705.16 36184.40

Investments Assets (at Book Value)                     29349.86 26880.31

The Market Value of our Equity portfolio as at 31st March 2019 stood at  10209.40 crores as compared to Book Value `

of  6857.28 crores. The corresponding values for the previous year were  10840.53 crores and  6643.08 crores ` ` `

respectively.

Compliance with IRDAI Regulations 

As on 31st March 2019, the Company has complied with IRDAI Regulations in Investments including investments in 

infrastructure as under:

(` in crores)
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 Investment Income on net basis decreased by  541.93 crores in 2018–19 as compared to increase of  1247.05 crores     ` `

 in 2017–18. The Mean yield on Investments (including Profit on Sale and Other Income) is 11.51% as compared to   

 15.32% in 2017–18. The Company followed the IRDAI norms/related RBI guidelines relating to classification of loans  

 and debentures and provision for Non-Performing Assets. The net NPA percentage to Total Investments stood at  

 0.84% as on 31-03-2019 as against “NIL” as on 31-03-2018.

 Book value of total investments as at 31st March 2019 aggregated to  29349.86 crores from  26880.31 crores in the  ` `

 previous year and the net accretion during the year amounted to  2469.55 crores as against  4824.32 crores in ` `

 2017–18.

    ( in crores)` 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Annual Report on CSR as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013 is enclosed as Annexure 3.

RURAL AND SOCIAL SECTOR AND MICRO INSURANCE

We are the leaders in rural and social insurance schemes 

serving millions of socially and economically weaker 

sections of the society.

Cattle insurance is the major component of our rural 

insurance schemes. We are insuring cattle belonging to 

farmers in all states and also through government 

sponsored cattle insurance in the states of Rajasthan, 

Andhra Pradesh, Telangana, Karnataka, Tamil Nadu, 

Bihar, Jharkhand, Chhattisgarh, West Bengal. We have 

procured approximately  188.94 crores in 2018-19 . `

Janata Personal Accident policy is another excellent 

scheme for the common man with an affordable 

premium covering personal accident cover  upto  1 lac. `

We  have  procured  21.06 crores during 2018-19 .`

The rural sector business and social sector business of 

our Company for the previous three years is as follows:

   Investment as on 
 Category  31-03-2019                  % to total Investments          Prescribed Limit
   (  in Crores) `

Central Government, State Government 

and Other Approved Securities 11741.80 40.01% Not less than 30%

Housing and Loans to State Govt. 

Housing and Fire Fighting 2362.45 8.05% Not less than 5%

Investment in Infrastructure 3387.38 11.54% Not less than 10%

Key Accounting Ratios

Particulars  2018-19 2017-18

Technical Reserve Ratio  182.86% 164.23%

Net Retention Ratio  83.15% 70.02%

Operating Profit Ratio  -16.31% 4.22%

Net Earnings Ratio  -13.62% 8.09%

Return on Net Worth  -64.77% 20.90%

Contribution to National Exchequer

Details  2018-19 2017-18

Corporate Tax  206.20* 70.00

Dividend Paid to Government  0.00 0.00

Dividend Tax paid during the year  0.00 0.00

GST/Service Tax  1738.81 2341.58

Total  1945.01 2411.58

*Includes Rs. 156.20 crore being payment of tax pertaining to the year 2017-18 but paid in 2018-19.

(` In Crores)
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  2018-19 2017-18 2016-17

Total Gross Premium Underwritten (in ̀  crores) 16420.47 17429.95 16062.67

Rural Sector Premium  (in ̀  crores) 2298.96 2900.10 2679.95

No. of lives covered under Social Sector 114228500 125287424 105402765

The Company has 20 micro insurance policies to cater to 
the needs of financially weaker sections of the society. We 
have appointed 233 micro insurance agents comprising of 
NGOs, SHGs and similar groups for distributing micro 
insurance policies.

Government Health Schemes 

Ayushman Bharat – Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana  is 
a centrally sponsored scheme launched in 2018 under the 
Ministry of Health  & Family welfare. The objective of the 
scheme is to provide primary, secondary and tertiary 
health care upto  5 lakhs per family unit per annum to `
poor and vulnerable families. We participated in AB – 
PMJAY in all states wherever the states opted for 
Insurance mode.

We implemented the following State sponsored schemes 
in the year 2018-19:

1. Bhagat Puran Singh  Sehat Bima Yojana- Punjab

2. Bhai Ghanhya Sehat Sewa Scheme (BGSSS) – Punjab

3. Rashtriya Swasthya Bima Yojana / Mukhya Mantri   
    Swasthya Bima Yojana – Chattisgarh

4. Deen Dayal Swasthya Seva Scheme – Goa

From the above schemes, we collected a total premium of 
` 258.23 crores covering 96.82 lakh families.

PRADHAN MANTRI SURAKSHA BIMA YOJANA (PMSBY)

The Pradhan Mantri Suraksha Bima Yojana offers 
protection against death/permanent disability due to 
accident with a sum insured of  2 lakhs and partial `
disability with a sum insured of  1 lakh.  The cover is for a  ̀
period of one year from June to May.

Under PMSBY, a Gross Premium of  25.05 crores has `
been collected and total number of persons covered is 
2.08 crores as on 31.03.2019.  We are one of the prime 
players in this important financial inclusion initiative of the 
Government of India for which we have tied up with 145 
banks.  Overall 3148 claims amounting to  62.27 crores `
were paid during the year.

Common Service Centres (CSC)

Under the National e-Governance Plan (NeGP) formulated 

by the Ministry of Electronics and Information 
Technology (MeitY), Government of India, more than 
170,000 Common Service Centers (CSCs) have been 
established. CSCs are the access points for delivery of 
essential public utility services, social welfare schemes, 
healthcare, financial, education and agriculture services, 
apart from host of B2C services to citizens in rural and 
remote areas of the country.

The following policies are available on UIIC CSC Portal.

Personal Accident Policy, Motor Act Only Policy, Motor 
Act Only Policy Long Term- 2 years & 3 years, 
Agricultural Pumpset, Farmers Package, Fire insurance 
for Dwellings.

Total number of VLEs mapped to our UIIC Portal as on 
date :  51,899 

Total Transactions (Policies made): 11484

Total Premium Procured in 2018-19:   1.61 crores`

OTHER GOVERNMENT HEALTH INSURANCE SCHEMES

TAMILNADU CHIEF MINISTER’S COMPREHENSIVE 
HEALTH  INSURANCE SCHEME (TNCMCHIS)

 Our Company has secured the Tender from the Govt.   

 of Tamil Nadu to implement the Chief Minister's  
Comprehensive Health Insurance Scheme which 
came into operation on 11th January 2017.

 The main objective of Tamilnadu CMCHIS scheme is       
to provide free medical and surgical treatment in  
government and private hospitals to the members of 
any family whose annual family income is less than 
` 72,000/- as certified by the Village Administrative 
Officer (VAO) and who has valid ration card (PDS), 
Tribals, Differently abled, Sri Lankan refugees, 
migrants from other states, orphans and rescued 
girl children.

 Cashless treatment for AUTISM in children is the 
highlight of current scheme of Govt. of Tamil Nadu.

 The sum insured is  1 lakh floater per family with `
the provision to pay up to  2 lakhs for 154 advanced `
surgical procedures.
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Season State            Gross Premium  Farmers Insured Sum Insured

   (  in crores)    (  In crores)` `

    (Our share)   

Kharif Karnataka 346.46 335516 2183

Kharif Chhattisgarh 339.89 667061 2970

Rabi Karnataka 78.63 136254 750

Rabi West Bengal 102 577223 2021

Rabi Gujarat 15.83 109638 506

TOTAL  830.83 1825422 8430

The total premium underwritten for crop insurance business, including the coinsurance share and the premium of  Kharif  

2017 and Rabi 2017-18 accounted in 2018-19 amounts to  1107.23 crores.`

Claim Payment

For Kharif 2016 season in the state of Rajasthan, the claim settlement has been successfully completed by our Company, 

settling around  1199 crores with our Company’s share amounting to  599.5 crores. Also, for the various states where ` `

our Company had undertaken the implementation of PMFBY during Rabi 2016-17 season, the claims have been settled for 

` ` 207.94 crores with our Company’s share amounting to  171.75 crores.

For Kharif 2017 season, the claim payment process has been completed in all the 4 states amounting to  654.41 crores `

with our share amounting to  556.25 crores. Claims pertaining to Rabi 2017-18 season have been settled in Odisha and `

Telangana and is in progress for Rajasthan and Bihar. For Kharif 2018 season, the claim payment process has been 

initiated in Karnataka and Chhattisgarh.

BUSINESS UNDERTAKEN IN 2018-19

 The sum insured is enhanced to  5 lakh floater per `
family wef 01-12-2018 under Ayushman Bharat. AB-
PMJAY is integrated with CMCHIS, as a top-up, for 
sum insured upto ̀  5 lacs.

 1027 procedures including 154 follow-up procedures 
with 38 diagnostic procedures  are covered.

 A corpus fund is maintained at TNHSP for covering 8 
high end procedures like Cochlear Implant, Renal 
Transplant, Liver, Stem Cell & Bone Marrow 
Transplant, Heart Transplant, Heart and Lung 
Transplant, Auditory Brain Stem implant, Lung 
Transplant where  2,00,000/- is paid under the `
scheme and balance amount is paid by Tamil Nadu 
Government from Corpus fund.

 Grievance redressal mechanism is in place at the 
district level and at the state level in addition to the 
jurisdiction of civil courts. The scheme is having a 
grievance of less than 1%. 

 CMCHISTN field inspection mobile application has 
been introduced wherein the district team meets the 
beneficiaries after discharge and collects feedback 
about treatment satisfaction and ensures cashless 
treatment. 

 Cashless system is being enforced asking hospitals to 
refund money collected from the patients apart from 
levying a penalty of five times the money collected 
which will flow into the Corpus Fund of TNHSP as per 

tender.

 979.58 crores has been received towards premium `
for third policy year, as 95% of annual provisional 
premium. 100% premium amounts to 1031.13 `
crores.

 United India Insurance Co.Ltd., continues to be the 
most preferred insurer by Tamilnadu Govt. for the 
implementation of CMCHIS-Ayushman Bharat 
Pradhan Mantri Jan Arogya Yojana (ABPMJAY) along 
with their TN Govt.Employees policy and TN 
Govt.Pensioners policy.

CROP INSURANCE 

During Kharif 2018 season, our Company has won 3 
clusters in Karnataka and 2 clusters in Chhattisgarh, 
covering around 10.03 Lakh farmers and insuring 
` ` 5152.94 crores worth of crop, at a premium of  746.33 
crores with our Company’s share amounting to  634.38 `
crores.

For Rabi 2018-19 season, which is  still in progress, we are 
implementing PMFBY in the states of West Bengal, Gujarat 
and Karnataka, covering around 8.23 lakh farmers and 
insuring  3277.50 crores worth of crop, at a premium of `
` 231.12 crores with our Company’s share amounting to 
` 196.45 crores.

Incoming co-insurance share pertaining to our Company 
amounts to  199.34 crores.`
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The Company believes in adopting the ‘best practices’ that are followed in the area of Corporate Governance. The 

Company emphasizes the need for full transparency and accountability in all its transactions in order to protect the 

interests of its stakeholders. Through the Governance mechanism in the Company, the Board along with its 

Committees undertakes its fiduciary responsibilities to all its stakeholders by ensuring transparency, fair play and 

independence in its decision making. 

As regards the Insurance sector, the emphasis is on aspects like protection of the interests of the policyholders, 

maintenance of solvency, sound long term investment policy and assumption of underwriting risks on a prudential 

basis and evaluation of overall risk management across the structure of the organization.

The details of the Board and its Committees are given below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The changes in directorship of the Company are as follows :

   3. REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Ministry of Finance assigned joint additional charge arrangement to look after the financial and administrative powers 

and functions of  Chairman-cum-Managing Director of the Company to Shri K B Vijay Srinivas and Shri S Gopakumar, 

Directors & General Managers, vide Order dated 25.07.2018, consequent to the superannuation of Shri M N Sarma, 

Chairman cum Managing Director on 31.05.2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Anagha Shantanu Deshpande was appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f.1.6.2018.
Shri S Venkataraman ceased to be Company Secretary w.e.f.1.6.2018.

MEETING DETAILS

BOARD MEETING DETAILS

Six Meetings of the Board were held during the year i.e. on 22nd May 2018, 8th September 2018, 3rd October 2018, 3rd 

December 2018, 28th February 2019 and 19th March 2019.

Sl.No. Name of the Director Designation Date of appointment /cessation

 1. Shri Girish Radhakrishnan Chairman-cum-Managing Director Appointed as CMD

    w.e.f.29.10.2018

2. Shri M N Sarma Chairman-cum-Managing Director  Ceased to be CMD on

    superannuation on 31.5.2018

 3. Shri K B Vijay Srinivas Whole Time Director Appointed as WTD

    w.e.f.2.7.2018

    and ceased to be WTD on 

    superannuation on 31.10.2018

4. Shri S Gopakumar Whole Time Director Appointed as WTD w.e.f. 
    3.8.2018 and ceased to be WTD 
    on superannuation on 31.5.2019

5. Shri B Balachandra Whole Time Director Ceased to be WTD on 
    superannuation on 30.4.2018

6. Shri K Govindarajan Whole Time Director Appointed as WTD on 01.05.2018
    and ceased to be WTD on   
    superannuation on 30.6.2018

7. Ms. P Hemamalini Whole Time Director Ceased to be WTD on 
    superannuation on 30.6.2018
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Shri Girish Radhakrishnan 3 3

    (3.12.2018, 28.2.2019 and 19.3.2019)

Shri S Gopakumar   5 5

    (8.9.2018, 3.10.2018, 3.12.2018,

     28.2.2019 and 19.3.2019)

Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra 6 5

    (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018,  3.12.2018, 

    28.2.2019 and 19.3.2019)

Shri R A Sankara Narayanan 6 3

    (22.5.2018, 28.2.2019 and 19.3.2019)

Ms. Sindhu Pillai   6 4

    (22.5.2018, 3.10.2018, 3.12.2018,

     and 28.2.2019)

Shri Parijat Dutta   6 6

    (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018,  3.10.2018, 

    3.12.2018, 28.2.2019 and 19.3.2019)

Shri M N Sarma   1 1

    (22.5.2018)

Shri K Govindarajan   1 1

    (22.5.2018)

Ms. P Hemamalini   1 1

    (22.5.2018)

Shri K B Vijay Srinivas   2 2

    (8.9.2018 and 3.10.2018)

Shri B Balachandra   Nil Nil

DIRECTOR
NO. OF MEETING/S HELD

DURING HIS/HER TENURE
NO. OF MEETING/S ATTENDED
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE MEETING DETAILS

Four Meetings of the Investment Committee were held during the year i.e. on 22nd May 2018, 8th September 2018, 

3rd December 2018 and 28th February 2019.  The Investment Committee monitors the implementation of the 

Investment Policy as approved by the Board apart from monitoring the Investment functions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING DETAILS

The Audit Committee reviews accounting policies and also the structure, efficacy and process of the internal control 

systems prevailing in the Company. The Committee deliberates on the Financial Statements of the Company before 

placing the same before the Board of Directors for adoption.

Five  Meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year i.e. on 22nd May 2018, 8th September 2018, 3rd 

December 2018, 28th February 2019 and 19th March 2019.

MEMBER
NO. OF MEETING/S HELD

DURING HIS/HER TENURE
NO. OF MEETING/S ATTENDED

 Shri Girish Radhakrishnan  2 2

    (3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra 4 4

    (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018,  3.12.2018 

    and 28.2.2019)

Shri R A Sankara Narayanan 4 2

    (22.5.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri S Gopakumar   3 3

    (8.9.2018,  3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri D T V Sastri   4 4

    (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018,  3.12.2018

     and 28.2.2019)

Shri Palreddy Vishnuvardhan 4 4

    (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018,  3.12.2018 

    and 28.2.2019)

Shri K Nandakumar   4 4

    (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018,  3.12.2018 

    and 28.2.2019)

Shri K B Vijay Srinivas   1 1

    (8.9.2018)

Shri M N Sarma   1 1

    (22.5.2018)
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETING DETAILS

Four Meetings of the Risk Management Committee were held during the year i.e. on 29th June 2018, 8th September 

2018, 3rd December 2018 and 28th February 2019.

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR NO. OF MEETING/S ATTENDED

NO. OF MEETING/S ATTENDED

NO. OF MEETING/S HELD

DURING HIS/HER TENURE

NO. OF MEETING/S HELD

DURING HIS/HER TENURE

Shri Parijat Dutta   5 5

    (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018,  3.12.2018,

    28.2.2019 and 19.3.2019)

Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra 5 5

    (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018,  3.12.2018,

    28.2.2019 and 19.3.2019)

Shri R A Sankara Narayanan 5 3
    (22.5.2018, 28.2.2019 and 19.3.2019)

Ms. Sindhu Pillai   5 3
    (22.5.2018,   3.12.2018, and 28.2.2019)

Shri Girish Radhakrishnan 2 2
   (3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

 Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra 4 4
   (29.6.2018,8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 
   and 28.2.2019)

Ms. Sindhu Pillai  4 2
   (3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri Parijat Dutta  4 4
   (29.6.2018,8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 
   and 28.2.2019)

Shri S Gopakumar  3 3
   (8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Ms. P Hemamalini  1 1
   (29.6.2018)

Shri K B Vijay Srinivas  1 1
   (8.9.2018)

Invitee:
Shri K Nandakumar, DGM & CRO 4 4
   (29.6.2018,8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)
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POLICYHOLDERS' PROTECTION COMMITTEE MEETING DETAILS

Four Meetings of the Policyholders’ Protection Committee were held during the year i.e. on 29th June 2018, 8th 

September 2018, 3rd December 2018 and 28th February 2019.

DIRECTOR NO. OF MEETING/S ATTENDED
NO. OF MEETING/S HELD

DURING HIS/HER TENURE

Ms. Sindhu Pillai   4 2
    (3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri Girish Radhakrishnan  2 2
    (3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019

Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra 4 4
    (29.6.2018,8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 
    and 28.2.2019)

Shri S Gopakumar   3 3
    (8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Ms. P Hemamalini   1 1
    (29.6.2018)

Shri K B Vijay Srinivas   1 1
    (8.9.2018)

Invitee :
Ms Rajyalakshmi  Rao     4 4

Consumer Representative   (29.6.2018,8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 
    and 28.2.2019)  
    

Shri R C Agarwal    4 4

DGM & Chief Grievance Officer  (29.6.2018,8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 
    and 28.2.2019) 
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE (CSR) MEETING DETAILS

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee has been constituted as per Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013.  Four  
Meetings were held during the year i.e. on 22nd May 2018, 8th September 2018, 3rd December 2018 and 28th February 
2019.

INFORMATION TECHONOLOGY COMMITTEE MEETING DETAILS

Four Meetings of the Information Technology Committee were held during the year i.e. on 22nd May 2018, 8th 
September 2018, 3rd December 2018 and 28th February 2019.

Shri Girish Radhakrishnan 2 2
   (3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra 4 4
   (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Ms. Sindhu Pillai  4 3
   (22.5.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri Parijat Dutta  4 4
   (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri S Gopakumar  3 3
   (8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri M N Sarma  1 1
   (22.5.2018)

Ms. P Hemamalini  1 1
   (22.5.2018)

Shri K B Vijay Srinivas  1 1
   (08.09.2018)

DIRECTOR NO. OF MEETING/S ATTENDED
NO. OF MEETING/S HELD

DURING HIS/HER TENURE

Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra 4 4
   (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri Girish Radhakrishnan 2 2
   (3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Ms. Sindhu Pillai  4 3
   (22.5.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri Parijat Dutta  4 4
   (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri S Gopakumar  3 3
   (8.9.2018, 3.12.2018 and 28.2.2019)

Shri M N Sarma  1 1
   (22.5.2018)

Shri K B Vijay Srinivas  1 1
   (8.9.2018)

Ms. P Hemamalini  1 1
   (22.5.2018)

DIRECTOR NO. OF MEETING/S ATTENDED
NO. OF MEETING/S HELD

DURING HIS/HER TENURE
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE MEETING DETAILS

Three Meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee were held during the year i.e. on 22nd May 2018, 8th 

September 2018 and 3rd December 2018.

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE

Human Resources Committee has been constituted as per the new CDA Rules, 2014 and one Meeting of Human 
Resources Committee was held during the year i.e. on 22nd May 2018.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

No meeting was held during the year.

PROPERTY REVIEW COMMITTEE

No meeting was held during the year.

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Committee was constituted to specifically look into the redressal of security holders’ grievances as mentioned in 

Schedule II – Part D read with Regulation 20 of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. The no. of investor complaints 

received/outstanding as on 31.03.2019 is NIL.

No meeting was held during the year.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING DETAILS

The Eightieth Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company was held on 31st May 2018.  Shri M N Sarma, 

Chairman cum Managing Director, Shri Parijat Dutta, Director, Ms. P Hemamalini, Director & General Manager and 

Shri K Govindarajan, Director & General Manager attended the same.

DIRECTOR NO. OF MEETING/S ATTENDED
NO. OF MEETING/S HELD

DURING HIS/HER TENURE

Shri R A Sankara Narayanan 1 1

   (22.5.2018)

Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra 3 3

   (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018 and 3.12.2018)

Ms. Sindhu Pillai  3 2

   (22.5.2018, 3.12.2018)

Shri Parijat Dutta  3 3

   (22.5.2018, 8.9.2018 and 3.12.2018)

DIRECTOR NO. OF MEETING/S ATTENDED
NO. OF MEETING/S HELD

DURING HIS/HER TENURE

Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra 1 1

Ms. Sindhu Pillai   1 1

Shri Parijat Dutta   1 1
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Registered & Head Office

United India House,

24 Whites Road, Chennai 600 014 

MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder mandate that the independent directors of the 

Company shall hold at least one meeting in a year without the attendance of non independent directors and members of the 

management.  During the year, the meeting of  independent directors without the presence of the management took place 

on 28.02.2019.

CODE OF CONDUCT

As required under Regulation 17(5) of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the 

Board at its meeting held on 22nd May 2018, adopted a Code of Conduct for all Directors and Senior Management of the 

Company and the same has been placed on www.uiic.co.in.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India.

COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable for the business activities carried out by the Company.

ANNUAL DECLARATION MADE BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has received annual declaration from Shri R. A. Sankara Narayanan and 

Shri Parijat Dutta, Independent Directors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS & DETAILS OF SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED

 Meeting Details   Date and Time of the Meeting Venue

 78th Annual General Meeting 28th June 2016 at 11.00 am 

 79th Annual General Meeting 18th September 2017 at 12.15 pm   

 80th Annual General Meeting 31st May 2018 at 12.15 pm 

No Special Resolutions were passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings.

REMUNERATION  TO DIRECTORS

The Chairman & Managing Director is paid salary / remuneration as fixed by the Government of India and the Whole Time 

Directors are paid salary / remuneration as per their scale of pay. The Non-Official Director was paid sitting fee in 

accordance with guidelines issued by Ministry of Finance for the Meetings attended by him. No sitting fees is payable to 

CMD, Whole-time Directors, Bank Director and nominees representing Government of India.

SUBORDINATED DEBT

The Unsecured Redeemable Fully paid up Non Convertible Debentures are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange.  The 

interest on debentures for the first year was due for payment on February 2, 2019 @8.25% on ` 900 crores.  The total 

outgo on account of interest on debentures amounted to ̀  74.25 crores, which was duly paid on February 2, 2019.  There 

was no default in payment of interest to any debenture holder.  

During the review of rating exercise during the year, CRISIL  and Brickwork Ratings have reaffirmed “AAA/Stable” Rating 

to the subordinated debt raised by the Company.   
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT

As provided under section 204 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has appointed M/s Lakshmmi Subramanian & 

Associates, a firm of company secretaries to carry out the Secretarial Audit of the Company and their Report for the year 

2018-19 is enclosed in Annexure-2.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 is 

appended as Annexure 6 to this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY & TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Considering the nature of operations of the Company, the provisions of section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 relating to information to be furnished on Conservation of energy and 

Technology absorption are not applicable. 

RELATED PARTY POLICY AND TRANSACTIONS

The Company has framed a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions and necessary approvals are taken in 

accordance with the policy and applicable laws. Form AOC-2 pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act 2013 

read with the Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out in Annexure 4 to this Report.  The Related Party 

Transactions Policy is available on the Company’s website  www.uiic.co.in.

Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions with the following are given in the Notes to Accounts :

1.  Zenith Securities and Investments Limited

2.  India International Insurance Pte Ltd, Singapore

3.  Ken India Assurance Co. Ltd., Kenya

4.  Health Insurance TPA of India Ltd, India

5.  Key Management Personnel

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 

None of the employees of the Company was paid  salary exceeding limits mentioned  in Section 196 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Any Director who is in receipt of any commission from the Company and who is a Managing Director or Whole Time 

Director of the Company shall receive any remuneration or commission from any holding company or subsidiary 

company of such company subject to its disclosure by the Company in the Board’s Report :  NONE
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Details of Remuneration paid to CMD/Whole Time Directors (FY 2018-19) :

Sr.No.  Name  Gross Salary (`) Value of  Incentive Stock Option

        Perquisites (`)

1  Shri Girish Radhakrishnan  11,94,750 39,846 - -

2          Shri M N Sarma  57,30,543 3,00,200 - -

3  Shri S. Gopakumar  14,24,516 1,27,948 - -

4  Shri K.B.Vijay Srinivas  44,97,482 15,88,909 - -

5  Shri K. Govindarajan  36,34,309 1,49,915 - -

6  Ms. Hemamalini Prabhakar  16,18,174 6,15,719 - -

7  Shri B. Balachandra  30,59,768 1,66,347 - -

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. A V Deven & Co.,  M/s. P B Vijayaraghavan & Co., and M/s. A John Moris & Co. Chartered Accountants were appointed 

for the period under review, as Statutory Auditors by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under section 139 of the 

Companies Act 2013, in addition to the auditors appointed for various Regional and Divisional Offices.

DETAILS OF EXPENSES OF MANAGEMENT DURING THE YEAR ON ENTERTAINMENT, FOREIGN TOURS AND PUBLICITY 

& ADVERTISEMENT

Entertainment   ` 9,43,277

Foreign Tours   ̀  23,81,990

Publicity & Advertisement  ̀  34,37,65,509

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134 of Companies Act 2013 (Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956)

with respect to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

a.  In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2019, the applicable accounting   

     standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures. 

b.  The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 

    that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 

    financial year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the year under review.

c. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

   with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and   

    other irregularities.
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d.  The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2019, on a going concern   

      basis.

e.  The Directors have laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal Financial 

     Controls were adequate and were operating effectively.

f.  The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

    systems are adequate and operating effectively.

PLACING OF ANNUAL REPORT BEFORE THE PARLIAMENT

The Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services (Insurance Division) has confirmed that the Annual Report of 

the Company for the Financial Year 2017-18 was placed before Rajya Sabha  on 18.12.2018 and Lok Sabha on  21.12.2018 

as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013.

PLANS/OUTLOOK OF THE COMPANY FOR 2019-20

During the year 2019-20, while continuing the focus on reducing underwriting losses, we plan to improve our overall 

efficiency of operations by Rationalisation  of  Offices, Performance based HR deployment, use of InsurTech solutions and 

Tie-ups. We shall continue to upgrade our bouquet of products on offer by introducing more Add-ons in Motor, Property & 

Health Segments. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors conveys its sincere thanks to all clients for their continued patronage.  Board also places on record 

its appreciation for the good work done by employees and agents, brokers and other intermediaries of the Company.  The 

Board also thanks the Appointed Actuary, Mentor Actuary, Statutory Auditors, Insurance Division of the Ministry of 

Finance, Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, General Insurers’ (Public Sector) Association and 

Member Audit Board for their guidance and support.

    For and on behalf of the Board

Place:Chennai   (GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN)

Date:23.05.2019   CHAIRMAN-CUM-MANAGING DIRECTOR      
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 Name (Shri/Smt)  Qualification Field of Specialization Status of Directorship

 Girish Radhakrishnan  M.A Insurance Director, Health Insurance TPA of      

     India Ltd 

     Director, Agriculture Insurance             
     Company of India Ltd 

                 Director, Kenindia Assurance Co. Ltd

          Director, GIC Housing Finance Ltd

 Madnesh Kumar Mishra, IAS B.Tech Production Engineering Director, Union Bank of India

   Ph.D Organisational Behaviour Part Time Member – PFRDA

     Board of Governor, Management

     Development Institute

 R A Sankara Narayanan B Sc, MA,  Banking MD & CEO, Canara Bank

   MBA(Finance),  Member-Governing Council, 

   CAIIB, PGDPM,   Institute of Banking & Finance

   PGDFM, DCP, 

   DTIRM, BRM  

 Sindhu Pillai, IPS  M.A. Economics Economics -

 Parijat Dutta  M.A. Economics Insurance -

 S Gopakumar  B.Com Insurance -

Certification for Compliance of the Corporate Governance Guidelines

I, Anagha Shantanu  Deshpande, hereby certify that the Company has complied with the corporate governance 

guidelines for Insurance Companies as amended from time to time and nothing has been concealed or suppressed.

         

     ANAGHA SHANTANU DESHPANDE

     COMPANY SECRETARY

PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

In line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 

2013, the Company has set up Internal Complaints Committee at RO/HO level to redress complaints against  sexual 

harassment.

The following is the summary of complaints received and disposed off as on 31.03.2019 :

    Period No. of Complaints  No. of Complaints  No. of Complaints Pending

  Registered Disposed Off 

   01.01.2018 to  3 2 1

   31.12.2018

   01.01.2019 to  1 2 Nil

   31.03.2019

    

    (GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN)

                                                          CHAIRMAN-CUM-MANAGING DIRECTOR
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ADDENDUM TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT DATED 31ST MAY, 2019 AS PER SECTION 134(3)(f) OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

REPLY TO OBSERVATIONS IN AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STANDALONE ACCOUNTS OF THE 

COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

Observation-as appearing in Independent Auditors’ Report: Note no.29(a) and 29(b) non-obtention of year end 

confirmation from other insurance companies. Consequential impact on the financials, if any, of adjustment/ 

reconciliation is not ascertainable. 

Observations-as appearing in Annexure “I” to the Independent Auditors’ Report: The Company did not have 

appropriate internal controls for obtention of year end confirmation from other insurance companies and 

reconciliation.

Reply- The Company has conducted periodical meetings with co-insurers to sort out the pending matters during the 

course of the year. Several meetings were conducted and significant amount of balances reconciled and settled. The 

amount recoverable from and payable to co-insurers has come down due to persistent efforts to reconcile and settle 

the dues. The efforts will be continued and attempts will be made to clear all the remaining balances. Presently 

amount due from co-insurers is  239.09 Crores and payable to co-insurers is  123.69 Crores. Balance confirmation ` `

letters have been sent to co-insurers and their replies are awaited.

For and on behalf of the Board

(GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN)

CHAIRMAN CUM MANAGING DIRECTOR
Place: Chennai        

Date :          31.05.2019

Annexure-1
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ADDENDUM TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT DATED 31ST MAY, 2019 AS PER SECTION 134(3)(f) OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

REPLY TO OBSERVATIONS IN AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS OF THE 

COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

Observation-as appearing in Independent Auditors’ Report: Note no.21(a) and 21(b) non-obtention of year end 

confirmation from other insurance companies. Consequential impact on the financials, if any, of 

adjustment/reconciliation is not ascertainable. 

Observations-as appearing in Annexure “I” to the Independent Auditors’ Report: The Company did not have 

appropriate internal controls for obtention of year end confirmation from other insurance companies and 

reconciliation.

Reply- The Company has conducted periodical meetings with co-insurers to sort out the pending matters during the 

course of the year. Several meetings were conducted and significant amount of balances reconciled and settled. The 

amount recoverable from and payable to co-insurers has come down due to persistent efforts to reconcile and settle 

the dues. The efforts will be continued and attempts will be made to clear all the remaining balances. Presently 

amount due from co-insurers is  239.09 Crores and payable to co-insurers is  123.69 Crores. Balance confirmation ` `

letters have been sent to co-insurers and their replies are awaited.

For and on behalf of the Board

(GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN)

 CHAIRMAN CUM MANAGING DIRECTOR
Place: Chennai        

Date :          31.05.2019
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The Company had invested ̀  275 crores in debentures of 

IL&FS Companies on various dates. There was a default 

on the payment of interest due on 24th October 2018 in 

respect of an instrument with face value of ` 25 Crore. 

The Company classified the entire exposure in IL&FS 

Companies as Substandard asset immediately after 90 

days of default. A provision of 10% amounting to ̀  27.50 

Crore has been made as per IRDAI regulations on 

Income Recognition, Asset classification, Provisioning 

and Other related matters.

 As per the Accounting Policy of the Company 8.9.3, 

the Company follows the prudential norms prescribed 

by IRDAI/Related RBI guidelines as regards asset 

classification, recognition of income and provisioning 

pertaining to loans/advances/debentures.

 IRDAI Master circular dated May 2017, under Point 

15 of 3.7 Income Recognition, Asset Classification, 

Provisioning and Other related matters, states that - “the 

Insurer shall follow the latest RBI Circular / Guidelines 

issued on the above points, where the provisions of 

Master Circular – Investments, are inconsistent with 

respect to Point 3.7 of this Master Circular on Income 

Recognition, Asset Classification, Provisioning and 

Other related items”.

 The relevant RBI Circular on which IRDA 

(Investment) Regulations are based is RBI/2015-16/44 

“Master Circular –Income Recognition, Asset 

Classification, Provisioning and Other Related Matters-

UCBs” dated 1st July 2015.

 In accordance with the Company’s accounting 

policy and the regulations applicable in this respect, the 

Company has classified the exposure to IL & FS group 

companies as Substandard and made a provision of 

10% of the exposure to the entire IL & FS group.

 IL&FS Companies have been referred to NCLT 

/NCLAT IN October 2018 and Resolution Plan is under 

progress. The case has been filed recently before NCLT. 

As the valuation of the assets and liabilities is very 

complex in view of the innumerable number of 

subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates involved and 

since the haircut to be borne by the Investors is yet to be 

determined by NCLT, the asset has been classified as 

Substandard as on 31st March 2019. 

 The mere admission of a case in NCLT, by itself 

would not warrant classification of an asset directly as a 

loss asset requiring provision of 100%. The colour 

classification of the various IL & FS group companies 

initially by the new management was based on the 

immediately available information to them on the Cash 

flow position of the companies and is a matter of 

perception only. The assets/liabilities are yet to be valued 

and the realisable value is yet to be ascertained, which can 

be done only after a detailed investigation and revaluation 

of assets and liabilities. 

 There are also variations in the statements by the new 

management and it is seen that in a statement on 5th Feb 

2019, as published in Print Media, the new management 

has stated that “the internal assessment shows that 

entities that hold ` 15,475 crores (18% of the total debt) 

cannot fully repay even senior secured financial debt, 

while the entities holding the remaining ` 67,313 crores 

(75%) can only partly meet obligations of operational and 

unsecured financial creditors”. As per this, some entities 

cannot fully repay secured debt, which means the amount 

of hair cut to be suffered has not been ascertained yet. 

Further, it is to be noted that three IL & FS entities, with    ̀  

5000 Crore debt have been moved from Amber to Green 

as per NCLAT Order dated 12th July 2019. 

 Further, neither RBI nor IRDAI has issued specific 

instructions regarding the assessment of impairment and 

quantum of provision to be made in case of IL&FS. 

NCLT/NCLAT have also not passed any order in this 

regard. In view of this, the asset classification and 

provisioning cannot be based on mere perception. The 

Company has consistently followed the accounting policy 

and IRDAI regulations in case of all investment assets for 

asset classification, income recognition and provisioning 

norms. 

 In view of the above, the Company has classified the 

asset as Substandard and made the provision of 10% in 

the accounts as on 31st March 2019, as per the 

accounting policy of the Company and as required under 

the prevalent regulations of IRDAI/related RBI guidelines 

and hence there is no under provision as on 31st March 

2019. 

 

Chennai 

30.08.2019

REPLY TO THE COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA

UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019

For and on behalf of the Board

(GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN)

              CHAIRMAN-CUM-MANAGING DIRECTOR
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The Company had invested ̀  275 crores in debentures of 

IL&FS Companies on various dates. There was a default 

on the payment of interest due on 24th October 2018 in 

respect of an instrument with face value of ` 25 Crore. 

The Company classified the entire exposure in IL&FS 

Companies as Substandard asset immediately after 90 

days of default. A provision of 10% amounting to ̀  27.50 

Crore has been made as per IRDAI regulations on 

Income Recognition, Asset classification, Provisioning 

and Other related matters.

 As per the Accounting Policy of the Company 8.9.3, 

the Company follows the prudential norms prescribed 

by IRDAI/Related RBI guidelines as regards asset 

classification, recognition of income and provisioning 

pertaining to loans/advances/debentures.

 IRDAI Master circular dated May 2017, under Point 

15 of 3.7 Income Recognition, Asset Classification, 

Provisioning and Other related matters, states that - “the 

Insurer shall follow the latest RBI Circular / Guidelines 

issued on the above points, where the provisions of 

Master Circular – Investments, are inconsistent with 

respect to Point 3.7 of this Master Circular on Income 

Recognition, Asset Classification, Provisioning and 

Other related items”.

 The relevant RBI Circular on which IRDA 

(Investment) Regulations are based is RBI/2015-16/44 

“Master Circular –Income Recognition, Asset 

Classification, Provisioning and Other Related Matters-

UCBs” dated 1st July 2015.

 In accordance with the Company’s accounting 

policy and the regulations applicable in this respect, the 

Company has classified the exposure to IL & FS group 

companies as Substandard and made a provision of 

10% of the exposure to the entire IL & FS group.

 IL&FS Companies have been referred to NCLT 

/NCLAT IN October 2018 and Resolution Plan is under 

progress. The case has been filed recently before NCLT. 

As the valuation of the assets and liabilities is very 

complex in view of the innumerable number of 

subsidiaries/joint ventures/associates involved and 

since the haircut to be borne by the Investors is yet to be 

determined by NCLT, the asset has been classified as 

Substandard as on 31st March 2019. 

 The mere admission of a case in NCLT, by itself 

would not warrant classification of an asset directly as a 

loss asset requiring provision of 100%. The colour 

classification of the various IL & FS group companies 

initially by the new management was based on the 

immediately available information to them on the Cash 

flow position of the companies and is a matter of 

perception only. The assets/liabilities are yet to be valued 

and the realisable value is yet to be ascertained, which can 

be done only after a detailed investigation and revaluation 

of assets and liabilities. 

 There are also variations in the statements by the new 

management and it is seen that in a statement on 5th Feb 

2019, as published in Print Media, the new management 

has stated that “the internal assessment shows that 

entities that hold `15,475 crores (18% of the total debt) 

cannot fully repay even senior secured financial debt, 

while the entities holding the remaining ` 67,313 crores 

(75%) can only partly meet obligations of operational and 

unsecured financial creditors”. As per this, some entities 

cannot fully repay secured debt, which means the amount 

of hair cut to be suffered has not been ascertained yet. 

Further, it is to be noted that three IL & FS entities, with    ̀  

5000 Crore debt have been moved from Amber to Green 

as per NCLAT Order dated 12th July 2019. 

 Further, neither RBI nor IRDAI has issued specific 

instructions regarding the assessment of impairment and 

quantum of provision to be made in case of IL&FS. 

NCLT/NCLAT have also not passed any order in this 

regard. In view of this, the asset classification and 

provisioning cannot be based on mere perception. The 

Company has consistently followed the accounting policy 

and IRDAI regulations in case of all investment assets for 

asset classification, income recognition and provisioning 

norms. 

 In view of the above, the Company has classified the 

asset as Substandard and made the provision of 10% in 

the accounts as on 31st March 2019, as per the 

accounting policy of the Company and as required under 

the prevalent regulations of IRDAI/related RBI guidelines 

and hence there is no under provision as on 31st March 

2019. 

 

Chennai 

30.08.2019

For and on behalf of the Board

(GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN)

              CHAIRMAN-CUM-MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Annexure 2 - Secretarial Audit Report and Observations

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended on 31st March, 2019
Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

United India Insurance Company Limited

We have conducted a secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by United India Insurance Company Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) during the financial 
year from 01 April 2018 to 31 March 2019 (the year/ audit period/ period under review). 

We conducted the secretarial audit in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the Company’s corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

We are issuing this report based on:

i. Our verification of Company physical/ electronic books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other  
 records maintained by the Company and furnished to us, and compliance related action taken by the Company during 
 the year as well as after 31March, 2019 but before the issue of this audit report; and

ii. Our observations during our visits to the Registered Office of the Company and also the information provided by the 
 Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit.

We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 2018-2019, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

1. Compliance with Specific Statutory Provisions:

 We further report that:

1.1 We have examined the books, papers, minute books and other records maintained by the Company and the forms, 
  returns, reports, disclosures and information filed or, disseminated during the year accordingly to the applicable  
 provisions, clauses of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made thereunder;

(ii) Secretarial Standards (SS-1) on “Meetings of the Board of Directors” and Secretarial Standards (SS-2) on “General 
 Meetings” issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(iii)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Overseas 
 Direct Investment;

(iv) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made thereunder (with respect to the Debt Securities);

(v) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations/ bye-laws framed thereunder (with respect to the Debt Securities);

(vi) The following regulations prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI  
 Regulations”):-

a. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008

b. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

(vii) The following laws are specifically applicable to the Company: R
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a. General Insurance Business (Nationalisation) Act, 1972 (“GIBNA”)

b. Insurance Act 1938 and its Rules & Regulation.

c. Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999.

d. Industrial Disputes (Banking and Insurance Companies) Act, 1949.

e. Marine insurance Act 1963.

1.2 During the period under review, and also after considering the compliance related action taken by the Company  
 after  31 March 2019 but before issue of this report, the Company has, to the best of our knowledge and belief and 
 based on  the records (physical/ electronic), information, explanations and representations furnished to us:

i. Complied with the applicable provisions/ clauses of the Act, Rules and Standards specified in sub-paragraph (i)  
 and (ii) of paragraph 1.1 above except our observation as under:

a. As the Company is a Public Sector Insurance Company it is governed by the GIBNA Act so the appointment of all  
 its  directors are done by the Central Government only as per GIBNA and the Article of Association. Hence the  
 appointment of directors are not specifically confirmed by the Company in the General Meeting of its Members, and 
 it is made only through an order of the Central Government being the majority shareholder of the Company.  

b. Being an Insurance Company regulated by IRDAI, some of the Board decisions covered under section 179 of the  
 Companies Act, 2013 were taken through circular resolutions for which approval of all the directors was obtained.  

ii. Complied with the Act, Rules and Regulations specified under sub-paragraph (iii) except for legacy investments  
 made by the Company prior to nationalization of insurance companies. 

iii. Complied with the applicable provisions/ clauses of the Acts, Rules and SEBI Regulations and Agreements  
 specified  in sub-paragraph (iv), (v), (vi) of paragraph 1.1 above for the Unsecured Subordinate debt Instrument  
 issued by the Company except for our observations as under: 

a. The Company’s Subordinated Fully paid-up Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures were listed on the Bombay  
 Stock Exchange only on 12th February 2018.  Therefore being the initial period post listing, for the Half year  
 ended on  31 March 2018, there was a delay in furnishing of the intimations under Regulation 7(3) and the prior  

 intimation  under Regulation 52 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 was missed.

iv. Complied with the specific laws applicable to the Company specified in sub-paragraph (vii) of paragraph 
 1.1 except  for instances of delay in filing prescribed forms to IRDA  under IRDA Act, Regulation, Guidelines issued 
 thereunder.

1.3 We are informed that, during/ in respect of the year no events have occurred which required the Company to
 comply with the following laws/ rules/ regulations and consequently was not required to maintain any books, 
 papers, minutes books or other records or file any forms/returns under:

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign  
 Direct Investments and External Commercial Borrowings;

(ii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

(iii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

(iv) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefit) Regulations, 2014;

(v) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 1998

(vi) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(vii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993  
 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with clients; and

(viii) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
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2. Board Processes:

 We further report that:

2.1 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non- 
 Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

2.2 The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were  
 carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act, except the observation made above in sub-paragraph (i)  
 of paragraph 1.2 above.

2.3 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda  
 were sent at least seven days in advance, except some cases where shorter notices was given, which was ratified  
 by  the Independent directors as the Act.

2.4 A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the  
 meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting; and

2.5 As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board were  
 unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded.  

3. Compliance mechanism:

 We further report that:

3.1 There are reasonably adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with its size and operation  
 to  monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws including general laws, competition law, and   
 environmental laws, however a few delays were identified in complying with annual filing deadlines under  
 applicable labour laws and insurance laws, and hence a more robust system has to be put in place for monitoring  
 compliances.

3.2 The compliance by the Company of applicable finance laws like Direct and Indirect tax laws has not been  
 reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by Statutory Financial Audit and other   
 designated professionals.

4. Specific Events / actions:

 We further report that during the audit period the following specific events/ actions having a major bearing on the  
 Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred Laws, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc took  
 place: 

a. In the Union Budget for the year 2018-19, the merger of three public sector general insurance companies-  
 National Insurance Company Ltd., United India Insurance Company Limited and Oriental Insurance   
 Company Limited was announced. The Government has announced that the merger is expected to be completed  
 by 2019-20.

                                                                                            For Lakshmmi Subramanian & Associates

     Swetha Subramanian

Place: Chennai   ACS: 33222

Date: 23.05.2019    CP No: 12512
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Annexure 

(To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. United India Insurance Company Ltd

for the financial year ended 31.03.2019)

To 

The Members

United India Insurance Company Ltd

Our Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31.3.2019 is to be read along with this Annexure.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record and ensuring compliance with all applicable laws is the responsibility of the  

 management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our 

 audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

 correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct 

 facts  are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a reasonable 

 basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance and law, rules and  

 regulation  and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, and Standards specifically applicable 

 to  the Company is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of systems 

 used to  ensure compliance on a test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the effectiveness 

 with  which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

                                                            For Lakshmmi Subramanian & Associates

    Swetha Subramanian

Place: Chennai    ACS: 33222

Date: 31.05.2019    CP No: 12512
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REPLY TO OBSERVATIONS IN THE SECRETARIAL AUDITOR’S REPORT COVERING THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19 FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Secretarial audit as envisaged under the Companies Act 2013 covers verification of compliance with the applicable 

laws and the auditors have made few observations. The Directors wish to place on record the following with respect to the 

observations.

1.    As the Company is a Public Sector Insurance Company it is governed by the GIBNA Act, so the appointment of all 

 directors of the Company are undertaken by the Central Government only as per GIBNA and the Article of  

 Association. Hence the  appointment of directors are not specifically confirmed by the Company in the General 

 Meeting of its Members, and it is  made only through an order of the Central Government being the majority  

 shareholder of the Company.  

       As stated in the observation, being a company wholly held by the Government of India and also governed  by the  

 GIBNA Act  the Directors including Independent Directors are appointed by the Central Government after going  

 through due process. 

2.   Being an Insurance Company regulated by IRDAI, some of the Board decisions   covered under Section 179 of the 

  Companies Act, 2013 were taken through circular resolutions for which approval of all the directors was obtained.

      The Oriental Insurance Company Ltd has informed United India Insurance Company Ltd vide mail dated 05th March 

 2019,  that they are planning to raise sub-debt under "Other forms of Capital" and likely to be opened for subscription 

 on NSE E- bidding platform, tentatively on 14th March 2019 and Pay in on 15th March 2019. The rating for the  

 proposed NCDs was  AAA by CRISIL & ICRA.

      Since the time available for decision to invest was limited and the expected market yield was high and also as the  

 investee  company is a PSU, it was decided to invest in high yielding, AAA rated NCDs issued by OIC. 

 As the Board could not be convened within the short time available, the approval was   obtained by way of Circular 

  Resolution on 07th March 2019. The decision of the Board was unanimous.

3.   Complied with the Act, Rules and Regulations specified under sub-paragraph (iii) except for legacy investments 

 made  by the Company prior to nationalization of insurance companies.

     Equity Shares of Standard Chartered Bank and Asian Re were received from the Companies which were taken  

 over/merged  with United India Insurance Company Ltd, consequent upon Nationalisation of Insurance Business  

 under GIBNA 1972.  The acquisition of shares was before the introduction of FEMA, 1999.

4.   The Company’s subordinated fully paid up redeemable non convertible debentures were listed on the Bombay  

 Stock  Exchange only on 12th February 2018.  Therefore being the initial period post listing, for the half year  

 ended on 31 March  2018, there was a delay in furnishing of the intimations under Regulation 7(3) and the 

 prior intimation under Regulation  52 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015  

 was missed.

       Being the initial period post listing, there was a delay in furnishing of the intimation under Regulation 7(3) of SEBI 

 (Listing  Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015.  However this was a single instance of delay during the  

 year 2018-19,  subsequently there have been no delays in meeting the compliance requirements of SEBI (Listing  

 Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 during the year.  Prior intimation under Regulation 52 of the said 

 guidelines was omitted  in the initial period, though the Company submitted its audited financial results for the year 

 ended 31st March 2018 within  the stipulated timeline of 60 days of the close of the financial year and also duly  

 complied with all other regulatory  requirements in respect thereof.
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5. There were instances of delay in filing prescribed forms to IRDA under IRDA Act, Regulation, Guidelines issued 

 thereunder.

 There were delays in obtaining validated information from departments specifically with regard to government  

 schemes  and rural and social sector premium which contributed to the delay in filing the returns.  However, steps  

 have been taken  to streamline product mapping, verification of government scheme figures which will ensure that the 

 delays are minimized in future.

6. There are reasonably adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with its size and operation 

 to  monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws including general laws, competition law, and  

 environmental laws,  however a few delays were identified in complying with annual filing deadlines under  

 applicable labour laws, and  hence a  more robust system has to be put in place for monitoring labour law  

 compliances.

 Necessary steps for creating awareness regarding the compliance of  labour laws within the given timelines are being 

 undertaken.  

For and on behalf of the Board

(GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN)

 CHAIRMAN CUM MANAGING DIRECTOR
Place: Chennai        

Date :          31.05.2019
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Annexure - 3 

CSR ANNUAL  REPORT

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken 

and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

 Our Company's CSR Policy was approved in 2014-15 as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, as notified by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs. Our Company has undertaken initiatives like Rural Infrastructure Development Program, 

Comprehensive Village Development Program, School Infrastructure Development Program, etc., to provide 

Infrastructure to the needy Schools and Villages in Rural Areas and spread Insurance Awareness amongst the people. 

Our Company has also undertaken Education, Road Safety, Skill Development, Environment & Preventive Healthcare 

related Projects for the Welfare of the Society.

 Our Company’s CSR Policy is available on our Company’s official website at the following link:

 https://uiic.co.in/csr

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee.

 The CSR Committee comprises of the following Directors (as on 31.03.2019):

 Shri G. Radhakrishnan, Chairman cum Managing Director

 Shri S Gopakumar, Director & General Manager

 Shri Madnesh Kumar Mishra, Director

 Ms. Sindhu Pillai, Director

 Shri Parijat Dutta, Director

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years.

 ` 381.32 crores.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above)

 2% of ` 381.32 crores is ` 7.6264 crores. After taking into account ` 7.2475 crores unallocated during 2017-18, the 

total CSR corpus was  ̀  14.8739 crores for 2018-19.

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2018-19:

 a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year- ̀  14.8739 crores

 b) Amount unspent, if any- (CSR Corpus- Amount spent in 2018-19)= ̀  (14.8739 –4.5254) = ̀  10.3485 crores

 c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed in- Annexure 3A.

6. In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or 

any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board’s Report.

 The Company has selected projects which run for multiple years for implementation. The projects/programs 

sanctioned, including the carried forward sanctions of earlier years, but remaining unspent, are relating to such multi-

year projects. The Company could not sanction and spend the total amount for want of suitable projects. The Company 

is continuously evaluating the projects proposed and will be able to further enhance the spending in the coming years.
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S No   Project    Amount Sanctioned Expected Date of     

        (in `) Completion

        
1 Rural Infrastructure Development Program(3 Villages) 33,15,000  September, 2019

2 School Infrastructure Development Program(138 schools) 2,76,00,000  July, 2019

3 Comprehensive Village Development Program(3 villages) 65,03,000  February, 2020

4 Project to provide infrastructure to schools in Hyderabad 

 through Swamy Vivekananda Educational Society 18,50,000  Completed

5 Project to provide digital infrastructure for skill

 development of unskilled youth through Sri Sathya Sai

 Seva Trust     25,00,000  Completed

6 Project to provide and install 10 CCTVs in Whites Road,

 Chennai for road safety    2,85,000  Completed

7 Project to provide support for holistic development of

 underprivileged children through Ramakrishna Mission 1,21,14,000  November, 2021

8 Project to provide mobility aids to approx. 750 disabled

 people in Madhya Pradesh through Freedom Trust 50,00,000  December, 2019

9 Project to run 300 Ekal Vidhyalayas to provide education 

 and support to underprivileged children through Friends 

 of Tribals Society     60,00,000  April, 2020

10 Project to build 10 classrooms and provide infrastructure 

 in North East through Round Table India  82,72,500  April, 2020

   TOTAL    7,34,39,500

During this year, the following new projects have been approved:

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in               

 compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

 The CSR Committee of the Board affirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is the           
 responsibility of the CSR Committee and confirms that the initiatives implemented by the Company are in compliance    
 with the CSR Objectives and Policy of the Company.
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FORM NO. AOC-2
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s

length transactions under third proviso thereto

 (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2)

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Annexure - 4

Name(s) of the 
related party and 

nature of relationship

Nature of
contracts/

arrangements/
transactions

Duration of the 
contracts/arrangements/

transactions

Salient terms of the 
contracts or arrangements 
or transactions including 

the value, if any

Date(s) of approval
by the Board, 

if any

Amount
(` in Lacs)

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis for the financial year 2018-19

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

Name(s) of the 
related party and 

nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
contracts/

arrangements/
transactions

Duration of the 
contracts/

arrangements/
transactions

Salient terms 
of the contracts 
or arrangements 
or transactions
including the 
value, if any

Justification for
entering into such 

contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions

Date(s) of 
approval 

by the Board

Amount paid 
as advances, 

if any

Date on which 
the special resolution 

was passed in 
general meeting 

as required under 
first proviso 

to section 188

NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

R
EP

O
R

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
S

Dividend Received

India International 

Insurance Pte Ltd Associate NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE 263.99

Ken India Assurance 

Co Ltd Associate NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE 34.39

Rent Received     

Health Insurance TPA 

of India Ltd Associate 1st December 2017 –  As per the terms and conditions 

   30th November 2026 mentioned in  Lease Agreement REFER NOTE 1 8.15

TPA Fees Paid     

Health Insurance TPA 

of India Ltd Associate NOT APPLICABLE As per the terms and conditions 

    mentioned in  Service Level Agreement REFER NOTE 1 1359.44

TPA Fees Payable     

Health Insurance TPA    As per the terms and conditions 

of India Ltd Associate NOT APPLICABLE mentioned in  Service Level Agreement REFER NOTE 1 395.39

Reinsurance transactions     

India International Associate NOT APPLICABLE As per the terms and conditions 

Insurance Pte Ltd.   mentioned in Re-insurance arrangement.   REFER NOTE 1 494.00

Director's Remuneration

Received     

Ken India Assurance Co

Ltd. Associate NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE NOT APPLICABLE 1.53

Housing Loan transferred  NOT APPLICABLE - REFER NOTE 1 14431.85

GIC Housing Finance Ltd

Note: 1. Approvals of Audit Committee/Board/General Meeting was obtained as required for the above transactions
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Annexure 5 -PERFORMANCE IN HEALTH, RURAL AND SOCIAL LINES IN THE PAST FIVE YEARS

(` in Lakhs)

Policy Details Year
No.of 

Policies
issued

No.of
persons
Insured

Amount of
Premium
collected

No.of
claims

reported

Incurred
claims
amount

No.of
claims
settled

Claims
settled
amount

Incurred
claims
ratio %

MEDICLAIM POLICIES

 2014-15 1199957 18645917   281577.43 1268733  306623.21 1064926 293453.61 109.00

 2015-16 1217520 23856761 365254.86 1388088 395927.29 1210920 396063.78 108.00

 2016-17 1160383 23876152 447630.00 1946476 541366.70 1493517 555458.10 121.00

 2017-18 1257087 38399000 484091.00 2893745 556058.19 2482484 547216.11 114.87

 2018-19 1207183 13225057 536524.65 2701535 541836.62 2351403 569102.58 100.99

SOCIAL  AND  RURAL SECTOR - A GLIMPSE    

 2014-15 1278 2992 11.69 469 18.15 490 19.05 155.24

 2015-16

 2016-17  

 2017-18    

 2018-19    

  2014-15 47266 1269436 2748.98 2877 2454.44 2809 2185.66 89.29

 2015-16 36264 1557267 1645.77 2756 1378.00 1212 1267.00 83.73

 2016-17 75970 942096 2457.74 1946 2674.36 2513 1964.68 108.81

 2017-18 54977 13745127 2683.80 3130 1719.31 2526 1868.90 127.00

 2018-19 53025 11766001 2117.88 1938 957.98 1964 1533.19 45.23

 2014-15 5659 41449 75.48 3100 255.46 3295 271.07 338.44

 2015-16 

 2016-17

 2017-18   �

 2018-19

 2014-15 161483 365089 9593.40 52813 8090.30 53710 8337.59 84.33

 2015-16 256845 6126542 13515.46 31627 6690.77 63845 5954.78 49.50

 2016-17 220514 1753961 15144.14 43284 11085.47 45597 10641.43 73.20

 2017-18 252531 2355122 17452.40 47812 11568.71 43735 10889.38 80.00

 2018-19 210236 212232 14897.61 43072 10138.33 42280 10790.96 68.05
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O
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B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

D
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R
S

Health 
(Individual+Group)

Janata Personal
Accident Policy

Universal Health
Insurance

 Jan Arogya

Cattle Insurance

Product Withdrawn

Product Withdrawn
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Form No. MGT – 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31.3.2019

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Annexure - 6

I    REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

 I)    CIN      U93090TN1938GOI000108

 II)    Registration Date     18th February 1938 

 III)    Name of the Company     United India Insurance Company Ltd

 IV)    Category / Sub-Category of the Company   Company limited by shares   

        Union Government Company

 V)    Address of the Registered office and contact details   24 Whites Road

         Chennai 600014

 VI)    Whether listed company (Yes / No)    No

 VII)   Name, Address and Contact details of    Not Applicable

     Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any: -

II     PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and Description of   NIC Code of the % to total turnover 

  main products/services  product/ service of the Company

    

 1 Non-life Insurance     6512   100%

R
EP

O
R

T 
O
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R
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D
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R
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S.No
NAME AND 

ADDRESS OF 
THE COMPANY

CIN/GLN
HOLDING/ 

SUBSIDIARY/ 
ASSOCIATE

APPLICABLE 
SECTION

% 
OF SHARES

 HELD 

% Change 
during the year

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of shares held at the beginning 
of the year 

No. of Shares held at the 
end of the year 

Demat Physical 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Total Demat Physical 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Total 

III  PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

  Zenith Investments 
  and Securities  Ltd ,
1.            Mehta House, 
  Samachar Marg, 
  Mumbai 400 023
   

  Health Insurance  
  TPA of India Limited,
2.  3rd Floor, A-Wing, 
               IFCI Tower, 61, 
               Nehru Place,
  New Delhi-110 019 

  India International  
  Insurance Pte Ltd,
3.  64, Cecil Street,
  #04-02,IOB Building,
  Singapore 049711

U66010MH1916GOI000432              Subsidiary                  69.45%                2(87)

U85100DL2013PLC256581               Associate                    23.75%                 2(6)

                              Associate                   20.00%                  2(6)

IV    SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category –wise Shareholding

A.Promoters

(1)  Indian     

a)   Individual/HUF Nil Nil Nil -- Nil Nil Nil -- No change

b)   Central Govt  Nil 150000000 150000000 100 Nil 150000000 150000000 100 No change 

c)    State Govt(s)  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d)    Bodies Corp.  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e)    Banks/FI  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f)     Any Other  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-Total (A) (1):- Nil 150000000 150000000 100 Nil 150000000 150000000 100 No change

(2) Foreign

a)  NRIs-Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b)  Other-Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c)  Bodies Corp.  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d)  Banks / FI  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e)  Any Other  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-Total (A) (2):- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil R
EP

O
R

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
B

O
A

R
D

 O
F 

D
IR

EC
TO

R
S

69139

Foreign Company 





Total shareholding  Nil 150000000 150000000 100 Nil 150000000 150000000 100 No change
of Promoter 
(A) = (A) (1)+(A)(2)

B. Public
 Shareholding

(1)Institutions

a)  Mutual Funds  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b)  Banks / FI  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c) Central  Govt  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

d) State Govt (s)  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

e) Venture Capital  
 Funds  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f) Insurance   
    Companies  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

g) FIIs   Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

h) Foreign Venture 
    Capital Funds  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

i)  Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Sub-total (B)(1)  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

2. Non-Institutions 

a) Bodies Corp.  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

   i) Indian  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

  ii) Overseas  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b) Individuals  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

% Change 
during the year

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of shares held at the beginning 
of the year 

No. of shares held at the 
end of the year 

Demat Physical 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Total Demat Physical 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Total 

R
EP

O
R
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O
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B

O
A
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D
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F 

D
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EC
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R
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i) Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

shareholders

holding nominal

share capital upto

Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

shareholders

holding

nominal share

capital in 

excess of Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Sub-total (B)(2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total Public  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by  Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

    Custodian for 

    GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total 

(A+B+C)

Demat Physical 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Total Demat Physical 

% of 

Total 

Shares 

Total 

% Change 
during the year

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of shares held at the beginning 
of the year 

No. of shares held at the 
end of the year 

Sl No. 
Shareholding at the 

end of the year
Shareholder’s 

Name 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

% Change in 
shareholding

 during the year

No. of 

Shares 

% of Total 
shares 
of the 

Company 

% of Shares 
pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of Total 
shares 
of the 

Company 

% of Shares 
pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total shares 

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

1       Government of India 150000000 100 Nil 150000000 100 Nil No change

 Total 150000000 100 Nil 150000000 100 Nil No change

Nil 150000000 150000000 100 Nil 150000000 150000000 100 No change
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Sl No. 
Cumulative Shareholding

during the year
Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

No. of Shares 
% of total 

shares of the Company 

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)

No. of Shares 
% of total 

shares of the Company 

Sl No. 
Cumulative Shareholding

during the year
Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

No. of Shares 
% of Total 

shares of the Company No. of Shares 
% of Total 

shares of the Company 
For each of the 

Top 10 Shareholders

(iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

150000000                       100                              150000000                            100

Nil                                Nil                                     Nil                                     Nil

150000000                       100                              150000000                            100

Nil                                Nil                                     Nil                                     Nil

Nil                                Nil                                     Nil                                     Nil

Nil                                Nil                                     Nil                                     Nil

 At the end of the 
 year

Datewise 
 Increase / 
 Decrease in 
 Promoters' Share-
 holding during 
 the year specifying 
 the reasons for 
 increase/ decrease 
 (e.g. allotment / 
 transfer / bonus 
 /sweat equity etc) 

At the beginning
of the year

At the beginning 
 of the year

At the End of the 
 year (or on the date
 of separation, if 
 separated during 
 the year) 

Datewise Increase/
 Decrease in Share- 
 holding during the 
 year specifying the 
 reasons for increase / 
 decrease
 (e.g. allotment /
  transfer / bonus / 
 sweat equity etc)
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Sl No. Cumulative Shareholding during the yearShareholding at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares 
% of Total 

shares of the Company 
No. of Shares 

% of Total 

shares of the Company 

For Each of the 
Directors and KMP

Deposits 
Secured Loans 

excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured*
 Loans 

Total 

Indebtedness

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

V  INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment  

-                                -                                       -                                        -

-                                -                                       -                                        -

-                                -                                       -                                        -

At the beginning of
 the year

Datewise Increase /
 Decrease in Share-
 holding during the 
 year specifying the 
 reasons for increase 
 / decrease 
 (e.g. allotment / 
 transfer / bonus / 
 sweat equity etc) 

 At the end of the year

Indebtedness at the beginning 
of the financial year
i)   Principal Amount Nil 9000000000.00 Nil 9000000000.00
ii)  Interest due but not paid - - - -  
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil 117986301.37 Nil 117986301.37  

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 9117986301.37 Nil 9117986301.37    

Change in Indebtedness during 
the financial year 
     Addition Nil Nil Nil Nil
     Reduction 

Net Change Nil Nil Nil Nil

Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i)    Principal Amount Nil 9000000000.00 Nil 9000000000.00 
ii)   Interest due but not paid - - - - 
iii)  Interest accrued but not due Nil 117986301.37 Nil 117986301.37   

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 9117986301.37 Nil 9117986301.37
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VI        REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager

1. Gross salary 5730543 1194750 3059768 1618174 3634309 4497482 1424516   21159542

 (a) Salary as per

      provisions contained

       in section 17(1) of the

      Income-tax Act, 1961

 (b) Value of perquisites 300200 39846 166347 615719 149915 1588909 127948   2988884

       u/s 17(2) Income-

       tax Act, 1961

 (c ) Profits in lieu of 

       salary under section 

      17(3) Income-tax

       Act, 1961

2. Stock Option        Nil

3. Sweat Option        Nil

4. Commission 

 -as % of profit        Nil

 -others

         

5. Others, Please specify        Nil

 Total (A) 6030743 1234596 3226115 2233893 3784224 6086391 1552464   24148426

 Ceiling as per the Act        

Total 
Amount

Particulars of 
Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager
SI.
No.

S Gopakumar

WTD

M N 

Sarma

CMD

  Girish

 Radhakrishnan

CMD 

B Balachandra

WTD 

 P Hemamalini

WTD 

K Govindarajan

WTD 

K B Vijay 

Srinivas

WTD 
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B. Remuneration to other directors

 1.Independent Directors

    Fee for attending Board / 

     Committee Meetings 330000      330000

   Commission 0

   Others, please specify 0  

    

 
 Total (1) 330000     330000

 2. Other Non-Executive 

 Directors

  Fee for attending Board / 

    Committee Meetings

  Commission 

  Others, please specify

 
 Total (2)       0

 Total (B) = (1+2) 330000     330000

 Total Managerial Remuneration      330000

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Total 
Amount (`)

Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors
SI.
No.

Parijat Dutta

Sitting fees is not paid to Government Nominee Directors and Independent 
Director representing Bank

- - -

- - -

- - -
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C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

VII.  PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type 
Section of the
Companies Act 

Brief Description 

Details of Penalty/
Punishment/ 

Compounding 
fees Imposed 

Authority 
[RD / NCLT / 

COURT] 

Appeal made, 
if any 

(give details)

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

- - - - -

1 Gross salary

 (a) Salary as per provisions   746675.90  1168833.00  3141466.00 5056974.90

      Contained in section 17(1) of

      The Income-tax Act, 1961

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s  174644.68  441532.00  52328.00 668504.68

      17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

 (c)  Profits in lieu of salary 

       Under section 17(3)  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil 

       Income-tax Act, 1961

2 Stock Option  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil

3 Sweat Equity  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil

4 Commission

 -   as % of profit  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil

 -   others, specify …  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil

5 Others – Declared other 

 Income  Nil  Nil  Nil  Nil

 Total  921320.58 1610365.00 3193794.00 5725479.58

Total Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
SI.
No.

Anagha Shantanu
 Deshpande

 Company Secretary

S Venkataraman
Company Secretary

D T V Sastri CFO
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SHAREHOLDERS’ AND POLICYHOLDERS’ FUNDS – 2018-19

*Note: Other Liabilities comprise of (i) Premium received in advance (ii) Unallocated premium (iii) Balance due to Other Insurance companies 

(iv) Due to other members of a pool such as third party pool; Terrorism pool; etc (v) Sundry creditors(due to policyholders).

Other Assets comprise of (i) Outstanding premium (ii) due from other entities carrying on insurance business including Re insurers

(iii) balance with Pool such as Third Party Pool; Terrorism Pool; etc.

The investments pertaining to shareholders and policyholders are segregated as on the Balance Sheet date as per the IRDAI Regulation. 

(Circular IRDA/F&A/CIR/CPM/056/03/2016 dated April 04, 2016).

Share Capital 1500000   1500000  

General Reserve 27312401   46316507  

Capital Reserve 13589   13589  

Misc./Special Reserves 615331   368318  

Total - A 29441321 10.36% 48198414 18.10%

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUND    (` in’000)

Particulars
Balance As On 

31.03.2019
Percentage

Balance As On 
31.03.2018

Percentage

Fire 3845518 14350874               -                  -    178493 18374885  

Marine 1178941 4288453               -                  -    53631 5521025  

Miscellaneous 64417294 164122270               -                  -    2241803 230781367  

Total - B 69441753 182761597               -                  -    2473927 254677277 89.64%

Total Funds-(A+B)       284118598  

POLICYHOLDERS’ FUND (` in’000)

Particulars
(a) Reserve for 

Unexpired 
Risk

(b) Estimated 
Liability for 
O/s Claims

c) Premium 
Deficiency 
Reserve

(
(d) Catastrophe 

Reserve

(e) Other 
Liabilities net off 

Other Assets*
Total Percentage

BALANCE AS ON 31.03.2019

Fire 4317980 14891406               -                       -    1385039 20594425  

Marine 1353130 4136376               -                       -    395806 5885312  

Miscellaneous 56891141 121898950               -                       -    12891163 191681254  

Total - B  62562251 140926732               -                       -    14672008 218160991 81.90%

Total Funds-(A+B)       266359405  

(` in’000)

Particulars
(a) Reserve for 

Unexpired 
Risk

(b) Estimated 
Liability for 
O/s Claims

c) Premium 
Deficiency 
Reserve

(
(d) Catastrophe 

Reserve

(e) Other 
Liabilities net off 

Other Assets*
Total Percentage

BALANCE AS ON 31.03.2018

69155
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यनूाइटेड इं�डया इं�ोर�स कंपनी �ल�मटेड के
सद�ो ंको �तं� लेखा परी�को ंक� �रपोट� 

ं ं(एसएएस) के मानको के अनुसार अपना ऑिडट िकया। उन मानको के तहत हमारी 

ं�ज�देा�रयो को आगे �व�ीय लेखा परी�ा अनुभाग क� ऑिडट के �लए लेखा 

ं ंपरी�को क� �ज�देा�रयो म� व�णत िकया गया ह।ै  हम भारत के चाट�ड� एकाउंट�टस् 

सं�ान �ारा जारी नै�तक आचार संिहता के अनुसार कंपनी से �तं� ह,�  जो िक 

ं�व�ीय �ववरणो के हमारे ऑिडट के �लए �ासं�गक ह � और हमने उनके अनुसार 

ं ंअपनी अ� नै�तक �ज�देा�रयो को पूरा िकया ह ै आव�कताओ और आचार 

संिहता। हम मानत ेह � िक हमने जो ऑिडट सा� �ा� िकए ह,� वे हमारी राय के �लए 

आधार �दान करने के �लए पया��  और उपय�ु ह।�

मामले का मह� व 

ंहम �व�ीय �ववरणो के नोट म� �न��ल�खत मामले पर �ान आक�षत करत ेह�

ं1. नोट नंबर 31 (ए) और 31 (बी) �ववरणो  को, मौजदूा वष� म� प�शन और  

 �े�ुटी देयता क� अदायगी के संबंध म�, वतम� ान वष� म� ` 25,9992 क� 

ं सीमा तक बीमा �नयामक �ारा दी गई मंजरूी के हजारो और भारत के 

 �वकास �ा�धकरण ने अपने प�रप� सं�ा: IRDA / F & A / CIR / 

 ACTS / 077/04/2016 िदनाकं 18-अ�लै -2016 और प� �माकं 

 IRDA / F & A / GUI / LR / 003 / 2013-19 / 49 िदनाकं 

 10.072018 को र� कर िदया ।

ं प�शन के �लए, भारतीय बीमा �व�नयामक �वकास �ा�धकरण के �नद�शो के  

 अनुसार उनके प� क� सं�ा No.FNA / GUI / COM / OO1 / 

 2018-19 / 156 िदनाकं 04.12.2018, 31-03-2018 को ` 

ं 40000 हजारो क� पूरी अघो�षत रा�श (पूव� म� अवशो�षत) ` 60000 

ं हजारो) का इस वष� के दौरान िहसाब लगाया गया ह।ै  यिद वष� 2015-16 म� 

 पूरी रा�श को अवशो�षत कर �लया गया था, तो 31.03.2019 को समा� 

ं वष� के �लए घाटा � ̀  40000 हजारो से कम होता ।

��डअलोन �व�ीय �ववरणो ंक� लेखा परी�ा पर �रपोट�

अह�क अ�भमत

हमने मैसस� यनूाइटेड इंिडया इं�ोर�स कंपनी �ल�मटेड ("कंपनी") के ��डअलोन 

ं�व�ीय �ववरणो का ऑिडट िकया ह,ै  �जसम� 31 माच�, 2019 तक बलै�स शीट, 

अ��, समु�ी और �व�वध राज� खात ेवष� क� समा�� के लाभ - हा�न खात ेऔर 

ंनकदी और �व�ीय �ववरण शा�मल ह।�  �जसम� मह�पूण � लेखा नी�तयो का साराशं 

ंऔर इन �व�ीय �ववरणो म� शा�मल अ� �ा�ा�क जानकारी 29 ��ेीय 

ं ंकायाल� यो के �रटन� (�जसम� 431 मंडल कायाल� यो के �रटन� शा�मल ह)�  7 बड़े 

कॉप�रेट और �ोकर सेल और एक अ�त�र� �वदेशी �चालन ("अ� कायाल� य") 

अ� ऑिडटस� �ारा ऑिडट िकए जात ेह।�

हमारी राय म� और हमारी जानकारी के अनुसार, हम� िदए गए ��ीकरण के अनुसार, 

ंहमारी �रपोट� के यो� राय अनुभाग के �लए आधार म� व�णत मामले के �भावो को 

छोड़कर, उपरो� �व�ीय �ववरण बीमा अ�ध�नयम 1938 �ारा आव�क 

ंजानकारी देत ेह � , और भारत म� आम तौर पर �ीकार िकए गए लेखाकंन �स�ातंो के 

अनु�प एक सही और �न�� ���कोण द�  इस तरह से आव�क है

ंक) 31 माच� 2019 तक कंपनी के मामलो क� ���त क� तलुन प�  के मामले 

 म�;

ख)  31 माच� 2019 को समा� �ए वष� के �लए अ�धशेष / घाटे के राज� 

ं खातो के मामले म�;

ग) 31 माच� 2019 को समा� वष� के �लए लाभ और हा�न खात ेके मामले म�; 

 तथा

घ) 31 माच� 2019 को समा� वष� के �लए नकदी �वाह के कैश �ो �ववरण 

 के मामले म�।

अह�क अ�भमत का आधार

ं ंनोट नंबर 29 (ए) और 29 (बी) �व�ीय �ववरणो के अनुसार, अ� बीमा कंप�नयो 

से वष� के अतं  क� पु�� न होने और �व�ीय पर प�रणामी �भाव, यिद कोई हो, 

ंसमायोजन / सामंज� का पता लगाने यो� नही ह।ै

हमने कंपनी अ�ध�नयम, 2013 क� धारा 143 (10) के तहत �न�द� लेखा परी�ण  



Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of 

M/s United India Insurance Company Limited (“the 

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st 

March 2019, the Fire, Marine and Miscellaneous Revenue 

Accounts, the Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow 

statement for the year then ended, and notes to the 

financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information 

incorporated in these financial statements are the returns 

of  the 29 Regional Offices (in which are incorporated the 

Returns of 431 Divisional Offices), 7 Large Corporate and 

Broker Cells and an overseas run-off operations (“other 

offices”) audited by other auditors.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, except for the 

effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 

Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid financial 

statements give the information required by the Insurance 

Act, 1938 in the manner so required and give a true and fair 

view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India

a)  in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs 

 of the Company as at March 31 2019;

b)  in the case of the Revenue Accounts, of the  

 surplus/deficit for the year ended March 31 2019; 

c)  in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the loss for  

 the year ended March 31 2019; and

d)  in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the  cash   

flows  for the year ended March 31 2019.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Note No. 29(a) and 29(b) to the financial statements, refers 

to non-obtention of year end confirmation from other 

insurance companies and consequential impact on the 

financials, if any, of adjustment / reconciliation is not 

ascertainable.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further 

described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit 

of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the 

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to 

the financial statements

1.  Note No. 31(A) & 31(B) to the statements,  

 r e g a r d i n g  d e f e r m e n t  o f  p e n s i o n  a n d  

 gratuity liability of the earlier years absorbed in the 

 current year to the extent of `2519992 thousands 

 pursuant to the approval granted by the Insurance 

 Regulatory and Development Authority of India 

 vide its circular no: IRDA/F&A/CIR/ACTS /077/04/ 

 2016 dated 18-April- 2016 and Letter No. 

 IRDA/F&A /GUI/LR/003/2018- 19/49 dated 

 10.07.2018. 

 For Pension, as per the directions of IRDAI vide 

 their letter No.FNA/GUI/COM/OO1/2018-

 19/156 dated 04.12.2018, the entire unabsorbed 

 amount of ` 40000 thousands as on 31-03-2018 

 (previously absorbed ` 60000 thousands) 

 has been accounted for during this year.   

 Had the entire amount been absorbed in the 

 year 2015-16, the losses for the year ended 

 31.03.2019 would be lower by ̀  40000  thousands.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF UNITED INDIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
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 �े�ुटी के �लए, भारतीय बीमा �व�नयामक �वकास �ा�धकरण के 

 �नद�शानुसार उनके प� �माकं No.FNA / GUI / COM / 001 / 

 2018-19 / 156 िदनाकं 04.12.2018 के अनुसार, संपूण � अघो�षत 

ं रा�श ` 2479992 हजारो क� सं�ा म� 31.08.2018 (पूव� म� 

ं अवशो�षत ` 619998 हजारो) ) का लेखा-जोखा इस वष� के दौरान िकया 

 गया ह।ै यिद वष� 2017-18 म� पूरी रा�श को अवशो�षत कर �लया गया था, 

 तो 31.03.2019 को समा� होने वाले वष� का घाटा ` 2479992

ं हजारो से कम होता ।

ं ं ं2. नोट नंबर 26 (बी) बयानो के �लए, दावो के �लए दनेदा�रयो के �वघटन के 

 बारे म,�  उपगत लिेकन अस�ूचत दावे (आईबीएनआर) और छूट के �लए 

 ` 23744700 हजार क� सीमा तक कंपनी क� उपगत लिेकन अपया��  त �प 

 से स�ूचत (आईबीएनईआर) दाव।े भारतीय बीमा �व�नयामक और �वकास 

 �ा�धकरण �ारा उसके प� �माकं IRDA / FNA / GOG / LR / 001 / 

 2017-18 / 66 िदनाकं 25.7.2017 और प� �माकं IRDA / FNA / 

 GOG / LR / 001 / 2017- 18/67 िदनाकं 27.7.2017 के अनसुार  ह ै ।

ंभारतीय बीमा �व�नयामक �वकास �ा�धकरण के �नद�शो के अनसुार उनके प� क� 

सं�ा No.FNA / GUI / COM / 001 / 2018-19 / 156 िदनाकं 

04.12.2018, 31.03.2018 को पवू� क� तरह ` 7914900 हजार क� परूी 

ंअघो�षत रा�श (पहले से ` 15829800 हजारो) ह।ै वष� के दौरान के �लए 

�ज�देार ह।ै यिद वष� 2016-17 म� परूी रा�श को अवशो�षत िकया गया था, तो 

ं31.03.2019 को समा� होने वाली अव�ध  ̀  7914900 हजारो से कम होती ।

ंइस मामले के संबंध म� हमारी राय संशो�धत नही ह।ै

��डअलोन �व�ीय �ववरणो ंके �लए �बंधन और उन पर शासन क� �ज�ेदारी

कंपनी का �नदेशक मंडल कंपनी अ�ध�नयम, 2013 ("अ�ध�नयम") क� धारा 134 

ं ं(5) म� व�णत मामलो के �लए �ज�देार ह,ै  इन ��डअलोन �व�ीय व��ो क� 

तयैारी के संबंध म� जो �व�ीय ���त का सही और �न�� ���कोण देत ेह � , बीमा 

अ�ध�नयम, 1938 के अनुसार कंपनी का �व�ीय �कटन और नकदी �वाह, 

ंभारतीय बीमा �व�नयामक और �वकास �ा�धकरण (�व�ीय �ववरणो क� तयैारी और 

ं ंलेखा परी�को क� बीमा कंप�नयो क� �रपोट�) �व�नयमन 2002, ("�व�नयमन") 

लेखाकंन आमतौर पर भारत म� �ीकृत �स�ातं, कंपनी अ�ध�नयम क� धारा 133 के 

ंतहत �न�द� लेखाकंन मानको सिहत, �नयम 7 के साथ पढ़े जात ेह�

ंकंप�नयो के �लए (लेखा) �नयम, 2014 लागू होने तक और आव�क तरीके से। 

ंइस �ज�देारी म� कंपनी क� प�रसंप��यो क� सुर�ा के �लए कंपनी अ�ध�नयम के 

ं�ावधानो के अनुसार पया��  लेखाकंन �रकॉड� का रखरखाव और धोखाधड़ी और 

ंअ� अ�नय�मतताओ को रोकने और पता लगाने के �लए भी शा�मल ह;ै  उ�चत 

ंलेखाकंन नी�तयो का चयन और आवेदन; �नणय�  और अनुमान लगाना जो उ�चत 

ंऔर �ववेकपूण � ह;�  और पया��  आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो का िडजाइन, काया�� यन 

और रखरखाव, जो िक लेखाकंन के �रकॉड� क� सटीकता और पूणत� ा सु�न��त करने 

ंके �लए �भावी ढंग से काम कर रह े थ,े जो �व�ीय व��ो क� तयैारी और ���ुत के 

�लए �ासं�गक ह ैजो एक सही और �न�� ���कोण देत ेह � और साम�ी के द�पयोग ु

से मु� होत ेह � , चाह ेधोखाधड़ी या �िुट के कारण हो।

ं�व�ीय �ववरणो को तयैार करने म�, �नदेशक मंडल क� �ज�देारी कंपनी क� �मता 

ंका आकलन कारोबार को जारी रखने, �कट करने, लागू करने, �चता से संबं�धत 

ंमामलो और लेखाकंन जारी रखने के आधार का उपयोग करने के �लए ह ै जब तक िक 

ं�नदेशक मंडल कंपनी को प�रसमापन करना या संचालन को बंद करने का इरादा नही 

ंकरता ह,ै  या उसके पास ऐसा करने के �लए कोई वा��वक �वक� नही ह।ै

वे �नदेशक मंडल कंपनी क� �व�ीय �रपो�टग �ि�या क� देखरेख के �लए भी 

�ज�देार ह।�

�व�ीय �ववरणो ंक� लेखा परी�ा के �लए लेखा परी�को ंक� �ज�ेदा�रयां

हमारा उ�े� इस बारे म� उ�चत आ�ासन �ा� करना ह ै िक �ा संपूण � �प से �व�ीय 

�ववरण भौ�तक गलतफहमी से मु� ह,�  चाह ेधोखाधड़ी या �िुट के कारण, और एक 

ऑिडटर क� �रपोट� जारी करने के �लए �जसम� हमारी राय भी शा�मल ह।ै उ�चत 

ंआ�ासन उ� �र का आ�ासन ह,ै लेिकन यह गारंटी नही ह ैिक एसएएस के 

अनुसार िकया गया ऑिडट हमेशा मौजदू होने पर िकसी साम�ी के गलत होने का 

पता लगाएगा। धोखाधड़ी या �िुट से गल�तया ँउ�� हो सकती ह � और

माना जाता ह ै िक साम�ी, यिद ���गत �प से या कुल �मलाकर, वे इन �व�ीय 

ं ं ंव��ो के आधार पर �लए गए उपयोगकताओ�  के आ�थक �नणय� ो को �भा�वत 

करने क� अपे�ा क� जा सकती ह।ै

एसएएस के अनुसार एक ऑिडट के भाग के �प म�, हम पेशेवर �नणय�  लेत ेह � और पूरे 

ऑिडट म� पेशेवर संदेह को बनाए रखत ेह।�  हम भी:



 For Gratuity, as per the directions of IRDAI vide their

 letter No.FNA/GUI/COM/001/2018-19/156 dated 

 04.12.2018, the entire unabsorbed amount  

 `2479992 thousands as on 31.03.2018 (previously 

 absorbed ` 619998 thousands) has been accounted 

 for during this year. Had the entire amount been 

 absorbed in the year 2017-18, the losses for the year

 ended 31.03.2019 would be lower by `2479992 

 thousands.

2.  Note No. 26(b) to the statements, regarding  

 deferment of liabilities for Claims Incurred But not 

 Reported (IBNR) and Claims Incurred But not Enough 

 Reported (IBNER) of the company to the extent of 

 `23744700 thousand pursuant to the exemption 

 granted by the Insurance Regulatory and  

 Development Authority of India vide its Letter No. 

 IRDA/FNA/GOG/LR/001/2017-18/66 dated  

 2 5 . 7 . 2 0 1 7  a n d  L e t t e r  N o .  

 IRDA/FNA/GOG/LR/001/2017-18/67 dated  

 27.7.2017.

As per the directions of IRDAI vide their letter 

No.FNA/GUI/COM/001/2018-19/156 dated 04.12.2018, 

the entire unabsorbed amount of ̀ 7914900  thousands as 

on 31.03.2018 (previously absorbed `15829800 

thousands) has been accounted for during the year. Had 

the entire amount been absorbed in the year 2016-17, the 

losses for the period ending 31.03.2019 would be lower by 

`7914900 thousands.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 

with Governance for the Standalone Financial 

Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 

standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 

view of the financial position, financial performance and 

cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 

Insurance Act, 1938, the Insurance Regulatory and 

Development Authority of India (Preparation of Financial 

Statements and Auditors’ Report of Insurance Companies) 

Regulation 2002, (“the Regulation”) the accounting 

principles generally accepted in India, including the 

accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the 

Companies Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable and in the 

manner so required. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate accounting 

policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 

preparation and presentation of the financial statements 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of 

Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of 

Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to 

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 

so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 

overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 

to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
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ं ं• �व�ीय �ववरणो क� साम�ी के गलत �ववरण के जो�खमो को पहचान� और 

ं ं उनका आकलन कर�, चाह ेवे धोखाधड़ी या �िुट के कारण हो, उन जो�खमो के 

ं �लए ऑिडट �ि�याओ को िडजाइन और �न�ािदत कर�, और ऑिडट सा� 

 �ा� कर� जो हमारी राय के �लए आधार �दान करने के �लए पया��  और 

 उ�चत हो। धोखाधड़ी के प�रणाम��प होने वाली साम�ी के गलत �ववरण 

ं का पता नही लगाने का जो�खम �िुट के प�रणाम��प होने वाले एक से 

ं अ�धक ह,ै �ोिक धोखाधड़ी म� �मलीभगत, जालसाजी, जानबझूकर चूक, 

 गलत बयानी, या आतं�रक �नयं�ण क� ओवरराइड शा�मल हो सकती ह।ै

ं• लेखापरी�ा �ि�याओ को िडजाइन करने के �लए लेखापरी�ा के �लए 

ं �ासं�गक आतं�रक �नयं�ण क� समझ �ा� करना जो प�र���तयो म� 

 उपय�ु हो। कंपनी अ�ध�नयम, 2013 क� धारा 143 (3) (i) के तहत, 

 हम इस बात पर अपनी राय �� करने के �लए भी �ज�देार ह � िक �ा 

 कंपनी के पास पया��  आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण �णाली ह ैऔर इस तरह के 

ं �नयं�णो का संचालन �भावशीलता ह।ै

ं• इ�मेाल क� गई लेखाकंन नी�तयो क� उपय�ुता और �बंधन �ारा िकए गए 

ं ं लेखाकंन अनुमानो और संबं�धत �कटनो क� तक� शीलता का मू�ाकंन कर�।

ं• लेखाकंन क� �चता के आधार के �बंधन के उपयोग क� उपय�ुता पर 

 �न�ष� �नकाला गया ह,ै  और �ा� ऑिडट सा� के आधार पर, �ा साम�ी 

ं ं ं अ�न��तता घटनाओ या प�र���तयो से संबं�धत ह ैया नही जारी रहने क� 

ं �चता के कारण कंपनी क� �मता पर मह�पूण � संदेह हो सकता ह।ै  यिद हम 

 यह �न�ष� �नकालत ेह � िक कोई साम�ी अ�न��तता मौजदू ह,ै  तो हम� अपने 

ं ं ं लेखा परी�को क� �रपोट� म� �व�ीय �ववरणो म� संबं�धत खुलासो पर �ान 

 आक�षत करना होगा या यिद इस तरह के खुलासे अपया��  ह,� तो हमारी राय 

ं को संशो�धत करने के �लए। हमारे �न�ष� हमारे लेखा परी�को क� �रपोट� 

 क� तारीख तक �ा� ऑिडट सा� पर आधा�रत ह।�  हालािंक, भ�व� म� होने 

ंं ं वाली घटनाओ या ���तयो से कंपनी को �चता का �वषय बना रह सकता ह।ै

ं• खुलासे सिहत �व�ीय व��ो क� सम� ���ुत, संरचना और साम�ी का 

ं मू�ाकंन कर�, और �ा �व�ीय �ववरण अतं�निहत लेनदेन और घटनाओ 

 को इस तरह से दशात�  ेह � जो �न�� ���ुत �ा� करत ेह।�

ं हम अ� मामलो म�, ऑिडट क� योजनाब� गुंजाइश और समय और  

 मह�पूण � ऑिडट �न�ष� के साथ, आतं�रक �नयं�ण म� िकसी भी मह�पूण �

ं क�मयो को शा�मल करत ेह,�  �जसे हम अपने ऑिडट के दौरान पहचानत ेह।�

ं हम उन लोगो को भी एक बयान के साथ शासन �दान करत ेह � �ज�� हमने 

ं �तं�ता के संबंध म� �ासं�गक नै�तक आव�कताओ के साथ अनुपालन 

ं ं िकया ह,ै  और उन सभी �र�ो और अ� मामलो के साथ संवाद करने के �लए 

 �ज�� हमारी �तं�ता पर सहन करने के �लए उ�चत माना जा सकता ह,ै और 

 जहा ंलागू हो, संबं�धत सुर�ा उपाय।

अ� काननूी और �नयामक आव�कताओ ंपर �रपोट�

ं1. बीमा अ�ध�नयम, 1 9 3 8  क� आव�कताओ के अनुसार ��डअलोन 

 �व�ीय �ववरण तयैार िकए गए ह � और आव�क तरीके से कंपनी अ�ध�नयम 

 (लेखा) 2014 के �नयम क� धारा 7 के साथ पिठत कंपनी अ�ध�नयम  

 क� धारा 133 के साथ पढ़ा गया �व�नयमन लागू है

2. �व�नयमन �ारा आव�क के �प म�, हम �रपोट� करत ेह � िक:

 a) हमने सभी जानकारी और ��ीकरण �ा� िकए ह,�  जो हमारे �ान और 

ं �व�ास के �लए उनके ऑिडट के उ�े�ो के �लए आव�क थ े और उ�� 

 संतोषजनक पाया गया;

 ख) आधार के �प म� अहत� ा�ा� पैरा अनु�ेद के �लए व�णत मामले के 

ं संभा�वत �भावो को छोड़कर, हमारी राय म�, कंपनी �ारा कानून �ारा 

ं ं अपे��त खात ेक� उ�चत पु�को को अभी तक रखा गया ह,ै �ोिक यह उन 

ं पु�को क� हमारी परी�ा से �कट होता ह;ै

ं ं ग) हमारी राय म�, अ� कायाल� यो के खातो पर उ�चत �रटन� और �रपोट� जो 

2018 - 2019
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not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 

exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 

could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material  

 misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

 due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

 procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

 audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

 provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of  

 not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

 fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as  

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional  

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of  internal 

control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 

 to the audit in order to design audit procedures that  

are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

 143(3)(I) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

 responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

 the company has adequate internal financial controls 

 system in place and the operating effectiveness of 

 such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 

 used and the reasonableness of accounting  

 estimates and related disclosures made by  

 management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 

use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 

material uncertainty exists related to events or 

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 

required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to 

the related disclosures in the financial statements or, 

if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ 

report. However, future events or conditions may 

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going  

concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 

 content of the financial statements, including the 

 disclosures, and whether the financial statements 

 represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

 manner that achieves fair presentation.

 We communicate with those charged with  

 governance regarding, among other matters, the 

 planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 

 audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 

 in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 We also provide those charged with governance with 

 a statement that we have complied with relevant 

 ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

 communicate with them all relationships and other 

 matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 

 our independence, and where applicable, related 

 safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.  The standalone financial statements have been 

 drawn up in accordance with the requirements of the 

 Insurance Act, 1938 and the Regulation read with 

 Section 133 of the Companies Act read with Rule 7 of  

 the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent 

 applicable and in the manner so required.

2.  As required by the Regulation, we report that:

 a) We have obtained all the information and  

 explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and 

 belief were necessary for the purposes of their audit 

 and found them satisfactory;

 b) Except for the possible effects of the matter 

 described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion  
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ं हमारे �ारा दौरा नही िकए गए थ,े �ा� �ए ह � और इ�� लेखापरी�ा के उ�े� 

 के �लए पया��  माना गया था;

 घ) इस �रपोट� के साथ दी गई बलै�स शीट, राज� खात,े लाभ और हा�न 

ं ं खाता और कैश �ो �ववरण,खात ेक� पु�को के साथ और अ� कायाल� यो 

ं से �ा� �रटन� के अनु�प ह � ’जो हमारे �ारा नही देखे गए थ;े

ं ङ) कंपनी ने �व�नयमन के �ावधानो के अनुसार अपने �नवेश को मह� िदया 

 ह;ै

ं च) मूल राय के �लए आधार म� व�णत मामले के संभा�वत �भावो को 

 छोड़कर, हमारी राय म�, �व�ीय �ववरण और कंपनी क� लेखा नी�तया ं

ं ं �व�नयमन �ारा �नधा�� रत लेखाकंन �स�ातंो के तहत और लेखाकंन मानको के 

 तहत �न�द� ह।�  कंपनी अ�ध�नयम क� धारा 133, कंपनी (लेखा) �नयम, 

 2014 के �नयम के साथ लागू क� गई सीमा तक और इसके �लए आव�क 

 तरीके से;

ं छ) हमने �बंधन �रपोट� क� समी�ा क� ह ैऔर ��डअलोन �व�ीय व��ो 

ं के साथ कोई �� गलती या साम�ी असंग�त नही ह;ै

ं ज) कंपनी ने �ा�धकरण �ारा �नधा�� रत पंजीकरण के �नयमो और शत� का 

 अनुपालन िकया ह;ै

ं ज) हमने नकद और बक�  शेष रा�श, �नवेश और ��तभू�तयो को ऋण से 

ं ं संबं�धत वा��वक �नरी�ण या �माणप�ो और अ� द�ावेजी सबतूो के   

 उ�ादन से स�ा�पत िकया ह,ै  �जसम� िडबच� र के अलावा ` 4947 �पये क� 

 रा�श ह ैजो मोचन के �लए भेजा गया ह;ै

 झ) कंपनी �ारा हम� दी गई हमारी जानकारी और ��ीकरण के �लए, कंपनी 

ं िकसी भी कंपनी का ट�� ी नही ह ै और

 ञ) हमारी दी गई जानकारी और ��ीकरण के �लए हम� कंपनी �ारा बनाई 

ं गई और ��त�न�ध� क� गई संप�� का कोई िह�ा नही िदया गया

ं पॉ�लसीधारको के फंड सीध ेया अ��� �प से बीमा अ�ध�नयम, 1938 के 

ं ं �ावधानो के उ�ंघन म� लागू होत ेह � - जो पॉ�लसीधारको के फंड के आवेदन 

 और �नवेश से संबं�धत ह।�

3. कंपनी अ�ध�नयम, 2013 क� धारा 143 (3) के अनुसार, हम �रपोट� 

 करत ेह � िक:

ं ं a) हमने उन सभी सूचनाओ और ��ीकरणो क� तलाश क� और �ा� क�, 

ं जो हमारे ऑिडट के उ�े�ो के �लए हमारे �ान और �व�ास के �लए सव��म 

 थ।े

ं ख) यो� राय अनु�ेद के �लए आधार म� व�णत मामले के संभा�वत �भावो 

 को छोड़कर, हमारी राय म�, कंपनी �ारा कानून �ारा अपे��त खात ेक� उ�चत 

ं ं ं पु�को को अभी तक रखा गया ह,ै  �ोिक यह उन पु�को क� हमारी परी�ा 

ं से �कट होता ह ैऔर उ�चत ह ैहमारे ऑिडट के उ�े�ो के �लए पया��  �रटन�, 

ं ं हमारे �ारा देखी गई शाखाओ से �ा� नही �आ ह।ै

ं ग) शाखा लेखा परी�को �ारा कंपनी अ�ध�नयम, 2013 क� धारा 143 

ं ं (8) के तहत लेखा परी��त कंपनी के शाखा कायाल� यो के खातो क� �रपोट�  

 हम� भेज दी गई ह ै और इस �रपोट� को तयैार करने म� हमारे साथ ठीक से 

 �वहार िकया गया ह।ै

 ) इस �रपोट� �ारा दी गई बलै�स शीट, रेवे� ू खाता ,�ॉिफट एंड लॉस घ

ं अकाउंट और कैश �ो �ेटम�ट, खात ेक� पु�को के साथ ह।�

ं ) यो� राय पैरा के �लए ब�ेसस म� व�णत मामले के संभा�वत �भावो को ङ

 छोड़कर, हमारी राय म�, उपरो� ��डअलोन �व�ीय �ववरण अ�ध�नयम क� 

ं धारा  के तहत �न�द� लेखाकंन मानको का अनुपालन करत े ह,�  133

 अ�ध�नयम क� धारा 133 के तहत, कंपनी ( ) �नयम, 2014 के �नयम लेखा

 7 के साथ पढ़ा जाता ह।ै

 च) अ�धसूचना सं : जी.एस.आर. 463 (ई) िदनाकं



 Paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account 

 as required by law have been kept by the Company so  

far as it appears from our examination of those  books;

c)  In our opinion, proper returns and report on the 

 accounts of other offices which were not visited by 

 us, have been received and these were considered 

 adequate for the purpose of audit;

d)  The Balance Sheet, Revenue Accounts, Profit and 

 Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 

 this report are in agreement with the books of 

 account and with the returns received from other 

 offices’ which were not visited by us;

e)  The Company has valued its Investments in  

 accordance with provisions of the Regulation;

f)  Except for the possible effects of the matter  

 described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion  

 Paragraph, in our opinion, the financial statements 

 and the Accounting Policies of the Company comply 

 with the accounting principles as prescribed by the 

 Regulation and with the Accounting Standards 

 specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 

 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

 2014 to the extent applicable and in the manner so  

required;

g)  We have reviewed the Management Report and there 

 is no apparent mistake or material inconsistency with 

 the standalone financial statements;

h)  The company has complied with the terms and 

 conditions of the registration stipulated by the 

 authority;

I) We have verified the cash and bank balances, 

 investments and securities relating to loans  

 by actual inspection or by production of certificates 

 and other documentary evidences except for the 

 debentures amounting to `4947 thousands sent 

 for redemption;

j)  To the best of our information and explanations given 

 to us and representations made by the Company, the 

 Company is not the trustee of any trust and

k)  To the best of our information and explanations given 

 to us and representation made by the company, no 

 part of the assets of the Policyholders’ Funds has 

 been directly or indirectly applied in contravention of 

 the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 - relating 

 to the application and investments of the  

 Policyholders’ Fund.

3.  As required by Section 143 (3) of the Companies Act, 

 2013, we report that:

 a) We have sought and obtained all the information 

 and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

 and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

 audit.

 b) Except for the possible effects of the matter 

 described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion  

 Paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account 

 as required by law have been kept by the Company so  

 far as it appears from our examination of those books 

 and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our 

 audit have been received from the branches not 

 visited by us.

 c) The Reports on the accounts of the branch offices 

 of the company audited under section 143(8) of the 

 Companies Act, 2013 by the branch auditors have 

 been sent to us and have been properly dealt with by  

 us in preparing this report.

 d) The Balance Sheet, Revenue Accounts, Profit and 

 Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with 

 by this Report are in agreement with the books of 

 account.

 e) Except for the possible effects of the matter 

 described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion  

 Paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 

 financial statements comply with the Accounting 

 Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 

 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

 2014.

 f) As per the Notification No. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 
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 कंपनी अ�ध�नयम, 2013 क� धारा 164 क� उपधारा 05.06.2015, 

ं ं (2) सरकारी  कंप�नयो पर लागू नही ह।ै

ं ं छ) आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण �णा�लयो क� पया�� ता और ऐसे �नयं�णो के 

 संचालन �भावशीलता के संबंध म�, हम अपनी �रपोट� अनुबंध- I म� देत ेह�

ं ज) अ� मामलो के संबंध म� ऑिडटस� �रपोट� म� कंपनी (ऑिडट और 

 ऑिडटस�) �नयम, 2014 के �नयम 11 के अनुसार, हमारी राय म� और 

ं हमारी जानकारी के अनुसार और संबं�धत �ववरणो के अनुसार िदया जाना 

 चािहए। 

ं ं (i) कंपनी ने अपने �व�ीय व��ो म� �व�ीय ���त पर लं�बत मुकदमो के 

ं �भाव का �कटन िकया ह ै - �व�ीय �ववरणो के �लए नोट नंबर 2 का संदभ�     

ल�;

ं ं (ii) कंपनी के पास �ु�� अनुबंधो सिहत कोई दीघ�का�लक अनुबंध नही 

ं था, �जसके �लए कोई भी साम�ी नुकसानदेह नही थी।

ं (iii) कंपनी �ारा इ��ेर एजकेुशन एंड �ोटे�न फंड को कोई रा�श नही 

 दी जानी थी।

4. कंपनी अ�ध�नयम, 2013 क� धारा 143 (5) �ारा आव�क के �प म�, 

ं भारत के �नयं�क और महालेखा परी�क �ारा जारी िकए गए �नद�शो और 

ं उप-�नद�शो के संबंध म� हमारी िट��णया ंअनुबंध- II म� दी गई ह।�

कृते ए वी देवन एंड कंपनी
सनदी लेखाकार
एफ आर एन: 000726एस

कृते पी बी �वजयराघवन एंड कंपनी
सनदी लेखाकार
एफ आर एन: 004721एस 

कृते ए जॉन मो�रस ए� कंपनी
सनदी लेखाकार
एफ आर एन: 007220एस

सीए॰ आर रघुरामन
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 201760

सीए. पी बी �ी�नवास
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 203774

सीए. जी. कमारु
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 023082

�ान : चे� नै
�दनाकं: 31.05.2019
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 05.06.2015, sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the 

 Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to  

 Government Companies.

 g) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial 

 control systems and the operating effectiveness of 

 such controls, we give our Report in Annexure – I 

 h) With respect to the other matters to be included in  

 the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of 

 the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 

 our opinion and to the best of our information and 

 according to the explanations given to us:

 i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 

 litigations on its financial position in its financial 

 statements – Refer Note No 2 to the financial 

 statements;

 ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts 

 including derivative contracts for which there were 

 any material foreseeable losses.

 iii. There were no amounts which were required to be 

 transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 

 Fund by the Company.

4.  As required by section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 

 2013, our comments with regard to the directions 

 and sub-directions issued by the Comptroller and 

 Auditor General of India are given in Annexure – II.

 

For A V Deven & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000726S

For P. B. Vijayaraghavan & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 004721S

CA. R. Raghuraman

Partner

M. No. 201760 

CA. P. B. Srinivasan

Partner

M. No. 203774

Place : Chennai

Date  : 31.05.2019

For A. John Moris & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 007220S

CA. G. Kumar

Partner 

M. No. 023082
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हमने यनुाइटेड इ��या इं�ोर�स क�नी �ल�मटेड (“क�नी”) 31 माच� 
ं2019 के �व�ीय प�रणामो क� �रपोट� पर, क�नी के उस �त�थ म� समा� वष� 

ंके �लए �त� �व�ीय �ववरणो क� हमारी लेखा परी�ा के साथ-साथ,  

ंआ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो क� भी लेखा-परी�ा क� ह।ै

आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो ंहेतु �बंधन का दा�य�

ं ंक�नी का �बंधन क�नी �ारा �ा�पत �व�ीय �रप�िटग के मानको पर 
ं�व�ीय �नयं�ण पर आधा�रत  आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो को �ा�पत करने 

और बनाये रखने के �लए उ�रदायी ह.ै यह �नयं�ण इं�ी�टू आफ चाट�ड� 
ंंएकाउ�ॆटस्  आफ इ��या �ारा �व�ीय �रपोिटग के मामले म� जारी आतं�रक 

ं�व�ीय �नयं�णो क� लेखा -परी�ा पर माग�दश�क नोट म� उ���खत आतं�रक 
ं�नयं�ण के आव�क घटको पर �वचार करके िकये जात े ह।�  इन 

ं ंउ�रदा�य�ो म� उन सभी उपय�ु आतं�रक �नयं�णो क� �परेखा, 
ि�या�यन और रख -रखाव शा�मल ह,ै जो क�नी अ�ध�नयम 2013 के 
अ�ग�त यथा-अपे��त थ ेऔर क�नी के सु�व��त और पया��  संचालन 

ंको सु�न��त करने, क�नी क� पा�ल�सयो के अनुपालन को सु�न��त करने, 
ं ंइसक� प�रस���यो क� संर�ा, धोखाधडी और �िुटयो क� रोकथाम और 

ंउनका पता लगाने, लेखा-अ�भलेखो क� सटीकता तथा पूणत� ा एवं �व�सनीय 
�व�ीय जानकारी को समय से तयैार करने के �लए �भावी ढंग से लागू हो रह े
थ।े  

लेखा परी�को ंका दा�य�

हमारी दा�य� हमारी लेखा परी�ा पर आधा�रत �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर क�नी 
ंके आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो पर अपना अ�भमत देना ह।ै  हमने अपनी 

लेखा-परी�ा आई सी ए आई �ारा जारी तथा क�नी अ�ध�नयम 2013 के 
अनु�ेद 143 (10) के अ�ग�त समत: �विहत िकये जाने वाले �व�ीय 

ं�रपो�टग पर आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो क� लेखा-परी�ा पर जारी माग�दश�क 
ंनोट तथा लेखा- परी�ा के मानको के अनुसार स�ािदत क� ह,ै जो िक आई 

ंसी ए आई �ारा जारी आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�को , जो लेखा परी�ा पर लागू 
ंहोत ेह,�  क� आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो क� सीमा तक रही ह।ै  ये मानक तथा 

ंमाग�दश�क नोट यह अपे�ा रखत ेह � िक हम नै�तक अपे�ाओ का अनुपालन 
कर� एवं लेखा परी�ा का �नयोजन व स�ादन इस �कार कर� िक पया��  �प से 
यह सु�न��त हो सके िक �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर पया��  �व�ीय �नयं�ण �ा�पत 

ं ंिकया जा रहा था तथा यह भी, िक इन �नयं�णो को सभी मह�पूण � मामलो म� 
�भावी ढंग से संचा�लत िकया जा रहा था।   

हमारी लेखा परी�ा �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण �णाली 
क� पया�� ता के बारे म� तथा उनके �भावी ढंग से संचालन के बारे म� लेखा-
परी�ा �माण �ा� करने वाली �न�ादक प��त पर आधा�रत ह।ै  हमारे �ारा 

ं�व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो क� लेखा परी�ा म� �व�ीय 
�रपो�टग, जो�खम आकलन म� एक मह�पूण � कमी पायी गयी ह,ै इस पर 

ंआ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो क� समझ क� जानकारी �ा� करना, आक�लत 
जो�खम पर आ��रक �नयं�ण क� जॉच तथा उसक� �परेखा क� जॉच तथा 
उसके �भावी काया�� यन क� लेखा-परी�ा भी शा�मल ह।ै

ंचय�नत प��तयॉ लेखा परी�को के �नणय�  पर आधा�रत रही ह,�  �जनम� 
ं�व�ीय �ववरणो के मह�पूण � गलत �कटीकरण, चाह ेवे  धोखाधडी से या 

ं ं�िुटवश �ए हो, जो�खमो का आकलन भी शा�मल ह।ै

हम� �व�ास ह ै िक हमारे �ारा �ा� लेखा परी�ा �माण क�नी क� �व�ीय 
�रपो�टग पर उसक� आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण �णाली पर हमारे लेखा-
परी�ा अ�भमत के �लए पया��  व उपय�ु आधार ह।ै

�व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो ंका अ�भ�ाय

 िकसी क�नी का उसक� �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण एक 
ंऐसी �ि�या ह ै जो सामा�तयाः �ीकृत लेखाकंन -�स�ा�ो के अनुसार 

ं�व�ीय �रपो�टग क� �व�सनीयता तथा बाहरी �योजनो के �लए �व�ीय 
�ववरण तयैार करने के स�� म� पया��  आ�ासन �दान करती ह।ै  िकसी 
क�नी के उसके �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण म�  वे नी�तयॉ 

ंएवं �ि�याएं शा�मल  ह � जो (1) जो उन अ�भलेखो के रख-रखाव से संबं�धत 
ंह � �जनसे क�नी क� प�रस���यो का सं�वहार व �न�ारण पया�� तः 

�व�तृ �प से सही- सही व �न��तः पता चलता ह।ै  (2) पया��  आ�ासन 
देता ह ै िक सं�वहार उसी तरह अ�भले�खत �ए ह � �जस तरह से वे �व�ीय 

ं ं�ववरणो के सामा�तः �ीकृत लेखा-�स�ा�ो के अनुसार तयैार करने क� 
ंअनुम�त हते  ुआव�क थ ेतथा �नदेशको के �ा�धकार के अनुसार िकये जा रह े

ंह � और (3) क�नी क� प�रस���यो के अन�धकृत अ�ध�हण, �योग या 
�न�ारण क� रोकथाम या समया�ग�त पहचान के स�� म� पया��  

ंआ�ासन देता ह ै �जससे �व�ीय �ववरणो पर काफ� �भाव पडता।

�व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो ंक� नैस�गक सीमाएं
ं ं�व�ीय �रपो�टग के कारण आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो क� नैस�गक सीमाओ के

अनल�नक - I क�पनी अ�ध�नयम 2013 (“अ�ध�नयम”) के अन�छेद 143 क� उपधारा 3 के ख�डु ु

(1) के तहत आ�त�रक �व�तीय �नयं�ण� पर �वतं� लेखापर��क� क� �रपोट�



We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of United India Insurance Company 
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in 
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material 
respects.

Annexure – I to Independent Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 

(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or 
disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 
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ं ंकारण   दर�भसं�ध या अनु�चत �ब�न �नयं�णो का अ�त�मण, �िुटयो या ु
धोखाधडीज�नत मह�पूण � गलत �कटीकरण हो सकत ेह � और इनक� पहचान 

ंनही क� जा सकती ह,ै  साथ ही,  �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आ��रक �व�ीय 
ं�नयं�णो के भावी  अव�ध क� �व�ीय �रपो�टग के �लए मू�ाकंन का अनुमान 

ंलगाना इस जो�खम के अधीन ह ै िक बदली �ई प�र���तयो के कारण या 
ंनी�तयो के ि�या�यन म� आई �गरावट के कारण �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर 

आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण अपया��  हो सकत ेह।�
 
अह�क अ�भमत

ं ंहम� �ा� सूचनाओ एवं ��ीकरणो के अनुसार और हमारी लेखा -परी�ा के 
आधार पर 31 माच�  2019 तक �च��त मह�पूण � क�मयॉ �न�ानुसार ह � : -

ंक�नी के पास कोई उपय�ु आ��रक �नयं�ण नही था, �जससे वह अ� 
ंबीमा क��नयो से वषात�  म� पु�� करके  सु�न��त कर सके और समाधान कर 

सके।

�मह�पूण � कमजोरी� �व�ीय �रपोट� पर आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण के ��े म� 
ंएक कमी या क�मयो का समूह इस �कार से ह ै िक इस बात क� पया��  स�ावना 

ंह ै िक क�नी के वा�षक या अ��रम �व�ीय �ववरणो के मह�पूण � गलत 
�कटीकरण को आव�धक तौर पर न तो रोका जा सकेगा और न ही उनक� 
पहचान क� जा सकेगी।

ं ंहमारी राय म� �नयं�क मानद�ो के ल�ो क� �ा�� पर, ऊपर व�णत मह�पूण �
ं ंकमजो�रयो के �भाव/स�ा�वत �भावो के अलावा, क�नी ने �व�ीय 

ं�रपो�टग पर आ��रक �नयं�ण को सभी मह�पूण � मामलो म� �भावी ढंग से 
ंजारी रखा ह ै तथा इन आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�णो को  31 माच� 2019 तक 

ंक�नी �ारा �ा�पत �व�ीय �रपोट� पर आतं�रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण के मानद�ो 
के आधार पर �भावी ढंग से संचा�लत िकया जा रहा था। ये �नयं�ण आई सी ए 
आई �ारा लेखा -परी�ा पर �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आ��रक �व�ीय �नयं�ण हते  ु

ंजारी माग�दश�क नोट म� उ���खत आ��रक �नयं�ण के आव�क घटको के 
सापे� थ।े

ंहमने क�नी के �तं� �व�ीय �ववरणो पर 31 माच� 2019 क� हमारी लेखा-

ंपरी�ा म� मह�पूण � क�मयो क� पहचान करके उ�� ऊपर सू�चत िकया ह ै �जसम� 
ंलेखा -परी�ा क� �कृ�त, समय व सीमा तक इन �माणो को �य�ु िकया जा 

ंसका और मह�पूण � कमजोरी ने क�नी के �त� �व�ीय �ववरणो पर हमारी 
ंराय को �भा�वत िकया ह ै तथा हमने �त� �व�ीय �ववरणो पर अपना अहक�  

अ�भमत जारी िकया ह।ै    

अ� मामले

31 माच� 2019 तक उपगत िक� ुअसू�चत (आई बी एन आर) तथा उपगत 
ंिक� ुअपया��  सू�चत (आई बी एन ई आर) दावो के मामले म� क�नी �ारा, 

ं ं�व�नयमो के अनुसार �नय�ु ए�ुअरी �ारा देयताओ का सा�ंर�क�य 
मू�ाकंन �व�धवत �मा�णत िकया गया ह।ै  31 माच� 2019 को समा� वष� के 

ं�त� �व�ीय �ववरणो पर हमारी लेखा -परी�ा �रपोट� म� हमने इन 
ंसा�ंर�क�य मू�ाकंनो पर �व�ास िकया ह,ै  �जसका �रपोट� म� उ�ेख ह।ै  

तदनुसार, �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आतं�रक �व�ीय �रपोट� पर पूव�� ए�ु�रयल 
ंदेयताओ के मू�ाकंन व सटीकता पर आ��रक �नयं�ण क� पया�� ता और 

ं�चालना�क �भावका�रता   पर �रपो�टग को हमारी राय म� शा�मल नही िकया 
गया ह।ै   

अ�ध�नयम के अनु�ेद 143 (3) (i) के तहत �व�ीय �रपो�टग पर आ��रक 
�व�ीय �नयं�ण क� पया�� ता और �चालना�क �भावका�रता पर हमारी 

ं ंउपय��ु �रपोट� 29 ��ेीय कायाल� यो (�जसम� 431 म�ल कायाल� यो के 
ं ं�ववरण शा�मल ह � ) 7 एल सी बी �को�ो के मामले से संबं�धत कायाल� यो के 

ंलेखा परी�को क� स���त �रपोट� पर आधा�रत ह ै ।
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controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on our audit, the material weakness has been 
identified as at March 31, 2019 as below:

The Company did not have appropriate internal controls 
for obtention of year end confirmation of balances from 
other insurance companies and reconciliation.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial 
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the company's annual or interim 
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a 
timely basis.

In our opinion, except for  the effects/possible effects of 
the material weakness described above on the 
achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, 
based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weakness identified and 
reported above in determining the nature, timing, and 
extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 
2019 standalone financial statements of the Company, 
and the material weakness has affected our opinion on the 
standalone financial statements of the Company and we 
have issued a qualified opinion on the standalone financial 
statements.

Other Matters

The Actuarial valuation of liabilities in respect of Incurred 
But Not Reported (‘IBNR’) and Incurred But Not Enough 
Reported (‘IBNER’) as at March 31, 2019, has been duly 
certified by the Appointed Actuary of the Company as per 
the Regulations. The said actuarial valuations have been 
relied upon by us as mentioned in our Audit Report on the 
standalone financial statements for the year ended March 
31, 2019. Accordingly, our opinion on the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting does not 
include reporting on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the internal controls over the valuation 
and accuracy of the aforesaid actuarial liabilities.

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(I) of the Act 
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar 
as it relates to 29 Regional Offices (in which are 
incorporated the Returns of 431 Divisional Offices) 7 
Large Corporate and Broker Cells is based on the 
corresponding reports of the auditors of the respective 
offices.
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�दशा-�नद�श उ�र

�ा कंपनी के पास आईटी �णाली के मा�म से सभी लेखाकंन 

लेनदेन को संसा�धत करने के �लए �स�म ह?ै यिद हा,ँ तो �व�ीय 

ं�निहताथ,�  यिद कोई हो, के साथ-साथ खातो क� वफ़ादारी पर 
आईटी �णाली के बाहर लेखाकंन लेनदेन के �सं�रण के 

�निहताथ � बताए जा सकत ेह।�

01 हा।ँ सभी लेखाकंन लेनदेन सूचना �ौ�ो�गक� �णाली।. सूचना 
�ौ�ो�गक� �णाली। ज�ेन�सस �व�ासक (जीसी कोर) के मा�म से 

ं ं ंसंसा�धत होत ेह,�  सभी ऑपरेिटग कायाल� यो और पोट�लो म� उपयोग 

िकया जान ेवाला सॉ�वेयर ह।ै  जीसी सॉ�वेयर के अलावा पुनब�मा म� 
भी आईआरएस सॉ�वेयर का उपयोग िकया जाता ह।ै  �नवेश �वभाग 

म� एक ��डअलोन टेज� री �बंधन सॉ�वेयर का उपयोग िकया जाता ह।ै  

ंजीसी सॉ�वेयर के अलावा, पाचं ��ेो म� और �धान कायाल� य म� 
�व�ीय लेखाकंन सॉ�वेयर का उपयोग िकया जाता ह।ै

�ा िकसी मौजदूा ऋण का कोई पुनग�ठन या छूट देने / ऋण / 

ऋण / �ाज आिद �लखने के मामले ह,�  जो कंपनी को ऋण 

चुकाने म� असमथत� ा के कारण लोड को चुकाने के �लए िकया 
गया ह?ै यिद हा,ँ तो �व�ीय �भाव को बताया जा सकता ह।ै

ं ं�ा क� �ीय / रा� एज�� सयो से �व�श� योजनाओ के �लए 

�ा� धनरा�श / �ा� को इसक� अव�ध और शत� के अनुसार 
ंठीक से उपयोग िकया गया ह?ै �वचलन के मामलो क� सूची 

बनाएं।

हा।ँ �ा� धन / �ा� का सही िहसाब लगाया जाता ह।ै

02

03

ंनही

�तं� लेखा परी�को ंक� �रपोट� के �लए अनलु�क II

(यनूाइटेड इं�डया इं�ोर�स �ल�मटेड के सद�ो ंके �लए समसं�क तारीख क� �रपोट� के अ� काननूी और �नयामक 

आव�कताओ ंअनभुाग" के तहत अन�ेुद 4 का उ�ेख है)

कंप�नयो ंके अ�ध�नयम, 2013 के तहत धारा 143 (5) का �ावधान

�. सं.
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सद�ता सं�ा: 201760

सीए. पी बी �ी�नवास
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 203774

सीए. जी. कमारु
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 023082

�ान : चे� नै
�दनाकं: 31.05.2019



Annexure – II to Independent Auditors’ Report
(referred to Paragraph 4 under "Other Legal and Regulatory requirements section of Our

Report of even date for the members of United India Insurance Company Ltd.")

DIRECTIONS UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

S.No. Directions Reply

Whether the company has system in place to 
process all the accounting transactions 
through IT system? If yes, the implications of 
processing of accounting transactions 
outside IT system on the Integrity of the 
a c c o u n t s  a l o n g  w i t h  t h e  f i n a n c i a l 
implications, if any, may be stated. 

01
Yes. All Accounting transactions are 
processed through IT Systems.Genisys 
Configurator (GC CORE) is the software used 
across all operating offices and portals. In 
reinsurance in addition to GC software, IRS 
software is also used.  A Standalone treasury 
management software is used at Investment 
department. In five Regions and at Head office 
FACT software is used, in addition to GC 
Software.

Whether there is any restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off 
debts/loans/interest etc., made by a lender to 
the company due to the company's inability to 
repay the load? If yes, the financial impact 
may be stated. 

Whether funds received/receivable for 
specific schemes from Central/State agencies 
were properly accounted for/utilised as per its 
term and conditions? List the cases of 
deviations. 

Yes.  The Funds received/receivable are 
properly accounted for.
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For A V Deven & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000726S

For P. B. Vijayaraghavan & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 004721S

CA. R. Raghuraman

Partner

M. No. 201760 

CA. P. B. Srinivasan

Partner

M. No. 203774

Place : Chennai

Date  : 31.05.2019

For A. John Moris & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 007220S

CA. G. Kumar

Partner 

M. No. 023082
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�ववरण उ�र

भौ�तक / डीमैट �प म� उपल� सीजीएस / एसजीएस / बॉ� / िडबच� र 
ंआिद के संबंध म� �ा�म� क� उपा�धयो क� सं�ा और इनम� स ेिकतने 

ं ं ं ंमामलो म�, जो कंपनी के खातो क� िकताबो म� दशाई�  गई संबं�धत रा�शयो 
ंके अनु�प नही ह,�  उ�� स�ा�पत िकया जा सकता ह।ै और पाया गया 

�वसंग�त के बारे म� उ�चत �प स ेसू�चत िकया जा सकता ह।ै

01 �ववरण सामंज� करना असंब� पुनग�ठन

�ा �नवेश के संबंध म� �ॉप लॉस सीमाएं �नधा�� रत क� गई ह।�  यिद हा,ँ 
ं ंतो सीमा का पालन िकया गया था या नही। यिद नही, तो �ववरण िदया जा 

सकता ह।ै

ं ंहा।ँ �ॉप लॉस पॉ�लसी को पीएसय ूइ��टी शेयरो के अलावा इ��टी शेयरो के �लए 
प�रभा�षत िकया गया ह ै और 01.04.2016 के बाद अ�ध�हण िकया गया ह।ै वष� 

ं2018-19 के दौरान इ��टी शेयरो के उपरो� वग� के �लए �ॉप लॉस सीमा को िटग� र 
ंनही िकया गया ह।ै

ं ं�ा कंपनी न ेअ� पीएसय ूबीमाकताओ�  के साथ अपन े �व�ीय व��ो म� 
प�रल��त अतं र-कंपनी शेष के �लए सामंज� अ�ास िकया ह ै और �ा उनके 

ंकारण शेष के �लए अ� पीएसय ूबीमाकताओ�  स ेपु�� �ा� �ई ह�ै

ंकंपनी के पास जोनल / ��ेीय �र पर पीएसय ूइं�ोरस� के साथ समय-समय पर बठैको के 

मा�म स ेसह बीमा शेष रा�श को समेटन ेक� एक �ि�या ह,ै  जहा ंशेष सहम�त और �नपटान 

ंहोत े ह।�  हालािँक कंपनी न ेशेष रा�श क� िकसी भी वष� क� समा�� क� पु�� नही क� ह.ै

�ा �धानमं�ी और �धानमं�ी बीमा योजना स े संबं�धत समझौत े / 

ंयोजना के अनुसार �ी�मयम और सू�चत दावो क� �व�ध
हा,ं कंपनी योजना के समझौत ेक� शत� के अनुसार �ी�मयम का दावा करती है

ं�ा रा�ीय और �ी�मयम स ेसंबं�धत दावो क� �व�ध, समझौत े/ योजना �
संबं�धत शत� के अनुसार ह?ै

हा,ं कंपनी योजना के समझौत ेक� शत� के अनुसार �ी�मयम का दावा करती है

�ा �धानमं�ी जन आरो� योजना स ेसंबं�धत अनुबंध / योजना के 

ं�ी�मयम और सू�चत दावो क� �व�ध ह?ै
हा,ं कंपनी योजना के समझौत ेक� शत� के अनुसार �ी�मयम का दावा करती है

चाह ेकंपनी न े IRDAI सक�ु लर (No.IRDA / F & A / CIR / 

MISC / 052/03/2018 िदनाकं 27 माच� 2018) के साथ 

अनुपालन िकया हो, जसेै िक �धान मं�ी मै�ी फासल बीमा योजना, 
�धानमं�ी मंथरी सुर�ा बीमा योजना आिद जीएसटी के दायरे स ेऔर 
बी�मत ��� / सरकार को �ी�मयम म� कमी का लाभ?

ंहा,ं कंपनी न े�न�द� बीमा योजनाओ जसेै िक �धानम�ी फसाल बीमा योजना, 
ं�धानम�ी सुर�ा बीमा योजना इ�ािद पर जीएसटी म� छूट के लाभो को पा�रत 

िकया ह।ै. 

बकाया जनेरल �स�म स ेलीगल �ॉल अकाउंट बलै�स के माइ�ेशन 

�स�म को कोर तक प�ंचाने और बकाया �ॉल शेष के द�पयोग को ु
ंरोकने के �लए मौजदूा �नयं�णो पर िट�णी क� जा सकती ह।ै आय-ुवार 

बकाया �रपोट� तयैार क� जा सकती ह।ै

ज�ेन�सस �ॉल बलै�स का माइ�ेशन िदसंबर 2017  म� पूरा हो चुका ह ै और वतम� ान 

ंम� कोई बकाया नही ह।ै

�डब�चर 23 2
(बकु वै� ू2 �।)
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यनुाइटेड इं�डया इं�रू�स कं.�ल. �.का।�े.का।मं.का.के सा�ंव�धक अकें�को ं
को उपकंपनी अ�ध�नयम, 2013 क� धारा 143 (5) के तहत खातो ं(2018-19)

�. सं.

कृते ए वी देवन एंड कंपनी
सनदी लेखाकार
एफ आर एन: 000726एस

कृते पी बी �वजयराघवन एंड कंपनी
सनदी लेखाकार
एफ आर एन: 004721एस 

कृते ए जॉन मो�रस ए� कंपनी
सनदी लेखाकार
एफ आर एन: 007220एस

सीए॰ आर रघुरामन
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 201760

सीए. पी बी �ी�नवास
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 203774

सीए. जी. कमारु
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 023082

�ान : चे� नै
�दनाकं: 31.05.2019
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Sub-directions to Statutory Auditors of UIIC (HO/RO/DO)
for audit of accounts (2018-19) under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

For A V Deven & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000726S

For P. B. Vijayaraghavan & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 004721S

CA. R. Raghuraman

Partner

M. No. 201760 

CA. P. B. Srinivasan

Partner

M. No. 203774

Place : Chennai

Date  : 31.05.2019

For A. John Moris & Co

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 007220S

CA. G. Kumar

Partner 

M. No. 023082
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S.No. Particular Reply

Number of titles of ownership in respect of CGS/ 
S G S / B o n d s / D e b e n t u r e s  e t c .  a v a i l a b l e  i n 
physical/demat form and out of these, number of cases 
which are not in agreement with the respective 
amounts shown in the Company’s books of accounts 
may be verified and discrepancy found may be suitably 
reported.

01
Particulars Reconciled Un-reconciled Restructuring

Whether stop loss limits have been prescribed in 
respect of the investments. If yes, whether or not the 
limit was adhered to. If no, details may be given.

Yes. Stop loss policy is defined for Equity shares  other than PSU 
equity shares  and acquired after 01.04.2016. Stop loss limit is 
not triggered for the above class of equity shares during the year 
2018-19.

Whether Company has carried out reconciliation 
exercise for inter-company balances reflected in their 
financial statements with other PSU insurers and 
whether confirmation has been obtained from other 
PSU insurers for balances due from them?

The company has a process of reconciling co insurance 
balances through periodical meetings with PSU Insurers at 
Zonal/Regional level where balances are agreed and settled. 
However the company has not obtained any year end 
confirmation of balances.

Whether the method of accountal of premium and 
repor ted  c la ims  a re  as  per  cond i t ions  o f 
agreement/scheme relating to Pradhan Mantri Fasal 
Bima Yojana

Yes, The company accounts the premium and claims as per the 
conditions of the agreement of the scheme

Whether the method of accountal of premium and 
repor ted  c la ims  a re  as  per  cond i t ions  o f 
agreement/scheme relating to Rashtriya Swasthya 
Bima Yojana

Yes, The company accounts the premium and claims as per the 
conditions of the agreement of the scheme

Whether the method of accountal of premium and 
repor ted  c l a ims  a re  as  pe r  cond i t i ons  o f 
agreement/scheme relating to Prime Minister Jan 
Aarogya Yojana

Yes, The company accounts the premium and claims as per the 
conditions of the agreement of the scheme

Whether the Company has complied with IRDAI 
circular (No.IRDA/F&A/CIR/MISC/052/03/2018 dated 
27 March 2018) regarding exemption of re-insurance 
schemes of specified insurance schemes such as 
Pradhan Manthri Fasal Bima Yojana, Pradhan 
Suraksha Bima Yojana etc. from the purview of GST 
and passed on to the insured/Government the benefit 
of reduction in premium?

Yes, The company has passed on the benefits of exemption on 
GST on  re-insurance schemes of specified insurance schemes 
such as Pradhan Manthri Fasal Bima Yojana, Pradhan Suraksha 
Bima Yojana etc. 

Migration of outstanding scroll account balances from 
legacy GENISYS system to CORE and controls existing 
to prevent misuse of outstanding scroll balances may 
be commented upon. Age-wise outstanding report 
may be prepared.

Migration of Genisys scroll balances has been completed in 
December 2017 and presently there are no balances 
outstanding.

Debentures 23 2
(Book value Rs 2)
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DIRECTOR GENERAL OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT AND 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, AUDIT BOARD, CHENNAI

(R. AMBALAVANAN) 

The preparation of financial statements of United India 

Insurance Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 

2019 in accordance with the financial reporting 

framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 

(Act) is the responsibility of the management of the 

company. The statutory auditors appointed by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 

139 (5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion 

on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act 

based on independent audit in accordance with the 

standards on auditing prescribed under section 143 (10) 

of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide 

their Audit Report dated 31 May 2019.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of 

India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the 

financial statements of United India Insurance Company 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 under section 

143 (6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been 

carried out independently without access to the working 

papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily 

to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company 

personnel and a selective examination of some of the 

accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to 

highlight the following significant matters under section 

143 (6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention 

and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better 

understanding of the financial statements and the related 

audit report.

(A) Comments on Financial Position

Schedule 14 - Provision as on 31 March 2019 -   

` 7,621.79 Crore

Provisions for Loans, Investments and Other Assets - 

` 245.65 Crore

The Company has invested  275.24 crore in Non-`

Convertible Debentures of Infrastructure Leasing & 

Financial Services (IL & FS) and its subsidiary companies. 

There were principal and interest defaults on investment 

during the year and the Company has created a provisions 

of   27.52 crore (10 per cent) towards the book value of `

the Investment.

As per the proceedings before National Company Law 

Tribunal, IL & FS has been placed under the 'Red' category 

by new Board of Directors appointed by the Union 

government to manage the affairs of the IL & FS group of 

companies, which means that such entities cannot meet 

their payment obligations towards even senior secured 

financial creditors. Considering these developments, the 

Company should have made full provision against 

diminution in value of the above investment.

This has resulted in understatement of Provisions and 

loss for the year by  247.72 crore.`

Place: Chennai 

Date: 30 July 2019

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UNITED INDIA INSURANCE COMPANY 

LIMITED, CHENNAI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

For and on behalf of the 

C         omptroller & Auditor General of India
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ANAGHA DESHPANDE
COMPANY SECRETARY

S GOPAKUMAR
DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIN 07542356

GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN   
CHAIRMAN CUM 

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN 08268834

 PARIJAT DUTTA
 DIRECTOR

 DIN 07039727

SINDHU PILLAI
DIRECTOR

DIN 07399558

For A V Deven & Co
ICAI FRN :000726S

Chartered Accountants

For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co
ICAI FRN :004721S

Chartered Accountants

For A John Moris & Co   
ICAI FRN :007220S   

Chartered Accountants   

CA R Raghuraman
Partner

Membership No.201760

CA P B Srinivasan
Partner

Membership No.203774

CA G Kumar
Partner

Membership No.023082

Place : Chennai
Date : 31.05.2019
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As required by Section 40C(2) of insurance Act 1938, we hereby certify that to the best of our knowledge and belief , all 
expenses wherever incurred whether directly or indirectly in respect of Fire Insurance Business have been fully debited in 
the Fire Insurance Revenue account as expenses.

ANAGHA DESHPANDE
COMPANY SECRETARY

S GOPAKUMAR
DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIN 07542356

GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN   
CHAIRMAN CUM 

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN 08268834

 PARIJAT DUTTA
 DIRECTOR

 DIN 07039727

SINDHU PILLAI
DIRECTOR

DIN 07399558

For A V Deven & Co
ICAI FRN :000726S

Chartered Accountants

For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co
ICAI FRN :004721S

Chartered Accountants

For A John Moris & Co   
ICAI FRN :007220S   

Chartered Accountants   

CA R Raghuraman
Partner

Membership No.201760

CA P B Srinivasan
Partner

Membership No.203774

CA G Kumar
Partner

Membership No.023082

Place : Chennai
Date : 31.05.2019
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As required by Section 40C(2) of insurance Act 1938, we hereby certify that to the best of our knowledge and belief , all 
expenses wherever incurred whether directly or indirectly in respect of Fire Insurance Business have been fully debited in 
the Fire Insurance Revenue account as expenses.
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ANAGHA DESHPANDE
COMPANY SECRETARY

S GOPAKUMAR
DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIN 07542356

GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN   
CHAIRMAN CUM 

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN 08268834

 PARIJAT DUTTA
 DIRECTOR

 DIN 07039727

SINDHU PILLAI
DIRECTOR

DIN 07399558

For A V Deven & Co
ICAI FRN :000726S

Chartered Accountants

For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co
ICAI FRN :004721S

Chartered Accountants

For A John Moris & Co   
ICAI FRN :007220S   

Chartered Accountants   

CA R Raghuraman
Partner

Membership No.201760

CA P B Srinivasan
Partner

Membership No.203774

CA G Kumar
Partner

Membership No.023082

Place : Chennai
Date : 31.05.2019
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ANAGHA DESHPANDE
COMPANY SECRETARY

S GOPAKUMAR
DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIN 07542356

GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN   
CHAIRMAN CUM 

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN 08268834

 PARIJAT DUTTA
 DIRECTOR

 DIN 07039727

SINDHU PILLAI
DIRECTOR

DIN 07399558

For A V Deven & Co
ICAI FRN :000726S

Chartered Accountants

For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co
ICAI FRN :004721S

Chartered Accountants

For A John Moris & Co   
ICAI FRN :007220S   

Chartered Accountants   

CA R Raghuraman
Partner

Membership No.201760

CA P B Srinivasan
Partner

Membership No.203774

CA G Kumar
Partner

Membership No.023082

Place : Chennai
Date : 31.05.2019
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As required by Section 40C(2) of insurance Act 1938, we hereby certify that to the best of our knowledge and belief , all 
expenses wherever incurred whether directly or indirectly in respect of Fire Insurance Business have been fully debited in 
the Fire Insurance Revenue account as expenses.

ANAGHA DESHPANDE
COMPANY SECRETARY

S GOPAKUMAR
DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIN 07542356

GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN   
CHAIRMAN CUM 

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN 08268834

 PARIJAT DUTTA
 DIRECTOR

 DIN 07039727

SINDHU PILLAI
DIRECTOR

DIN 07399558

For A V Deven & Co
ICAI FRN :000726S

Chartered Accountants

For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co
ICAI FRN :004721S

Chartered Accountants

For A John Moris & Co   
ICAI FRN :007220S   

Chartered Accountants   

CA R Raghuraman
Partner

Membership No.201760

CA P B Srinivasan
Partner

Membership No.203774

CA G Kumar
Partner

Membership No.023082

Place : Chennai
Date : 31.05.2019
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON 31ST MARCH 2019

I.    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. ACCOUNTING CONVENTION:

 The financial statements  are prepared under the 

 historical cost convention in accordance with the 

 accounting principles prescribed by The Insurance 

 Regulatory and Development Authority of India  

 (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor's 

 Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2002, 

 the Insurance Act, 1938, the Insurance Regulatory 

 and Development Authority Act, 1999, Orders /  

 Circulars / Notifications issued by Insurance  

 Regulatory and Development Authority of India  

 (IRDAI) from time to time, the applicable Accounting 

 Standards notified under Section 133 of the  

 Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the  

 Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

2. USE OF ESTIMATES: 

 The preparation of financial statements in  

 conformity with the generally accepted accounting 

 principles requires the management to make  

 estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

 amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses 

 and disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the date 

 of the financial statements. The estimates and  

 assumptions used in the accompanying financial 

 statements are based upon the management's  

 evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as 

 of the date of the financial statements. Actual results 

 may differ from estimates and assumptions used in 

 preparing these financial statements.

3. SHAREHOLDERS’/POLICYHOLDERS’ FUNDS:

 3.1. Shareholders’ funds consists of Share Capital 

 plus all Reserves and Surplus (except Revaluation 

 reserve and fair value change account) net of  

 accumulated losses and Miscellaneous expenditure 

 to the extent not written off as at the balance sheet 

 date.

 3.2. Policyholders’ funds consists of: 

 a) Outstanding claims including Incurred but not 

  Reported (IBNR) and Incurred but not enough 

  reported(IBNER);

 b) Unearned Premium Reserve; 

 c) Premium Deficiency Reserve; if any

 d) Catastrophe Reserve, if any; and 

 e) Other Liabilities net of Other Assets

 Other Liabilities in point (e) above, comprise of (i)

 Premium received in advance (ii) Unallocated

 premium (iii) Balance due to Other Insurance

 companies (iv) Due to other members of a pool such

 as third party pool; Terrorism pool; etc (v) Sundry

 creditors(due to policyholders).

 Other Assets in point (e) above, comprise of (i)

 Outstanding premium (ii) due from other entities

 carrying on insurance business including Re

 insurers (iii) balance with Pool such as Third Party

 Pool; Terrorism Pool; etc.

4. PREMIUM

 4.1 Direct Business:

 4.1.1 Premium income is recognised on assumption 
 of risk and adjusted for increase or decrease in  
 reserve for unearned premium, calculated as per 4.3 
 below.

 4.1.2 Premium refunds including for the free-look 
 period are accounted on the basis of endorsements 
 passed during the year. 

 4.2 Reinsurance:

 4.2.1 Premium income is recognized based on the 
 returns/advices received from foreign reinsurance 
 companies received upto 31st March.

 4.2.2 Premium Income in respect of Indian  
 Reinsurers is recognized based on returns received 
 upto finalization of accounts of the relevant  
 accounting year. Wherever returns are not received 
 upto finalization of accounts, the same has been 
 estimated.   

 4.2.3 Premium on cessions are recognized on the 
 basis of the premium underwritten by the operating 
 offices. Wherever full technical particulars are not 
 available, reinsurance cessions are estimated on the 
 basis of information available.

 4.2.4 Pool Acceptances/ Cessions: Premium,  
 Claims, Service charges, Investment income and 
 expenses in respect of Terrorism Pool Retro/  
 Nuclear Pool are accounted as per the statements 
 received from GIC (Pool Administrator) upto  
 finalisation of accounts. Premium, Claims, Service 
 charges and expenses of cessions in respect of  
 Terrorism Pool / Nuclear Pool are accounted upto 
 31st March.
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4.3 Reserve for Unexpired Risk:

 Reserve for Unexpired Risk comprises of Unearned 

 Premium Reserve and Premium Deficiency Reserve.

 (i) Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR):- 

 Unearned Premium Reserve is made on the amount 

 representing that part of net premium written which is 

 attributable to, and allocated to the succeeding  

 accounting periods at  50% of net premium, except in 

 the case of Marine Hull business, Nuclear Pool and 

 Terrorism(Fire and Engineering), where it is made at 

 100% of net premium.

 (ii) Premium Deficiency Reserve:-

 Premium deficiency is calculated where the sum of 

 expected claims costs, related expenses and  

 maintenance costs exceed the related unearned  

 premium. The premium deficiency is recognized as 

 per IRDA guidelines.

5. CLAIMS:

5.1 Direct Business:

 a. Claims are recognized as  and when intimated

 b. All expenses directly attributable to claims  

 including exchange fluctuations gains / losses are 

 accounted as part of claims.

 c. Outstanding claims at the year-end:-

 Estimated Liability for outstanding claims at the 

 year end are provided on the basis of  survey reports, 

 advices of Leaders, past experience,  other applicable 

 laws, information provided by clients and other  

 sources upto the date of finalization of accounts,

 In respect of unidentified motor third party claims 

 outstanding for more than one year, provision is 

 made at the rate of 100% of the estimated liability. In 

 other cases provision is made at the rate of 1/3rd of 

 the estimated liability.

5.2 Reinsurance:

 a. Claims are recognized as and when intimated.

 b. Liability for outstanding claims in respect of  

 Inward Acceptances (Indian) is based on returns 

 received up to finalization of accounts. Liability for 

 outstanding claims in respect of Inward Acceptances 

 (Foreign) is based on returns received up to 31st 

 March. Wherever returns are not received upto  

 finalization of accounts, the same has been estimated 

 on actuarial valuation.

5.3 IBNR/IBNER:

 Claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and 

 Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) is  

 made on the basis of actuarial valuation. 

5.4 Salvage and Claim related Recoveries:

 Recoveries under claims and disposal of salvage 

 are accounted on realisation and are credited to  

 claims.

6. EXPENSES OF MANAGEMENT:

6.1 Apportionment of expenses:

 Expenses of Management are apportioned to the 

 Revenue Accounts on the basis of gross direct  

 premium plus reinsurance accepted, giving  

 weightage of 75% for Marine business and 100% 

 for Fire and Miscellaneous business. Expenses  

 relating to policy stamps and reinsurance are  

 directly taken to respective Revenue Accounts.  

 Expenses relating to Investment, such as safe  

 custody, collection of interest/dividend bank  

 charges etc., are apportioned between Revenue  

 Accounts and Profit and loss Account based on  

 policyholders’ and shareholders’ funds as on the 

 Balance Sheet date.

6.1.1 Sundry credit balances not pertaining to  

 policyholders’ balances are written back to  

 profit and loss account.

6.2 Depreciation:

 Depreciation on fixed assets is charged on written 

 down value method based on useful life of the  

 Assets and considering residual value upto 5% of 

 original cost as per Schedule II to the Companies 

 Act, 2013, except in case of Motor Cars covered  

 under New Conveyance Scheme 2011, for which 

 useful life adopted is 5 years.

6.2.1 Cost of Lease Hold properties is amortized  

 over the period of lease or useful life of the  

 asset, as per Schedule II to the Companies  

 Act, 2013, whichever is shorter .

6.3 Employee Benefits:

6.3.1 Short-term employee benefits:

 The undiscounted amount of short-term 

 employee benefits expected to be paid in 
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6.3.2 रोजगार  उपरातं  लाभ योजना :

ंप�रभा�षत योगदान के �लए भुगतान सेवा�नव�ृ� लाभ योजनाओ का भुगतान 

ंएक �य के �प म� िकया जाता ह ै �ोिक वे देय ह�

ंप�रभा�षत लाभ योजनाओ के �लए, ��ाव�तत य�ूनट �ेिडट प��त का उपयोग 

करके लाभ �दान करने क� लागत �नधा�� रत क� जाती ह,ै �जसम� ��ेक बलै�स 

शीट क� तारीख म� बीमािंकक मू�ाकंन िकया जाता ह।ै  लाभ और हा�न खात ेम� 

पूण � अव�ध म� �बमािंकक लाभ और हा�न को मा�ता दी गई ह,ै  �जसके दौरान वे 

घिटत हो जात ेह।�  �पछली सेवा लागत को तरंुत उस हद तक पहचाना जाता ह ै िक 

लाभ पहले से ही �निहत ह,�  और अ�था सरली-रेखा के आधार पर औसत 

ंअव�ध तक प�रशो�धत हो जात ेह � जब तक िक लाभ �निहत नही हो जात।े

7. �वदेशी म�ुाओ ंका अनवुाद  / �पातंरण:

7.1 आय के �वषय और �य, �वदेशी शाखा क� बलै�स शीट क� तारीख के �प म� 

ं ंमौि�क व�ओु और भारतीय प�रचालनो म� �वदेशी मु�ा लेनदेन का अनुवाद 

�न�ानुसार िकया जाता ह:ै

ं7.1.1 �तमाही औसत दरो पर आय और �य के �वषय।

7.1.2 बलै �स शीट क� तारीख के �प म� मौि�क व�एु ं  उस तारीख म� �च�लत 

ंए�च�ज दरो म� प�रव�तत हो जाती ह।�

ं7.2 �वदेशी शाखा (गैर-अ�भ�) से संबं�धत शेषनो के अनुवाद के कारण 

ए�च�ज मतभेद एक �वदेशी मु�ा अनुवाद �रजव� म� जमा हो जाता ह ै जब तक 

ंऑपरेशन बंद नही हो जाता। इस गैर-अ�भ� �वदेशी अ�भयान को बंद करने पर, 

ं��गत िकए गए �व�नमय मतो क� संचयी रा�श को इस तरह के बंद होने के वष� म� 

आय के �प म� या खच� के �प म� पहचाना जाएगा।

ं7.3 भारतीय प�रचालनो म� �वदेशी मु�ा लेनदेन से उ�� होने वाले अनुवाद म� 

अतं र संबं�धत राज� खात े/ लाभ और हा�न खात ेम� लागू होने पर लागू होता ह।ै

8. ऋण और �नवेश :

ं8.1 शेयर, बाडं और िडबच� रो क� खरीद और �ब�� अनुबंध क� �त�थ (�ापार 

�त�थ) के �लए �ज�देार ह।�

8.2 �नवेश क� लागत म� ��तभू�त लेन-देन कर (जहा ंभी लागू हो), अ�ध�हण 

पर �ी�मयम और �नवेश के अ�ध�हण के �लए िकए गए अ� ��� खच� 

शा�मल ह � और उस पर अ�जत आयोग / फ�स का जाल ह।ै

ं8.3 इ��टी शेयरो को दीघ�का�लक �नवेश के �प म� वग�कृत िकया जाता ह।ै  

ंबलै�स शीट क� तारीख से 12 महीनो के भीतर प�रप� होने वाले �नवेश को 

इ��टी गैर-�न�ादन �नवेश के संबंध म� अ�ाव�ध �नवेश के �प म� वग�कृत 

िकया गया ह।ै  अ� सभी �नवेश को दीघ�का�लक �नवेश के �प म� वग�कृत िकया 

गया ह।ै

8.4 मनी माक� ट इं�म� �टस् जसेै स�टिफकेट ऑफ िडपॉ�ज़ट, कॉम�शयल पेपस� 

और सीबीएलओ जो अनुबंध के समय म� छूट िदए गए ह,�  उनके छूट मू� पर 

�गने जात ेह।�

ं ं ं8.5 सरकारी ��तभू�तयो और ��तदेय यो� शेयरो सिहत ऋण ��तभू�तयो म� 

�नवेश प�रशोधन के अधीन लागत पर िदखाया गया ह।ै  भा�रत औसत लागत के 

आधार पर, �ी�मयम / मु�� के वष� से पहले �व�ीय वष� के अतं  तक साधन क� 

खरीद क� तारीख से लेकर, कॉल / कॉल ऑ�शन पर �वचार करके, यिद कोई हो, 

तो �ी�मयम के �लए प�रशो�धत िकया जाता ह।ै

ं8.6 इ��टी शयेरो म� जो सि�य �प से कारोबार कर रह े ह,�  उनका �नवशे शषे 

रा�श के अ�ंतम समापन म�ू पर एनएसई (�ाइमरी ए�चज� ) पर ह,ै जसैा िक 

बलैस�  शीट क� तारीख ह।ै हालािंक, एनएसई म� सचूीब� िकसी भी �ॉक के होने / 

ंसचूीब� नही होने के मामले म,�  बीएसई (सकंेडरी ए�चज� ) म� �पछले उ�त ृ

ंसमापन म�ू के आधार पर, इ��टी शयेरो क� गणना शषे रा�श शीट �त�थ पर क� 

ं ंजाएगी। भारत के बाहर कंप�नयो के इ��टी शयेरो म� �नवशे जो उ�त और सि�य ृ

�प से कारोबार िकए जात ेह,�  उ�� लंदंन �ॉक ए�चज�  म� अ�ंतम उ�त म�ू पर ृ

बकाया शीट क� �त�थ के �प म� म�ूाकंन िकया जाता ह।ै अचतेन लाभ / हा�न 

उ�चत मान बदल� खात ेम� पहचाने जात ेह।�



  exchange for the services rendered by employees 

is recognized during the period when the 

employee renders the service. 

  6.3.2  Post –Employment benefit Plans:

  Payments to defined contribution retirement 

benefit schemes are charged as an expense as 

they fall due.

  For defined benefit schemes, the cost of 

providing benefits is determined using the 

Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial 

valuations being carried out at each balance sheet 

date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in 

full in the Profit and Loss account for the period in 

which they occur. Past service cost is recognized 

immediately to the extent that the benefits are 

already vested, and otherwise is amortized on 

straight-line basis over the average period until 

the benefits become vested.

7.  TRANSLATION/CONVERSION OF FOREIGN 

CURRENCIES:

7.1  Items of income and expenditure, Monetary items 

as at the Balance Sheet date of foreign branch and 

foreign currency transactions in Indian 

operations are translated as under:

7.1.1  Items of income and expenditure at the rates 

prevailing on the date of transaction.  

7.1.2  Monetary items as at the Balance Sheet date are 

converted at the exchange rates prevailing at that 

date.

7.2  Exchange differences on account of translation of 

the balances relating to foreign branch (non-

integral) is accumulated in a Foreign Currency 

Translation Reserve until the closure of the 

operation. On the closure of this non-integral 

foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the 

exchange differences which have been deferred 

will be recognized as income or as expenses in 

the year of such closure.

7.3  The difference in translation arising out of foreign 

currency transaction in Indian operations is 

recognized in the relevant Revenue accounts / 

Profit and Loss Account as applicable. 

8.   LOANS & INVESTMENT:

8.1   Purchase and sale of shares, bonds & 

debentures are accounted for on the date of 

contract (trade date).

8.2  The cost of investment includes Securities 

Transaction Tax (wherever applicable), 

premium on acquisition and other direct 

expenses incurred for the acquisition of the 

investment and is net of commission / fee 

earned thereon. The net sale consideration is 

arrived at after reducing brokerage and 

Securities Transaction Tax in respect of equity.

8.3   Investments in Equity Shares and Venture 

Capital Funds are classified as Long term 

Investments. Investments which are 

performing and maturing within 12months 

from the Balance Sheet date are classified as 

Short Term Investments. All other investments 

including Non-Performing Investments are 

classified as Long term Investments.

8.4   Money market instruments such as Certificate 

of Deposit, Commercial Papers and CBLO 

(TREP) which are discounted at the time of 

contract, are accounted at their discounted 

value.

8.5   Investments in debt securities including 

Government Securities and redeemable 

Preference Shares are shown at cost subject to 

amortization.  The premium, based on 

weighted average cost is amortized for the 

period from the date of latest purchase of the 

instrument till the date of maturity/ redemption, 

by considering put/ call option, if any.

8.6  Investments in Equity shares that are actively 

traded are valued at last quoted closing price on 

NSE (Primary Exchange) as on the Balance 

Sheet date. However, in case of any stock not 

being listed/not traded in NSE, Equity shares 

will be valued based on last quoted closing 

price in BSE(Secondary Exchange) as  on the 

Balance Sheet date.  Investments in Equity 

shares of companies outside India that are 

quoted and actively traded are valued at last 

quoted price at London Stock Exchange as on 

the Balance Sheet date.  The unrealized gains / 

losses are recognized in Fair Value Change 

account -Shareholders/Policy Holders.
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आ) �न�ध क� अव�ध ( �व� तारण सिहत) :
�ावधान

अ)  शु� द प�रसंप�� म�ू  य क�  अनउपल�ता के मामले म� :

8.9 हा�न

ं ं 8.9.1 हा�न उन कंप�नयो के इ��टी शेयरो के संबंध म� मा�ता �ा� ह,ै जो लगातार तीन साल पहले लगातार तीन साल के दौरान नुकसान उठाना पड़ता ह ै      
ंऔर  �जसक�  पूंजी आ�ंशक या पूण � �प से घटती ह,ै या जहा ंत�ाल तीन वष� के �लए लेखापरी��त वा�षक लेखा नही ह � उपल�।

 8.9.2 �नवेश नीचे �लखे गए ह:�

ं   1.    सि�य �प से कारोबार िकए जाने वाले इ��टी शेयरो को उनके बाजार मू� पर �लखा जाता ह।ै
   2.   सि�य �प से कारोबार के अलावा इ��टी शेयर, �के अप वै� ूम� �लखे गए ह � और जहा ं�के अप वै� ूनकारा�क ह,ै इसे    
   `1 / - ��त कंपनी म� �लखा जाता ह।ै

 8.9.2.1 हा�न के नुकसान का कोई भी �पातंर, पहले राज� / लाभ और हा�न खात ेम� मा�ता �ा� ह,ै
ं   (अ) सि�य टेड� ेड इ��टी शेयरो के संबंध म� - राज� / लाभ और हा�न खात ेम� मा�ता �ा� होगी

   i) अगर सं�चत हा�न पूरी तरह से �मटा दी जाती ह � और
   ii) कंपनी ने त�ाल �पछले तीन वष� के �लए शु� लाभ िदखाया ह।ै

ं  (ब) सि�य �प से कारोबार इ��टी शेयरो के अलावा अ� के संबंध म�, �ा�� पर, राज� / लाभ और हा�न खात ेम� मा�ता �ा� होगी

�ावधान: जहा ंशु� द प�रसंप�� म�ू  य <खाता म�ू  य �ावधान: जहा ंशु� द प�रसंप�� म�ू  य  >खाता म�ू  य 

1 वष� तक

2 वष� तक

3 वष� तक

4 वष� तक

4 वष� से अ�धक

बकु वै� ूऔर एनएवी के बीच का अतंर 

बकु वै� ूऔर एनएवी के बीच का अतंर या बकु
वै� ूका 10% या जो भी अ�धक है

बकु वै� ूऔर एनएवी के बीच का अतंर या बकु
वै� ूका 20% या जो भी अ�धक है

बकु वै� ूऔर एनएवी के बीच का अतंर या बकु
वै� ूका 50% या जो भी अ�धक है

बकु वै� ूका 100%

शू�

खाता मू� य का 10%

खाता मू� य का 20%

खाता मू� य का 50%

खाता मू� य का 100%

18 महीने तक �न�ध क� अव�ध क� समा�� पर

18 महीने के बाद

उपरो� त अ के अनुसार �ावधान

100%

ं ं ं8.7 असूचीब� / �थनली टेड� ेड इ��टी शेयरो म� �नवेश भारत के बाहर �नग�मत कंप�नयो म� िकए गए शेयरो क� क�मत पर मू� ह ै और ऐसे �नवेश के मू� म� कमी के 

�लए �ावधान िकया जाता ह ै जब �के-अप वै� ूलागत से कम होता ह।ै  यिद �के-अप वै� ूऋणा�क ह,ै  तो बकु वेल के 100% का �ावधान िकया गया ह।ै

ं ं8.8 क)  �चू ुअल फंड क� इकाइयो म� �नवेश, शेष रा�श के �प म� नेट एसेट वै� ूपर मू�वान ह ै �न�धयो �ारा घो�षत शीट क� तारीख और अचेतन लाभ / हा�न उ�चत 

मू� प�रवतन�  खात ेम� मा�ता �ा� ह।�

ंख) व�चर कै�पटल फंड्स / अ�रनेिटव इनवे�म�ट फंड (वीसीएफ / एआईएफ) म� �नवेश मू� पर मू�वान ह।�  ऐसी �नवेशो के मू� म� कमी के �लए �ावधान िकया 

ंगया ह ै जहा ंशेष रा�श के अनुसार शु� संप�� मू� लागत से कम ह।ै  जहा ंभी बलै�स शीट क� तारीख के अनुसार शु� प�रसंप�� मू� उपल� नही ह ै या जहा ं�न�ध क� 

अव�ध समा� हो गई ह,ै  बकु वै� ूपर �न��ल�खत तरीके से �ावधान िकया जाएगा:



8.7  Investments in Unlisted / Thinly traded equity shares including shares held in companies incorporated outside India 
are valued at cost and provision is made for diminution in value of such investments when break-up value is lower 
than the cost. In case the break-up value is negative, provision is made @ 100% of book value.

8.8 a) Investment in units of Mutual funds, are valued at Net Asset Value as at the Balance Sheet date as declared by the 
funds and unrealized gains / losses are recognized in Fair Value Change account -Shareholders/Policy Holders.

 b) Investments in Venture Capital Funds/Alternative Investment Funds (VCF/AIF) are valued at Cost. Provision is 
made for diminution in value of such investments where Net Asset Value as at the Balance Sheet date is lower than 
cost. Wherever the Net Asset Value as on Balance Sheet date is not available or where the term of the fund has 
expired, provision is made on the Book Value in the following manner:

B. Term of Fund (Including Extension)

Provision

On expiry of term(i.e.original term or term as extended) of fund upto 18 months

After 18 months

 Provision as in A above

100%

A. In case of Non-availability of Latest NAV:

 Provision: Where NAV<Book Value Provision: Where NAV>Book Value

Upto 1 Year Difference between Book Value and NAV Nil

Upto 2 years Difference between Book Value and NAV or 
 10% of Book Value whichever is higher 10% of Book Value

Upto 3 years Difference between Book Value and NAV or 
 20% of Book Value whichever is higher 20% of Book Value

Upto 4 years Difference between Book Value and NAV or 
 50% of Book Value whichever is higher 50% of Book Value

Above 4 years 100% of Book Value 100% of Book Value

8.9     Impairment 

  8.9.1. Impairment is recognized in respect of Equity shares of companies which have been continuously    
incurring losses during three immediately preceding years and the capital of which has been partially or 
fully eroded, or where the audited annual accounts for the three immediately preceding years are not available.

   8.9.2.    Investments are written down as under:

    1. Equity shares, which are actively traded, are written down to their market value.

    2. Equity shares other than actively traded, are written down to the break up value and where the break up   
   value is negative, are written down to Re.1/- per company.

  8.9.2.1  Any reversal of impairment loss, earlier recognized in Revenue/Profit & Loss account,     

        a)  in respect of Actively Traded Equity shares, shall be recognized in the Revenue/Profit & Loss account 

    i.  if the accumulated losses are completely wiped out and 

     ii. The company has shown net profit for three immediately preceding years. 

  b)  in respect of other than Actively traded equity shares, shall be recognized in the Revenue/Profit & Loss 
account, on realization.
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कमी के �लए �ावधान राज� को �वभा�जत िकया जाता ह ै

आईआरडीएआई �नयमन के अनुसार बलै�स शीट क� तारीख के 

ं ंअनुसार पॉ�लसीधारको के फंड और शेयरधारको के फंड के 

आधार पर खात ेऔर लाभ और हा�न खात े(अ�लै 04, 2016 

के प�रप� आईआरडीए / एफ एंड ए / सीआईआर / सीपीएम / 

056/03/2016) । पॉ�लसीधारक के फंड और शेयरधारक के 

फंड  3.1 और 3.2 म� प�रभा�षत होत ेह।�

ं ं8.15 शेयरधारको और पॉ�लसीधारको से संबं�धत �नवेश, 

आईआरडीएआई  �व�नयमन के मुता�बक बलै�स शीट क� तारीख 

के �प म� अलग ह।�  (प�रप� आईआरडीए / एफ एंड ए / 

सीआईआर / सीपीएम / 056/03/2016 िदनाकं 04 

अ�लै, 2016)। पॉ�लसीधारक के फंड और शेयरधारक के फंड  

3.1 और 3.2 म� प�रभा�षत होत ेह।�

9. क) �न��त संप��:

ं  �न��त प�रसंप��यो को अ�ध�हण क� लागत पर कम जमा �आ 

मू��ास कहा जाता ह।ै  संप�� का उपयोग करने के �लए तयै ार 

ंहोने तक ��� लागत �  पूंजीकृत होती ह।�  इन लागतो म� भाड़ा, 

�ापना लागत, कत�� , कर और अ� आवंिटत खच� शा�मल ह �

इसके अलावा िकसी भी �ापार छूट और छूट को लागत पर 

प�ंचने म� कटौती क� जाती ह।ै

 ख) अमतू� संप�� :

  अमूत � आ��या ं�वकास / अ�ध�हण क� लागत पर कम सं�चत 

प�रशोधन के बारे म� बताया गया ह।ै  इसी तरह सीधी रेखा के 

आधार पर तीन साल क� अव�ध म� प�रमाणीकृत िकया जाता ह।ै  

सॉ�वेयर �वकास / अ�ध�हण क� लागत, जो िक लेखा मानदंड 

ं26 (एएस 26) म� �नधा�� रत पहचान मानदंडो को पूरा  करत ेह,�  

को राज� के �लए चाज � िकया जाता ह।ै

10. कर लगाना:

10.1 आयकर �य म� वतम� ान कर (यानी आयकर कानून के अनुसार 

�नधा�� रत अव�ध के �लए कर क� आय) और ��गत कर �भार या 

�ेिडट (अव�ध के �लए लेखाकंन आय और कर यो� आय के 

बीच अव�ध अतं र के कर �भाव को  दशात� ी ह)ै । 

8.9.3 कंपनी बीमा �व�नयामक एवं भारत के �वकास �ा�धकरण / संबं�धत 

ं ं आरबीआई िदशा�नद�शो �ारा �नधा�� रत �ववेकपूण � मानदंडो का   

पालन करती ह ै जो िक प�रसंप�� वग�करण, आय क� मा�ता और 

ं ंऋण / अ��म / िडबच� र से संबं�धत �ावधानो के संबंध म� कंप�नयो 

ंऔर �व�ीय  सं�ानो  पर लागू होती ह।�

ं ं8.9.4 अ��मो क� �कृ�त के अलावा वरीयता शेयरो के संबंध म�, �ायी 

कमी के �ावधान को 100% क� सीमा तक बना िदया गया ह।ै  

�ायी �ास को इस �कार माना जाता ह:ै

ं अ) वरीयता लाभाशं को लगातार तीन वष� (या) के �लए भुगतान नही 

िकया जाता है

ं ख) प�रप�ता क� आय लगातार तीन वष� से �ा� नही �ई ह ै (या)

 ग) कंपनी ने त�ाल तीन वष� म� नुकसान प�ंचाया ह ै और �जसक� पूंजी  

  आ�ंशक �प से या पूरी तरह से न� हो गई ह ै (या)

 घ) जहा ंत�ाल �पछले तीन वष� के �लए लेखापरी��त वा�षक लेखा 

ंउपल� नही ह�

8.10 �नवेश क� �ा�� / �ब�� पर लाभ या हा�न का आकलन ��ेक 

�नवेश के भा�रत औसत बकु वै� ूके आधार पर िकया जाता ह।ै

8.11 िड�वड�ड आय (अतं �रम लाभाशं के अलावा) को घोषणा के वष� म� 

आय के �प म� माना जाता ह।ै  अतं �रम लाभाशं, भारत के बाहर 

ंआयो�जत इ��टी पर लाभाशं और �ाथ�मक शेयरो पर लाभाशं 

ंरसीद के आधार पर िकया जाता ह।ै  शेयरो और िडबच� र से आय, जो 

आ�पे / लं�बत िडलीवरी के अधीन ह,ै रसीद के आधार पर होती 

ह।ै

8.12 व�चर कै�पटल फंड के संबंध म� आय रसीद के आधार पर मा�ता 

�ा� ह।ै

8.13 �ाज के भ�व� म� होने वाले नुकसान के �लए मुआवज े के   

मुकाबले �ा�  रा�श केवल लेखा वष� के कारण होने वाले हद तक 

आय के �प म� मा�ता  �ा� ह ै और संबं�धत वष� म� भागीदारी के 

�लए अ��म खात ेम� �ा� �ाज  म� शेष रा�श को रखा जाता ह।ै

8.14 �नवेश आय, �ब�� / �नवेश क� �ा�� पर हा�न, �नवेश से संबं�धत 

�य, �नवेश पर �ी�मयम का प�रशोधन, अवमू�न �नवेश के 

संबंध म� �ल�खत / �ल�खत रा�श, गैर �न�ािदत �नवेश / मू� म� 
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8.14 Investment income, profit/loss on sale / realization 

of investment, expenditure relating to  investments, 

amortization of premium on investments, amount 

written off / written down in respect of depreciated 

investments, provision for non performing 

investment / diminution in value are apportioned to 

Revenue accounts and Profit & Loss account on the 

basis of Policy holders’ Funds and Share holders’ 

Funds as on the Balance Sheet date as per IRDAI 

R e g u l a t i o n  ( C i r c u l a r  I R D A / F & A / 

CIR/CPM/056/03/2016 dated April 04,2016).

8.15 Investments made out of Policyholders’ Funds are 

segregated and disclosed separately as on the 

Balance Sheet date   as per IRDAI Regulation 

(Circular IRDA/F&A/CIR/ CPM/056/03/2016 dated 

April 04,2016).

9. a)  FIXED ASSETS: 

 Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less      

accumulated depreciation. Direct costs are 

capitalized till the assets are ready to be put to use.  

These costs include freight, installation costs, 

duties, taxes and other allocated expenses. Further, 

any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in 

arriving at the cost.

 b)  INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

 Intangible Assets are stated at cost of development / 

acquisition less accumulated amortisation. The 

same is amortised over a period of three years on 

straight line basis. Software development / 

acquisition costs, except those which meet the 

recognition criteria as laid down in Accounting 

Standard 26 (AS 26), are charged to revenue.

10. TAXATION

10.1 Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e 

amount of tax for the period determined in 

accordance with the income-tax law) and deferred 

tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of 

timing differences between the accounting income 

and taxable income for the period).  The deferred 

tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred 

8.9.3  The Company follows the prudential norms 

prescribed by the Insurance Regulatory and 

Development Authority / Related RBI guidelines 

as regards asset classification, recognition of 

income and provisioning pertaining to loans / 

advances / debentures.

8.9.4  In respect of preference shares, provision for 

permanent diminution is made to the extent of 

100%.    The permanent diminution is reckoned 

as follows:

 a. The preference dividend is not paid for three 

consecutive years (or)

 b. The maturity proceeds have not been received for 

three consecutive years (or)

 c. The company has incurred losses in three 

immediately preceding years and the capital of 

which has been partially or fully eroded (or)

 d. Where the audited annual accounts for the three 

immediately preceding years are not available.

8.10   Profit or Loss on realization / sale of investment is 

computed by deducting the weighted average 

book value of each investment.

8.11   Dividend income (other than interim dividend) is 

accounted for as income in the year of 

declaration.  Interim dividends, dividend on 

Equity held outside India and dividend on 

Preference Shares are accounted on receipt 

basis. Income from shares and debentures, 

which are under objection / pending delivery, is 

accounted for on receipt basis. 

8.12   Revenue with respect to Venture Capital Funds is 

recognized on Receipt basis.

8.13   Amounts received towards compensation for 

future loss of interest is recognized as income 

only to the extent attributable to the accounting 

year and the balance is kept in interest received in 

advance account for apportionment in the 

relevant years.

S
TA

N
D

A
LO

N
E 

FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
S

TA
TE

M
EN

TS
S

IG
N

IF
IC

A
N

T 
A

C
C

O
U

N
TI

N
G

 P
O

LI
C

IE
S

`wZmBQ>oS> B§{S>`m B§í`yaoÝg H§$nZr {b{_Q>oS />



2018 - 2019

69246

ं ��गत कर �भार या �ेिडट और संबं�धत ��गत कर देनदा�रयो 
ं ंया प�रसंप��यो को टै� दरो का उपयोग करत े�ए मा�ता �ा� ह ै

जो िक  बलै�स शीट क� तारीख के आधार पर लागू िकए गए ह।�

10.2 मौजदूा कर के �लए �ावधान कंपनी के वक�ल से लागू �ा�यक 
ंघोषणाओ  और राय के उ�चत �वचार के बाद िकया जाता ह।ै

ं10.3 कर कानूनो के अनुसार भुगतान िकया गया �नूतम वैक��क टै� 
( ), जो भावी आय कर दा�य� को समायोजन के �प म� एम ए टी
भ�व� के आ�थक लाभ देता ह,ै  को एक प�रसंप�� माना जाता ह ै
अगर वहा ँठोस �माण ह ै िक कंपनी सामा� आयकर का भुगतान 
करेगी। तदनुसार,  को बलै�स शीट म� एक प�रसंप�� के �प म� एम ए टी
पहचाना जाता ह,ै जब संभव हो िक भ�व� से जड़ेु आ�थक लाभ 
कंपनी से आएंगे।

10.4 िडफड� कर संप�� केवल उस हद तक मा�ता �ा� ह ै जो भ�व� म� 
ं�न��त  �प से प�रसंप��यो म� संपािदत हो सकता ह।ै  अ��तबं�धत 

ंअवमू�न या कराधान कानूनो के तहत आगे हा�न के मामले म�, 
आ��गत कर संप�� केवल उस हद तक पहचानी जाती ह ै जहा ं
आ��गत कर संप�� का एहसास हो सकता ह।ै  िडफड� कर 

ंप�रसंप��यो क� समी�ा ��ेक बलै�स शीट क�  तारीख के अनुसार क� 
जाती है

11. प�ा शु�

ं प�ो, जहा ंप�ादाता �भावी ढंग से प�े पर देने वाले मद के �ा�म� 
ं ंके सभी जो�खमो और लाभो को �भावी �प से बरकरार रखता ह,ै 

ंऑपरेिटग 
ंप�ो के �प म� वग�कृत िकया जाता ह।ै  प�े क� अव�ध के आधार पर 

ंसीधी  रेखा के आधार पर लाभ और हा�न के �ववरण म� ऑपरेिटग 
लीज भुगतान  एक �य के �प म� पहचाने जात ेह।�  कंपनी के 
�वक� पर सभी प�ा समझौत ेर� िकए जा सकत ेह।�

12. �ावधान और अनबंुध (पॉ�लसी के तहत अ� के अलावा दावे)

12.1 कंपनी एक �पछली घटना क� वतम� ान दा�य� के �लए एक 
�व�सनीय अनुमान के आधार पर �ावधान बनाती ह ै �जससे 

ंभ�व� म� संसाधनो का  बिहवाह�  हो सकता ह।ै

12.2 आक��क दा�य� के �लए �कटीकरण तब िकया जाता ह ै जब 
ंसंभव दा�य� या वतम� ान दा�य� ह ै जो संसाधनो का बिहवाह�  करने 

क� 
आव�कता हो या न हो।

ं ं12.3 �व�ीय व��ो म� आक��क प�रसंप��यो को न तो मा�ता �ा� 
ह ै और  न ही पता चलता ह।ै



 tax liabilities or assets are recognized using the tax 

rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted 

as on the balance sheet date.

10.2 P rov i s i on  fo r  cu r r en t  t a x  i s  made  a f t e r

due consideration of the applicable judicial 

pronouncements and opinions from the company’s 

counsel.

10.3 Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance 

with the tax laws, which gives future economic 

benefits in the form of adjustment to future income 

tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is 

convincing evidence that the Company will pay 

normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized 

as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable 

that future economic benefit associated with it will 

flow to the Company.

10.4 Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent 

there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be 

realized in future.  In the case of unabsorbed 

depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation 

laws, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the 

extent there is virtual certainty that the deferred tax 

assets can be realized. Deferred tax assets are 

reviewed as at each balance sheet date.

11. LEASE CHARGES

 Leases, where the lessor effectively retains 

substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership 

of the leased item, are classified as operating 

leases. Operating lease payments are recognized 

as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on 

a straight-line basis over the lease term. All lease 

agreements are cancellable at the option of the 

company.

12. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES(CLAIMS 

OTHER THAN THOSE UNDER POLICIES)    

12.1 The Company creates provision based on a reliable 

estimate for the present obligation of a past event 

that might cause outflow of resources in future.

12.2 Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when 

there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 

that may or may not require an outflow of 

resources. 

12.3 Contingent assets are neither recognized nor 

disclosed in the financial statements.
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II. खातो ंम� नोटसः 
I)  लेखा नी�तयो ंम� प�रवत�न 
 अ)  �ी लुक अव�धः
   वत�मान पा�लसीः  
  �� य� कारोबार : �ी�मयम पुनमू��ाकंन वष� के दौरान पा�रत बचेान के आधार पर िकया जाता ह ै ।
     संशो�धत पा�लसीः  
  �� य� कारोबार: �ी लुक पी�रयड / अतं�रम �नर� तीकरण के �लए �रफंड सिहत �ी�मयम �रफंड का िहसाब साल के दौरान िदए गए एंडोस�म�ट के आधार पर     

िदया जाता ह ै ।  
    खातो ंपर �भावः  शू� य 
 आ) आतंकवाद पूल / परमाण ुपूल रेट�ो का लेखा
     वत�मान पा�लसीः 

ं ं      पूल �ीकृ�त / स�: �ी�मयम, दावो, सेवा शु�, �नवेश आय और आतंकवाद पूल के संबंध  म� खच� / परमाण ु पूल खातो के अ�ं तम �प तक भारतीय    
ं ंसाधारण बीमा �नगम (पूल �शासक) से �ा� बयानो के अनुसार �ज�देार ह।�  आतंकवाद, पूल / परमाण ुपूल के संबंध  म� हमारे �वसायो के �ी�मयम, 

दावे, सेवा शु� और खच� को 31 माच� तक पूरा िकया  जाता  ह।ै
  g§emo{YV nm{bgr:  

ं  पूल �ीकृ�त / स� :  �ी�मयम, दावो, सेवा शु�, �नवेश आय और आतंकवाद के संबंध म� खच� के संदभ� म� रेटो�  / ��ू�यर पूल का लेखा जोखा (पूल  
ं ं�शासक) से �ा� �ववरणो के अनुसार िकया जाता ह।ै  जहा ँभी कथन �ा� नही होत ेह,�  उसी का अनुमान लगाया जाता ह।ै  आतंकवाद, पूल / परमाण ुपूल 
ंके संबंध म� हमारे �वसायो के �ी�मयम, दावे, सेवा शु� और खच� को  31 माच� तक पूरा िकया जाता ह।ै   

  ImVm| na à^md… शू� य 

 इ)  लेख नीती 8.4 (टीआरईपी के सिहत) 
    वतम� ान पा�लसीः  मनी माक� ट इं�म� �टस् जसेै िक स�टिफकेट ऑफ िडपॉ�जट, कम�शयल पेपस� और सीबीएलओ जो कॉ�ै�� के समय छूट जात ेह,�  उनके  

�रयायती मू� पर आधा�रत होत ेह।�
   g§emo{YV nm{bgr: मनी माक� ट इं�म� �टस् जसेै िक स�टिफकेट ऑफ िडपॉ�जट, कम�शयल पेपस� और सीबीएलओ (टीआरईपी) जो कॉ�ै�� के समय छूट  

जात ेह,�  उनके �रयायती मू� पर आधा�रत  होत ेह।�
           खातो ंपर �भावः  शू� य 

(` '000)

2018 - 2019
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II. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

1. Impact of change in Accounting Policies:

 (A) Free look period :

  Existing Policy:

  Direct business: Premium refunds are accounted on the basis of endorsements passed during the year.

  Revised Policy: 

  Direct business: Premium refund including refund for the free-look period / interim cancellation is accounted on 
 the basis of endorsements passed during the year.

  Impact on the Accounts: NIL

 (B)  Accounting of Terrorism Pool / Nuclear Pool Retro:

  Existing Policy: 

  Pool Acceptances/ Cessions: Premium, Claims, Service charges, Investment income and expenses in respect of 
 Terrorism Pool Retro / Nuclear Pool are accounted as per the statements received from GIC (Pool Administrator) 
 up to finalisation of accounts. Premium, Claims, Service charges and expenses of our cessions in respect of  
 Terrorism Pool / Nuclear Pool are accounted up to 31st March.

  Revised Policy: 

  Pool Acceptances/ Cessions: Premium, Claims, Service charges, Investment income and expenses in respect of 
 Terrorism Pool Retro / Nuclear Pool are accounted as per the statements received from GIC (Pool Administrator). 
 Wherever statements are not received, the same is estimated and accounted for. Premium, Claims, Service  
 charges and expenses of our cessions in respect of Terrorism Pool / Nuclear Pool are accounted up to 31st March.

  Impact on the Accounts: NIL

 (C) Accounting Policy 8.4 (Inclusion of TREP):

  Existing Policy:  Money market instruments such as Certificate of Deposits, Commercial Papers and CBLO which 
 are discounted at the time of contract, are accounted at their discounted value.

  Revised Policy: Money market instruments such as Certificate of Deposits, Commercial Papers and CBLO (TREP) 
 which are discounted at the time of contract, are accounted at their discounted value.

  Impact on the Accounts: NIL

  Particulars     31-03-2019 31-03-2018

On partly paid investments      800 800

Claims other than those under policies, not acknowledged as debts  1230174  1246431

Underwriting commitments outstanding

(in respect of shares and securities)     0 0

Guarantees given by or on behalf of the Company   0 0

Statutory demands / liabilities in dispute, not provided for  11559501 5217803

Reinsurance obligations to the extent not provided for in accounts 0 0

Others (Bank Guarantee)      0 0

2. Contingent Liabilities: 

Note: The Income Tax authorities have adjusted the refund due to the company amounting to ` 3964312 thousands 
(` 3568087 thousands). 

(` '000)
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3. (a)  Encumbrances to assets of the company within and outside India.
(` '000)

  Particulars     31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Deposits towards margin money for issue of letters of 
credit / bank guarantee       7000 7000

Deposits made in court as per orders /attachments of 
bank accounts for claims       40918 14000

Deposits made to comply with Overseas Statutory requirements  0 0

10.70% GOI 2020 deposited with Clearing Corporation of India for 
CBLO operation – FV  ` 41800 thousands (` 41400 thousands)  42031 41845

 Particulars       31-03-2019 31-03-2018 

Loans and Investment       190000  190000

Commitments for Estates      1631249 1781953

Commitments for EDP/Core Insurance Project   852346 1358936

Stamp duty and Registration charges and pending conveyance 
(estimated at)       65664 40884

4. Commitments made and outstanding on account of loans, investments and fixed assets:

(b) Investments made in accordance with statutory requirements: NIL.

(c) Advances and Deposits include: -

i. ` 50000 thousands (` 50000 thousands) deposited with Bombay Stock Exchange towards Margin Money for trading 
in Capital Market as per SEBI circular dated 19-03-2008 regarding Margin of Institutional Trades in the Cash Market.

ii. `150000 thousands (`150000 thousands)deposited with National Stock Exchange towards Margin Money for trading 
in Capital Market as per SEBI circular dated 19-03-2008 regarding Margin of Institutional Trades in the Cash Market.

iii. ` 200 thousands (` 100 thousands) by way of margin money has been deposited with Clearing Corporation of India 
for CBLO (TREP) operation.

(` '000)
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5.   Claims less reinsurance, paid to claimants in/outside India:                                                  
(` '000)

 31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Fire 6593593 5695554  251950 211826 

Marine 2025244 1525267  6563 9110 

Miscellaneous 92410792 93494260  233549 52054 

Total 101030752 100715082  492062 272990

6. Differences in investment, arising out of the reconciliation between the book figures and the confirmation received 
from SHCIL (Custodian) of the Company’s investments are tabulated as under.

In India Outside IndiaBusiness 

              Particulars Nature 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Equity and Preference Shares Short Book Value 0 0

Debentures Short Book Value 4947 4947

Total Short Book Value 4947 4947

Equity and Preference Shares Excess Face Value 0 0

7.     Age wise outstanding claims statements for preceding five years are enclosed in Annexure-I 

(` '000)

8.   Premium less reinsurance written from business in/outside India:    

 31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Fire 7076182 7875059  133376 234539 

Marine 2046319 2325927  4652 21770 

Miscellaneous 128537089 113259483 127151 187892 

Total 137659580 123460469  265179 444201

In India Outside IndiaBusiness 

(` '000)

9. Other income includes interest on income tax refund of NIL (NIL).

10. An amount of ` 225000 thousands (` 225000 thousands) has been transferred to debenture redemption reserve 
towards redemption of non-convertible Debentures.

11. The Housing Loan portfolio of the company has been assigned in favour of GIC Housing Finance Ltd (GICHFL) to the 
extent of ̀  144.35 crores ,as per undertaking dated 29th March ,2019 at an Interest rate of 8.4% per annum. 

 Housing loan balances as on 31st March 2018 where the loan has been serviced regularly for more than 6 months 
( 90%) and less than 6 months (80%) has been assigned in favour of GIC Housing Finance Ltd. The original property 
documents will be held in trust by UIIC on behalf of GIC Housing Finance Ltd. The difference between Interest of 8.4% 
as agreed with GIC housing finance Ltd and the interest amount recovered from the employees is absorbed by the 
company.

`wZmBQ>oS> B§{S>`m B§í`yaoÝg H§$nZr {b{_Q>oS />





1. Total amount of loan assets subjected to restructuring  92696  95667 

2. The amount of standard assets subjected to restructuring  19627  22397 

3. The amount of Sub-Standard assets subjected to restructuring 0 0

4. The amount of Doubtful and other assets subjected to restructuring 73069   73269

Sl.
No.

Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

13.  Segregation of Investments into performing and non-performing assets for the purpose of Income recognition:

12.   In respect of Purchases of Investments no deliveries are pending and in respect of sale of Investments, 

     no payments are overdue as on 31-03-2019 except in respect of buy back of 950 Equity Shares of S M Dyechem 

          Limited (Book Value ̀  1) amounting to ̀  1.90 thousands (Previous year Nil).

              Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Performing Assets 289793069 267831388

Non-Performing Assets 3705489 971709

Total 293498558 268803097

(` '000)

(NPA current year includes entire exposure in Debentures of IL & FS Companies – ` 2752315 thousands)

The aggregate amount of income not recognized for the current accounting year on NPA (net of waiver/ collections) 
as per related IRDA guidelines is ` 1108345 thousands (Previous Year ` 715351 thousands) and up to 31st March 
2019 is ` 7247715 thousands (Previous Year ` 6139371 thousands).

14.  Loan assets subject to Restructuring as on 31-03-2019.               
(` '000)

(i) As per Part I of Schedule B of IRDA(Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies 

)Regulations 2002, Debt Securities shall be considered as ‘Held to  Maturity Securities’ and shall be measured at 

Historical costs subject to amortization. Amortization of premium is done for the period from the date of latest 

purchase of the instrument till the date of maturity/redemption, by considering put/call option, if any.

(ii) In accordance with the regulation prescribed by IRDA, unrealized gains (net) amounting to ` 34541962 thousands

(` 41986705 thousands) arising due to changes in the fair value of listed equity shares and mutual funds are taken to 

fair value change account. The historical cost (net of write off) of such investments amounted to ` 79097579 

thousands (` 71403855 thousands). Pending realization the credit balance in the fair value change account is not 

available for distribution.
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               Minimum  Maximum Daily Average 
Outstanding

        Particulars outstanding outstanding outstanding as on
 during the year during the year during the year 

  31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

       Securities Sold 
       under Repo

(i) Government  NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
 Securities 

(ii) Corporate Debt 
 Securities NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

      Securities Purchased 
      under Reverse Repo 

(iii) Government  505564 2221499 505564 2286622 505564 671525 NIL NIL
 Securities 

(iv) Corporate Debt  NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
 Securities 

                                   Market Value               Historical Cost             Fair value change
      Particulars

  31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Equity Shares 103075296 108405320  68572786 66430762  34502510 41974558

Mutual fund 10564245 4985240  10524793 4973093  39452 12147 

Total 113639541 113390560  79097579 71403855  34541962 41986705

15.   B reak up of Market value and historical costs of investments which have been
valued on fair value basis are as follows:            (` '000)

16.  In accordance with Circular No IRDA/F&I/CIR/INV/250/12/2012 dated 4/12/2012,
the details of exposure in Repo/Reverse Repo transactions are given below:

(` '000)

17. Dividend income and other income relating to prior period is NIL (NIL).

18. Consequent upon the formation of NCLT, membership contribution of ` 500 thousands in CDR were received as 
refund and the same has been accounted under the head miscellaneous income. 

19.  The Company does not have Real Estate Investment Property.

20. Computation of Managerial Remuneration 

 Disclosure relating to computation of managerial remuneration has not been made as the provisions of Section 197 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company (being a government company) vide Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs notification no. GSR463 (E) dated 5th June, 2015.

21. Barring disputed cases, no settled insurance claim remained unpaid for more than six months as on the Balance 
Sheet date –NIL (NIL)

69257

S
TA

N
D

A
LO

N
E 

FI
N

A
N

C
IA

L 
S

TA
TE

M
EN

TS
N

O
TE

S
 T

O
 A

C
C

O
U

N
TS

`wZmBQ>oS> B§{S>`m B§í`yaoÝg H§$nZr {b{_Q>oS />





22. Fixed Assets include :-

A) Land - Leasehold includes land acquired from IFCI 
Infrastructure Development Ltd at Bangalore 
Financial City, amounting to ` 39761 thousands (` 
39761 thousands) on sub - lease - cum - sale 
agreement, which will be registered in the name of 
the company after completion of construction of 
office complex within the time limit specified therein. 
The time limit for completion of civil construction 
work and commencement of activity/business was 
up to 06th December 2018.

 As many of the sub allottees have not completed 
construction, IIDL (IFCI Infrastructure development 
Limited) had requested KIADB (Karnataka Industrial 
Areas Development Board) to extend the time limit 
for Implementation of the project by the sub allottees 
for a further period of 3 years.

 KIADB vide its letter dated 3rd September, 2018 
informed its board decision advising IIDL to 
approach the state High level single window 
clearance committee (SHLSWCC) for approval of 
further extension of time.

 The company has constructed compound wall  at the 
site .The company has remitted Rental and leasing 
service charges and maintenance service charges 
for the period December 2018 to November 
2019.The company has requested vide letter dated 
01st Nov, 2018 to grant extension for one year to 
complete the construction and start the operation. 
The letter for extension is awaited from IFCI.

B) Buildings valued at ` 141759 thousands (` 316615 
thousands) are pending for Conveyance and 
Registration. This includes a property under dispute 
amounting to ` 6878 thousands (` 12355 
thousands).

C) Title deeds in respect of 6 properties under the 
Freehold and Leasehold lands included in schedule 
10(Fixed Assets) are in the name of erstwhile 
companies merged with United India Insurance Co. 
Ltd. One lease deed for property at Ellis Bridge, 
Ahmedabad valued at ` 2334 thousands (` 2334 
thousands) is not available.

23. Sundry Creditors include an amount of ` 1775241 
thousands (` 1427851 thousands) being cheques 
issued from zero balance payment with designated 
bank account.

24. Terrorism Pool retro figures received from GIC (Pool 
Administrator) accounted in 2018-19  includes 
figures for the 3 quarters received and estimated for 
last quarter.

25. The Company is a member of India Nuclear Pool 

Insurance with a participation of `2000000 

thousands (administrated by GIC with a collective 

capacity of ` 15000000 thousands). For the year 

2018-19 a sum of `1000000 thousands 

(`1000000 thousands) was collected by leader 

(New India Assurance Co. Ltd.) and  have 

accounted `222222 thousands (`222222 

thousands) as our share of premium on direct side 

and the same was ceded @ 100%. RI inward was 

booked at ` 132220 thousands (`132000 

thousands) and is accounted under Liability 

Premium. Reserve for Unexpired Risks for Nuclear 

Pool is made at 100% of Net Premium.

26. (A) As per the Actuarial Valuation the IBNR/IBNER 

Reserves as on 31st March 2019 is ` 81526800 

thousands (` 57860600 thousands), resulting in 

additional provisioning in the current year 

amounting to ̀  23666200 thousands (` 8469900 

thousands). This includes Motor TP IBNR 

amortization of 2016-17 of `7914900 thousands 

absorbed in the current year.

 (B) As per the Actuarial Valuation the IBNR/IBNER 

Reserves as on 31st March 2017 was ̀  49390700 

thousands as against ` 21052000 thousands as 

on 31st March 2016, resulting in substantial 

provisioning in the previous year amounting to 

` 28338700 thousands. Incremental Provisioning 

for the Motor TP Segment alone was ` 23744700 

thousands. IRDAI vide its letter no. IRDA/FNA/ 

GOG/LR/001/2017-18/66 dated 25.07.2017 and 

letter no IRDA/ FNA/GUI/ LR/002/ 2017-18/67 

dated  27.07.2017 has permitted to amortize the 

incremental IBNR/IBNER Reserves relating to 

Motor TP of ̀  23744700 thousands over a period 

of three years beginning from the year 2016-17. As 

per the directions of IRDAI vide their letter No. 

FNA/GUI/COM/001/2018-19/156 dated 04-12-

2018, the entire unabsorbed amount of ̀  7914900 

thousands as on 31.03.2018 (`15829800 

thousands) has been accounted for during this 

year. 

 Note: Had the entire amount been absorbed in the 

year 2016-17, the losses for the period ending 

31.03.2019 would be lower by ` 7914900 

thousands. 
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ं27.  हागंकागं म� कंपनी क� एजस� ी ने अडं रराइिटग ऑपरेशंस को �भाव से रोक िदया 01.04.2002 और रन ऑफ ऑपरेशंस से संबं�धत लेनदेन को 
�ज�देार ठहराया गया ह।ै  अपूण � अ�ं तम आईबीएनआर / आईबीएनईआर �रपोट�, एनआईएल �ावधान �पछले वष� के �लए अ�ार� क� �रपोट� के 

ंआधार पर वतम� ान वष� के �लए �वचार िकया गया ह।ै  कंपनी ने  2814 हजार (  2681 हजारो) क� रा�श ली) 2018-19 और तीन के दौरान ` `

रन ऑफ ऑपरेशंस के �बंधन के �लए �य क� ओर 31.03.2019 को  22033 हजार (  22897 हजार) क� रा�श का बकाया बकाया ह ै ।` `

ं ं28. कायाल� य के बीच खातो क� सुलह �ग�त पर ह ै और कंपनी क� राय म� ह।ै   असका �भाव साम�ी नही होगा।
ं ं29. अ) बीमा कारोबार पर ले जाने वाले अ� ���यो या �नकायो के कारण शेष रा�शएं ह � समय-समय पर सुलझाया। हालािंक, साल के अतं  तक शेष 

ंरा�श क� पु�� �ा� नही �ई ह ै ।        
ं ं ं     आ) पुनब�मा के संबंध म�, ब��यो को दलालो / पुनब�मा के आधार पर �भा�वत िकया जाता ह ै खातो के अनुसूची। हालािंक, साल के अतं  तक शेष रा�श 

ंक� पु�� �ा� नही �ई ह ै शेष रा�श।
ं ं ं ं  इ) जमा, अ��म और अ� खातो म�  5473499 हजारो (  6431101) क� रा�श शा�मल ह ै हजारो) क� � / रा� सरकार से �व�भ� योजनाओ ` `

के �लए वसूली यो� ।

30. अ) आईआरडीएआई �ारा �नधा�� रत अनुसार लेखा अनुपात संल� नक II म� िदया गया ह ै ।
ं ं   आ)ं आईआरडीएआई �ारा �नधा�� रत �ा�प म� सेगम�टल �रपो�टग को अनुसू�चयो �व� तीय �ववरणो सिहत िदया गया ह ै ।

ं    इ) आईआरडीएआई �ारा �नधा�� रत तरीके पर �पछले पाचं वष� के �व� तीय �ववरणो का साराशं अनुल� नक III म� िदया गया ह ै ।
31. प�शन और उपदान
 अ) भारत के बीमा �नयामक और �वकास �ा�धकरण, इसके प�रप� सं। 18.4.2016 िदनािंकत आईआरडीए / एफएंडए / सीआईआर / 

ंअ�ध�नयम / 07/04/2016, 100000 अ�त�र� के प�रशोधन क� अनुम�त थी पीएसय ूअ�धकारी और कम�चा�रयो को प�शन योजना 1995 `

के �व�ार से उ�� प�शन देयता सद� जो 01.04.2004 से 31.03.2010 के बीच पाचं साल क� अव�ध म� शा�मल हो गए वष� 2015-16 से 
शु� हो रहा ह।ै  तदनुसार, कंपनी ने हर साल एक-पाचंवा ंिह�ा क� कुल देयता  कमाया ह ै । भारतीय बीमा �नयामक और �वकास �ा�धकरण,  के 
�नद�शानुसार प� एफएनए / जीयआुई / सीओएम / 001/2018-19/156 िदनाकं 04.12.2018  के अनुसार 31.03.2019 को 
अ�यो�गत रा�श  40000 इस वष� के दौरान गणना क� गई ह ै ।`

2018 - 2019
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(`'000)

 31-03-2019  31-03-2018

 को को 

 एक वष � से कम 4009460 5130852

 1 – 3 वष � 165087 1037923

 3 वष � से अ�धक 1298952 262326

 कल 5473499 6431101ु



27. The Company’s Agency at Hong Kong ceased underwriting operations with effect from 01.04.2002 and the 

transactions relating to run off operations have been accounted. Pending final IBNR/IBNER report, the NIL provision 

based on the Actuary's report for the previous year has been considered for current year. The company incurred a sum 

of ` 2814 thousands (` 2681 thousands) towards expenditure for managing the Run off operations during 2018-19 

and three claims amounting to ̀  22033 thousands (` 22897 thousands) are outstanding as on 31.03.2019.

28. Reconciliation of Inter-Office accounts is in progress and in the opinion of the Company, the effect of the same will not 

be material.

29. a) Balances Due from / Due to other persons or bodies carrying on Insurance business, are settled periodically.    

 However, confirmations of balance have not been received for year-end balances.

 b) In respect of Reinsurance, settlements are effected to brokers /reinsurers based on statement of accounts.   

 However, confirmations of balance have not been received for year-end balances.

 c) Deposits, Advances & Other Accounts include a sum of ̀  5473499 thousands (` 6431101 thousands) recoverable     

 from Central/ State Government towards various schemes.

30. a) Accounting Ratios as prescribed by IRDAI are given in Annexure II.

 b)  Segmental reporting in the format prescribed by IRDAI is given along with Schedules forming part of        

Financial Statements.

 c)  A summary of financial statements for the last five years in the manner prescribed by IRDAI is given in        

  Annexure III.

31.  Pension & Gratuity

 A) Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, vide its Circular No.  IRDA/F&A/CIR/ACT/077/04/2016 

dated 18.04.2016, had allowed amortization of additional Pension liability of ` 100000 thousands arising out of 

extension of Pension Scheme 1995 to PSU Officer’s and Staff Members who joined between 01.04.2004 to 

31.03.2010, over a period of five years commencing from the year 2015-16. Accordingly, the company has amortised 

one fifth of the total liability every year. As per the directions of IRDAI vide their letter no. FNA/GUI/COM/001/2018-

19/156 dated 04.12.2018, the entire unabsorbed amount of ` 40000 thousands as on 31-03-2019 (previously 

absorbed ̀  60000 thousands) has been accounted for during this year.                                                                                                                                                                

69160

(` '000)

 As on  As on 

 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

 Less than 1 year 4009460 5130852

 1 – 3 years 165087 1037923

 More than 3 years 1298952 262326

 Total 5473499 6431101
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कल देयता  100000ु

वष � 2015-16  म� अमत �   20000ू

वष � 2016-17  म� अमत �  20000ू

वष � 2017-18  म� अमत �  20000ू

वष � 2018-19  म� अमत �  40000ू

अप�र�चत और प�रशोधत उपदान 31.03.2019 को देयता  श� यू

�ववरण होनेवाल� रा�श के �लए अमत � का �व� तार योजना ू

 प�शन

(  '000)`

2018 - 2019

262



Note: Had the entire amount been absorbed in the year 2015-16, the losses for the period ending 31.03.2019 would be 

lower by ̀  40000 thousands.

B) Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, vide its Letter No. IRDA/F&A/GUI/LR/002/2018-19/28 dated 

07.05.2018, has permitted amortization of additional Gratuity liability of ` 3099990 thousands arising out of increase in 

limit of gratuity from ̀  10 lakhs to ̀  20 lakhs, over a period of five years commencing from the year 2017-18. During the F Y 

2018-19, the company has charged to revenue ` 2479992 thousands (` 619998 thousands), from the total determined 

liability of ̀  3099990 thousands. 

Note : Had the entire amount of ` 3099990 thousands been charged in the year 2017-18, the loss of the Company for the 

year ended 31st  March 2019 would have been lower by ̀  2479992 thousands.

32. Retirement benefits to employees

(i) Provident fund

Eligible employees (employees not opted for pension plan) receive benefits from the provident fund, which is a defined 

contribution plan. Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon are paid at retirement, death, incapacitation or 

termination of employment. Both the employee and the Company make monthly contributions to the United India Insurance 

Employee's Provident Fund Trust equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee’s salary. The Company has an 

obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the trust and the interest rate 

notified by the trust.

The Company recognized ` 181120 thousands (` 194835 thousands) for provident fund contribution in the Revenue 

Accounts and Profit and Loss account.

(ii) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees. The 

Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of 

employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon 

completion of five years of service. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation as of the 

balance sheet date, based upon which, the company contributes all the ascertained liabilities to the United India Insurance 

Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust (the “Trust”).Trustees administer contributions made to the Trust and contributions are 

invested in specific investments as permitted by law.

69263

Total liability 100000

Amortized in year 2015-16 20000

Amortized in year 2016-17 20000

Amortized in year 2017-18 20000

Amortized in year 2018-19 40000

Unrecognized and unamortized 

gratuity liability as on 31-03-2019 Nil

Particulars
Amount to be Amortized for 

Extension of Scheme 

 Pension

(` '000)
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(iii) (a) Superannuation/ Pension

The Company provides for monthly pension, a defined benefit retirement plan (the “Pension Plan”) covering eligible 
employees. The Pension Plan provides a monthly pension after retirement of the employees till death. The Monthly pension 
is based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of ten years of 
service. The company pays the monthly pension by purchasing the annuity from Life Insurance Corporation of India. 
Liabilities with regard to the Pension Plan are determined by actuarial valuation as of the balance sheet date, based upon 
which, the company contributes all the ascertained liabilities to the United India Insurance Employees’ Pension Fund Trust 
(the “Trust”). Trustees administer contributions made to the Trust and contributions are invested in specific investments as 
permitted by law.

(iii) (b) New Superannuation/ New Pension

New pension scheme which is applicable to employees who joined the company on or after 1st April 2010 is a defined 
contribution scheme. The company pays fixed contribution at predetermined rate and the obligation of the company is 
limited to such fixed contribution. 

The Company recognized ` 192841 thousands (` 322741 thousands) for pension contribution in the Revenue Accounts 
and Profit and Loss account.

(iv)  Leave encashment

The employees of the Company are entitled to Leave Encashment. The employees can carry forward a portion of the 
unutilized accrued Leave Encashment and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation at retirement or 
termination of employment for the unutilized accrued Leave Encashment for a maximum of 240 days. The company records 
an obligation for Leave Encashment in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. 
The Company measures the expected cost of Leave Encashment as the additional amount that the company expects to pay 
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date based on actuarial valuation.

(v)  Sick Leave 

The company has provided for ̀  118707 thousands (` 130712 thousands) as liability towards Sick Leave entitlement for 
employees based on actuarial valuation.

The following table sets out the funded status of gratuity/pension plan and the amounts recognized in the company’s 
financial statements as at March 31, 2019.

                               Pension Fund                          Gratuity Fund
                              Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 31447233 30664975  11139240 7978470 

Current service cost 795669 822708  349695 162225 

Interest cost 2402729 2293919  869456 628379 

Actuarial (gain)/loss 2277304 737598  (1996523) (9536)

Amount Amortized during the year 40000 910000  2479992 714998 

Past Service Cost 0 0 0 2479992

Benefits paid (4997391) (3981967)  (1327737)  (815288) 

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 31965544 31447233  11514123 11139240 

A. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation (` '000)
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     प�शन (�न�धब�)              उपदान (�न�धब�)
                                �ववरण  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

वष � के �ारंभ म� योजना आि�तय� के उ�चत म�य  29837287 26732973  7690208  6416609 ू

योजना आि�तय� से अनमा�नत लाभ  2292111 2304179  578224  577146 ु

दा�य�य� पर बीमांकन हा�न / लाभ 91922 50100  106707  (50236) 

अ�य कप�नय� से �ा�त 0 0 0 115

�नयोजक का अशं दान   2164375 4732002  3449440  1561862 

अदा क� गयी स�वधा  (4997391) (3981967)  (1327737)  (815288) ु

वष � के अतं म� �नयत लाभ दा�य�व का म�य  29388303 29837287  10496842  7690208 ू

                                                  प�शन (�न�धब�)                 उपदान (�न�धब�)
                                   �ववरण

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

वष � के अतं म� योजना आि�तय� का बाज़ार म�य 29388303 29837287  10496842  7690208 ू

वष � के अतं म� दा�य�य� का वतम� ान म�य  31965544 31447233  11514123  11139240 ू

प�रशो�धत देयता 40000 0 2479992  (2479992)

तलन प� म� अ�भ�ा�पत अ�न�धब� देयता / ु

(प�रसंपि�त ) 2617241 1609946  3497273  969040

घ. लाभ और हा�न खात े  अ�भ�ा�पत �यय  म�

                                                             प�शन (�न�धब�)       उपदान (�न�धब�)
�ववरण

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

वतम� ान सेवा �यय 795669 822708  349695  162225 

�याज �यय 2402728 2293919  869456  628379 

योजना आि�तय� से अनमा�नत लाभ  (2292112) (2304179)  (578224)  (577146) ु

श� बीमांकन (लाभ/हा�न) 2185382 687498  (2103230) 40700 ु

अ�य कप�नय� से �ा�त  0 0 0  (115) 

योजना आि�तय� से वा�त�वक लाभ  40000 910000 2479992  714998 

लाभ और हा�न खात े म� मा�यता �ा�त कल खच � 3131668 2409946  1017689  969041 ु

योजना प�रसंपि�तय� पर वा�त�वक �रटन � (2384032) (2354279)  (684931)  (527025)

ख. योजना आि�तय� के उ�चत म�य वष � के �ार�भ म� और अतं म� का समाधान ू

ग.योजना आि�तय� के उ�चत म�य का समाधानू

                                                            प�शन (�न�धब�)       उपदान (�न�धब�)
�ववरण              

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

सरकार� ��तभ�तयाँ  14.75 16.47 26.86 28.54ू

उ�च गणव�ता साम�हक बॉ�ड  22.52 26.46 4.20 10.30ु ू

शयेर बाज़ार क� सची म� सि�म�लत कंप�नय� के शयेर  1.05 1.11 0.00 0.00ू

�व�श�ट जमा योजना (�यचअल फ़ंड) 0.00 1.54 0.00 6.38ू ु

भारतीय जीवन बीमा �नगम के साथ शषे  61.68 54.42 68.94 54.78

 (म� %) 
ड. ��ट �वारा संपो�षत �नवेश ��तशतता 

(  '000)`

(  '000)`

(  '000)`

2018 - 2019
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B.  Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets

                                    Pension Fund                         Gratuity Fund
                                Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 29837287 26732973  7690208  6416609 

Expected return on plan assets 2292111 2304179  578224  577146 

Actuarial gain/(loss) 91922 50100  106707  (50236) 

Received from other companies 0 0 0 115

Employer contribution 2164375 4732002  3449440  1561862 

Benefits paid (4997391) (3981967)  (1327737)  (815288) 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 29388303 29837287  10496842  7690208 

C.   Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations

                                    Pension Fund                        Gratuity Fund
                                   Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 29388303 29837287  10496842  7690208 

Present value of obligations as at the end of the year 31965544 31447233  11514123  11139240 

Amortized Liability 40000 0 2479992  (2479992)

Unfunded liability/(asset) recognized in the 
Balance Sheet 2617241 1609946  3497273  969040

                                                           Pension (Funded)       Gratuity (Funded)
              Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Government securities 14.75 16.47 26.86 28.54

High Quality Corporate Bonds 22.52 26.46 4.20 10.30

Equity Shares of Listed Co. 1.05 1.11 0.00 0.00

Special Deposit Scheme (Mutual Fund) 0.00 1.54 0.00 6.38

Balance with Life Insurance Corporation of India  61.68 54.42 68.94 54.78

 (in %) 

                                                                  Pension Fund        Gratuity Fund
Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Current service cost 795669 822708  349695  162225 

Interest cost 2402728 2293919  869456  628379 

Expected return on plan assets (2292112) (2304179)  (578224)  (577146) 

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss 2185382 687498  (2103230) 40700 

Received from other companies 0 0 0  (115) 

Amortization During the year 40000 910000 2479992  714998 

Total expenses recognized in the Profit and Loss account 3131668 2409946  1017689  969041 

Actual return on plan assets (2384032) (2354279)  (684931)  (527025)

D. Expense recognized in the Profit and Loss account

E.  Investment percentage maintained by the Trust

(` '000)

(` '000)

(` '000)
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                              �ववरण              पवा�नमान का आधार ू ु

योजना आि�तय� पर लाभ क� अनमा�नत दर एक वष � क� �याज दरु

वेतन मे व�� क� दर बीमांकन म�य �नधा�रण मे भ�व�य क� वेतन व�� का अनमान ू ुृ ृ

महंगाई, व�र�ठता, पदो�न�त तथा अ�य �ासं�गक कारक� जसै े 

�नयो�ता बाज़ार मे प�त � और मांग को गणना मे लेकर �कया गया है।ू

(म� %) 

                                      समा�त वष�
     �ववरण (प�शन)

  31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2017 31-03-2018 31-03-2019

�नयत लाभ दा�य�व का म�य 24200000  26950000  28804975  31447233  31965544ू

योजना आि�तया ं 24200000  24171275  24872973  29837287  29388303

अ�धवेश/कमी 3384623  360403  66  (1782348)  (339937)

योजना दा�य�व� पर बीमांकन लाभ/ हा�न  3405045  3139128  3932068  (172402)  2237304

योजना प�रसंपि�तय� पर बीमांकन लाभ/ हा�न 20422  0  (2359131) 50100  91922

33. कमच� ा�रय� को अ�पकाल�न स�वधा ु

 कमच� ार� �वारा �दान क� गयी सेवा क� समाि�त के प�चात 12 माह के अदंर अ�पकाल�न कमच� ार� स�वधा जसेै एल ु

ट� एस, �च�क�सा स�वधा आ�द जो पणत� ः देय है, उसके �लए अनमान के आधार पर �न�ध क� �यव�था क� गयी है। ु ू ु

                        �ववरण 

छट दर 8.00 8.00         7.60ू

योजना आि�तय� पर लाभ क� अनमा�नत दर 8.30 8.30    NA ु

वेतन मे व�� क� दर 3.25 3.25   NA ृ

कमच� ार� आय �यय               गैर मह�वपण�ू

म�यत� ा            कायर� त कमच� ा�रय� हेत जीवन बीमा �नगम (2006-08) तथा जीवनु

   बीमा �नगम (1996-98)सेवा �नव� त सद� य� हेत ुृ

�योग क� गयी प��त  �ोजेकटेड य�नट �े�डट प��तू

च . तलनप� क� �त�थ पर मल बीमांकन पवा�नमान (भा�रत औसत के �प  अ�भ�य�त)  ु ू ू ु म�

छ. गणना के �लए गए बीमांकन पवा�नमान का आधार ू ु

ज.(i) वतम� ान और गत चार वष�  अ�भ�ा�पत रा�शम� (  '000)`

                                      समा�त वष�
    �ववरण (उपदान)

  31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2017 31-03-2018 31-03-2019

�नयत लाभ दा�य�व का म�य 6910000  7021000  7978470  11139240 11514123ू

योजना आि�तया ं 6910000  6620508  6416609  7690208 10496842

अ�धवेश/कमी  269023  (42319)  85841  (4173566) (1017281)

योजना दा�य�व� पर बीमांकन लाभ/ हा�न  119761  358173  1647701  (724534) 483469

योजना प�रसंपि�तय� पर बीमांकन लाभ/ हा�न (149262)  0  242026  (50236) 106707

(  '000)`ज. (ii) वतम� ान और गत चार वष�  अ�भ�ा�पत रा�श  म�

2018 - 2019
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                              Particulars              Basis of assumption 

Expected rate of return on plan assets One year Interest rate

Rate of escalation in salary The estimate of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation 
takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors, such as supply and demand in employment market

 (in %) 

                                      Year Ended
     Particulars (Pension)

  31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2017 31-03-2018 31-03-2019

Defined Benefit Obligation 24200000  26950000  28804975  31447233  31965544

Plan Assets 24200000  24171275  24872973  29837287  29388303

Surplus/ (Deficit) 3384623  360403  66  (1782348)  (339937)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan obligation 3405045  3139128  3932068  (172402)  2237304

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets 20422  0  (2359131) 50100  91922

33. Short Term Benefits to employees

Short-term employee benefits, which fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the 
employees render the related service, such as Leave Travel Subsidy (LTS), Medical Benefits, etc., are provided based on 
estimates.

                          Pension Gratuity  Leave Encashment
Particulars

  (Funded) (Funded) (Unfunded)

Discount rate 8.00 8.00         7.60

Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.30 8.30    NA 

Rate of escalation in salary 3.25 3.25   NA 

Employee turnover Not significant

Mortality  LIC (2006-08) for serving employees and LIC (1996-98) for retired members

Method used Projected Unit Credit Method

F. Principal Actuarial assumption at the Balance sheet date (expressed as weighted average)

G. Basis of Actuarial assumption considered

H. (1)  Amount recognized in current year and previous four years (` '000)

                                      Year Ended
     Particulars (Gratuity)

  31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2017 31-03-2018 31-03-2019

Defined Benefit Obligation 6910000  7021000  7978470  11139240 11514123

Plan Assets 6910000  6620508  6416609  7690208 10496842

Surplus/ (Deficit) 269023  (42319)  85841  (4173566) (1017281)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan obligation 119761  358173  1647701  (724534) 483469

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets (149262)  0  242026  (50236) 106707

(` '000)H. (2)  Amount recognized in current year and previous four years
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आ) लेनदेन �ववरण 

�ववरण

मेसेस � केन 

इं�डया 

ए� यरे� स कं. �ल.ू

म�य �बंधन ु

कायप� ालक

मेसेस � इं�डया 

इंटरनेशनल इं� यरे� स ू

�ाइवेट �ल�मटेड

 1.      वष � के दौरान काय � �ववरण    

 अ.  वष � के दौरान �ा�त लाभांश     

   31-03-2019  26399 3439  
   31-03-2018 46587 3179  

   आ. सा� यांश म� �नवेश    

   31-03-2019 
   31-03-2018   118750 

   पनब�मा लेनदेन ु

     - को बकाया - ��य� 

   31-03-2019 49400 
   31-03-2018 16538 

     - से बकाया-��य� 

   31-03-2019 

मेसेस � है�थ 

इं� यरे� स ट�पीए ू

ऑफ इं�डया �ल�मटेड

(` ‘000)

34. उपगत �कए गए �न� न�ल�खत � यय �व�नया� मक क� अपे�ाओ ंके अनसार है �क�टत है-ु

                                                 �ववरण 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

आउटसो�सग�  � यय 1796866  2860714 

कारोबार �वकास 8086  1140980 

�वपणन उ� थान के मद म�           

(` ‘000)

35. संबं�धत प� का �कट�करण : ए एस 18

 अ) संबं�धत प� का नाम और कंपनी के साथ उनका संबंध: 

  (i) �नयं��त कंपनी:      मेसेस � जे�नथ से�य�रट�ज एंड इनवे�टम�ट �ल�मटेड ू

 (ii) संब� कंपनी:        मेसेस � इं�डया इंटरनेशनल इं� यरे� स �ाइवेट �ल, �सगंापर ू ु

                             मेसेस � केन इं�डया ए� यरे� स कंपनी �ल�मटेड, के�या ू

                            मेसेस � हे� थ इं� यरे� स ट�.पी.ए. आफ इं�डया �ल�मटेड, इं�डयाू

  (iii) म�य �ब�धन कायप� ालक  �ी एम एन शमा�, अ�य� सह �बंध �नदेशक ( 31.05.2018 तक)ु

     �ी �गर�श राधाक� णन,  अ�य� सह �बंध �नदेशक (29.10.2018 से )ृ

     �ीमती पी हेममा�लनी, �नदेशक  (30.06.2018 तक)

     �ी बी बालचं�ा, �नदेशक(30.04.2018 तक)

     �ी के गो�वदंराजन, �नदेशक(01.05.2018 से 30.06.2018 तक)

     �ी के बी �वजय�ी�नवास, �नदेशक(01.07.2018 से 31.10.2018 तक)

     �ी एस गोपकमार, �नदेशक(03.08.2018 से )ु

     �ी डी ट� वी शा� �ी, सीएफओ (02.04.2018 से 10.08.2018 तक)

     �ी एस गोपकमार, सीएफओ (10.08.2018 से)ु

     �ी एस व�कटरामन, कंपनी स�चव (31.05.2018 तक)

     कमार� अनगा शांतन देशपांड,े कंपनी स�चव (01.06.2018 से)ु ु

�म

सं�या

2018 - 2019
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b) Details of Transactions 

Sl. 
No.

Particulars
M/s. Ken India 

Assurance 
Co. Ltd.

Key
Managerial
Personnel

M/s. India 
International

Insurance Pte. Ltd.

 1.      Transactions during the year    

 a.  Dividend received during the year    

   31-03-2019  26399 3439 NIL NIL

   31-03-2018 46587 3179 NIL NIL

 b.  Investment in Equity    

   31-03-2019 Nil Nil Nil  Nil

   31-03-2018 Nil Nil 118750 Nil

 c.  Reinsurance transactions 

     - Due to Direct 

   31-03-2019 49400 Nil Nil Nil

   31-03-2018 16538 Nil Nil Nil

     - Due from Direct 

   31-03-2019 Nil Nil Nil Nil

M/s. Health
Insurance TPA of

India Ltd.

(` ‘000)

34. The expenses incurred under the following heads are disclosed

      as per Regulatory requirement

                                                 Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Outsourcing Expenses 1796866  2860714 

Business Development      8086  1140980 

Marketing Support           Nil  Nil 

(` ‘000)

35. Related party disclosures: (AS 18)

 a. Name of the related party and their relationship with the company:

 i). Subsidiary

  M/s. Zenith Securities and Investments Limited

 ii). Associates 

  M/s. India International Insurance Pte Ltd., Singapore

          M/s. Ken India Assurance Co Ltd., Kenya

  M/s. Health Insurance TPA of India Ltd., India

 iii). Key Management Personnel

  Shri M N Sarma Chairman cum Managing Director (Till 31-05-2018)

  Shri Girish Radhakrishnan, Chairman cum Managing Director (From 29-10-2018)

  Smt P Hemamalini, Director (till 30-06-2018)

  Shri B Balachandra, Director (till 30-04-2018)

  Shri K Govindrajan, Director (From 01-05-2018 to 30-06-2018)

  Shri K B Vijaysrinivas, Director (From 01-07-2018 to 31-10-2018)

  Shri S Gopakumar, Director (From 03-08-2018)

  Shri DTV Sastri, CFO (From 02-04-2018 to 10-08-2018)

  Shri S Gopakumar, CFO (From 10-08-2018)

  Shri S Venkataraman, Company Secretary (till 31-05-2018)

  Ms Anagha Shantanu Deshpande, Company Secretary (From 01-06-2018)
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   31-03-2018 

 इ. �नदेशक� का पा�र��मक-�पट 

   31-03-2019  153 
   31-03-2018  275 

 ई. वेतन, भ�ता और अशं दान  

   31-03-2019    29874
   31-03-2018    14015

 . �ा� त �कराया     च

   31-03-2019   815 
   31-03-2018   221 

 . वष � के दौरान �द� त देय ट�पीए श� क    ुछ

   31-03-2019   135944 
   31-03-2018   30306 

 . देय ट�पीए श� क    ुज

   31-03-2019   39539 
   31-03-2018   23418 

 2. 31.03.2019 को शषे �द�त ऋण  

   31-03-2019 
   31-03-2018 

(` ‘000)

कंपनी और उनक� �नयं��त कंपनी रा�य सरकार के �नयं�णाधीन होने से लेखा मानक ए एस -18 क� अपे�ाओ ं के अनसार  ु

काय � �ववरण से संबं�धत �कटन नह�ं �कया है। 

36. ल�सस - एएस - 19

कंपनी के �नर�त यो�य �चालन प�े के अधीन कई वा�ण�य प�रसर तथा आवासीय �लॅट �लए ह�। ये प�े करार समा�यतः 

समाि�त पर नवीनीकरण �कया जाएगा। प�े क� शत � �यक�गत करार पर आधा�रत है। �चालन प�े खच � है  1294271 हज़ार `

(  959143 हज़ार) राज�व खात ेम� �भा�रत है। `

37.  लेखा मानक ए एस 20 के अनसार ��त शयेर का आय का �कट�कर :  ु णा

�म सं�या �ववरण 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

 1. शयेरधारक� के �लए उपल�ध श� लाभ (� हजार� म�) -19004106 10026584 ु

 2. भा�रत औसत पर जार� सामयांश शये र�  (सं�या म�) 150000000 150000000

 3. ��येक  10/- के ��त शयेर से मल आय  -126.69 66.84ू`

कंपनी के पास कोई बकाया बंद संभा�य सामयांश शयेर नह�ं है। इसके प�रणाम�व�प कंपनी के मल और ��त शयेर से �ा�य ू

आय म� कोई प�रवतन�  नह�ं है। 

38. भ�व�य म� पया��त कर यो�य आय क� उ�चत �नि�चंतता के अभाव म� 31.03.2019 को �थ�गत कर प�रसंपि�तयाँ   

अ�भ�ा�पत नह�ं है । 

 

39. �बंधन क� राय म� कंपनी क� प�रसंपि�तय� म� कोई म�य�ास नह�ं है जो लेखा मानक 28 के अनसार समायोजना क�  ू ु

अपे�ा हो।

2018 - 2019
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�ववरण

मेसेस � केन 

इं�डया 

ए� यरे� स कं. �ल.ू

म�य �बंधन ु

कायप� ालक

मेसेस � इं�डया 

इंटरनेशनल इं� यरे� स ू

�ाइवेट �ल�मटेड

मेसेस � है�थ 

इं� यरे� स ट�पीए ू

ऑफ इं�डया �ल�मटेड

�म

सं�या
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Sl. 
No.

Particulars
M/s. Ken India 

Assurance 
Co. Ltd.

Key
Managerial
Personnel

M/s. India 
International

Insurance Pte. Ltd.

   31-03-2018 Nil Nil Nil Nil
 d. Director's Remuneration Received 
   31-03-2019 Nil 153 Nil Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil 275 Nil Nil
 e. Salaries, Allowances and Contributions 
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil Nil 29874
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil Nil 14015
 f. Rent received    
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil 815 Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil 221 Nil
 g. TPA fees paid during the year    
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil 135944 Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil 30306 Nil
 h. TPA fees payable    
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil 39539 Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil 23418 Nil
 2. Balances as on 31-03-2019
  Loans given 
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil Nil Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil Nil Nil

M/s. Health
Insurance TPA of

India Ltd.

(` ‘000)

Since the Company and its Subsidiary are State controlled, no disclosures are made pertaining to the transactions with 
other State controlled undertakings in accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standard AS-18.

36. Leases- AS-19

The Company has taken various commercial premises and residential flats under cancellable operating leases. These lease 
agreements are normally renewed on expiry. Lease terms are based on individual agreements. Lease rental expense in 
respect of operating leases charged to revenue account is ̀  1294271 thousands (` 959143 thousands).

37.  Disclosure as per AS-20 "Earnings Per Share"

Sl.No. Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

 1. Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to shareholders (` in thousands) -19004106 10026584 

 2. Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares issued (in Nos.) 150000000 150000000

 3. Basic earnings per share of `10/- each  -126.69 66.84

The Company does not have any outstanding dilutive potential equity shares. Consequently, the basic and diluted earnings 
per share of the Company remain the same.

38.   Deferred Tax Assets has not been recognized as on 31-03-2019 in the absence of reasonable/virtual certainty of    
 sufficient future taxable income.

39. In the opinion of the management, there is no impairment of assets of the company that require any adjustment to 
 be made in terms of Accounting Standard-28.
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  �ववरण 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

 पव � अव�ध आय   124 505ू

पव � अव�ध �यय  46649 95162ू

40.   �पछल� अव�ध के मद� को संबि�धत शीष� के तहत सि�म�लत �कया गया है और �ववरण �न�नानसार है:ु

 �म स ं �ववरण 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

1. ��तधारण जो�खम  83.15 70.02 

2. पनब��मत जो�खम  16.85 29.98 ु

42.  ��तधारण और पनब��मत जो�खम क� सीमा का �ववरणः ु (म� %) 

(` ‘000)

41.    �बंधन �वारा �मा�णतानसार �े�वार संकलन �ी�मय का �ववरण ु

�ववरण 

31-03-2019

म�  यू %

 1. �ामीण �े� (जार� 

  पॉ�ल�सय� क� सं� या) 22989620 2245979 14.00 29001011 168531487  16.64 

 2. सामािजक �े� (आव�रत

  � यि�तय� क� सं� या) 11121675 114228500 6.77 13805170 125287424 7.92

 3. अ� य �े� 130093398 - 79.23 131493326 - 75.44

  कल कारोबार 164204693  100 174299507  100ु

(` ‘000)

जार� पॉ�ल�सय� क� 

सं� या और आव�रत 

� यि�तय� क� 

31-03-2018

जार� पॉ�ल�सय� क� 

सं� या और आव�रत 

� यि�तय� क� 
%

44. �ी�मयम क� कमीः

 सकल �� य� गैर अिजत�  �ी�मयम का प�रकलन 1/12 आधार पर �कया गया है और उससे श� अिजत�  �ी�मयम क� ु

गणना के �लए श� �ी�मयम पर �लया गया है । श� �ी�मयम क� तलना श� उपगत (दावे से संबं�धत � यय स�हत) के ु ु ु ु

साथ ह� क� गयी है और जहां श� उपगत दावे 100% से अ�धक हो �ी�मयम क� कमी श� गैर अिजत�  �ी�मयम पर श� ु ु ु

उपगत दावे के 100% क� आ�ध� य पर गणना क� गयी है और सम� त कारोबार� म� �ी�मयम क� कमी होने क� ि�थ�त म� 

�� येक खंड के आधार पर लेख� म� अ�भ�ा�पत �कया जाता है । 31.03.2019 को खंडानसार राज� व � तर पर �ी�मयम म� ु

कोई कमी नह�ं है । हालां�क मर�न हल, मोटर ट�पी, � यि�तगत दघट� ना और �वमानन सं�वभाग म� �ी�मयम क� कमी ु

हई है िजसे नीचे दशा�या गया है । ु

43. �ावधान का �ववरण

�ववरण

अवकाश नकद�करण (द�घक� ाल�न) 

के �लये �ावधान

शो� य और सं�द� ध ऋण

 के �लये �ावधान 

31-03-2019 31-03-201831-03-2019

वष � के �ारंभ म� शषे 3345378 2876974  130712 141976  2162274 2166737

जोड  0 468404  0 0  307802 212979

उपयोग 0 0 0 0 0 0

�नराकरण 513134 0 12005 11264 13538 217442

वष � के अतं म� शषे 2832244  3345378  118707 130712  2456538 2162274

31-03-2018

(` ‘000)

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

अ� व� � य क� छ�ीु

�म 

सं म�  यू

2018 - 2019
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  Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

 Prior period income  124 505

Prior period expenses  46649 95162

40.   Prior period items have been included in the respective heads and consist of the following

Sl. No. Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

1. Risk Retained   83.15 70.02 

2. Risk Reinsured   16.85 29.98 

42.  The details for extent of risk retained and reinsured are as follows (in %)

(` ‘000)

41.   The sector-wise Gross Premium underwritten as certified by the Management is as follows

Sl. 
No. Particulars

31-03-2019

Value %

 1. Rural Sector 
  (No.of Policies issued) 22989620 2245979 14.00 29001011 168531487  16.64 

 2. Social Sector 
  (Lives covered) 11121675 114228500 6.77 13805170 125287424 7.92

 3. Other Sector 130093398 - 79.23 131493326 - 75.44

  Total Business 164204693  100 174299507  100

(` ‘000)

No. of Policies
issued and lives

covered

31-03-2018

No. of Policies
issued and lives

covered
Value %

44. Premium Deficiency

 The Gross Direct unearned premium is arrived at 1/12 basis and the same is applied on Net Premium to arrive at Net 

Unearned Premium. The net premium is compared with the Net incurred claims (including claims related cost) and 

where the net incurred claims is more than 100%, the premium deficiency is calculated on the excess over 100% of 

Net Incurred Claims on Net Unearned Premium and the same is calculated for each portfolio and is recognized in the 

books only when there is deficiency at segmental Revenue Account level. For the year ended 31-03-2019, there is no 

premium deficiency at segmental revenue level. However, premium deficiency has arisen only in Marine Hull, Motor 

TP, Personal Accident and Aviation portfolio and the same is disclosed hereunder.

43. Details of Provisions

Particulars

Provision for Leave 

Encashment (Long Term)
Provision for Bad and 

Doubtful Debts

31-03-2019 31-03-201831-03-2019

Opening balance 3345378 2876974  130712 141976  2162274 2166737

Additions 0 468404  0 0  307802 212979

Utilization 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversals 513134 0 12005 11264 13538 217442

Closing balance  2832244  3345378  118707 130712  2456538 2162274

31-03-2018

(` ‘000)

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Sick Leave
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    कमी

                    31-03-2019 31-03-2018

 � यि�तगत दघट� ना  224536 15231ु

�वमानन   38194 129987

� वा� � य व अ� पताल�करण 0 2161040

अ� य �व�वध 0 1362838

मर�न हल     140642 0

मोटर ट�पी  4907133 0

(` ‘000)

45. प�रप� सं. आईआरडीए / एफ & ए / प�र/प�ांक /सी एल डी /114 / 05 / 2015 �दनाक 28.05.2015 के अनसार दावा न   ु

�कए गए रा�श और �नवेश आय का खलाया       (` ‘000)ु

                                �ववरण   2018-19 2017-18

 �ारि�भक शषे  599315 580076

 जोड़: �बना दावे क� रा�श जो ह� तांत�रत क� गयी 152122 118914

 जोड़: �बना दावे क� रा�श से चेक �दान �कए गए पर बीमाधारक �वारा 

 िजनका भगतान नह�ं �लया गया  104707 45584ु

 जोड़: �नवेश आय 98708 61539

 घटाव: वष � मे अदा �कया गया रा�श  280178 212798

 दावा न �कये गये रा�श का अ�ं तम शषे  674674 593315

* नोट: भगतान क� गई रा�श म� �न� न�ल�खत सि�म�लत है।ु

(i) आईआरडीए के प�रप� स.ं  आईआरडीए /एफ &ए /प�र/ �व�वध / 173/07/2017 �द. 25.07.2017 एवं प�रप� स.ं   

आईआरडीए /एफ & ए / प�र / �व�वध / 20/02/2018 �द. 06.02.2018 के अनसार  4000 हजार क� रा�श व�र� ठ ु `

नाग�रक क� याण �न�ध को ह� तांत�रत क� गई है।

(ii) पा�लसीधारक� (  602823 हजार) के अदा�वत रा�श हेत 31.03.2019  को  642957 हजार क� साव�ध �न�ध का ु` `

शषे उपल� ध है।

(iii) पा�लसीधारक� क� �न�ध का वषव� ार �न� लेषण अनल� नक - (iv)  म� संल� न है।ु

46. पया�वरण और वन मं�ालय ने राज�व अ�धसचना �दनां�कत 4.11.08 के मा�यम से कंपनी को पाँच वष � क� अव�ध के ू

�लए ''पया�वरण राहत �न�ध''(ईआरएफ) के �न�ध �ब�धक के �प मे �नयि�त क� गयी है। उसके प�चात जार� अ�धसचना ु ू

सं�या जीएसआर 606 (ई) �दनां�कत 16 जन  2016 के अनसार कंपनी को �न�ध �ब�धक के �प म� 31 माच � 2019 तक ू ु

बढ़ाया गया है। �नमा�ण, श�क प�रकलन क� �णाल� सां�व�धक अपे�ाओ ं और अ�य �चालन मामल� के संबंध म� ु

�प�ट�करण अपे��त है। क�थत अ�धसचना के अनसार कंपनी ने �न�ध �ब�धक सेवा �भार के �लए वष � के दौरान  5699 ू ु `

हज़ार (  5547 हज़ार) को आय के �प म� मा�यता द� है, यह �न�ध के अनपे��त लेखा के आधार पर है ।`
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खंड 



    Deficiency

                    31-03-2019 31-03-2018

 Personal Accident 224536 15231

Aviation  38194 129987

Health & Hospitalisation 0 2161040

Other Misc.  0 1362838

Marine Hull        140642 0

Motor TP  4907133 0

Segment

(` ‘000)

45. Disclosure of Unclaimed amount and Investment Income thereon as per circular No.IRDA/F&A/CIR/   
 CLD/114/05/2015  dated 28-05-2015.

                                                                                                                                                                  (` ‘000)

                                 PARTICULARS   2018-19 2017-18

 Opening Balance 599315 580076

 Add: Amount Transferred to Unclaimed Amount 152122 118914

 Add: Cheque issued out of the Unclaimed amount but not encashed by 
 the policyholders'(to be included only when the cheques are stale)  104707 45584

 Add: Investment Income 98708 61539

 Less: Amount Paid during the year 280178 212798

 Closing Balance of Unclaimed Amount 674674 593315

*Note: Paid amount includes

(I) Amount of ` 4000 thousands transferred to Senior Citizens welfare Funds as per IRDAI Circular   
 No.IRDA/F&A/CIR/MISC/173/07/2017 dated 25.07.2017 and Circular No.IRDA/F&A/CIR/MISC/20/02/2018 dated 
 06.02.2018.

(ii) Fixed Deposit balance for an amount of ` 642957 thousands (` 602823 thousands) is available as on 31-03-2019 
 towards unclaimed amount pertaining to policyholders. 

(iii) Age wise analysis of Policyholders’ funds is enclosed in Annexure-IV.

46. The Company was appointed as Fund Manager for “Environment Relief Fund” (ERF) vide Ministry of Environment 
 and Forest’s Gazette Notification dated 4.11.2008 for a period of five years and vide latest notification no. G.S.R 606 
 (E ) dated 16th June 2016, the company’s position as Fund Manager was extended up to 31st March 2019. Pending 
 receipt of clarification regarding Constitution, statutory requirements and other operational issues, the Company in 
 terms of the said notification has recognized Fund Manager's service charges(net of expenses) to the tune of  ` 
 5699 thousands (` 5547 thousands) as income during the year, based on the unaudited accounts of the Fund.
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47. �व�भ� न सरकार� �ा�धकार� �वारा दंडा� मक कायव� ाह� का �ववरणः

1. बीमा �व�नयामक और �वकास �ा�धकरण   1400 1400 0

 

2. सेवा कर �ा�धकार�   0 2380 0

3. आय कर �ा�धकार�  0 0 0 0

4. अ� य कर �ा�धकार�  0 0 0 0

5. �वतन�  �नदेशालय/�नणा�यक �ा�धकार/ 

 अ�धकरण या एफईएमए के तहत कोई 

 �ा�धकार  0 0 0 0

6. कंप�नय� के पंजीयक / एनसीएलट�/ 

 सीएलबी/कंपनी अ�ध�नयम 1956 के 

 तहत �नगमीय काय � �वभाग या अ� य 

 �ा�धकार�  0 0 0 0

7. � यायालय/अ�धकरण �वारा ��तप�त �ू

 को छोडकर, दावा �नपटान स�हत �कसी 

 मामला हेत जार� जमा�ना आदेश  0 0 0 0ु ु

8. भारतीय ��तभ�त और �व�नमय बोड �  0 0 0 0ू

9. भारतीय ��तयो�गता आय� त  0 0 0 0ु

10. कोई अ� य क� ��य / रा� य / � थानीय 

 सरकार / सां�व�धक �ा�धकार  0 0 0 0

वष � के दौरान �कसी भी अ� य सरकार� �ा�धकरण �वारा कोई अ� य दंडनीय कार�वाई नह�ं क� गई है । 

(` ‘000)

                                                       �ववरण  31-03-2019 31-03-2018

वष � के अतं म� �कसी भी आप�तक� ता� के �लए अ�द�त शषे मल धन रा�श  Nil Nilू ू

उपरो�त रा�श पर �याज Nil Nil

माइ�ो, लघ, म�य उ�यम �वकास अ�ध�नयम 2006 क� धारा 16 के अनसार ु ु

भगतान �याज क� रा�श  Nil Nilु

वष � के दौरान �नधा��रत �दवस के बाद आप�तक� ता� को भगतान क� गयी रा�श  Nil Nilू ु

�वलंब से भगतान करने के �लए बकाया और देय �याज क� रा�श परंत ु ु

अ�ध�नयम के तहत �न�द��ट �याज के जोड़ े�बना  Nil Nil

वष � के अतं मे अिजत�  और बकाया अ�द�त �याज क� रा�श  Nil Nil

48.  माइ�ो, लघ, म�य उ�यम �वकास अ�ध�नयम 2006 क� धारा 22 के तहत माइ�ो और लघ, उ�यम को �वलंब से  ु ु

भगतान अ�याय के अधीन अपे��त �कट�करण ु

कंपनी के पास उपल�ध सचना के आधार पर पा�ट�य� क� पहचान करत ेहए उपरो�त जानकार� को संक�लत �कया गया है। ू ु

1. दावा भगतान म� �वलंब ` 5 लाखु

2. उ�चत औ�च� य दज � न होने पर ` 4 लाख 

3. �नपटा�नत  मोटर  �व��त  दावा  ` 5 लाख 

�म 
सं.

�ववरण गैर अनपालन / उ� लंघन ु जमा�नाु
अदा क� गयी 
जमा�ना रा�श ु

जमा�ना ु

अ�ध� याग

/ कटौती

2018 - 2019
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सेवा कर के इनपट �े�डट का दावा करने म� �भ�नताु



47.  Details of penal actions taken by various Government Authorities

Sl.  Non-Compliance /  Penalty  Penalty  Penalty Waived /
Authority

No.  Violation  Awarded Paid  Reduced

1. Insurance Regulatory and 
 Development Authority   1400 1400 0

 
2. Service Tax Authorities   0 2380 0
3. Income Tax Authorities  0 0 0 0
4. Any other Tax Authorities  0 0 0 0
5. Enforcement Directorate / 
 Adjudicating Authority / Tribunal 
 or any Authority under FEMA  0 0 0 0
6. Registrar of Companies / NCLT / 
 CLB / Department of Corporate 
 Affairs or any Authority under 
 Companies Act, 1956  0 0 0 0
7. Penalty awarded by any Court / 
 Tribunal for any matter including 
 claim settlement but excluding 
 compensation  0 0 0 0
8. Securities and Exchange Board of India  0 0 0 0
9. Competition Commission of India  0 0 0 0
10. Any other Central / State / 
 Local Government / 
 Statutory Authority  0 0 0 0

No other penal action has been taken by any other Government Authority during the year.

(` ‘000)

                                                       Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year Nil Nil

Interest due on the above amount Nil Nil

Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006. Nil Nil

Amount of payments made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day

during the year Nil Nil

Amount of interest due and payable for the delay in making the payment but 

without adding the interest specified under the Act  Nil Nil

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year Nil Nil

48.  Disclosures required under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 
       under t  he Chapter on Delayed Payments to Micro and Small Enterprises.

The above information have been compiled to the extent such parties have been identified based on information available 
with the company.

1.)Delay in claim payment- Rs 5 lakh

 2.)Not recording proper Justification- Rs 4 lakhs

 3.)Settlement of Motor OD claim – Rs 5 lakhs.

Variation in claiming Input Credit of Service Tax
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49. चाल वष � के वग�करण / �प�ट�करण के अनपालन करने के �लए जहां आव�यक हो गत वष � के आकंड़ ेपनवग�कत �कए ू ु ु ृ

गए ह�। 

50. आई. आर. डी. ए के मानदंड के अनसार �व�तीय �ववरण म� व�णत�  �ह�से म� आकंड़ े�पये हजार� म� ह� । ु

50 अ) 

 �व� तीय वष � 2014 -15 के दौरान मंडल �बंधक, मंडल काया�लय लातर के संबंध म� � �ॉल के द�पयोग से उ� प� न    ू ु

अ�नय�मतताय � पहचानी गयी तो सीबीआई के जांच के अतंगत�  है ।  इस धोखाधडी से संबं�धत सभी कमच� ा�रय� को 

सतक� ता �वभाग �वारा आरोप प� जार� �कया गया है ।  यह मामला गंभीर धोखाधडी जांच काया�लय के अतंगत�  है ।  

यह मामला कंपनी �वारा �नय� त � वतं� सनद� लेखाकार के �व� तत जांच म� ह� । ु ृ

 �व� तीय वष � 2017-18 के दौरान आतं�रक लेखा पर��ा एवं �नर��ण �वभाग �वारा मंडल काया�लय-1, सरत के कई ू

�व� तीय अ�नय�मतताय � जसेै वक�ल, सव��क, �नर��णकता�, क� �नयि�त एवं अ� य खच� के संबंध म� कई मामले म� ु

दिजत�  है ।  यह मामला गंभीर धोखाधडी जांच काया�लय के अतंगत�  है । 

 �व� तीय वष � 2017-18 के दौरान मंडल काया�लय-2 ज� म (माइ�ो काया�लय, �क� तवार)  मे  1637574 नकद धोखाधडी ू `

सतक� ता �वभाग के जांच के अतंग � है ।

51. को� ठक म� �दये गये आकंड े�पछले वष � से संबं�धत है ।
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कृत े�नदेशक मंडल तथा उनक� तरफ  से 

�गरीश राधाकृ�न
अ� य�-सह-�बंध �नदेशक
िडन: 08268834

हमारे संल� ��तवेदन के अनसुार

कृते ए वी देवन एंड कंपनी
सनदी लेखाकार
एफ आर एन: 000726एस

कृते पी बी �वजयराघवन एंड कंपनी
सनदी लेखाकार
एफ आर एन: 004721एस 

कृते ए जॉन मो�रस ए� कंपनी
सनदी लेखाकार
एफ आर एन: 007220एस

सीए॰ आर रघुरामन
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 201760

सीए. पी बी �ी�नवास
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 203774

सीए. जी. कमारु
भागीदार
सद�ता सं�ा: 023082

�ान: चे� नै
�दनाकं: 31.05.2019

अनघा देशपाडें 
कंपनी स�चव

एस गोपकुमार
�नदेशक और मु� �व�ीय अ�धकारी
िडन: 074542356

पा�रजात द�ा
�नदेशक
िडन: 07039727

�स� ु�प�ै
�नदेशक
िडन: 07399558



49. Regrouping/reclassifying/ rearranging of previous year figures has been done wherever necessary to conform to the 
current year groupings/ classifications. 

50. Figures in the narrative part of financial statements are in thousands of Rupees, conforming to IRDAI norms.

50A) During the period 2014-15, fraud was detected by the Divisional Manager at DO Latur regarding irregularities of 
  mis-utilisation of scroll and the same is under Investigation by CBI. The employees involved in the fraud have 
  also been charge sheeted by the Vigilance Department. The matter is under investigation by Serious Fraud  
  Investigation Office (SFIO). The case is also under detailed investigation by an Independent Firm of Chartered 
  Accountants appointed by the Company.

  During the Financial year 2017-18, Internal Audit and Inspection Department has brought out several instances 
  of financial irregularities in DO1 Surat in the appointment of advocates, surveyors, investigator and also in some 
  heads of expenditure.  The Case is under investigation by SFIO.

  Cash Defalcation of `1637574/- happened during the Financial year 2017-18 in (Micro Office Kishtwar) at DO 
  2 Jammu is under investigation by the Vigilance Department.

51. Figures given in brackets relate to previous year. 
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Vide our report of even date attached

ANAGHA DESHPANDE
COMPANY SECRETARY

S GOPAKUMAR
DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

DIN 07542356

GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN   
CHAIRMAN CUM 

MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN 08268834

For and on behalf of Board

 PARIJAT DUTTA
 DIRECTOR

 DIN 07039727

SINDHU PILLAI
DIRECTOR

DIN 07399558

For A V Deven & Co
ICAI FRN :000726S

Chartered Accountants

For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co
ICAI FRN :004721S

Chartered Accountants

For A John Moris & Co   
ICAI FRN :007220S   

Chartered Accountants   

CA R Raghuraman
Partner

Membership No.201760

CA P B Srinivasan
Partner

Membership No.203774

CA G Kumar
Partner

Membership No.023082

Place : Chennai
Date : 31.05.2019
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(` in '000)

 O/s for 3 years or  less  
but more than  1 year

 O/s for 5 years or  less 
but more than  3 years 

 O/s for more than 
 5 years

Total

(v) (vi) (vii)

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount

 938 8585676 340 1574512 378 2475623 3825 24000707

 583 1286013 156 391447 199 387183 2461 3065163

 75 1378431 27 221422 45 224171 270 3202184

 5542 831679 955 157963 626 133658 52022 6225309

 55488 49674540 24091 22836266 35220 16890757 155770 140773956

 253 690844 486 646810 374 139692 1199 1522472

 1318 707458 1812 810916 14966 6050631 23801 7848307

 336 178876 202 147908 319 139972 1160 572351

 1106 599302 236 113685 265 158805 70456 2339852

 14 130639 5 105587 2 32726 35 633187

 828 2543473 222 2262433 114 1749728 3251 9311015

 2235 4052112 583 409159 410 390430 8116 14651425

 236 547875 501 424456 782 290592 1699 1585611

 36306 1330345 854 105292 369 75986 329804 10063579

105258 72537264 30470 30207856 54069 29139955 653869 225795118

(` '000)

(v) (vi) (vii)

 938 8585676 340 1574512 378 2475623 3825 24000707

 583 1286013 156 391447 199 387183 2461 3065163

 75 1378431 27 221422 45 224171 270 3202184

 5542 831679 955 157963 626 133658 52022 6225309

 55488 49674540 24091 22836266 35220 16890757 155770 140773956

 253 690844 486 646810 374 139692 1199 1522472

 1318 707458 1812 810916 14966 6050631 23801 7848307

 336 178876 202 147908 319 139972 1160 572351

 1106 599302 236 113685 265 158805 70456 2339852

 14 130639 5 105587 2 32726 35 633187

 828 2543473 222 2262433 114 1749728 3251 9311015

 2235 4052112 583 409159 410 390430 8116 14651425

 236 547875 501 424456 782 290592 1699 1585611

 36306 1330345 854 105292 369 75986 329804 10063579

105258 72537264 30470 30207856 54069 29139955 653869 225795118
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 211 619822 328 1674111 458 1638982 1124 5034116

 190 310194 457 653041 623 207812 949 453906

 37 30964 36 107621 24 37716 40 979793

 19615 1487929 19961 1892246 12681 1567669 9751 1459560

 
 3069 12318715 6271 13453781 9852 15010950 18608 18845494

 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 19 11718 24 24286 46 115255 167 263098

 97 108109 153 82704 193 90805 390 1336013

 46 16531 101 19068 122 39442 169 84165

 475 168376 992 256871 1375 415878 1349 736632

 2 17339 1 11500 10 28685 5 58979

 401 211171 633 249561 711 854509 1016 1264068

 1567 1742534 2067 1495460 2379 7896465 2686 1198084

 19 123735 33 127451 47 121634 81 167049

 114578 3965689 107238 3143898 43857 1726759 23700 1338552

 140326 21132825 138295 23191601 72378 29752560 60035 33219509

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv)

Ageing of Claims as at 31-03-2018 (INDIAN BUSINESS)

Fire 211 619822 328 1674111 458 1638982 1124 5034116

Marine Cargo 190 310194 457 653041 623 207812 949 453906

Marine Hull 37 30964 36 107621 24 37716 40 979793

Motor OD 19615 1487929 19961 1892246 12681 1567669 9751 1459560

Motor TP Pending 
in MACT 3069 12318715 6271 13453781 9852 15010950 18608 18845494

Motor TP Others 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Motor DR Pool 19 11718 24 24286 46 115255 167 263098

Motor TP Pool 97 108109 153 82704 193 90805 390 1336013

Workmen Comp. 46 16531 101 19068 122 39442 169 84165

Personal Acc. 475 168376 992 256871 1375 415878 1349 736632

Aviation 2 17339 1 11500 10 28685 5 58979

Engineering 401 211171 633 249561 711 854509 1016 1264068

Other Misc. 1567 1742534 2067 1495460 2379 7896465 2686 1198084

Liabilities 19 123735 33 127451 47 121634 81 167049

Health & Hosp. 114578 3965689 107238 3143898 43857 1726759 23700 1338552

TOTAL 140326 21132825 138295 23191601 72378 29752560 60035 33219509

 O/s for 30 days

 or less

 O/s for 3 months   or less 
but  more than  30 days 

 O/s for 6 months  or less
but   more than  3 months 

 O/s for 1 year or  less 
but more than   6 months 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv)

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount

Department

2018 - 2019

284



(` in '000)

 O/s for 3 years or  less  
but more than  1 year

 O/s for 5 years or  less 
but more than  3 years 

 O/s for more than 
 5 years

Total

(v) (vi) (vii)

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount

 1169 11294758 244 1680957 250 2067416 3784 24010163

 1022 847653 137 302799 183 467912 3561 3243317

 71 1357463 29 175513 36 566040 273 3255109

 5346 1042020 708 131631 662 143530 68724 7724585

 47432 30829046 20508 8366494 35140 8524263 140880 107348743

 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 826 1156380 450 164780 41 12834 1573 1748350

 1734 1004674 3220 977399 16432 5073232 22219 8672936

 383 161556 159 74115 245 65857 1225 460734

 1248 427750 111 37432 196 121373 5746 2164312

 5 73416 3 370610 1 25000 27 585528

 1021 2517144 177 4970643 83 270199 4042 10337295

 5409 1653485 370 433721 476 492398 14954 14912149

 390 600233 509 369826 460 156998 1539 1666926

 18708 1790375 881 799532 255 25370 309217 12790174

 84764 54755953 27506 18855452 54460 18012421 577764 198920321

(` in '000)

 1169 11294758 244 1680957 250 2067416 3784 24010163

 1022 847653 137 302799 183 467912 3561 3243317

 71 1357463 29 175513 36 566040 273 3255109

 5346 1042020 708 131631 662 143530 68724 7724585

 47432 30829046 20508 8366494 35140 8524263 140880 107348743

 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 826 1156380 450 164780 41 12834 1573 1748350

 1734 1004674 3220 977399 16432 5073232 22219 8672936

 383 161556 159 74115 245 65857 1225 460734

 1248 427750 111 37432 196 121373 5746 2164312

 5 73416 3 370610 1 25000 27 585528

 1021 2517144 177 4970643 83 270199 4042 10337295

 5409 1653485 370 433721 476 492398 14954 14912149

 390 600233 509 369826 460 156998 1539 1666926

 18708 1790375 881 799532 255 25370 309217 12790174

 84764 54755953 27506 18855452 54460 18012421 577764 198920321

69285
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Ageing of Claims as at 31-03-2017 (INDIAN BUSINESS)

Fire 392 4201807 542 1338666 1025 3780567 1091 6310696

Marine Cargo 311 595481 412 160583 588 194207 1101 449311

Marine Hull 47 1164686 43 16613 35 154956 41 181543

Motor OD 11557 2206221 11985 982037 8280 1030559 6845 816601

Motor TP Pending
 in MACT 3708 25344903 5385 2361548 6982 2810131 16718 7407840

Motor TP Others 68 3099 34 23088 304 361229 132 177874

Motor DR Pool 49 3877810 56 20951 96 17818 351 124154

Motor TP Pool 147 -607107 198 86114 397 129145 560 236669

Workmen Comp. 47 164243 88 14994 108 45433 131 33163

Personal Acc. 343 629055 695 170950 983 225668 988 252525

Aviation 3 379110 0 0 2 8933 3 262190

Engineering 356 -230622 535 388070 652 1046557 914 2084166

Other Misc. 642 9758010 650 425819 828 376883 1302 539661

Liabilities 547 583727 26 47866 60 104235 69 33383

Health & Hosp. 56954 7983742 46410 1478986 30597 733720 6424 271407

TOTAL 75171 56054164 67059 7516285 50937 11020039 36670 19181183

 O/s for 30 days

 or less

 O/s for 3 months   or less 
but  more than  30 days 

 O/s for 6 months  or less
but   more than  3 months 

 O/s for 1 year or  less 
but more than   6 months 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv)

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount

Department

 392 4201807 542 1338666 1025 3780567 1091 6310696

 311 595481 412 160583 588 194207 1101 449311

 47 1164686 43 16613 35 154956 41 181543

 11557 2206221 11985 982037 8280 1030559 6845 816601

 

 3708 25344903 5385 2361548 6982 2810131 16718 7407840

 68 3099 34 23088 304 361229 132 177874

 49 3877810 56 20951 96 17818 351 124154

 147 -607107 198 86114 397 129145 560 236669

 47 164243 88 14994 108 45433 131 33163

 343 629055 695 170950 983 225668 988 252525

 3 379110 0 0 2 8933 3 262190

 356 -230622 535 388070 652 1046557 914 2084166

 642 9758010 650 425819 828 376883 1302 539661

 547 583727 26 47866 60 104235 69 33383

 56954 7983742 46410 1478986 30597 733720 6424 271407

 75171 56054164 67059 7516285 50937 11020039 36670 19181183

2018 - 2019

69286



(` in '000)

 O/s for 3 years or  less  
but more than  1 year

 O/s for 5 years or  less 
but more than  3 years 

 O/s for more than 
 5 years

Total

(v) (vi) (vii)

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount

 1148 8237797 201 1267437 215 1996073 4614 27133043

 1182 925349 214 476536 255 319062 4063 3120529

 100 657705 37 1026982 40 114945 343 3317429

 5015 621791 651 92241 329 70464 44662 5819912

 42677 16423662 19189 6348339 46241 10691858 140900 71388281

 285 114521 344 44350 366 -90123 1533 634038

 770 270196 301 98541 4 -3732 1627 4405739

 3025 997716 9571 3183298 17628 5120174 31526 9146009

 197 83518 106 35941 128 41741 805 419031

 932 252264 366 47850 358 142199 4665 1720511

 11 236322 10 30198 2 25000 31 941752

 1017 5494779 241 2112869 104 575025 3819 11470843

 1395 822474 303 269545 216 371268 5336 12563660

 259 386543 244 275928 224 63931 1429 1495612

 3604 574732 681 53390 249 25933 144919 11121910

 61617 36099369 32459 15363444 66359 19463816 390272 164698300

 1148 8237797 201 1267437 215 1996073 4614 27133043

 1182 925349 214 476536 255 319062 4063 3120529

 100 657705 37 1026982 40 114945 343 3317429

 5015 621791 651 92241 329 70464 44662 5819912

 42677 16423662 19189 6348339 46241 10691858 140900 71388281

 285 114521 344 44350 366 -90123 1533 634038

 770 270196 301 98541 4 -3732 1627 4405739

 3025 997716 9571 3183298 17628 5120174 31526 9146009

 197 83518 106 35941 128 41741 805 419031

 932 252264 366 47850 358 142199 4665 1720511

 11 236322 10 30198 2 25000 31 941752

 1017 5494779 241 2112869 104 575025 3819 11470843

 1395 822474 303 269545 216 371268 5336 12563660

 259 386543 244 275928 224 63931 1429 1495612

 3604 574732 681 53390 249 25933 144919 11121910

 61617 36099369 32459 15363444 66359 19463816 390272 164698300

69287



 296 1982682 411 2101657 1361 6168594 1187 4876635

 308 485233 468 146184 860 269555 1538 406751

 34 131212 34 2115510 63 83879 43 419127

 10350 1622016 11895 704411 9354 818870 9422 1066555

 2918 9505469 5385 1973651 6798 2220768 14806 5170053

 709 101322 1 809 5 7756 17 40301

 84 4408286 130 35800 157 65822 326 99286

 186 10290184 472 131053 354 99839 906 263262

 47 182817 54 11473 82 18407 165 39766

 444 461353 853 128178 987 202331 1327 259827

 2 2734976 0 0 4 540100 6 10096

 397 1763513 626 375613 818 1036876 1223 1320883

 854 137995 745 192830 1301 218918 1683 645955

 31 330815 51 42588 53 9279 153 174760

 3838 5424281 2527 195930 2381 668779 1724 599555

 20498 39562156 23652 8155687 24578 12429771 34526 15392811

Fire 296 1982682 411 2101657 1361 6168594 1187 4876635

Marine Cargo 308 485233 468 146184 860 269555 1538 406751

Marine Hull 34 131212 34 2115510 63 83879 43 419127

Motor OD 10350 1622016 11895 704411 9354 818870 9422 1066555

Motor TP Pending 
in MACT 2918 9505469 5385 1973651 6798 2220768 14806 5170053

Motor TP Others 709 101322 1 809 5 7756 17 40301

Motor DR Pool 84 4408286 130 35800 157 65822 326 99286

Motor TP Pool 186 10290184 472 131053 354 99839 906 263262

Workmen Comp. 47 182817 54 11473 82 18407 165 39766

Personal Acc. 444 461353 853 128178 987 202331 1327 259827

Aviation 2 2734976 0 0 4 540100 6 10096

Engineering 397 1763513 626 375613 818 1036876 1223 1320883

Other Misc. 854 137995 745 192830 1301 218918 1683 645955

Liabilities 31 330815 51 42588 53 9279 153 174760

Health & Hosp. 3838 5424281 2527 195930 2381 668779 1724 599555

TOTAL 20498 39562156 23652 8155687 24578 12429771 34526 15392811

 O/s for 30 days

 or less

 O/s for 3 months   or less 
but  more than  30 days 

 O/s for 6 months  or less
but   more than  3 months 

 O/s for 1 year or  less 
but more than   6 months 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv)

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount

Department

2018 - 2019

69288

Ageing of Claims as at 31-03-2016 (INDIAN BUSINESS)



 1232 6160493 171 879490 140 1870226 4798 24039777

 1157 1142891 215 222378 146 321207 4692 2994198

 116 471103 40 1089886 36 47599 366 4358315

 6362 530327 580 69766 431 63808 48394 4875753

 40297 12998297 19985 4721879 63594 10972586 153783 47562703

 16 45618 2 1654 4 1855 754 199315

 910 299566 164 47711 170 10195 1941 4966665

 6712 1721106 20777 5840289 15987 3760971 45394 22106704

 395 91099 210 49735 217 40547 1170 433844

 1687 245019 772 79312 170 130110 6240 1506130

 12 210674 8 44340 0 0 32 3540186

 1532 8000286 231 521776 54 250819 4881 13269765

 2227 939889 598 587360 1100 247428 8508 2970377

 555 498330 165 56410 277 102998 1285 1215180

 3364 525829 307 35115 77 3095 14218 7452583

 66574 33880528 44225 14247100 82403 17823443 296456 141491495

(` in '000)

 O/s for 3 years or  less  
but more than  1 year

 O/s for 5 years or  less 
but more than  3 years 

 O/s for more than 
 5 years

Total

(v) (vi) (vii)

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount

 1232 6160493 171 879490 140 1870226 4798 24039777

 1157 1142891 215 222378 146 321207 4692 2994198

 116 471103 40 1089886 36 47599 366 4358315

 6362 530327 580 69766 431 63808 48394 4875753

 40297 12998297 19985 4721879 63594 10972586 153783 47562703

 16 45618 2 1654 4 1855 754 199315

 910 299566 164 47711 170 10195 1941 4966665

 6712 1721106 20777 5840289 15987 3760971 45394 22106704

 395 91099 210 49735 217 40547 1170 433844

 1687 245019 772 79312 170 130110 6240 1506130

 12 210674 8 44340 0 0 32 3540186

 1532 8000286 231 521776 54 250819 4881 13269765

 2227 939889 598 587360 1100 247428 8508 2970377

 555 498330 165 56410 277 102998 1285 1215180

 3364 525829 307 35115 77 3095 14218 7452583

 66574 33880528 44225 14247100 82403 17823443 296456 141491495
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Fire 331 147045 292 1525485 1595 5038568 1360 3416422

Marine Cargo 690 657225 544 336989 699 430049 1100 442656

Marine Hull 49 345567 46 196131 57 70986 71 192578

Motor OD 8080 1302780 10144 454721 8664 416243 9424 668688

Motor TP Pending 

in MACT 1213 8373855 3722 1467685 6149 2187023 11228 3482688

Motor TP Others 205 500525 157 44038 141 14358 405 280720

Motor DR Pool 160 3418235 379 58128 181 49169 423 108364

Motor TP Pool 312 14619756 642 207363 1020 350346 1685 536580

Workmen Comp. 97 85729 126 21907 131 19036 257 43802

Personal Acc. 740 93118 752 87532 938 93788 1780 326780

Aviation 3 233285 0 0 5 12665 5 117630

Engineering 555 927126 690 639250 1228 3109378 2106 2504120

Other Misc. 1894 219482 1550 329275 2364 595721 2164 528171

Liabilities 41 317693 71 217964 140 14269 223 97706

Health & Hosp. 11974 3297987 1662 453771 1446 616673 3383 366020

TOTAL 26344 34539411 20777 6040238 24758 13018275 35614 13112924

 O/s for 30 days

 or less

 O/s for 3 months   or less 
but  more than  30 days 

 O/s for 6 months  or less
but   more than  3 months 

 O/s for 1 year or  less 
but more than   6 months 

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv)

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount

Department

 331 147045 292 1525485 1595 5038568 1360 3416422

 690 657225 544 336989 699 430049 1100 442656

 49 345567 46 196131 57 70986 71 192578

 8080 1302780 10144 454721 8664 416243 9424 668688

 

 1213 8373855 3722 1467685 6149 2187023 11228 3482688

 205 500525 157 44038 141 14358 405 280720

 160 3418235 379 58128 181 49169 423 108364

 312 14619756 642 207363 1020 350346 1685 536580

 97 85729 126 21907 131 19036 257 43802

 740 93118 752 87532 938 93788 1780 326780

 3 233285 0 0 5 12665 5 117630

 555 927126 690 639250 1228 3109378 2106 2504120

 1894 219482 1550 329275 2364 595721 2164 528171

 41 317693 71 217964 140 14269 223 97706

 11974 3297987 1662 453771 1446 616673 3383 366020

 26344 34539411 20777 6040238 24758 13018275 35614 13112924

2018 - 2019

69290

Ageing of Claims as at 31-03-2015 (INDIAN BUSINESS)
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 1048 4674675 145 592764 219 1999862 4990 17394822

 1253 782468 300 204989 121 749299 4707 3603676

 147 2660439 31 102123 35 34666 436 3602491

 10147 425848 13462 304019 819 112913 60740 3685213

 29494 7881696 18052 3548950 59473 9604285 129331 36546182

 847 426898 229 56972 22 137845 2006 1461356

 727 199294 0 0 0 0 1870 3833191

 15897 4451254 20674 5107676 10017 2124208 50247 27397183

 498 106216 217 51123 310 37450 1636 365263

 2316 200366 588 84771 188 123162 7302 1009518

 7 37980 3 30367 1 19426 24 451353

 1819 4386119 204 306497 79 207443 6681 12079932

 3573 1192597 669 401356 1546 259216 13760 3525818

 345 375883 147 56982 247 75773 1214 1156270

 4048 215585 472 175150 164 190 23149 5125376

 72166 28017318 55193 11023738 73241 15485739 308093 121237642

(` in '000)

 O/s for 3 years or  less  
but more than  1 year

 O/s for 5 years or  less 
but more than  3 years 

 O/s for more than 
 5 years

Total

(v) (vi) (vii)

No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount No. Amount

 1048 4674675 145 592764 219 1999862 4990 17394822

 1253 782468 300 204989 121 749299 4707 3603676

 147 2660439 31 102123 35 34666 436 3602491

 10147 425848 13462 304019 819 112913 60740 3685213

 29494 7881696 18052 3548950 59473 9604285 129331 36546182

 847 426898 229 56972 22 137845 2006 1461356

 727 199294 0 0 0 0 1870 3833191

 15897 4451254 20674 5107676 10017 2124208 50247 27397183

 498 106216 217 51123 310 37450 1636 365263

 2316 200366 588 84771 188 123162 7302 1009518

 7 37980 3 30367 1 19426 24 451353

 1819 4386119 204 306497 79 207443 6681 12079932

 3573 1192597 669 401356 1546 259216 13760 3525818

 345 375883 147 56982 247 75773 1214 1156270

 4048 215585 472 175150 164 190 23149 5125376

 72166 28017318 55193 11023738 73241 15485739 308093 121237642
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United India Insurance Company Limited

Registration No. 545, Date of Renewal with the IRDAI: 22nd January 2018 

Annexure II : Accounting Ratios

Particulars

(` in '000)

                                                                                            For the year ended                         For the year ended

                             31-03-2019  31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

1.  Gross Premium Growth Rate                                                 Gross Premium                               Growth

 Fire 11729132  12785718 -8.26% -6.31%

 Marine Cargo 2102722  2292554 -8.28% -9.72%

 Marine Hull 1142444  1289337 -11.39% -10.38%

 Motor 67413317  70816902 -4.81% 16.81%

 W.C 713928  718221 -0.60% -13.53%

 P.A 4365245  2390716 82.59% -9.02%

 Aviation 535098  369950 44.64% -35.06%

 Engineering 3932192  3736726 5.23% -16.47%

 Health 53652465  56140293 -4.43% 7.11%

 Liability 1119731  1177551 -4.91% 6.10%

 Other Misc 17498425  22581539 -22.51% 10.96%

 Grand Total 164204698  174299507 -5.79% 8.51%

2. Gross Direct Premium to Shareholders’ Funds   

 Gross Premium  164204698  174299507

 Shareholders' Fund 29441321  48198414

 Ratio 557.74%  361.63%

3. Growth rate of Shareholders' Funds  

 At the end of the year 29441321  48198414

 At the beginning of the year 48198414  38168787

 Growth rate -38.92%  26.28%

4. Net Retention Ratio                                                          Net Written Premium  

4. (i) Net Retention Ratio (Indian)

 Fire 7209558  8109598 55.99% 56.69%

 Marine Cargo 1743988  1989133 82.83% 86.66%

 Marine Hull 306947  358563 24.65% 26.68%

 Motor 63954561  57403978 94.87% 81.06%

 W.C 678232  682310 95.00% 95.00%

 P.A 3130439  2057690 71.71% 86.07%

 Aviation 9473  83457 1.57% 18.63%

 Engineering 2292996  2486379 56.31% 60.91%

 Health 50217072  40522875 93.60% 72.18%

 Liability 837309  902909 66.51% 68.66%

 Other Misc 7544006  9307776 42.96% 40.28%

 Grand Total 137924583  123904670 83.15% 70.02%

For the year
ended 31.03.2019

For the year
ended 31.03.2018
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(` in '000)

For the year
ended 31.03.2019

For the year
ended 31.03.2018

For the year
ended 31.03.2019

For the year
ended 31.03.2018

For the year
ended 31.03.2019

For the year
ended 31.03.2018

  For the year ended For the year ended

                             31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

4. (ii) Net Retention Ratio (Foreign) Nil

5. Net Commission Ratio Net Commission 

 Fire 904500 902879 12.55% 11.13%

 Marine Cargo 258632 235501 14.83% 11.84%

 Marine Hull 10297 -999 3.35% -0.28%

 Motor 2941113 1801773 4.60% 3.14%

 W.C 82034 84053 12.10% 12.32%

 P.A -6603 114856 -0.21% 5.58%

 Aviation -15705 4369 -165.78% 5.23%

 Engineering 213872 144774 9.33% 5.82%

 Health 2616513 2090375 5.21% 5.16%

 Liability 100104 85788 11.96% 9.50%

 Other Misc 222272 1212504 2.95% 13.03%

 Grand Total 7327028 6675872 5.31% 5.39% 

6. Expenses of Management to Gross Direct Premium Ratio  

 Direct Commission   8649243 10025190

 Operating Expenses   30594077 25978043  

 Total   39243319  36003233

 Gross Direct Premium   164204698 174299507

 Ratio   23.90% 20.66%

7. Expenses of Management to Net Written Premium Ratio   

 Direct Commission   8649243 10025190

 Operating Expenses   30594077 25978043

 Total   39243319 36003233

 Net Written Premium   137924583 123904670

 Ratio   28.45% 29.06%

295

A
N

N
EX

U
R

E 
II

 :
 A

C
C

O
U

N
TI

N
G

 R
A

TI
O

S

`wZmBQ>oS> B§{S>`m B§í`yaoÝg H§$nZr {b{_Q>oS />





69297

  Net Incurred Claim Percentage

                             For the year ended For the year ended

8. Net Incurred Claims to  31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018
 Net Earned Premium

 Fire 6874134 8454795 89.48% 98.67%

 Marine Cargo 1090425 1055757 58.42% 51.17%

 Marine Hull 1093459 709208 304.96% 268.47%

 Motor 73294013 52721068 120.79% 91.72%

 W.C 351567 148920 51.68% 20.24%

 P.A 2092303 2239866 80.66% 105.90%

 Aviation 69327 279999 149.20% 396.04%

 Engineering 2142610 788610 86.68% 31.08%

 Health 50913188 49221904 112.22% 111.20%

 Liability 178364 150371 20.50% 17.57%

 Other Misc 5261510 5607649 62.44% 58.11%

 Grand Total 143360901 121378149 109.40% 94.38% 

9. Combined Ratio*  

 Net Incurred Claims   143360901 121378149

 Commission (Net)   7327028 6675872

 Operating Expenses   30594077 25978043

 Net Earned Premium   131045080 128609842

 Net Written Premium   137924583 123904670

 Ratio   136.89% 120.73%

10. Technical Reserves to Net Premium Ratio  

 Reserve for Unexpired Risks   69441753 62562250

 Premium Deficiency Reserve   0 0

 Reserve for O/s Claims   182761597 140926731

 Total   252203350 203488981

 Net Written Premium   137924583 123904670

 Ratio   182.86% 164.23%

11. Underwriting Balance Ratio U/W Profit/Loss U/W Profit/Loss 

 Fire -2427988 -2883848 -31.61% -33.66%

 Marine Cargo 225144 516084 12.06% 25.01%

 Marine Hull -918776 -600606 -256.24% -227.36%

 Motor -28160790 -7472327 -46.41% -13.00%

 W.C 115720 396321 17.01% 53.87%

 P.A -298646 -593818 -11.51% -28.08%

For the period
ended 31.03.2019

For the period
ended 31.03.2018

For the period
ended 31.03.2019

For the period
ended 31.03.2018

For the period
ended 31.03.2019

For the period
ended 31.03.2018

(` in '000)
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(` in '000)

Particulars
  U/W Profit / Loss  U/W Profit / Loss         

                             For the Period ended For the Period ended

11. Underwriting Balance Ratio 31-03-2019 31-03-2018 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

 Aviation -119833 -282164 -257.90% -399.10%

 Engineering -623120 1001750 -25.21% 39.48%

 Health -18060072 -15316671 -39.81% -34.60%

 Liability 360086 424176 41.39% 49.56%

 Other Misc -328652 -611118 -3.90% -6.33%

 Grand Total -50236927 -25422221 -38.34% -19.77%

12. Operating Profit Ratio   

 Underwriting Profit   -50236927 -25422221

 Investment Income   29112510 30826003

 Others   -249408 21729

 Operating Profits   -21373824 5425511

 Net Earned Premium   131045080 128609842

 Ratio   -16.31% 4.22%

13. Liquid Assets to Liabilities Ratio   

 Liquid Assets *   41463297 33413404

 Policyholders' Liabilities   252203350 203488981

 Ratio   16.44% 16.42%

14. Net Earnings Ratio   

 Profit after Tax   -18779105 10026584

 Net Written Premium   137924583 123904670

 Ratio   -13.62% 8.09%

15. Return on Networth    

 Profit after Tax   -18779105 10026584

 Networth   28991321 47973414

 Ratio   -64.77% 20.90%

16. Available Solvency Margin Ratio to Required Solvency Margin Ratio  

 Available Solvency Margin   68706900 60482467

 Required Solvency Margin   45326463 39354103

 Ratio   1.52 1.54

17. NPA Ratio    

 Gross NPA Ratio   1.26% 0.36%

 Net NPA Ratio   0.84% 0.00%

*NOTE: In respect of foreign Operations, there is no premium income from Hong Kong Agency(run off), hence calculation 
of net combined ratio for foreign operation does not arise.   

For the period
ended 31.03.2019

For the period
ended 31.03.2018

For the period
ended 31.03.2019

For the period
ended 31.03.2018

For the period
ended 31.03.2019

For the period
ended 31.03.2019

For the period
ended 31.03.2018

For the period
ended 31.03.2018

For the period
ended 31.03.2019

For the period
ended 31.03.2018

69299

A
N

N
EX

U
R

E 
II

 :
 A

C
C

O
U

N
TI

N
G

 R
A

TI
O

S

`wZmBQ>oS> B§{S>`m B§í`yaoÝg H§$nZr {b{_Q>oS />





69301

Summary of Financial Statements

S.No. Particulars  2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15

 OPERATING RESULTS     

1 Gross Premiums Written  16420.47 17429.95 16062.81 12250.36 10691.73

2 Net Premium Income #                     13792.46 12390.47 13346.48 10714.56 9326.02

3 Income from investments (net) @  2911.25 3082.60 2110.60 1753.65 1509.47

4 Other income / outgo (Pl. specify)  -24.94 2.17 -1.10 -3.22 -11.98

5 Total income  16678.77 15475.24 15455.98 12464.99 10823.51

6 Commissions (Net)  732.70 667.59 626.27 513.35 531.29

7 Brokerage     

8 Operating Expenses  3059.41 2597.80 2969.12 2924.07 2648.57

9 Claims, increase in Unexpired Risk 
 Reserve and other outgoes  15024.04 11667.30 14195.68 9492.78 7952.82

10 Operating Profit / loss  -2137.38 542.55 -2335.08 -465.21 -309.17

 NON-OPERATING RESULT     

11 Total income under shareholders' account  259.47 685.41 422.43 721.10 628.41

12 Profit / (loss) before tax  -1877.91 1227.96 -1912.65 255.88 319.24

13 Provision for tax  0.00 225.30 0.88 35.29 18.67

14 Profit / loss after tax  -1877.91 1002.66 -1913.53 220.59 300.57

 MISCELLANEOUS     

15 Policy holders' Account:  *     

 Total funds  25467.73 21816.10 18780.41 15032.24 13716.66

 Total investments     

 Yield on investments     

16 Shareholders' Account*     

 Total funds  2944.13 4819.84 3816.88 5731.20 5589.03

 Total investments     

 Yield on investments     

17 Paid up equity capital  150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00 150.00

18 Net worth  2899.13 4797.34 3816.88 5731.20 5589.03

19 Total assets  37705.16 36184.40 33817.82 28008.04 28726.70

20 Yield on total investments  6.46% 7.71% 8.30% 8.85% 9.35%

21 Earnings per share (Rs.)  -126.69 66.84 -127.57 14.71 20.04

22 Book value per share (Rs.)  193.28 319.82 254.46 382.08 372.60

23 Total Dividend  0.00 0.00 0.00 67.00 61.00

24 Dividend per share (Rs.)  0.00 0.00 0.00 4.47 4.07

# Net of reinsurance     

@ Net of losses     

* Points 15 & 16 may be given seperately, if it is feasable    

(` in Crores)

Annexure III
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United India Insurance Company Limited

Registration No. 545, Date of Renewal with the IRDAI: 22nd January 2018 

STATEMENT SHOWING THE AGE WISE ANALYSIS OF 

THE UNCLAIMED AMOUNT OF THE POLICYHOLDERS AS ON 31.03.2019     

Annexure IV

(` in '000)

Particulars Total
Amount 1 to 6

months
7 to 12
months

13 to 18
months

19 to 24
months

25 to 30
months

Beyond
36 months

AGE-WISE ANALYSIS

31 to 36
months

STALE CHEQUE 
(MACT) 1031013 756378 53903 24538 41537 39103 115554

STALE CHEQUE (NON MACT) 186403 129804 20215 4751 4097 7197 20339

Particulars
Total

Amount 4 to 12
months

13 to 18
months

19 to 24
months

25 to 30
months

Beyond
36 months

AGE-WISE ANALYSIS

31-36
months

OUT OF THE CHEQUES ISSUED BUT NOT ENCASHED BY POLICYHOLDERS/INSURED

Any Excess collection  of 
premium/tax or any other 
c h a r g e s  w h i c h  i s  
r e f u n d a b l e  t o  t h e  
policyholders either as 
terms of conditions of the 
policy or as per law or as 
may be directed by the 
Authority but not refunded 
so far.

488272 195708 21273 45679 37932 27492 36304 123884

Claims Settled but not paid 
to the policyholders / 
insured due to any reasons 
except under litigation from 
the insured/policyholders

Sum due to the insured / 
policyholders on maturity 
or otherwise

NIL

NIL

Cheques issued but not 
encashed by policy 
holders / insured

1217416 886182 74118 29289 45634 46300 135893

Particulars
Total

Amount 4 to 12
months

13 to 18
months

19 to 24
months

25 to 30
months

Beyond
36 months

AGE-WISE ANALYSIS

31-36
months
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 1. हम पु�� करते ह� िक बीमा अ�ध�नयम 1938 क� धारा (3) के तहत बीमा 

 �व�नयामक और �वकास �ा�धकरण(आई आर डी ए) �ारा �दान िकए गए 

 पंजीकरण �माण प� का नवीकरण िकया गया है और यह �दनाकं 31 माच� 

 2019 को मा� है ।

 2. हम �मा�णत करते ह� िक सभी गैर �ववादा�द रा�शयो ं का वैधा�नक 

 �ा�धकारो ंको भगुतान िकया जा चुका है । 

 3. हम एतद�ारा पु�� करते ह� िक वष� के दौरान शेयरधारण का ��तमान(पैटन�) 

 वैधा�नक और �व�नयामक क� अपे�ा के अन�ुप है । वष� के दौरान शेयरो ंका 

 अतंरण नही ंिकया गया है । 

 4. �बंधन एतत�ारा पु�� एवं घोषणा करती है िक भारत म� जारी पॉ�ल�सयो ंके 

 पॉ�लसीधारको ंक� �न�ध को ��� अथवा परो� �प म� भारत के बाहर 

 �नवेश नही ंिकया गया है । 

 5. हम पु�� करते ह� िक आव� यक शोध सीमा बनाए रखा गया है । �पछले पाचं 

 वष� के � यनूतक मे से 100% उ�चत म�ू य प�रवत�न खाता जो िक 

 ` 3454.20 करोड �पये म� आता है को चालू वष� के मकुाबले समायो�जत 

 िकया जाता है । 25 07 2018 �दनाकं और प� सं� या .भा बी �व �व �ा/ 

 एफ एन ए/ भा सरकार /एल आर 001/2018-19/237 के अनसुार 

 � वीका�यता क� गणना के�लए उ�चत म�ू य प�रवत�न खाता का �दनाकं 13 

 माच�  2019 है ।

 6. हम �मा�णत करते ह� िक तुलन प� क� तारीख पर प�रसंप��यो ंके म�ूो ंक� 

 समी�ा कर प�रसंप�� के अवम�ून/म�ू�ास हेतु �ावधान िकया गया है । 

 तुलन प� म� उ���खत प�रसंप��यो ंको- ऋण ,�नवेश,�नवेश हेतु आवेदन 

 रा�श, भारत म� गृह संप��,अ�भकता� शेष, बकाया �ी�मयम, बकाया 

 �ाज,लाभाशं तथा िकराया,उपा�जत िक� ुअदेय �ाज, बीमा कारोबार 

 करने वाले ���यो/ं�नकायो ंसे �ा� रा�शया,ँ पुनब�मा के कारण कंप�नयो ं

 से देय आर��त जमा, �व�वध देनदार, अ��म कर तथा अ� कर 

 भगुतान, नकद, वसूली रिहत वाहन ऋण/ अशंदान( ��र प�रसंप��या ँ

 म�ू�ास के प�ात लागत पर आक�लत है को छोड़कर)का म�ू पूण� योग म� 

 �लया गया है जो �व�भ� शीष�को ंके अतंग�त वसूली या बाजार म�ू से अ�धक 

 न हो । 

 7. हम पु�� करते ह� िक जो�खम �बंधन के �लए कंपनी �ारा ��ेक �वभाग के 

 तहत बीमालेखन सम� जो�खमो ंको �ान से म�ूाकंन और परी�ण िकया  

 गया है । जो�खम �नूीकरण के �लए �भावकारी कदम उठाए गए ह� । कंपनी 

 क� �मता के अन�ु प हर �वभाग के जो�खम �बंधन को �ान म� रखते �ये 

 पुनब�मा काय��म तैयार िकया गया है । संभा� ब�मखुी आपदाओ ं के 

 आधार पर शु� खाते को ��त जो�खम/घटना के अनसुार उ�चत �रो ंपर 

 सुर�ा �दान क� गई है । 

 8. �दनाकं 31.03.2002 को कारोबार क� समा�� पर कंपनी क� हागँकागँ 

 इकाई (एज�सी) म� बीमा लेखन �चालन बंद कर �दया गया । राज� 

 ��व��यो ंतथा प�रसंप��यो ंव देयताओ ंको हमारी लेखा बिहयो ंम� समा�व� 

 िकया जा रहा है । िकसी अ� देश म� कंपनी का कोई काया�लय ��� �प से 

 �चालन म� नही ंहै । 

 9. 0 6 7 / आई. आर.  डी.  ए. / एफ& ए / प�र/ माच� 2 0 0 8  �दनाकं 

 28.03.2008 के अनसुार 31.03.2019 को समा� �पछले पाचँ वष� 

 हेतु शेष दावो ंका वष�वार �व�ेषण अनलु�क म� �दया गया है । 

 10. हम �मा�णत करते ह� िक तुलन प� के �लए सि�य बाजार म� �ापा�रत 

 सा�ा�श शेयरो ंके अ�त�र� अ� �नवेश तथा पार��रक �न�ध क� य�ूनट 

 �जनका शु� प�रसंप�� म�ू घो�षत है, को वा��वक म�ू अथवा कम म�ू 

 पर दशा�ये गए ह� । सि�य �प से �ापा�रत सा�ा�श शेयरो ंको तुलन प� क� 

 तारीख को एन. एस. ई. के अ�ंतम दशा�ये गए म�ू पर म�ूािंकत िकया गया 

 है और जहा ं�ाक एन. एस. ई. म� सूचीब� है उनको तुलन प� क� तारीख पर 

 सा�ा�श शेयरो ंको बी. एस. ई. म� अ�ंतम दशा�ये गए म�ू पर म�ूािंकत 

 िकया गया है । �न�ध �ारा घो�षत तुलन प� क� तारीख पर शु� प�रसंप�� 

 म�ू पर पार��रक इकाइयो ं(व�चर कै�पटल �न�ध रिहत) को म�ूािंकत 

 िकया गया है । व�चर कै�पटल �न�ध के �नवेश का म�ूाकंन म�ू के आधार 

 पर िकया गया तथा जहा ंतुलन प� क� तारीख पर �जन �नवेशो ंका शु� 

 प�रसंप�� म�ू लागत से कम हो उन �नवेशो ंके म�ू के अवम�ून के �लए 

 �ावधान िकया गया है । तुलन प� क� तारीख पर जहा ंशु� प�रसंप�� म�ू 

 उपल� न हो अथवा �न�ध क� अव�ध समा� हो गई हो तो अ�तन उपल� 

 शु� प�रसंप�� म�ू को �लया जाता है । 

2018 - 2019

69304

31.03.2019 को समा� अव�ध के �व�ीय �ववरण के साथ संल� �बंधन ��तवेदन 
बीमा �व�नयामक और �वकास �ा�धकरण(आई आर डी ए )

(बीमा कंप�नयो ंके �व�ीय �ववरण और लेखा परी�ा �रपोट� क� तैयारी) �व�नयम,
2002 के �ावधानो ंके अनसुार तैयार िकया गया है । 
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1. We confirm that the Registration Certificate granted 
under Section 3 of Insurance Act, 1938 by the 
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 
(IRDA) has been renewed and is valid as on 31st 
March 2019.

2. We certify that all the undisputed dues payable to 
statutory authorities have been duly paid.

3. We hereby confirm that the share holding pattern is in 
accordance with the statutory and regulatory 
requirements and there is no transfer of shares 
during the year.

4. The Management hereby confirms and declares that 
the funds of the holders of policies issued in India 
have not been directly or indirectly invested outside 
India.

5. We confirm that required solvency margin has been 
maintained. 100% of the minimum of last five year's, 
Fair Value change account, which come to Rs. 
3454.20 crores, is adjusted against the current year 
Fair Value Change Account, for calculation of 
solvency as allowed by IRDA vide letter 
No.FNA/GUI/COM/001/2018-19/237 dated 13th 
March, 2019.

6. We certify that the values of all the assets have been 
reviewed on the date of the Balance Sheet and 
necessary provisions made for diminution/decline in 
value of assets. The assets set forth in the Balance 
Sheet are shown in the aggregate at amounts not 
exceeding their realisable or market value under the 
headings – Loans, Investments, Application Money 
for Investments, House property in India, Agents 
Balances, Outstanding Premium, Interest, Dividends 
and Rents outstanding, Interest, Dividends and Rents 
accruing but not due, amounts due from persons or 
bodies carrying on insurance business, reserve 
deposits due from companies on account of 
reinsurance, sundry debtors, advance tax and other 
tax payments, cash, vehicle loans on contribution 
basis less recoveries (other than fixed assets which is 
stated at cost less depreciation).

7. We confirm that the company evaluates and 
monitors closely all risks underwritten under each 
portfolio for the risk exposure. Remedial action is 
initiated to mitigate the risks effectively. 
Reinsurance Programme is drawn keeping in view 
the risk exposure on every portfolio commensurate 
with the capacity of the company. The risk 
exposure per risk/event for the net account is 
protected at appropriate levels based on exposure 
to multiple perils.

8. The Company’s Hong Kong Agency has ceased 
underwriting operations with effect from close of 
business as of 31.03.2002. The revenue 
transactions and the assets and liabilities continue 
to be accounted in our books of accounts. The 
Company has no direct operation in any other 
foreign country.

9. Agewise analysis of the claims for the preceding 
five years ending 31.03.2019, in terms of 
067/IRDA/F & A / CIR/March 08 dated 28.03.2008, 
has been given in the Annexure. 

10. We certify that for the purpose of balance sheet, the 
investments other than Actively traded Equity 
shares and units of Mutual Funds (other than 
Venture Capital Funds) which have declared NAV’s 
have been shown at or below cost. Equity shares 
that are actively traded in the market are valued at 
last quoted closing price on NSE as on the balance 
sheet date and where any stock is not being listed in 
NSE, the equity shares are valued on the basis of 
the last quoted closing price on BSE on the balance 
sheet date. Units of Mutual Funds (other than 
Venture Capital Funds) are valued at Net Asset 
Value as at the balance sheet date as declared by 
the funds. Investment in Venture Capital Fund is 
valued at Cost and Provision is made for 
diminution in value of such investment where net 
asset value as at the balance sheet date is lower 
than the cost or wherever Net Asset Value as on the 
balance sheet date is not available, or where the 
term of the fund has expired. 

MANAGEMENT REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON 31.03.2019

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF IRDA

(PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS' REPORT OF

INSURANCE COMPANIES REGULATIONS 2002)
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 सि�य बाजार म� �ापा�रत सा�ा�श शेयरो ंएवं पार��रक �न�ध के सही 

 म�ू म� अ�ा� लाभ/हा�न से उ�� प�रवत�न को राज� खाते म� नही ं�लया 

 गया परंतु �व�नयम के अनसुार सही म�ू प�रवत�न खाते म� िकया गया । सही 

 म�ू प�रवत�न खाते म� �ा�� हेतु लं�बत शेष �वतरण के �लए उपल� नही ंहै ।

 �नवेश,सरकारी ��तभ�ूतयो ंऔर ऋण ��तभ�ूतयो ं(एनपीए को छोड़कर) के 

 बाजार म�ू के आकलन हेतु इनका म�ूाकंन एफ. आई. एम. एम. डी. ए. के 

 मानदंडो ंके आधार पर िकया गया है । सि�य बाजार म� �ापा�रत सा�ा�श 

 शेयरो ं और पार��रक �न�धयो ं क� य�ूनट (व�चर कै�पटल �न�ध के 

 अलावा)जो िक एनपीए घो�षत क� जा चुक� ह� का म�ूाकंन �ावधान रिहत 

 लागत पर िकया गया है, य�द कोई हो । 

 11. �नवेश का �न�ादन 

 ऋण और जमा सिहत �नवेश का खाता म�ू गत वष� के �पए ̀ 26880.31 

 करोड़ से �पए ` 29349.86 करोड़ तक बढ़ गया है । वष� के दौरान शु� 

 संचयन �पए ` 2469.55 करोड़ है जो वष� 2017-18 म� �पए  

`4824.32 करोड़ था । 

 �नवेश आय गत वष� के �पए ` 1719.07 करोड़ क� तुलना म� �पए 
 

` 1814.94 करोड़ है । इसी अव�ध के दौरान औसत �न�ध के सकल लाभ   

गत वष� के 6.46% क� तुलना म� 7.03% है । गत वष� के �पए ` 

2030.62  करोड़ क� तुलना म� चालू वष� म� �नवेश क� �ब��/प�रशोधन पर 

�पए  ̀  1421.75 करोड़ का लाभ अ�जत िकया है । 

 12. कुल �नवेश म� शु� गैर �न�ादन प�रसंप��यो ंका ��तशत 31.03.2019 

 को  0.84% है जो 31.03.2018 को  0.00% था । 

 13. एतत�ारा पु�� क� जाती है िक:-

 अ) 31 माच� 2019 को समा� �व�ीय वष� हेतु वा�षक लेखा ��तवेदन को 

 तैयार करने म� लेखा मानको,ं�स�ातंो ंऔर नी�तयो ंका अनपुालन िकया गया है 

 और व�गुत �वचलन से संबं�धत उ�चत ��ीकरण �दया गया है ;

 आ) �बंधन ने कंपनी के िहत म� ऐसी लेखा नी�तयो ंका चयन िकया और इसे 

 उ�चत और दरंदेशी आकलनो ंसिहत सतत �प से �भावी ढंग से लागू िकया ू

 �जससे िक �व�ीय वष� के अतं म� कंपनी क� प�र���त का और वष� म� कंपनी 

 के लाभ का सही और उ�चत जायजा �मल सके;

 ) �बंधन ने कंपनी क� प�रसंप�� क� सुर�ा और कपटपूण� काय� तथा अ� 

 अ�नय�मतताओ ंक� पहचान एवं उनसे संर�ण के �लए बीमा अ�ध�नयम 

 1938(1938 के 4) /कंपनी अ�ध�नयम 2013 के �ावधानो ंके अनसुार 

 पया�� लेखा �ववरण के रखरखाव के �लए उ�चत और पया�� �ान �दया है;

 ई) �बंधन ने काया��क संगठन आधार पर �व�ीय �ववरण तैयार िकया है ; 

 और 

 उ) �बंधन ने सु�न��त िकया है िक �ापार का आकार व ��प सही है और 

 उसके अनसुार आतं�रक लेखा परी�ा �णाली �भावशाली ढंग से काय�रत है ।

14  संबं�धत प�कारो ंके काय� संचालन के �ववरण को �ट��णयो ंम� �कट िकया 

 गया है जो िक खातो ंका अगं है । 

एस गोपकुमार
�नदेशक और मु� �व�ीय अ�धकारी
िडन: 074542356

पा�रजात द�ा
�नदेशक
िडन: 07039727

�स� ु�प�ै
�नदेशक
िडन: 07399558

�ान: चे� नै
�दनाकं: 31.05.2019



 The unrealized gain/loss arising due to changes in 
Fair Value of actively traded equity shares and mutual 
fund investments are not taken to revenue but are 
taken to the fair value change accounts in accordance 
with the regulations. Pending realization, the balance 
in the fair value change account is not available for 
distribution.

 For the purpose of market value of investments, 
Government Securities and Debt securities other 
than non-performing assets have been valued on the 
basis of FIMMDA guidelines. All other investments 
other than actively traded equity shares and units of 
mutual funds (other than venture capital funds) 
which have declared NAV have been valued at cost 
less provisions made, if any.

11.  Performance of Investment

 Total Book Value of Investments including Loans and 
Deposits has increased to Rs 29349.86 crores from 
26880.31 crores in the previous year. The net 
accretion during the year amounted to Rs 2469.55   
crores as against Rs 4824.32 crores in 2017 – 18.

 The investment income is Rs 1814.94 crores as 
compared to Rs 1719.07 crores in the previous year. 
During the same period, the mean yield on 
Investment funds has been 6.46% as compared to 
7.03% in the previous year. Profit on sale/redemption 
of investments booked during the year is Rs 1421.75 
crores as compared to Rs 2030.62 crores in the 
previous year.

12. The net Non-Performing Assets, as a percentage to 
the total investments is at 0.84 % as on 31.03.2019 
as against 0.00% as on 31.03.2018.

13.  It is hereby confirmed that

 a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2019, the 
applicable Accounting Standards, Principles and 
Policies have been followed along with proper 
explanations relating to material departures; 

 b) the Management has selected such accounting 
policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgements and estimates that were reasonable 
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the company for 
the year;

 c) the Management has taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Insurance Act, 1938 (4 of 1938)/Companies Act, 
2013, for safeguarding the assets of the company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

 d) the Management has prepared the financial 
statements on a going concern basis; and

 e) the Management has ensured that an Internal 
Audit System commensurate with the size and 
nature of the business is in place and is operating 
effectively. 

14. The related party transactions are disclosed in the 
Notes forming part of accounts.
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S GOPAKUMAR
DIRECTOR & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
DIN 07542356

 PARIJAT DUTTA
 DIRECTOR
 DIN 07039727

SINDHU PILLAI
DIRECTOR
DIN 07399558

Place : Chennai
Date : 31.05.2019
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One family. 
One cover. 

“For more details on risk factors, terms and conditions, please read sales brochure carefully before concluding a sale.”

Floater sum insured up to Rs.10 LacsFloater sum insured up to Rs.10 LacsFloater sum insured up to Rs.10 Lacs

No sub-limits on major illnesses No sub-limits on major illnesses No sub-limits on major illnesses 

Free health check-up Free health check-up Free health check-up 

Optional covers for ambulanceOptional covers for ambulance
charges and hospital daily cash benefitcharges and hospital daily cash benefit
Optional covers for ambulance
charges and hospital daily cash benefit

No claim discount No claim discount No claim discount 
Income tax benefit under section 80-DIncome tax benefit under section 80-DIncome tax benefit under section 80-D

For close to eight decades, United India has brought happiness to lakhs of families by taking care of their 

needs when there is a sudden hospitalization expense due to illness, accident or any other reason. And all it 

takes is just one family policy to provide complete medical cover for the entire family. 

So, stay assured that there is ONE COMPANY that always stands by for you – United India. 
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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 

Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 

statements of United India Insurance Company Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its 

subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 

together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and 

jointly controlled entities, which comprise the 

consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the 

consolidated Fire, the consolidated Marine and the 

consolidated Miscellaneous Revenue Accounts, the 

consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the 

consolidated Cash Flow statement for the year then 

ended, and notes to the consolidated financial 

statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information 

(hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial 

statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, except for the 

possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for 

Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements give the information 

required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so 

required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 

the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 

the consolidated state of affairs of the Group, its 

associates and jointly controlled entities, as at March 31, 

2019, Consolidated Revenue Accounts of the Profit/Loss 

for the year ended 31st March 2019 and their 

consolidated loss and consolidated cash flows for the 

year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Note No. 21(a) and 21(b) to the financial statements, refer 

to non-obtention of year end confirmation from other 

insurance companies and consequential impact on the 

financials, if any, of adjustment/ reconciliation is not 

ascertainable.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditors’ 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated 

Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Holding Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 

statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 

and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to the following matter in the Notes to 

the Consolidated financial statements:

1. Note No. 22(a) & 22(b) to the statements, regarding 

deferment of pension and gratuity liability of the holding 

company of the earlier years absorbed in the current year 

to the extent of ` 2519992 thousand pursuant to the 

approval granted by the Insurance Regulatory and 

Development Authority of India vide its circular no: 

IRDA/F&A/CIR/ACTS/077/04/2016 dated 18-April-2016 

and Letter No. IRDA/F&A/GUI/LR/003/2018-19/49 dated 

10.07.2018. 

For Pension, as per the directions of IRDAI vide their letter 

No.FNA/GUI/COM/001/2018-19/156 dated 04.12.2018, 

the entire unabsorbed amount of ` 40000 thousands as 

on 31.03.2018 (previously absorbed ̀  60000 thousands) 

has been accounted for during this year.   Had the entire 

amount been absorbed in the year 2015-16, the losses for 

the year ended 31.03.2019 would be lower by ` 40000 

thousands.

For Gratuity, as per the directions of IRDAI vide their letter 

No.FNA/GUI/COM/001/2018-19/156 dated 04.12.2018, 

the entire unabsorbed amount ` 2479992 thousands as 

on 31.03.2018 (previously absorbed ` 619998 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the members of United India Insurance Company Limited
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thousands) has been accounted for during this year. Had 

the entire amount been absorbed in the year 2017-18, the 

losses for the year ended 31.03.2019 would be lower by  ̀  

2479992 thousands.

2. Note No. 18(b) to the statements, regarding 

deferment of liabilities for Claims Incurred But not 

Reported (IBNR) and Claims Incurred But not Enough 

Reported (IBNER) of the company to the extent of 

` 23744700 thousand pursuant to the exemption granted 

by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority 

of India vide its Letter No. IRDA/FNA/GOG/LR/001/2017-

1 8 / 6 6  d a t e d  2 5 . 7 . 2 0 1 7  a n d  L e t t e r  N o .  

IRDA/FNA/GOG/LR/001/2017-18/67 dated 27.7.2017.

As per the directions of IRDAI vide their letter 

No.FNA/GUI/COM/001/2018-19/156 dated 04.12.2018, 

the entire unabsorbed amount of ` 7914900  thousands 

as on 31.03.2018 (previously absorbed ` 15829800 

thousands) has been accounted for during the year. Had 

the entire amount been absorbed in the year 2016-17, the 

losses for the period ending 31.03.2019 would be lower 

by ̀  7914900 thousands.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 

with Governance for the Consolidated Financial 

Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible 

for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of 

these consolidated financial statements that give a true 

and fair view of the consolidated financial position, 

financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the 

Company in accordance with the Insurance Act, 1938, the 

Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India 

(Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report 

of Insurance Companies) Regulation 2002, (“the 

Regulation”) the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, read 

with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to 

the extent applicable and in the manner so required. This 

responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 

the Companies Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; selection and application of 

appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of 

Directors is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors 

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for 

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, and to issue an Auditors’ report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 

in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional 

skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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 Identify and assess the risks of material  

 misstatement of the consolidated financial  

 statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

 perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 

 and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

 appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 

 risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

 resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

 from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

 intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 

 override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 

 to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 

 are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 

 143(3)(I) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

 responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 

 the Holding company has adequate internal financial 

 controls system in place and the operating 

 effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 

 used and the reasonableness of accounting 

 estimates and related disclosures made by 

 management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 

 use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

 based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 

 material uncertainty exists related to events or 

 conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

 Holding Company’s ability to continue as a going 

 concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

 exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

 Auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 

 financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

 inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

 are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 

 date of our Auditors’ report. However, future events 

 or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

 continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 

 content of the financial statements, including the 

 disclosures, and whether the financial statements 

 represent the underlying transactions and events in a 

 manner that achieves fair presentation.

 We communicate with those charged with 

 governance regarding, among other matters, the 

 planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 

 audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 

 in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 We also provide those charged with governance with 

 a statement that we have complied with relevant 

 ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

 communicate with them all relationships and other 

 matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 

 our independence, and where applicable, related 

 safeguards. 

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of a subsidiary, 

whose financial statements reflect total assets of 

` 192393 thousands as at 31st March, 2019, total 

revenues of ` 26956 thousands and net cash flows 

amounting to ` 1569  thousands for the year ended on 

that date, as considered in the Consolidated financial 

statements. The Consolidated financial statements also 

include the Group's share of net profit of ` 51790 

thousands for the year ended 31st March, 2019, as 

considered in the Consolidated financial statements, in 

respect of two associates, whose financial statements / 

financial information have not been audited by us. These 

financial statements / financial information have been 

audited by other auditors whose reports have been 

furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on 

the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it 

relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 

respect of these subsidiary and associates and our report 

in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, 

insofar as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and 

associates, is based solely on the reports of the other 

auditors.

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements, and 

our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with 

respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 

the other auditors.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report 

 that:

a) We / the other auditor whose reports we have relied 

 upon, have sought and obtained all the information 

 and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

 and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

 audit of the aforesaid Consolidated financial 

 statements.

b) Except for the possible effects of the matter 

 described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 

 Paragraph, in our opinion, proper books of account 

 as required by law have been kept by as so far as it 

 appears from our examination of those books and 

 proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit 

 have been received from the branches not visited by 

 us.

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 

 Revenue Accounts, the Consolidated Profit and Loss 

 Account and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 

 dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 

 books of account maintained for the purpose of 

 preparation of the Consolidated financial statements.

d) Except for the possible effects of the matter 

 described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion 

 Paragraph, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated 

 financial statements comply with the Accounting 

 Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 

 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

 2014.

e) As per the Notification No. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 

 05.06.2015, sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the 

 Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to 

 Government Companies.

f) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial 

 control systems and the operating effectiveness of 

 such controls, we give our Report in Annexure – I 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

 Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

 Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

 opinion and to the best of our information and 

 according to the explanations given to us:

 i. The Consolidated financial statements disclose 

  the impact of pending litigations on the  

  Consolidated financial position of the group and 

  its associates-Refer Note No.3 to the  

  Consolidated financial statements;

 ii. The Group and its associates did not have any 

  material foreseeable losses on long-term  

  contracts including derivative contracts.

 iii. There were no amounts which were required to 

  be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

  Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its 

  subsidiary company and associate company 

  incorporated in India.

For A John Moris & Co  

ICAI FRN :007220S 

Chartered Accountants

For A V Deven & Co                                                  For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co 

ICAI FRN : 000726S                                                   ICAI FRN :004721S

Chartered Accountants                                               Chartered Accountants

CA R Raghuraman                                                     CA P B Srinivasan
Partner                                                                       Partner
Membership No.201760                                            Membership No.203774

CA G Kumar 
Partner 
Membership No.023082  

Place: Chennai
Date: 31.05.2019
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Annexure – I to Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause 
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of United India Insurance Company 
Limited (“hereinafter referred to as “the Holding 
Company”) its subsidiary company and its associate 
company which are companies incorporated in India, as 
of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the Holding 
Company for the year ended.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding 
company, its subsidiary company and its associate 
company, which are companies incorporated in India, are 
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued 
by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
Auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting 
and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 

of collusion or improper management override of 

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 

may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal financial control over financial reporting may 

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 

that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us 

and based on our audit, the material weakness has been 

identified as at March 31, 2019 as below:

The Company did not have appropriate internal controls 

for obtention of year end confirmation of balances from 

other insurance companies and reconciliation.

A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of 

deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial 

reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the company's annual or interim 

financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a 

timely basis.

In our opinion, except for  the effects/possible effects of 

the material weakness described above on the 

achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the 

Holding Company, its subsidiary company and its 

associate company, which are companies incorporated in 

India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and 

such internal financial controls over financial reporting 

were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on 

the internal control over financial reporting criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India.

We have considered the material weakness identified and 

reported above in determining the nature, timing, and 

extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 

2019 Consolidated financial statements of the Company, 

and the material weakness has affected our opinion on the 

Consolidated financial statements of the Company and we 

have issued a qualified opinion on the Consolidated 

financial statements.

In our opinion , the Holding Company, its subsidiary 

company and its associate company, which are 

companies incorporated in India, have, in all material 

respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting and such internal financial 

controls over financial reporting were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Other Matters

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(I) of the Act 

on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar 

as it relates to one subsidiary company and one associate 

company which are companies incorporated in India, is 

based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of 

such companies incorporated in India. In respect of one 

foreign associate company adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of Internal Financial controls over Financial 

Reporting is not being reported since reporting under 

section 143 (3)(I) is not applicable.

For A John Moris & Co 

ICAI FRN :007220S 

Chartered Accountants

For A V Deven & Co                                                  For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co

ICAI FRN : 000726S                                                   ICAI FRN :004721S

Chartered Accountants                                               Chartered Accountants

CA R Raghuraman                                                     CA P B Srinivasan
Partner                                                                       Partner
Membership No.201760                                            Membership No.203774

CA G Kumar 
Partner 
Membership No.023082  

Place: Chennai
Date: 31.05.2019
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DIRECTOR GENERAL OF COMMERCIAL AUDIT AND 

EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, AUDIT BOARD, CHENNAI

(R. AMBALAVANAN) 

The preparation of financial statements of United India 

Insurance Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 

2019 in accordance with the financial reporting 

framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 

(Act) is the responsibility of the management of the 

company. The statutory auditors appointed by the 

Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 

139 (5) of the Act are responsible for expressing opinion 

on the financial statements under section 143 read with 

section 129 (4) of the Act based on independent audit in 

accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed 

under section 143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have 

been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 31 May 

2019.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of 

India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the 

consolidated financial statements of United India 

Insurance Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 

2019 under section 143 (6) (a) read with section 129 (4) 

of the Act. We conducted a supplementary audit of the 

financial statements of United India Insurance Company 

and Zenith Securities and Investment Limited, but did 

not conduct supplementary audit of the financial 

statements of Health Insurance TPA of India Limited for 

the year ended 31 March 2019. Further, Section 139 (5) 

and 143 (6) (a) of the Act are not applicable to India 

International Insurance Pte Ltd., Singapore, being 

private entity incorporated in Foreign Country under the 

respective laws, for appointment of their Statutory 

Auditor nor for conduct of supplementary audit. 

Accordingly, Comptroller and Auditor General of India 

has neither appointed the Statutory Auditors nor 

conducted the supplementary audit of this company.

This supplementary audit has been carried out 

independently without access to the working papers of 

the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries 

of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a 

selective examination of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, I would like to highlight 

the following significant matters under section 143 (6) (b) 

of the Act which have come to my attention and which in 

my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding 

of the financial statements and the related audit report.

(A) Comments on Financial Position

         Schedule 14 - Provisions - ̀  7,625.12 Crore

           Provisions for Loans, Investments and Other    

 Assets - ̀  245.65 Crore

The Company has invested  275.24 crore in Non-`

Convertible Debentures of Infrastructure Leasing & 

Financial Services (IL&FS) and its subsidiary companies. 

There were principal and interest defaults on the 

investment during the year and the Company has created a 

provisions of  27.52 crore (10 per cent) towards the book `

value of the Investment.

As per the proceedings before National Company Law 

Tribunal, IL & FS and its subsidiary companies have been 

placed under the ‘Red’ category by new Board of Directors 

appointed by the Union Government to manage the affairs 

of the IL & FS group of companies, which means that such 

entities cannot meet their payment obligations towards 

even senior secured financial creditors. Considering these 

developments, the Company should have made full 

provision against diminution in value of the above 

investment.

This has resulted in understatement of Provisions as well 

as loss for the year by  247.72 crore.`

Place: Chennai
Date: 20.07.2019

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES 

ACT, 2013 ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UNITED INDIA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED, 

CHENNAI FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

For and on behalf of the 

C         omptroller & Auditor General of India
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 (ii)  in the case of all classes of treaty reinsurance 
business, other than marine  cargo, 40% of the 
premiums and for marine cargo, 25% of the 
premiums; and

 (iii)  the actual acquisition cost is taken into account 
in the computation in respect of direct and 
facultative reinsurance business, except for marine 
cargo.

 b) Deferred acquisition costs

    Commission and other acquisition costs incurred 
during the financial period that vary with and are 
related to securing new insurance contracts and/or 
renewing existing insurance contracts, but which 
relates to subsequent financial periods, are deferred 
to the extent that they are recoverable out of future 
revenue margins. Deferred acquisition costs ("DAC") 

are calculated using the 365th method on actual 
commission. All other acquisition costs are 
recognised as an expense when incurred.

 An impairment review is performed at each 
reporting date and, if required, the carrying value is 
written down to the recoverable amount.

 10. The financial statements of the subsidiary and  
associates used in the consolidation are drawn up to 
the same reporting date as that of the Company i.e. 
31st March, 2019, except for the India International 
Insurance Pte Ltd  an associate for which financial 
statements as on reporting date are not available. 
These have been consolidated based on latest 
available financial statements.

B. The list of subsidiary company, and associates 
which are included in the consolidation and the 
company holdings therein are as under: 

Name of the Company    Ownership in %   Country of Incorporation

Subsidiary company  

Zenith securities and Investments Ltd   69.45%    India

Associates  

India International Insurance Pte Ltd    20.00%    Singapore

Health Insurance TPA of India Limited    23.75%    India

2.  ACCOUNTING CONVENTION:

 The financial statements  are prepared under the 
historical cost convention in accordance with the 
accounting principles prescribed by The Insurance 
Regulatory and Development Authority Of India 
(Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor's 
Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2002, 
the Insurance Act, 1938, the Insurance Regulatory 
and Development Authority Act, 1999, Orders / 
Circulars / Notifications issued by Insurance 
Regulatory and Development Authority Of India 
(IRDAI) from time to time, the applicable Accounting 
Standards notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

3. USE OF ESTIMATES: 

 The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with the generally accepted accounting 
principles requires the management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amount of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses 
and disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the date 
of the financial statements. The estimates and 
assumptions used in the accompanying financial 
statements are based upon the management's 
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as 
of the date of the financial statements. Actual results 
may differ from estimates and assumptions used in 
preparing these financial statements.
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4. SHAREHOLDERS’/POLICYHOLDERS’ FUNDS:

4.1. Shareholders’ funds consists of Share Capital plus 
all Reserves and Surplus (except Revaluation 
reserve and fair value change account) net of 
accumulated losses and Miscellaneous expenditure 
to the extent not written off as at the balance sheet 
date.

4.2. Policyholders’ funds consists of: 

a) Outstanding claims including Incurred but not 
Reported (IBNR) and Incurred but not enough 
reported(IBNER);

b) Unearned Premium Reserve; 

c) Premium Deficiency Reserve; if any

d) Catastrophe Reserve, if any; and 

e) Other Liabilities net of Other Assets

 Other Liabilities in point (e) above, comprise of (i) 
Premium received in advance (ii) Unallocated 
premium (iii) Balance due to Other Insurance 
companies (iv) Due to other members of a pool such 
as third party pool; Terrorism pool; etc (v) Sundry 
creditors(due to policyholders).

 Other Assets in point (e) above, comprise of (i) 
Outstanding premium (ii) due from other entities 
carrying on insurance business including Re 
insurers(iii) balance with Pool such as Third Party 
Pool; Terrorism Pool; etc.

5. PREMIUM:

5.1 Direct Business:

5.1.1 Premium income is recognised on assumption of 
risk and adjusted for increase or    decrease in 
reserve for unearned premium, calculated as per 5.3 
below.

5.1.2    Premium refunds including for the free-look period 
are accounted on the basis of endorsements passed 
during the year. 

 5.2 Reinsurance:

5.2.1   Premium income is recognized based on the  

returns/advices received from foreign reinsurance 
companies received upto 31st March. 

5.2.2    Premium Income in respect of Indian Reinsurers is 
recognized based on returns received upto 
finalization of accounts of the relevant accounting 
year. Wherever returns are not received upto 
finalization of accounts, the same has been 
estimated.   

5.2.3    Premium on cessions are recognized on the basis 
of the premium underwritten by the operating 
offices. Wherever full technical particulars are not 
available, reinsurance cessions are estimated on the 
basis of information available.

5.2.4    Pool Acceptances/ Cessions: Premium, Claims, 
Service charges, Investment income and expenses 
in respect of Terrorism Pool Retro / Nuclear Pool are 
accounted as per the statements received from GIC 
(Pool Administrator). Wherever statements are not 
received, the same is estimated and accounted for. 
Premium, Claims, Service charges and expenses of 
our cessions in respect of Terrorism Pool / Nuclear 
Pool are accounted up to 31st March..

5.3 Reserve for Unexpired Risk:

 Reserve for Unexpired Risk comprises of Unearned 
Premium Reserve and Premium Deficiency 
Reserve.

 (i) Unearned Premium Reserve (UPR):- 

 Unearned Premium Reserve is made on the amount 
representing that part of net premium written which 
is attributable to, and allocated to the succeeding 
accounting periods at  50% of net premium, except 
in the case of Marine Hull business, Nuclear Pool 
and Terrorism(Fire and Engineering), where it is 
made at 100% of net premium.

 (ii) Premium Deficiency Reserve:-

 Premium deficiency is calculated where the sum of 
expected claims costs, related expenses and 
maintenance costs exceed the related unearned 
premium. The premium deficiency is recognized as 
per IRDA guidelines.
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6. CLAIMS:

6.1 Direct Business:

a. Claims are recognized as  and when intimated

b. All expenses directly attributable to claims including 

exchange fluctuations gains / losses are accounted 

as part of claims.

c. Outstanding claims at the year-end:-

 Estimated Liability for outstanding claims at the year 

end are provided on the basis of  survey reports, 

advices of Leaders, past experience,  other 

applicable laws, information provided by clients and 

other sources upto the date of finalization of 

accounts,.

 In respect of unidentified motor third party claims 

outstanding for more than one year, provision is 

made at the rate of 100% of the estimated liability. In 

other cases provision is made at the rate of 1/3rd of 

the estimated liability.

6.2 Reinsurance:

a. Claims are recognized as and when intimated.

b. Liability for outstanding claims in respect of Inward 

Acceptances (Indian) is based on returns received 

up to finalization of accounts. Liability for 

outstanding claims in respect of Inward 

Acceptances (Foreign) is based on returns received 

up to 31st March. Wherever returns are not received 

upto finalization of accounts, the same has been 

estimated on actuarial valuation.

6.3 IBNR/IBNER:

 Claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and 

Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) is made 

on the basis of actuarial valuation. 

6.4 Salvage and Claim related Recoveries:

 Recoveries under claims and disposal of salvage are 

accounted on realisation and are credited to claims.

7. EXPENSES OF MANAGEMENT:

7.1 Apportionment of expenses:

 Expenses of Management are apportioned to the 

Revenue Accounts on the basis of gross direct 

premium plus reinsurance accepted, giving 

weightage of 75% for Marine business and 100% 

for Fire and Miscellaneous business. Expenses 

relating to policy stamps and reinsurance are 

directly taken to respective Revenue Accounts. 

Expenses relating to Investment, such as safe 

custody, collection of interest/dividend, bank 

charges etc., are apportioned between Revenue 

Accounts and Profit and loss Account based on 

policyholders’ and shareholders’ funds as on the 

Balance Sheet date.

7.1.1  Sundry credit balances not pertaining to  

 policyholders’ balances are written back to profit 

 and loss account.

7.2 Depreciation:

 Depreciation on fixed assets is charged on written 

down value method based on useful life of the 

Assets and considering residual value upto 5% of 

original cost as per Schedule II to the Companies 

Act, 2013, except in case of Motor Cars covered 

under New Conveyance Scheme 2011, for which 

useful life adopted is 5 years.

7.2.1  Cost of Lease Hold properties is amortized over 

 the period of lease or useful life of the asset, as 

 per Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,  

 whichever is shorter .

7.3 Employee Benefits:

7.3.1 Short-term employee benefits:

 The undiscounted amount of short-term employee 

benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the 

services rendered by employees is recognized 

during the period when the employee renders the 

service. 

7.3.2 Post –Employment benefit Plans:

 Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit 

schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

 For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing 

benefits is determined using the Projected Unit 

Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being 

carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial 

gains and losses are recognized in full in the Profit 

and Loss account for the period in which they occur. 

Past service cost is recognized immediately to the 

extent that the benefits are already vested, and 

otherwise is amortized on straight-line basis over 

the average period until the benefits become vested.
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8. TRANSLATION/CONVERSION OF FOREIGN 

CURRENCIES:

8.1 Items of income and expenditure, Monetary items as 

at the Balance Sheet date of foreign branch and 

foreign currency transactions in Indian operations 

are translated as under:

 8.1.1 Items of income and expenditure at the rates 

prevailing on the date of transaction.  

 8.1.2 Monetary items as at the Balance Sheet date 

are converted at the exchange rates prevailing at that 

date.

 8.2 Exchange differences on account of 

translation of the balances relating to foreign branch 

(non-integral) is accumulated in a Foreign Currency 

Translation Reserve until the closure of the 

operation. On the closure of this non-integral 

foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the 

exchange differences which have been deferred will 

be recognized as income or as expenses in the year 

of such closure.

8.3 The difference in translation arising out of foreign 

currency transaction in Indian operations is 

recognized in the relevant Revenue accounts / Profit 

and Loss Account as applicable.

9. LOANS & INVESTMENT:

9.1.   Purchase and sale of shares, bonds & debentures 

are accounted for on the date of contract (trade 

date).

9.2. The cost of investment includes Securities 

Transaction Tax (wherever applicable), premium on 

acquisition and other direct expenses incurred for 

the acquisition of the investment and is net of 

commission / fee earned thereon. The net sale 

consideration is arrived at after reducing brokerage 

and Securities Transaction Tax in respect of equity.

9.3. Investments in Equity Shares and Venture Capital 

Funds are classified as Long term Investments. 

Investments which are performing and maturing 

within 12 months from the Balance Sheet date are 

classified as Short Term Investments. All other 

inves tments  inc lud ing  Non-Per forming  

Investments are classified as Long term 

Investments.

9.4. Money market instruments such as Certificate of 

Deposit, Commercial Papers and CBLO (TREP) 

which are discounted at the time of contract, are 

accounted at their discounted value..

9.5  Investments in debt securities including 

Government Securities and redeemable Preference 

Shares are shown at cost subject to amortization.  

The premium, based on weighted average cost is 

amortized for the period from the date of latest 

purchase of the instrument till the date of maturity/ 

redemption, by considering put/ call option, if any.

9.6.  Investments in Equity shares that are actively traded 

are valued at last quoted closing price on NSE 

(Primary Exchange) as on the Balance Sheet date. 

However, in case of any stock not being listed/not 

traded in NSE, Equity shares will be valued based on 

last quoted closing price in BSE(Secondary 

Exchange) as  on the Balance Sheet date.  

Investments in Equity shares of companies outside 

India that are quoted and actively traded are valued 

at last quoted price at London Stock Exchange as on 

the Balance Sheet date.  The unrealized gains / 

losses are recognized in Fair Value Change account -

Shareholders/Policy Holders.

9.7.  Investments in Unlisted / Thinly traded equity shares 

including shares held in companies incorporated 

outside India are valued at cost and provision is 

made for diminution in value of such investments 

when break-up value is lower than the cost. In case 

the break-up value is negative, provision is made @ 

100% of book value.

9.8.a) Investment in units of Mutual funds, are valued at 

 Net Asset Value as at the Balance Sheet date as 

 declared by the funds and unrealized gains /  

 losses are recognized in Fair Value Change 

 account -Shareholders/Policy Holders.

 b) Investments in Venture Capital Funds/Alternative 

 Investment Funds (VCF/AIF) are valued at Cost. 

 Provision is made for diminution in value of such 

 investments where Net Asset Value as at the 

 Balance Sheet date is lower than cost. Wherever 

 the Net Asset Value as on Balance Sheet date is 

 not available or where the term of the fund has 

 expired, provision is made on the Book Value in 

 the following manner: C
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9.9.     Impairment: 

 9.9.1 . Impairment is recognized in respect of Equity 

 shares of companies which have been 

 continuously incurring losses during three 

 immediately preceding years and the capital of 

 which has been partially or fully eroded, or where 

 the audited annual accounts for the three 

 immediately preceding years are not available.

9.9.2. Investments are written down as under:

 1. Equity shares, which are actively traded, are 

 written down to their market value.

 2. Equity shares other than actively traded, are 

 written down to the break up value and where the 

 break up value is negative, are written down to 

 Re.1/- per company.

9.9.2.1 Any reversal of impairment loss, earlier 

 recognized in Revenue/Profit & Loss account,     

        a) in respect of Actively Traded Equity shares, shall 

 be recognized in the Revenue/Profit & Loss 

 account 

 i. if the accumulated losses are completely wiped 

 out and 

 ii. The company has shown net profit for three 

 immediately preceding years. 

 b) in respect of other than Actively traded equity 

 shares, shall be recognized in the Revenue/Profit 

 & Loss account, on realization.

9.9.3. The Company follows the prudential norms 

 prescribed by the Insurance Regulatory and 

 Development    Authority / Related RBI 

 guidelines as regards asset classification, 

 recognition of income and provisioning 

 pertaining to loans / advances / debentures.

9.9.4. In respect of preference shares, provision for 

 permanent diminution is made to the extent of 

 100%. The permanent diminution is reckoned as 

 follows:

 a. The preference dividend is not paid for three 

 consecutive years (or)

 b. The maturity proceeds have not been received 

 for three consecutive years (or)

 c. The company has incurred losses in three 

 immediately preceding years and the capital of 

 which has been partially or fully eroded (or)

 d. Where the audited annual accounts for the three 

 immediately preceding years are not available.

A. In Case of Non Availability of Latest NAV:

      Provision: Where NAV<Book Value  Provision: Where NAV>Book Value

 Upto 1 yr.   Difference between Book Value and NAV  Nil

 Upto 2yrs   Difference between Book Value and NAV or 
      10% of Book Value whichever is higher  10% of Book Value

 Upto 3yrs   Difference between Book Value and NAV or 
      20% of Book Value whichever is higher  20% of Book Value

 Upto 4yrs   Difference between Book Value and NAV or 
      50% of Book Value whichever is higher  50%   of Book Value

 Above 4 yrs.   100% of Book Value    100%  of Book Value

B. Term of Fund (Including Extension):
    
           Provision

 On expiry of term(i.e.original term or term as extended) of 
 fund upto 18 months      Provision as in A above

 After 18 months      100%
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9.10.  Profit or Loss on realization / sale of investment is 

 computed by deducting the weighted average 

 book value of each investment.

9.11.  Dividend income (other than interim dividend) is 

 accounted for as income in the year of 

 declaration.  Interim dividends, dividend on 

 Equity held outside India and dividend on 

 Preference Shares are accounted on receipt 

 basis. Income from shares and debentures, 

 which are under objection / pending delivery, is 

 accounted for on receipt basis. 

9.12.  Revenue with respect to Venture Capital Funds is 

 recognized on Receipt basis.

9.13.  Amounts received towards compensation for 

 future loss of interest is recognized as income 

 only to the extent attributable to the accounting 

 year and the balance is kept in interest received in 

 advance account for apportionment in the 

 relevant years.

9.14.  Investment income, profit/loss on sale / 

 realization of investment, expenditure relating to  

 investments, amortization of premium on 

 investments, amount written off / written down in 

 respect of depreciated investments, provision for 

 non performing investment / diminution in value 

 are apportioned to Revenue accounts and Profit 

 & Loss account on the basis of Policy holders’ 

 Funds and Share holders’ Funds as on the 

 Balance Sheet date as per IRDAI Regulation 

 (Circular IRDA/F&A/CIR/CPM/056/03/2016 

 dated April 04,2016).

9.15.  Investments made out of Policyholders’ Funds 

 are segregated and disclosed separately as on the 

 Balance Sheet date   as per IRDAI Regulation 

 (Circular IRDA/F&A/CIR/CPM/056/03/2016 

 dated April 04,2016).

10. a) FIXED ASSETS:

  Fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition less 

 accumulated depreciation.  Direct costs are 

 capitalized till the assets are ready to be put to 

 use.  These costs include freight, installation 

 costs, duties, taxes and other allocated expenses. 

 Further, any trade discounts and rebates are 

 deducted in arriving at the cost.

 b) INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

  Intangible Assets are stated at cost of  

 development / acquisition less accumulated 

 amortisation. The same is amortised over a 

 period of three years on straight line basis. 

 Software development / acquisition costs, except 

 those which meet the recognition criteria as laid 

 down in Accounting Standard 26 (AS 26), are 

 charged to revenue.

11. TAXATION:

11.1  Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e 

 amount of tax for the period determined in 

 accordance with the income-tax law) and 

 deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax 

 effects of timing differences between the 

 accounting income and taxable income for the 

 period).  The deferred tax charge or credit and the 

 corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets 

 are recognized using the tax rates that have been 

 enacted or substantively enacted as on the 

 balance sheet date.

11.2  Provision for current tax is made after due 

 consideration of the applicable judicial 

 pronouncements and opinions from the 

 company’s counsel.

11.3  Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance 

 with the tax laws, which gives future economic 

 benefits in the form of adjustment to future  

 income tax liability, is considered as an asset if 

 there is convincing evidence that the Company 

 will pay normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is 

 recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet when 

 it is probable that future economic benefit 

 associated with it will flow to the Company.

11.4  Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the 

 extent there is reasonable certainty that the 

 assets can be realized in future.  In the case of 

 unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss 

 under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are 

 recognized only to the extent there is virtual 

 certainty that the deferred tax assets can be 

 realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at 

 each balance sheet date. C
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12. LEASE CHARGES:

 Leases, where the lessor effectively retains 

substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership 

of the leased item, are classified as operating leases. 

Operating lease payments are recognized as an 

expense in the statement of profit and loss on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term. All lease 

agreements are cancellable at the option of the 

company.

13. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES(CLAIMS 

OTHER THAN THOSE UNDER POLICIES):

13.1 The Company creates provision based on a reliable 

estimate for the present obligation of a past event 

that might cause outflow of resources in future.

13.2 Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when 

there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 

that may or may not require an outflow of resources. 

13.3 Contingent assets are neither recognized nor 

disclosed in the financial statements.
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II. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS: CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. List of Entities consolidated and their respective share of Net assets and Profit/loss

Parent:                 

United India Insurance 

Company Limited 93.21% 72241766 94.99% 98534103 100.34% -18893962 100.06% 9894288

Subsidiary:                

Indian                

1. Zenith securities and 

Investments Ltd 0.82% 633831 0.58% 606714 -0.09% 16578 0.10% 9726

Minority Interests in subsidiary -0.11% -84468 -0.08% -80139 0.03% -5064 -0.29% -29101

Associates (Investment as per

 the equity method)                

Indian                

1. Health Insurance TPA of 

India Limited 0.29% 222994 0.21% 220186 -0.01% 2807 -0.16% -15626

Foreign                

1. India International Insurance 

Pte Ltd 5.80% 4494036 4.29% 4453469 -0.26% 48983 0.29% 29022

Total 100.00% 77507548 100.00% 103734333 100.00% -18830658 100.00% 9888309

Name of the entity
Net Assets, i.e., total assets 

minus total liabilities
Share in profit or loss

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount
(` in 

thousands) 

As % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount
(` in 

thousands) 

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount
(` in 

thousands) 

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount
(` in 

thousands) 

2018-19 2017-18 2017-182018-19

Consolidated profit for the year   (  '000)`

 Profit attributable to: 2018-19 2017-18

 Owners of the company -18830658 9888309

 Minority Interests 5064 29101

2.Impact of change in Accounting Policies 

(A.)Free look period :

Existing Policy:

Direct business: Premium refunds are accounted on the basis of endorsements passed during the year.

Revised Policy: 

Direct business: Premium refund including refund for the free-look period  are accounted on the basis of endorsements 
passed during the year.

Impact on the Accounts: NIL
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(B.) Accounting of Terrorism Pool / Nuclear Pool Retro:

Existing Policy: 

Pool Acceptances/ Cessions: Premium, Claims, Service charges, Investment income and expenses in respect of Terrorism 

Pool Retro / Nuclear Pool are accounted as per the statements received from GIC (Pool Administrator) up to finalisation of 

accounts. Premium, Claims, Service charges and expenses of our cessions in respect of Terrorism Pool / Nuclear Pool are 

accounted up to 31st March.

Revised Policy: 

Pool Acceptances/ Cessions: Premium, Claims, Service charges, Investment income and expenses in respect of Terrorism 

Pool Retro / Nuclear Pool are accounted as per the statements received from GIC (Pool Administrator). Wherever 

statements are not received, the same is estimated and accounted for. Premium, Claims, Service charges and expenses of 

our cessions in respect of Terrorism Pool / Nuclear Pool are accounted up to 31st March.

Impact on the Accounts: NIL

(c)  Accounting Policy 8.4 (Inclusion of TREP):

Existing Policy:  Money market instruments such as Certificate of Deposits, Commercial Papers and CBLO which are 

discounted at the time of contract, are accounted at their discounted value.

Revised Policy: Money market instruments such as Certificate of Deposits, Commercial Papers and CBLO (TREP) which 

are discounted at the time of contract, are accounted at their discounted value.

Impact on the Accounts: NIL

3. Contingent Liabilities: 

 Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

 On partly paid investments 800 800

 Claims other than those under policies, not 

 acknowledged as debts  1230174  1246431

 Underwriting commitments outstanding

 (in respect of shares and securities) 0 0

 Guarantees given by or on behalf of the Company 0 0

 Statutory demands / liabilities in dispute, not provided for 11559501 5217803

 Reinsurance obligations to the extent not provided for in accounts 0 0

 Others (Bank Guarantee) 950 950

 Note: The Income Tax authorities have adjusted the refund due to the company amounting to  3964312  `

 thousands (  3568087 thousands).`

(  '000)`

69403
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    (c) Advances and Deposits include: -

I.  50000 thousands (  50000 thousands) deposited with Bombay Stock Exchange towards Margin Money for trading ` `

 in Capital Market as per SEBI circular dated 19-03-2008 regarding Margin of Institutional Trades in the Cash Market.

ii.  150000 thousands (  150000 thousands)deposited with National Stock Exchange towards Margin Money for  ` `

  trading in Capital Market as per SEBI circular dated 19-03-2008 regarding Margin of Institutional Trades in the Cash 

 Market.

iii.  200 thousands (  100 thousands) by way of margin money has been deposited with Clearing Corporation of India ` `

 for CBLO (TREP) operation.

  (` '000)

                                                              Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Deposits towards margin money for issue of letters of credit / bank guarantee  7000 7000

Deposits made in court as per orders /attachments of bank accounts for claims  40918 14000

Deposits made to comply with Overseas Statutory requirements 0 0

10.70% GOI 2020 deposited with Clearing Corporation of India for CBLO 
operation – FV ` 41800 thousands (` 41400 thousands) 42031 41845

(b) Investments made in accordance with statutory requirements: NIL.

5. (a)  Encumbrances to assets of the company within and outside India.

6. Commitments made and outstanding on account of loans, investments and fixed assets:

 Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Loans and Investment   190000  190000

Commitments for Estates  1631249 1781953

Commitments for EDP/Core Insurance Project 852346 1358936

Stamp duty and Registration charges and pending conveyance (estimated at) 65664 40884

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed (Net of Advances paid) 75353 92495

(  '000)`

4. Contingent Assets:

 MAT Credit Available        2018 – 19 2017 – 18

 FY 2014-15         12211637  12211637

 FY 2015-16         272132  272132

 FY 2016-17         2082320  2082320

 FY 2017-18         928089 

 Total         15494178  14566089

Company can utilize the above MAT Credit within 10 years for the tax payable over and above applicable MAT on that year.  

(  '000)`
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10. Segregation of Investments into performing and non-performing assets for the purpose of Income 
recognition:

                                                 (  '000)`

 Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

 Performing Assets 289793069 267831388

 Non-Performing Assets 3705489 971709

 Total  293498558 268803097

(NPA current year includes entire exposure in Debentures of IL & FS Companies –  2752315 thousands)`

The aggregate amount of income not recognized for the current accounting year on NPA (net of waiver/ collections) as 
per related IRDA guidelines is  1108345 thousands (Previous Year  715351 thousands) and up to 31st March 2019 ` `
is  7247715 thousands (Previous Year  6139371 thousands).` `

11. Loan assets subject to Restructuring as on 31-03-2019.  (  '000)`

 Sl.No Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

 1. Total amount of loan assets subjected to restructuring  92696  95667 

 2. The amount of standard assets subjected to restructuring  19627  22397 

 3. The amount of Sub-Standard assets subjected to restructuring 0 0

 4. The amount of Doubtful and other assets subjected to restructuring 73069   73269

(i)  As per Part I of Schedule B of IRDA (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance 

 Companies) Regulations 2002, Debt Securities shall be considered as ‘Held to  Maturity Securities’ and shall be 

 measured at Historical costs subject to amortization. Amortization of premium is done for the period from the date of 

 latest purchase of the instrument till the date of maturity/redemption, by considering put/call option, if any.

(ii) In accordance with the regulation prescribed by IRDA, unrealized gains (net) amounting to  34541962 thousands `

 (  41986705 thousands) arising due to changes in the fair value of listed equity shares and mutual funds are taken to `

 fair value change account. The historical cost (net of write off) of such investments amounted to  79097579   `

 thousands (  71403855 thousands). Pending realization the credit balance in the fair value change account is not `

 available for distribution.

7. Other income includes interest on income tax refund of NIL (NIL).

8. An amount of ` 225000 thousands (` 225000 thousands) has been transferred to debenture redemption reserve 

towards redemption of non-convertible Debentures.

9. The Housing Loan portfolio of the company has been assigned in favour of GIC Housing Finance Ltd (GICHFL) to the 

extent of  ̀  144.35 crores, as per undertaking dated 29th March, 2019 at an Interest rate of 8.4% per annum. 

 Housing loan balances as on 31st March 2018 where the loan has been serviced regularly for more than 6 months 

(90%) and less than 6 months (80%) has been assigned in favour of GIC Housing Finance Ltd. The original property 

documents will be held in trust by UIIC on behalf of GIC Housing Finance Ltd. The difference between Interest of 8.4% 

as agreed with GIC Housing Finance Ltd and the interest amount recovered from the employees is absorbed by the 

company.
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12. In accordance with Circular No IRDA/F&I/CIR/INV/250/12/2012 dated 4/12/2012, the details of exposure in 
Repo/Reverse Repo transactions are given below:   

               Minimum  Maximum Daily Average 
Outstanding

        Particulars outstanding outstanding outstanding 
as on

 during the year during the year during the year 

  31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Securities Sold 
under Repo

(I) Government  NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
 Securities 

(ii) Corporate Debt 
 Securities NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Securities Purchased 
under Reverse Repo 

(iii) Government  505564 2221499 505564 2286622 505564 671525 NIL NIL
 Securities 

(iv) Corporate Debt  NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
 Securities 

(  '000)`

13. The Company does not have Real Estate 

Investment Property  .

14. Fixed Assets include :-

A) Land - Leasehold includes land acquired from IFCI 

Infrastructure Development Ltd at Bangalore 

Financial City, amounting to ` 39761 thousands 

(` 39761 thousands) on sub - lease - cum - sale 

agreement, which will be registered in the name of 

the company after completion of construction of 

office complex within the time limit specified 

therein. The time limit for completion of civil 

construction work and commencement of 

activity/business was up to 06th December 2018.

 As many of the sub allottees have not completed 

construct ion,  I IDL (IFCI Infrastructure 

Development Limited) had requested KIADB 

(Karnataka Industrial Areas Development Board) to 

extend the time limit for Implementation of the 

project by the sub allottees for a further period of 3 

years.

 KIADB vide its letter dated 3rd September, 2018 

informed its board decision advising IIDL to 

approach the State High Level Single Window 

Clearance Committee (SHLSWCC) for approval of 

further extension of time.

 The company has constructed compound wall  at 

the site. The company has remitted Rental and 

leasing service charges and maintenance service 

charges for the period December 2018 to 

November 2019.The company has requested vide 

letter dated 01st Nov, 2018 to grant extension for 

one year to complete the construction and start the 

operation. The letter for extension is awaited from 

IFCI.

B) Buildings valued at ̀  141759 thousands (` 316615 

thousands) are pending for Conveyance and 

Registration. This includes a property under 

dispute amounting to ` 6878 thousands 

(` 12355 thousands).

C) Title deeds in respect of 6 properties under the 

Freehold and Leasehold lands included in schedule 

10 (Fixed Assets) are in the name of erstwhile 

companies merged with United India Insurance 

Co. Ltd. One lease deed for property at Ellis Bridge, 

Ahmedabad valued at ` 2334 thousands (` 2334 

thousands) is not available.
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15. Sundry Creditors include an amount of ̀  1775241 
thousands (` 1427851 thousands) being cheques 
issued from zero balance payment with designated 
bank account.

16.  Terrorism Pool retro figures received from GIC 
(Pool Administrator) accounted in 2018-19  
includes figures for the 3 quarters received and 
estimated for last quarter.

17. The Company is a member of India Nuclear 
Pool Insurance with a participation of   ̀2000000 
thousands (administrated by GIC with a 
collective capacity of ` 15000000 thousands). For 
the year 2018-19 a sum of  ̀  1000000 thousands 
(` 1000000 thousands) was collected by leader 
(New Ind ia  Assurance  Co.  L td . )  and
have accounted ` 2 22222 thousands (  ̀  222222 
thousands) as our share of premium on direct side 
and the same was ceded @ 100%. RI inward 
was booked at  ̀ 132220 thousands ( ̀ 132000 
thousands) and is accounted under Liability 
Premium. Reserve for Unexpired Risks for Nuclear 
Pool is made at 100% of Net Premium.

18. (A) As per the Actuarial Valuation the IBNR/IBNER 
Reserves as on 31st March 2019 is ` 81526800 
thousands (` 57860600 thousands), resulting in 
additional provisioning in the current year 
amounting to ` 23666200 thousands (` 8469900 
thousands). This includes Motor TP IBNR 
amortization of 2016-17 of ` 7914900 thousands 
absorbed in the current year.

 (B) As per the Actuarial Valuation the IBNR/IBNER 
Reserves as on 31st March 2017 was ` 49390700 
thousands as against ̀  21052000 thousands as on 
31st March 2016, resulting in substantial 
provisioning in the previous year amounting to 
` 28338700 thousands. Incremental Provisioning 
for the Motor TP Segment alone was ` 23744700 
thousands .  IRDAI  v ide  i t s  l e t te r  no .  
IRDA/FNA/GOG/LR/001/2017-18/66 dated 
25.07.2017 and letter no IRDA/FNA/ GUI/LR/002/ 
2017-18/67 dated 27.07.2017 has permitted to 

amortize the incremental IBNR/IBNER Reserves 
relating to Motor TP of ̀  23744700 thousands over 
a period of three years beginning from the year 
2016-17. As per the directions of IRDAI vide their 
letter No. FNA/GUI/COM/ 001/2018-19/156 dated 
04-12-2018, the entire unabsorbed amount of 
` 7914900 thousands as on 31.03.2018 
(`15829800 thousands) has been accounted for 
during this year. 

 Note: Had the entire amount been absorbed in the 
year 2016-17, the losses for the period ending 
31.03.2019 would be lower by ` 7914900 
thousands 

19. The Company’s Agency at Hong Kong ceased 
underwriting operations with effect from 
01.04.2002 and the transactions relating to run off 
operations have been accounted. Pending final 
IBNR/IBNER report, the NIL provision based on the 
Actuary's report for the previous year has been 
considered for current year. The company incurred 
a sum of ` 2814 thousands (` 2681 thousands) 
towards expenditure for managing the Run off 
operations during 2018-19 and three claims 
amounting to ` 22033 thousands (  ̀ 22897 
thousands) are outstanding as on 31.03.2019.

20. Reconciliation of Inter-Office accounts is in 
progress and in the opinion of the Company, the 
effect of the same will not be material.

21. a) Balances Due from / Due to other persons or 
bodies carrying on Insurance business, are settled   
periodically. However, confirmations of balance 
have not been received for year-end balances.

 b) In respect of Reinsurance, settlements are 
effected to brokers /reinsurers based on statement 
of accounts. However, confirmations of balance 
have not been received for year-end balances.

 c) Deposits, Advances & Other Accounts include a 
sum of  ̀ 5473499 thousands (` 6431101 
thousands) recoverable from Central/ State 
Government towards various schemes.
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(  '000)`

      As on 31-03-2019   As on 31-03-2018

Less than 1 year     4009460   5130852

1 – 3 years     165087   1037923

More than 3 years     1298952   262326

Total      5473499   6431101
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22. Pension & Gratuity

 A) Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, vide its Circular No.  IRDA/F&A/CIR/ACT/077/04/ 
2016 dated 18.04.2016,  had a l lowed amort izat ion of  addi t ional  Pension l iab i l i ty  of  
` 100000 thousands arising out of extension of Pension Scheme 1995 to PSU Officer’s and Staff Members who 
joined between 01.04.2004 to 31.03.2010, over a period of five years commencing from the year 2015-16. 
Accordingly, the company has amortised one fifth of the total liability every year. As per the directions of IRDAI vide 
their letter no. FNA/GUI/COM/001/2018-19/156 dated 04.12.2018, the entire unabsorbed amount of ` 40000 
thousands as on 31-03-2019 (previously absorbed ̀  60000 thousands) has been accounted for during this year. 

( '000)`

Total liability 100000

Amortized in year 2015-16 20000

Amortized in year 2016-17 20000

Amortized in year 2017-18 20000

Amortized in year 2018-19 40000

Unrecognized and unamortized gratuity liability 
as on 31-03-2019 Nil

 Pension

Particulars Amount to be Amortized for Extension of Scheme

Note: Had the entire amount been absorbed in the year 2015-16, the losses for the period ending 31.03.2019 would be 
lower by  40000 thousands.`

B) Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India, vide its Letter No. IRDA/F&A/GUI/LR/002/2018-19/28 dated 
07.05.2018, has permitted amortization of additional Gratuity liability of  3099990 thousands arising out of increase in `
limit of gratuity from  10 lakhs to  20 lakhs, over a period of five years commencing from the year 2017-18. During the ` `
F Y 2018-19, the company has charged to revenue  2479992 thousands (  619998 thousands), from the total determined ` `
liability of  3099990 thousands. `

Note : Had the entire amount of  3099990 thousands been charged in the year 2017-18, the loss of the Company for the `
year ended 31st March 2019 would have been lower by  2479992 thousands.`

23. Retirement benefits to employees

 (i) Provident fund

 Eligible employees (employees not opted for pension plan) receive benefits from the provident fund, which is a 
 defined contribution plan. Aggregate contributions along with interest thereon are paid at retirement, death, 
 incapacitation or termination of employment. Both the employee and the Company make monthly contributions to 
 the United India Insurance Employee's Provident Fund Trust equal to a specified percentage of the covered 
 employee’s salary. The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the 
 investments of the trust and the interest rate notified by the trust.

 The Company recognized ̀ 181120 thousands (` 194835 thousands) for provident fund contribution in the Revenue 
 Accounts and Profit and Loss account.

 (ii) Gratuity

 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible 
 employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, 
 incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure 
 of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Plan 
 are determined by actuarial valuation as of the balance sheet date, based upon which, the company contributes all 
 the ascertained liabilities to the United India Insurance Employees’ Gratuity Fund Trust (the “Trust”).Trustees 
 administer contributions made to the Trust and contributions are invested in specific investments as permitted by 
 law.
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A. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation:

                               Pension Fund                          Gratuity Fund
                              Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 31447233 30664975  11139240 7978470 

Current service cost 795669 822708  349695 162225 

Interest cost 2402729 2293919  869456 628379 

Actuarial (gain)/loss 2277304 737598  (1996523) (9536)

Amount Amortized during the year 40000 910000  2479992 714998 

Past Service Cost 0 0 0 2479992

Benefits paid (4997391) (3981967)  (1327737)  (815288) 

Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 31965544 31447233  11514123 11139240 

(  in '000)`
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 (iii)(a) Superannuation/ Pension

 The Company provides for monthly pension, a defined benefit retirement plan (the “pension Plan”) covering eligible 

employees. The pension Plan provides a monthly pension after retirement of the employees till death. The Monthly 

pension is based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion 

of ten years of service. The company pays the monthly pension by purchasing the annuity from Life Insurance 

Corporation of India. Liabilities with regard to the pension Plan are determined by actuarial valuation as of the balance 

sheet date, based upon which, the company contributes all the ascertained liabilities to the United India Insurance 

Employees’ Pension Fund Trust (the “Trust”). Trustees administer contributions made to the Trust and contributions 

are invested in specific investments as permitted by law.

 (iii) (b) New Superannuation/ New Pension

 New pension scheme which is applicable to employees who joined the company on or after 1st April 2010 is a defined 

contribution scheme. The company pays fixed contribution at predetermined rate and the obligation of the company 

is limited to such fixed contribution. 

 The Company recognized `192841 thousands (`322741 thousands) for pension contribution in the Revenue 

Accounts and Profit and Loss account.

 (iv) Leave encashment

 The employees of the Company are entitled to Leave Encashment. The employees can carry forward a portion of the 

unutilized accrued Leave Encashment and utilize it in future periods or receive cash compensation at retirement or 

termination of employment for the unutilized accrued Leave Encashment for a maximum of 240 days. The company 

records an obligation for Leave Encashment in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase 

this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of Leave Encashment as the additional amount that the 

company expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date based on 

actuarial valuation.

 (v) Sick Leave 

 The company has provided for ̀ 118707 thousands (`130712 thousands) as liability towards Sick Leave entitlement 

for employees based on actuarial valuation.

 The following table sets out the funded status of gratuity/pension plan and the amounts recognized in the company’s 

financial statements as at March 31, 2019.
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B. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets:

                                    Pension Fund                         Gratuity Fund
                                Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 29837287 26732973  7690208  6416609 

Expected return on plan assets 2292111 2304179  578224  577146 

Actuarial gain/(loss) 91922 50100  106707  (50236) 

Received from other companies 0 0 0 115

Employer contribution 2164375 4732002  3449440  1561862 

Benefits paid (4997391) (3981967)  (1327737)  (815288) 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 29388303 29837287  10496842  7690208 

(  '000)`

C.    Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations:

                                    Pension Fund                        Gratuity Fund
                                   Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year 29388303 29837287  10496842  7690208 

Present value of obligations as at the end of the year 31965544 31447233  11514123  11139240 

Amortized Liability 40000 0 2479992  (2479992)

Unfunded liability/ (asset) recognized in the 
Balance Sheet 2617241 1609946  3497273  969040 

D. Expense recognized in the Profit and Loss account:

                                                                  Pension Fund        Gratuity Fund
Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Current service cost 795669 822708  349695  162225 

Interest cost 2402728 2293919  869456  628379 

Expected return on plan assets (2292112) (2304179)  (578224)  (577146) 

Net Actuarial (gain)/loss 2185382 687498  (2103230) 40700 

Received from other companies 0 0 0  (115) 

Amortization During the year 40000 910000 2479992  714998 

Total expenses recognized in the Profit and Loss account 3131668 2409946  1017689  969041 

Actual return on plan assets (2384032) (2354279)  (684931)  (527025) 

E. Investment percentage maintained by the trust   

                                                           Pension (Funded)       Gratuity (Funded)
              Particulars

  2018-19 2017-18 2018-19 2017-18

Government securities 14.75 16.47 26.86 28.54

High Quality Corporate Bonds 22.52 26.46 4.20 10.30

Equity Shares of Listed Co. 1.05 1.11 0.00 0.00

Special Deposit Scheme (Mutual Fund) 0.00 1.54 0.00 6.38

Balance with Life Insurance Corporation of India  61.68 54.42 68.94 54.78

 (in %) 

(  '000)`

(  '000)`
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F. Principal Actuarial assumption at the Balance sheet date (expressed as weighted average)

                               Pension Gratuity  Leave Encashment
               Particulars

  (Funded) (Funded) (Unfunded)

Discount rate 8.00 8.00         7.60

Expected rate of return on plan assets 8.30 8.30    NA 

Rate of escalation in salary 3.25 3.25   NA 

Employee turnover  Not significant

Mortality L IC (2006-08) for serving employees and 
   LIC (1996-98) for retired members

Method used P rojected Unit Credit Method

G. Basis of Actuarial assumption considered 

                              Particulars              Basis of assumption 

Expected rate of return on plan assets One year Interest rate

Rate of escalation in salary The estimate of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation 
takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 
factors, such as supply and demand in employment market

 (in %) 

H. (1) Amount recognized in current year and previous four years:

                                      Year Ended
     Particulars (Pension)

  31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2017 31-03-2018 31-03-2019

Defined Benefit Obligation 24200000  26950000  28804975  31447233  31965544

Plan Assets 24200000  24171275  24872973  29837287  29388303

Surplus/ (Deficit) 3384623  360403  66  (1782348)  (339937)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan obligation 3405045  3139128  3932068  (172402)  2237304

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets 20422  0  (2359131) 50100  91922

          H.     (2) Amount recognized in current year and previous four years:

                                      Year Ended
     Particulars (Gratuity)

  31-03-2015 31-03-2016 31-03-2017 31-03-2018 31-03-2019

Defined Benefit Obligation 6910000  7021000  7978470  11139240 11514123

Plan Assets 6910000  6620508  6416609  7690208 10496842

Surplus/ (Deficit) 269023  (42319)  85841  (4173566) (1017281)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan obligation 119761  358173  1647701  (724534) 483469

Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets (149262)  0  242026  (50236) 106707

24. Short Term Benefits to employees

 Short-term employee benefits, which fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the 

employees render the related service, such as Leave Travel Subsidy (LTS), Medical Benefits, etc., are provided based 

on estimates.

(  '000)`

(  '000)`
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25. Related party disclosures (AS 18):  
 a. Name of the related party and their relationship with the company:
  i). Subsidiary
   M/s. Zenith Securities and Investments Limited
  ii). Associates 
   M/s. India International Insurance Pte Ltd., Singapore
           M/s. Ken India Assurance Co Ltd., Kenya
   M/s. Health Insurance TPA of India Ltd., India
  iii). Key Management Personnel
   Shri M N Sarma Chairman cum Managing Director (Till 31-05-2018)
   Shri Girish Radhakrishnan, Chairman cum Managing Director (From 29-10-2018)
   Smt P Hemamalini, Director (till 30-06-2018)
   Shri B Balachandra, Director (till 30-04-2018)
   Shri K Govindrajan, Director (From 01-05-2018 to 30-06-2018)
   Shri K B Vijaysrinivas, Director (From 01-07-2018 to 31-10-2018)
   Shri S Gopakumar, Director (From 03-08-2018)
   Shri DTV Sastri, CFO (From 02-04-2018 to 10-08-2018)
   Shri S Gopakumar, CFO (From 10-08-2018)
   Shri S Venkataraman, Company Secretary (till 31-05-2018)
   Ms Anagha Shantanu Deshpande, Company Secretary (From 01-06-2018)
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b) Details of Transactions :

Sl. 
No.

Particulars
M/s. Ken India 

Assurance 
Co. Ltd.

Key
Managerial
Personnel

M/s. India 
International

Insurance Pte. Ltd.

1  Transactions during the year    
a.  Dividend received during the year    
   31-03-2019  26399 3439 NIL NIL
   31-03-2018 46587 3179 NIL NIL
b.  Investment in Equity    
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil Nil  Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil 118750 Nil
c.  Reinsurance transactions 
  - Due to Direct 
   31-03-2019 49400 Nil Nil Nil
   31-03-2018 16538 Nil Nil Nil
  - Due from Direct 
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil Nil Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil Nil Nil
d.  Director's Remuneration Received 
   31-03-2019 Nil 153 Nil Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil 275 Nil Nil
e.  Salaries, Allowances and Contributions 
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil Nil 29874
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil Nil 14015
f.  Rent received    
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil 815 Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil 221 Nil
g.  TPA fees paid during the year    
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil 135944 Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil 30306 Nil
h.  TPA fees payable    
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil 39539 Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil 23418 Nil
2  Balances as on 31-03-2019
  Loans given 
   31-03-2019 Nil Nil Nil Nil
   31-03-2018 Nil Nil Nil Nil

M/s. Health
Insurance TPA of

India Ltd.

(  '000)`
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32. The Company was appointed as Fund Manager for “Environment Relief Fund” (ERF) vide Ministry of Environment and 

Forest’s Gazette Notification dated 4.11.2008 for a period of five years and vide latest notification no. G.S.R. 606(E ) 

dated 16th June, 2016, the company’s position as Fund Manager was extended up to 31st March 2019. Pending 

receipt of clarification regarding Constitution, statutory requirements and other operational issues, the Company in 

terms of the said notification has recognized Fund Manager's service charges (net of expenses) to the tune of   5699 `

thousands (  5547 thousands) as income during the year, based on the unaudited accounts of the Fund.`

33.  1) During the period 2014-15, fraud was detected by the Divisional Manager at DO Latur regarding irregularities of 

mis-utilisation of scroll and the same is under Investigation by CBI. The employees involved in the fraud have also 

been charge sheeted by the Vigilance Department. The matter is under investigation by Serious Fraud Investigation 

Office (SFIO). The case is also under detailed investigation by an Independent Firm of Chartered Accountants 

appointed by the Company.

 2) During the Financial year 2017-18, Internal Audit and Inspection Department has brought out several instances 

of financial irregularities in DO1 Surat in the appointment of advocates, surveyors, investigator and also in some 

heads of expenditure.  The Case is under investigation by SFIO.

 3) Cash Defalcation of 16,37,574/- happened during the Financial year 2017-18 in (Micro Office Kishtwar) at DO 2 `

Jammu is under investigation by the Vigilance Department.

34. Disclosures required under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 under the 

Chapter on Delayed Payments to Micro and Small Enterprises.
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                                                          Particulars 31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the year Nil Nil

Interest due on the above amount Nil Nil

Amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006. Nil Nil

Amount of payments made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the year Nil Nil

Amount of interest due and payable for the delay in making the payment but without 

adding the interest specified under the Act  Nil Nil

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year Nil Nil
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         For and on behalf of Board

ANAGHA DESHPANDE                          S GOPAKUMAR           GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN   
COMPANY SECRETARY               CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  CHAIRMAN CUM 
         MANAGING DIRECTOR       
      DIRECTORS 

Vide our report of even date attached
For A V Deven & Co                        For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co              For A John Moris & Co   
ICAI FRN :000726S                        ICAI FRN :004721S  ICAI FRN :007220S   
Chartered Accountants              Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants   

      
CA R Raghuraman                        CA P B Srinivasan  CA G Kumar   
Partner                          Partner            Partner   
Membership No.201760               Membership No.203774  Membership No.023082   

      
Place: Chennai
Date: 31.05.2019
 

 The above information have been compiled to the extent such parties have been identified based on information 

available with the company.

35. Regrouping/reclassifying/ rearranging of previous year figures has been done wherever necessary to conform to the 

current year groupings/ classifications. 

36. Figures in the narrative part of financial statements are in thousands of Rupees, conforming to IRDAI norms.

37. Figures given in brackets relate to previous year.
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FORM AOC-I

 1 Sl. No.  1

 2 Name of the subsidiary ZENITH SECURITIES AND INVESTMENT LTD

 3 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different 
  from the holding company’s reporting period N.A

 4 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date 
  of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign  
  subsidiaries. N.A

 5 Share capital 2000

 6 Reserves & surplus 170287

 7 Total assets 192393

 8 Total Liabilities 20106

 9 Investments 171280

 10 Turnover 26956

 11 Profit before taxation 19598

 12 Provision for taxation 3020

 13 Profit after taxation 16578

 14 Proposed Dividend 0

 15 % of shareholding 69.45%

 1 Names of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence 
  operations   NIL

 2 Names of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated 
  or sold during the year   NIL

(  '000)`

Notes :

(Pursuant to first provisio to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)  
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/joint ventures  

Part “A” : Subsidiaries

         For and on behalf of Board

ANAGHA DESHPANDE                          S GOPAKUMAR           GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN   
COMPANY SECRETARY               CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  CHAIRMAN CUM 
         MANAGING DIRECTOR       
      DIRECTORS 

Vide our report of even date attached
For A V Deven & Co                        For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co              For A John Moris & Co   
ICAI FRN :000726S                        ICAI FRN :004721S  ICAI FRN :007220S   
Chartered Accountants              Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants   

      
CA R Raghuraman                        CA P B Srinivasan  CA G Kumar   
Partner                          Partner            Partner   
Membership No.201760               Membership No.203774  Membership No.023082   

      
Place: Chennai
Date: 31.05.2019
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Part “B”: Associates

 1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2019 31.12.2018

 2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company 
  on the year end  

  No.     28500000* 10000000

  Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture 285000 18276

  Extend of Holding % 23.75% 20%

 3. Description of how there is significant influence By Shareholding  By shareholding

 4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not Consolidated N.A N.A

 5. Networth attributable to Shareholding as per latest 
  audited Balance Sheet 222994 4494036

 6. Profit / Loss for the year  

  i.Considered in Consolidation 2807 48983

  ii.Not Considered in Consolidation 9013 195932

 1. Names of Associates or joint ventures  
  which are yet to commence operations NIL

 2. Names of Associates  or joint ventures 
  which have been liquidated or sold during the year NIL

Notes :

* (including one share held by Nominee Director)

(  '000)`

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Health Insurance TPA
of India Limited

India International 
Insurance Pte. Ltd.,

Singapore
Name of Associates / Joint Ventures

         For and on behalf of Board

ANAGHA DESHPANDE                          S GOPAKUMAR           GIRISH RADHAKRISHNAN   
COMPANY SECRETARY               CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  CHAIRMAN CUM 
         MANAGING DIRECTOR       
      DIRECTORS 

Vide our report of even date attached
For A V Deven & Co                        For P B Vijayaraghavan & Co              For A John Moris & Co   
ICAI FRN :000726S                        ICAI FRN :004721S  ICAI FRN :007220S   
Chartered Accountants              Chartered Accountants  Chartered Accountants   

      
CA R Raghuraman                        CA P B Srinivasan  CA G Kumar   
Partner                          Partner            Partner   
Membership No.201760               Membership No.203774  Membership No.023082   

      
Place: Chennai
Date: 31.05.2019
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